
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

BOARD  
OF 

COMMISSIONERS 
MEETING 

 
 
  



 
****Revised to Split Resolution #1555 into Resolution #1555A and #1555B**** 

 
CAPITAL CITY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 

Board of Commissioners Meeting 
Conference Room, Fifth Floor, 121 N. 9th Street 

June 11, 2018 12:00 p.m. 
A G E N D A 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER .............................................................................................................. Chair Zuckerman 

II. AGENDA CHANGES/ADDITIONS ..................................................................................... Chair Zuckerman 

III. CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Expenses 
1. Approval of Paid Invoice Report – May 2018 

 
B. Minutes and Reports 

1 Approval of May 14, 2018 Meeting Minutes 

 
C. Other 

1. Approve Resolution #1552 – 801 N Main Street – Wells Fargo Center Retail – Type One 

Participation Agreement with ODC-FIC, LP [Designation 5/14/18, NTE $150,000] 

 

IV. ACTION ITEM  

A. CONSIDER: Resolution #1556 - Approve 30th St Plan Amendment (DeAnnex) (5 minutes) 

 ................................................................................................................................... Shellan Rodriguez 
 

B. CONSIDER: Resolution #1555A - Approve RMOB Plan Amendment Option A (DeAnnex) (5 minutes) 

 ................................................................................................................................... Shellan Rodriguez 

 

C. CONSIDER: Resolution #1555B - Approve RMOB Plan Amendment Option B (DeAnnex) (5 minutes) 

 ................................................................................................................................... Shellan Rodriguez 

 
D. CONSIDER: Resolution #1542 - Central District Termination (10 minutes) .......................... Ross Borden 

 
E. CONSIDER: Capitol & Front Garage Disposition Approve Revised RFP (5 minutes) ........ Laura Williams 

 
F. CONSIDER: Resolution #1551 – Awarding Contract for 10th & Front Garage Concrete Repairs Project 

(5 minutes) ......................................................................................................................... Kathy Wanner 
 

G. CONSIDER: Resolution #1553 - Central District CMGC Contract Amendment, GMP #3 (5 minutes) 
 ........................................................................................................................................ Doug Woodruff 
 

H. CONSIDER Resolution #1554 - Westside Downtown Urban Park Master Development Agreement  
(15 minutes) ..................................................................................................................... Doug Woodruff 
 

V. INFORMATION/DISCUSSION ITEMS 

A. CCDC & CTA Present Preliminary Findings for Shoreline Urban Framework and Feasibility Study 

 ........................................................................................................... Shellan Rodriguez/Doug Woodruff 

 

B. Secure Bike Parking Update (5 minutes) ............................................................................. Matt Edmond 

 



 
C. ParkBOI System Update (5 minutes) ....................................................................................... Max Clark 

 
D. Operations Report (5 minutes) ............................................................................................ John Brunelle 

 

VI. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

Deliberate regarding acquisition of an interest in real property which is not owned by a public agency; consider records that are exempt 
from disclosure as provided in chapter 1, title 74, Idaho Code; and communicate with legal counsel to discuss the legal ramifications 
and legal options for pending litigation or controversies not yet being litigated but imminently likely to be litigated [Idaho Code Section 
74-206(1) (c), (d) and (f)].  

 

VII. ADJOURN 

This meeting is being conducted in a location accessible to those with physical disabilities. Participants may request reasonable 
accommodations, including but not limited to a language interpreter, from CCDC to facilitate their participation in the meeting. For 
assistance with accommodation, contact CCDC at 121 N 9th St, Suite 501 or (208) 384-4264 (TTY Relay 1-800-377-3529). 

 



 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

III.  
CONSENT 
AGENDA 

 
 
  

















MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

CAPITAL CITY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
121 N. 9th St., Conference Room 

Boise, ID 83702 
May 14, 2018 12:00 p.m. 

 
I. CALL TO ORDER:  
Chairman Zuckerman convened the meeting with a quorum at 12:02 p.m. 
 
Present: Commissioner Gordon Jones, Commissioner Maryanne Jordan, Commissioner Scot 
Ludwig, Commissioner Ryan Woodings, and Commissioner Dana Zuckerman.  
 
Commissioner Ben Quintana arrived at 12:06 p.m. 
Absent: Commissioner David Bieter 
 
Agency staff members present: John Brunelle, Executive Director; Todd Bunderson, 
Development Director; Max Clark, Parking and Mobility Director; Ross Borden, Finance & 
Administration Director; Mary Watson, General Counsel & Contracts Manager; Doug Woodruff, 
Senior Project Manager; Karl Woods, Project Manager; Laura Williams, Project Manager; Matt 
Edmond, Project Manager; Shellan Rodriguez, Real Estate Development Manager; Kathy 
Wanner, Contracts Specialist; and Sandy Lawrence, Administrative Assistant. Also present was 
Agency legal counsel, Ryan Armbruster. 
 

II. AGENDA CHANGES/ADDITIONS: 
The Board gave unanimous consent to move agenda item Information/Discussion Item A: Ada 

County Assessor’s Annual Report to be heard immediately following the Consent Agenda in 

order to accommodate the Assessor’s schedule.  

Agency legal counsel, Ryan Armbruster noted that when the meeting agenda was sent out there 

was a duplicate entry in the Consent Agenda: Item C – Approve FY 2018 Q2 Financial Report. 

This has been removed from the agenda.  

 

III. CONSENT AGENDA: 
A. Expenses 

1. Approval of Paid Invoice Report – April 2018 

 
B. Minutes and Reports 

1. Approval of April 9, 2018 Meeting Minutes 

 
C. Other 

1. Approve Resolution #1541 - CSHQA’s Professional Design Services Task Order 14-

015 Amendment #1 for Central District Public Improvements 

2. Approve Resolution #1547 – Approving Easement Agreements for BoDo Sidewalks 

3. Approve FY 2018 Q2 Financial Report, October 1, 2017 thru March 31, 2018 

(Unaudited) 

 



Commissioner Woodings made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda. 

Commissioner Jordan seconded the motion 

Commissioner Ludwig recused himself from voting on the consent agenda based on previous 

recusals concerning his interest in certain properties within the River Myrtle project area. 

All said aye, the motion carried 4-0 

 
 
IV. ACTION ITEM  
 

A. CONSIDER: Resolution #1548 - to Quitclaim 11th & Myrtle Remnant to City of 

Boise 

Mary Watson, CCDC General Counsel & Contracts Manager, gave a report.  

 

Commissioner Woodings moved to adopt Resolution #1548 to quitclaim the 11th & Myrtle 

Remnant Parcel to the City of Boise.  

 

Commissioner Jordan seconded. 

All said Aye, the motion carried 6-0. 

 

 

B. Resolution #1529 – Amend Resolution #1478, RMOB Series 2017 A 

Redevelopment Bonds            

Ross Borden, CCDC Finance & Administration Director, gave a report.  

 

Commissioner Woodings moved to adopt Resolution #1529, amending Resolution 

#1478, the Series 2017A Redevelopment Bond Resolution, to authorize redirecting the 

$2.6 million originally intended to purchase the fifth & Broad Street parking condominium 

to eligible expenses associated with the construction of the new main Library! project. 

 

Commissioner Jordan seconded. 

All said Aye, the motion carried 6-0. 

C. 801 W Main Street – Wells Fargo Center Retail – Type 1 Participation 
Laura Williams, CCDC Project Manager, gave a report.  
 
Commissioner Woodings moved to approve a program modification for the awning 
criteria for the Wells Fargo Center Retail Type 1 Project, and direct staff to negotiate a 
final Participation Agreement with ODC-FIC, LP. 
 
Commissioner Quintana seconded. 

All said Aye, the motion carried 6-0. 

 

D. Resolution #1543 - 6th and Front Project – Approval of the Disposition and 
Development Agreement for 502 West Front Street 



E. Resolution #1544 - 6th and Front Project – Approval of the Type 3 Participation 
Agreement with Front Street Investors, LLC 

F. Resolution #1545 - 6th and Front Project – Approval of the Parking Permit 
Purchase Agreement with Front Street Investors, LLC 
 
Laura Williams, CCDC Project Manager, gave a report.  
 
Commissioner Woodings moved to adopt Resolution #1543 – approving the Disposition 
and Development Agreement for 502 W Front Street, Resolution #1544 – approving the 
Type 3 Participation Agreement with Front Street Investors, LLC and Resolution #1545 – 
a[proving the Parking Permit Purchas Agreement with Front Street Investors, LLC.  
 
Commissioner Quintana seconded. 
All said Aye, the motion carried 6-0. 

 

G. Capitol & Front Garage RFP Update and Process Approval 

Laura Williams, CCDC Project Manager, gave a report.  

 

Commissioner Woodings moved to approve the updated disposition process for the 

Capitol & Front garage and authorize the Executive Director to begin negotiations on the 

open market with interested parties.  

Commissioner Quintana seconded the motion 

 

Commissioner Ludwig moved that there be an addition to the suggested motion, 

provided however, the minimum RFP bid process shall be reviewed for further approval 

following the Executive Director negations on the open market with interested parties. 

There was no second to this motion 

 

Commissioner Woodings moved to withdraw his original motion, concurred with by 

Commissioner Quintana, who had seconded the original motion, thus negating the 

amendment proposed by Commissioner Ludwig. 

 

Commissioner Ludwig then moved to authorize Executive Director and the Executive 

Committee to review and analyze the RFP process as completed and determine whether 

there could be a modified RFP issued and report to the Board of its findings.  

 

Commissioner Jones seconded. 

All said Aye, the motion carried 6-0. 

 

H. Resolution #1550 - Central District Geothermal Type 4 Agreement with City of 

Boise 

Doug Woodruff, CCDC Senior Project Manager, gave a report.  

 

Commissioner Woodings moved to adopt Resolution #1550, approving the Union Block 

Geothermal Project Type 4 Participation Agreement.  



 

Commissioner Jordan seconded. 

All said Aye, the motion carried 6-0. 

V. INFORMATION/DISCUSSION ITEMS: 

A. Ada County Assessor’s Annual Report 

Robert McQuade, Ada County Assessor, gave a report.  

 

B. Central District Sunset – Update 

Ross Borden, CCDC Finance & Administration Director, gave a report.  

 

C. Operations Report 

John Brunelle, CCDC Executive Director, gave a report.  

 

VI. REGULAR MEETING ADJOURNMENT  
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, a motion was made by 
Commissioner Woodings to adjourn the meeting. Commissioner _____________ seconded the 
motion.   
 
All said Aye. 6 - 0 
 

The meeting was adjourned at 1:35 p.m. 

- - - - 
 
 
ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE CAPITAL CITY DEVELOPMENT 
CORPORATION ON THE 11th day of June 2018. 
 
 
 
 

_________________________________ 
Dana Zuckerman, Chair 

 
 
 
 

_________________________________ 
Ryan Woodings, Vice Chair 

 
 

4849-6039-4028, v.  2 



Page 1 

AGENDA BILL 

Agenda Subject: 
Approve Resolution #1552 - 801 W Main Street – Wells Fargo Center 
Retail – Type 1 Participation Agreement with ODC-FIC, LP. 

Date: 
6/11/2018 

Staff Contact: 
Laura Williams 

Attachments: 
1) Resolution #1552 and Agreement
2) Existing Conditions

Action Requested: 
Approve the Type 1 Streetscape Grant Participation Agreement with ODC-FIC, LP 

Background: 

The Wells Fargo Center Retail building was completed in 1988 as part of the Wells Fargo Office 

building development. Located at the corner of Main Street and the North Spoke of The Grove 

Plaza, the building is in the center of downtown Boise. Oppenheimer Development Corporation 

owns the building and tenants include Costa Vida, Snake River Tea, Taters, and Lucky Fins. 

The building owners are updating the exterior including new paint, lighting, and awnings. New 

steel and aluminum awnings will replace the existing pinstriped canvas canopies. The building 

upgrades are estimated to cost approximately $500,000.  

CCDC encourages owner/tenant improvements that refresh downtown buildings, strengthen 

occupancy, and enhance the public realm and pedestrian experience. As part of this project this 

building owners will install new awnings around the building replacing the outdated, lower 

hanging canvas awnings. Awnings enhance the building façade and the pedestrian experience 

by creating a more walkable corridor. Most importantly awnings provide shelter from rain, snow, 

sun not only to building tenants/visitors but also the public at large.  

In 2014, the Board of Commissioners approved CCDC’s Participation Program, which includes 

a Type 1 Streetscape Grant Reimbursement. The Type 1 program is intended to, “assist smaller 

projects on their own schedule, often triggered by a tenant improvement.” The grant will 

reimburse for up to $150,000 of eligible expenses, hard costs for streetscapes and public 

improvements. The Type 1 program can also include awnings located in the public right-of-way. 

CCDC’s Participation Program Policy stipulates several criteria that awnings must meet in order 

to be considered eligible expenses, and the Wells Fargo Center - Retail Building awnings meet 

all of the specifications as follows:  

1. Awnings must be located in the right-of-way or included in a public easement:

There will be 5 awnings located in the Main Street ROW, and 9 awnings in The Grove

Plaza property (owned by CCDC). The owner has received a license agreement from



Page 2 
 

CCDC to install the awnings in The Grove Plaza property – a requirement of the 

building permit process. These will be included as eligible expenses. The awnings 

located on the south side of Lucky Fins are on private property and will not be included. 

2. Awnings must provide functional services (shelter from sun, rain, etc.) to the 

public sidewalks and streetscapes: The Wells Fargo Retail building’s awnings will be 

made with seem metal roofing and to protect pedestrians and sidewalks/plaza from the 

elements. 

3. Awnings must extend at least 5 feet into the right-of-way: The awnings extend 

5’11.5” over the ROW and The Grove Plaza 

4. Awnings must be made of durable material (including but not limited to metal, 

polycarbonate, and durable fabric): The awnings will be fabricated out of steel and 

aluminum paneling. 

The following criteria requires an exception: 

5. Awnings must cover over 75% of the ground-floor frontage: This building has a 

unique set of circumstances for awning coverage. Along the North Spoke, the building 

has a 20’ alcove/entrance, and on the corner of Main Street the building has a pass-

through entry into Costa Vida. Both of these spaces would be difficult to install awnings 

over, and already provide a level of pedestrian protection from the elements. Without 

including these two areas, the total ground floor coverage comes to 72% of the Main 

Street and The Grove Plaza frontages. The design of the awnings reflects the 12’ 

windows that are evenly spaced, so the missing 3% coverage is due to existing 

conditions made up for by aesthetic appeal having the awnings align with the windows 

along the pedestrian walkway.  

 

The participation program does allow the Board to grant program exceptions, if in its sole 

judgement certain necessary and sufficient conditions exist to warrant the modification of 

one or more of the program requirements. Staff recommends that the Board grant an 

exception to this project for this criteria, because of the constraints the building frontage 

and design present to meet the goal.   

Project Summary and Timeline: 

• 10,780 SF retail space exterior renovation 

• Located on 8th and Main Street (Central URD) 

• $500,000 estimated Total Renovation Costs  

• April 9, 2018 – DR approval (staff level) 

• May 14, 2018 – CCDC Board Type 1 Agreement Designation 

• June 11, 2018 – CCDC Board Approval of Type 1 Agreement 

• Summer 2018 – Construction  

• September 30, 2018 – Construction Complete. Developer submits costs for 

reimbursement. 

 
 



Page 3 
 

 
 
Fiscal Notes: 
Preliminary information shows that the project has eligible costs will exceed $150,000, and the 

project will request $150,000 as determined in the Type 1 Participation Program. The budget for 

the project was included in the Amended 2018-2022 CIP, approved by the Board in March. This 

is an additional Type 1 for the Central District, made available with project changes in the district 

in the last several months. Because the Central District is closing this fiscal year, tax increment 

calculations are not factored.  

Staff Recommendation: 

Approve the Type 1 Participation Agreement with ODC-FIC, LP.  

 

Suggested Motion: 
I move to approve Resolution 1552 approving the Type 1 Participation Agreement with ODC-
FIC, LP. 
 

  

  



Page 4 
 

 

 

   

Attachment 1 – Resolution #1552 and Type 1 Agreement 



RESOLUTION NO. 1552  Page 1  

RESOLUTION NO.  1552 
 
BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE 
CITY, IDAHO:   
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE 
URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY, IDAHO, 
APPROVING THE TYPE 1 PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE AGENCY AND ODC-FIC, LP; AUTHORIZING 
THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO EXECUTE THE AGREEMENT 
AND ANY NECESSARY DOCUMENTS, SUBJECT TO CERTAIN 
CONTINGENCIES; AUTHORIZING ANY TECHNICAL 
CORRECTIONS TO THE AGREEMENTS; AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE.   

 
 THIS RESOLUTION is made on the date hereinafter set forth by the Urban Renewal 
Agency of Boise City, Idaho, an independent public body, corporate and politic, authorized 
under the authority of the Idaho Urban Renewal Law of 1965, as amended, Chapter 20, Title 50, 
Idaho Code, and the Local Economic Development Act, as amended and supplemented, 
Chapter 29, Title 50, Idaho Code (collectively, the “Act”), as a duly created and functioning 
urban renewal agency for Boise City, Idaho (hereinafter referred to as the “Agency”); and, 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Boise City, Idaho (the “City”), after notice duly 

published, conducted a public hearing on the 1987 Amended and Restated Urban Renewal 

Plan for the Boise Central District Project I, Idaho R-4, and Project II, Idaho R-5 (the “Boise 

Central District Urban Renewal Plan”) and, following said public hearing, the City adopted its 

Ordinance No. 5026 on August 19, 1987, approving the Boise Central District Urban Renewal 

Plan and making certain findings; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the City, after notice duly published, conducted a public hearing on the 1994 
Amended and Restated Urban Renewal Plan for the Boise Central District Project I, Idaho R-4, 
and Project II, Idaho R-5 (the “1994 Amended Urban Renewal Plan”) and, following said public 
hearing, the City adopted its Ordinance No. 5597 on December 6, 1994, approving the 1994 
Amended Urban Renewal Plan and making certain findings; and, 

 
 WHEREAS, the City, after notice duly published, conducted a public hearing on the 2007 
Amended and Restated Urban Renewal Plan for the Boise Central District Project I, Idaho R-4, 
and Project II, Idaho R-5 (the “Central District Plan”) and, following said public hearing, the City 
adopted its Ordinance No. 6576 on June 26, 2007, effective upon publication on July 23, 2007, 
approving the Central District Plan; and, 
 

WHEREAS, ODC-FIC, LP (“Participant”), owns or controls certain real property at 801 W 
Main Street, Boise, Idaho (the “Site”), which is located in the Boise Central Urban Renewal 
District as created by the Central District Plan; and,  

 
WHEREAS, Participant intends on making improvements to the systems and exterior of 

the building on the Site and desires to install new awnings that extend over the public right-of-
way (the “Project”); and, 

 



RESOLUTION NO. 1552  Page 2  

WHEREAS, the Agency has in place a Participation Program which includes the Type 1 
Assistance Program under which the Agency reimburses developers for construction of public 
improvements including awnings which meet Agency’s requirements; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the Agency’s Participation Program stipulates several criteria for awnings to 
be eligible for CCDC funding. The Participant’s project meets all but one criteria and requires a 
program exception. The CCDC Board Commissioners approved the program exception at the 
May 14, 2018 Board Meeting; and, 
 

 WHEREAS, attached hereto as Attachment 1, and incorporated herein as if set forth in 
full, is the Type 1 Participation Program Agreement and exhibits thereto (“Agreement”) with 
Participant whereby Participant will construct the Project and the Agency will reimburse 
Participant for constructing public improvements as specified in the Agreement; and,   
 

 WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners finds it in the best public interest to approve 
the Agreement and to authorize the Executive Director to execute the Agreement. 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS OF THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY, IDAHO, AS 
FOLLOWS:   
 

 Section 1: That the above statements are true and correct. 
 

 Section 2: That the Agreement, which is attached hereto as Attachment 1 and 
incorporated herein by reference, is hereby approved. 
 

 Section 3: That the Executive Director of the Agency is hereby authorized to sign 
and enter into the Agreement and to execute all necessary documents required to implement 
the actions contemplated by the Agreement, subject to representations by the Agency staff and 
the Agency legal counsel that all conditions precedent to such actions have been met; and 
further, any necessary technical changes to the Agreement or other documents are acceptable, 
upon advice from the Agency’s legal counsel that said changes are consistent with the 
provisions of the Agreement and the comments and discussions received at the June 11, 2018, 
Agency Board meeting; the Agency is further authorized to appropriate any and all funds 
contemplated by the Agreement and to perform any and all other duties required pursuant to 
said Agreement. 
 

 Section 4: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its 
adoption and approval.   
 

PASSED by the Urban Renewal Agency of Boise City, Idaho, on June 11, 2018.  Signed 
by the Chairman of the Board of Commissioners and attested by the Secretary to the Board of 
Commissioners on June 11, 2018.   
 
      URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY 
 
 
      By:         
            Dana Zuckerman, Chair 
ATTEST: 
 
By:        
      David Bieter, Secretary 



TYPE 1 STREETSCAPE GRANT AGREEMENT - 1 

TYPE 1 STREETSCAPE GRANT PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT 

THIS TYPE 1 STREETSCAPE GRANT PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) 
is entered into by and between the Urban Renewal Agency of the City of Boise, also known as 
the Capital City Development Corporation, an independent public body, corporate and politic, 
organized and existing under the laws of the State of Idaho and known as the urban renewal 
agency of the City of Boise City, Idaho (“CCDC”) and ODC-FIC, LP. (“Participant”).  CCDC and 
Participant may be collectively referred to as the “Parties” and individually referred to as a 
“Party.” 

RECITALS 

A. Participant owns or controls certain real property located 801 West Main Street, 
Boise, Idaho (the “Project Site”) which is more accurately depicted on attached Exhibit A.  The 
Project Site is undergoing building renovations including installing awnings in the public right-of-
way on Main Street and along the North Spoke of The Grove Plaza.    

B. As part of the improvements to the Project Site, Participant intends to install 
awnings, which are in the public right-of way adjacent to the Project Site to replace existing 
canopies (the “Project”).  The Project is more accurately depicted on attached Exhibit B. The 
Project meets the requirements of the Type One Participation Program and also promotes a 
CCDC objective to enhance the pedestrian environment downtown.  

C. The Project is located in the Boise Central Urban Renewal District (“Central 
District”). The CCDC Board of Commissioners has adopted the CCDC Participation Program 
Policy which includes standards for functional awnings eligible for reimbursement through the 
CCDC Participation Program. 

D. The Project is consistent with CCDC’s Participation Policy regarding awning 
specifications and/or received a special program exception. The project meets the following 
criteria; functional awnings must have a minimum depth of 5 feet and be made of a durable 
material including but not limited to metal, polycarbonate, and durable fabric. The CCDC Board 
of Commissioners granted a program exception to the following criteria that awnings must cover 
greater than or equal to 75% of ground floor frontage. Due to unique circumstances of the 
building design and awning aesthetics, the Project covers 72% of the ground floor frontage.  

E. CCDC deems it appropriate to assist the development of the Project to achieve 
the objectives set forth in the Plan and in accordance with CCDC’s Participation Program Policy.  

AGREEMENTS 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above recitals, which are incorporated into 
this Agreement; the mutual covenants contained herein; and other good and valuable 

ATTACHMENT 1



TYPE 1 STREETSCAPE GRANT AGREEMENT - 2 

consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties hereby 
agree as follows:  
 
 1. Effective Date.  The effective date (“Effective Date”) of this Agreement shall be 
the date when this Agreement has been signed by the Participant and CCDC (last date signed) 
and shall continue until: 1.) the completion of all obligations of each Party; or 2.) September 30, 
2018, whichever comes first.     
 
 2. Construction of the Project.  Participant agrees to construct the Project 
consistent with the following: 
 

a. The Project shall be constructed in accordance with the overall City of Boise 
(“City”) infrastructure plans, policies, and design standards and with the applicable 
portions of the Streetscape Standards adopted as part of the Plan. 

 
b. The Parties agree that the Project is depicted on Exhibit B, with cost estimates for 

eligible items described in the Schedule of Eligible Streetscape and Infrastructure 
Costs in Exhibit C (“Estimated Eligible Costs”).  Any other public improvements 
that are constructed by the Participant as part of the improvements to the Project 
Site are not eligible for reimbursement pursuant to this Agreement.  Additionally, 
CCDC’s reimbursement obligation is limited to the amount set forth in Section 6 of 
this Agreement. 

 
 3. Initial Construction Funding.  Participant shall pay for all of the costs of 
construction for the Project.  CCDC acknowledges that the Schedule of Eligible Costs attached 
as Exhibit C is an estimate by Contractor and that actual costs for the Project, as well as each 
line item of cost, may be more or less than is shown. 

 
4. Notification of Completion; Inspection.  Upon completion of construction, 

Participant shall notify CCDC in writing and request a final construction inspection and/or a 
meeting with CCDC to determine if the Project meets the requirements of this Agreement.  At 
CCDC’s sole discretion, CCDC may require proof of completion, such as a Certificate of 
Occupancy, before providing written confirmation of compliance. CCDC shall provide Participant 
with written confirmation that the Project has been completed in compliance with this 
Agreement.  
 

5. Determining Actual Payment after Completion of Construction.  Participant 
shall provide appropriate documentation (“Cost Documentation”) to CCDC that Participant has 
expended funds for eligible costs in order to receive payment under the terms of this 
Agreement. Any Cost Documentation shall be submitted within thirty (30) days of Participant’s 
notification to CCDC that construction of the Project is complete and shall include: 

 
a. Schedule of values that includes line items for the Project approved by CCDC for 

reimbursement so they are identifiable and separate from other line items 
(“Schedule of Values”). 

 
b. Invoices from Participant’s general contractor, subcontractor(s), and material 

suppliers for each type of eligible cost item (e.g. concrete, pavers, benches, 
historic street lights).  Invoices shall specify quantities and unit costs of installed 
materials and a percentage estimate of how much installed material was used for 



TYPE 1 STREETSCAPE GRANT AGREEMENT - 3 

the Project in comparison to the amount used for the remainder of improvements to 
the Project Site. 

 
c. Explanation of any significant deviation between the initial cost estimates 

in Exhibit C and the actual costs in the Cost Documentation as requested by 
CCDC. 

 
d. A notarized affidavit by Participant that all materials have been paid for, that all 

subcontractors have been paid, that no liens exist on the work performed, and that 
the Cost Documentation is complete whereupon payment by CCDC shall constitute 
full accord and satisfaction of all the Agreement obligations. 

 
e. Additional documentation or clarifications may be required and requested by 

CCDC.  
 
f.  The Participant attests that all requested reimbursement expenses are for eligible 

public improvements within the public right-of-way or easement area. 
 
CCDC shall have the right to review the Cost Documentation and to obtain independent 

verification that the quantities of work claimed, the unit costs, and the total costs for eligible 
costs are commercially reasonable and consistent with the cost estimates provided by 
Participant to CCDC prior to construction.  In the event Participant fails to timely deliver the Cost 
Documentation, CCDC may, in its discretion, elect to terminate its payment obligations under 
this Agreement by providing Participant with written notice of such default.  Participant shall 
have thirty (30) days from such written notice to cure the default.  In the event Participant fails to 
cure such a default, CCDC’s payment obligations under this Agreement may be terminated in 
CCDC’s sole discretion. 
 

Within thirty (30) calendar days of CCDC’s receipt of the Cost Documentation, CCDC 
will notify Participant in writing of CCDC’s acceptance or rejection of the Cost Documentation 
and CCDC’s determination of the Actual Eligible Costs to be reimbursed.  CCDC shall, in its 
discretion, determine the Actual Eligible Costs following its review of the Cost Documentation, 
verification of the commercial reasonableness of the costs and expenses contained in such 
Cost Documentation, and comparison of the amounts in the Cost Documentation to the 
amounts in Exhibit C.  IN NO EVENT SHALL THE TOTAL FOR THE ACTUAL ELIGIBLE 
COSTS EXCEED THE AMOUNT ALLOWED BY SECTION 6.    

 
If Participant disagrees with CCDC’s calculation of the Actual Eligible Costs, Participant 

must respond to CCDC in writing within three (3) business days explaining why Participant 
believes CCDC’s calculation was in error and providing any evidence to support any such 
contentions Participant wants CCDC to consider.  CCDC shall respond to Participant within 
three (3) business days with a revised amount for the Actual Eligible Costs or notifying 
Participant CCDC will not revise the initial amount calculated.  At that point, the determination of 
the Actual Eligible Costs will be final.  CCDC’S DETERMINATION OF THE ACTUAL ELIGIBLE 
COSTS IS WITHIN ITS SOLE DISCRETION. 
 

6. CCDC’s Reimbursement Payment Amount.  In accordance with the 
Participation Program, CCDC agrees to reimburse Participant 100% of Actual Eligible Costs not 
to exceed ONE HUNDRED FIFTY THOUSAND DOLLARS ($150,000).  Actual Eligible Costs 
shall not include soft costs (e.g., architectural and engineering design, permits, traffic control, 
mobilization, and overhead).   



TYPE 1 STREETSCAPE GRANT AGREEMENT - 4 

 
7. Conditions Precedent to CCDC’s Payment Obligation.  CCDC agrees to 

reimburse Participant in the amount as determined in compliance with Sections 2.c., 5 and 6 no 
later than thirty (30) days after completion of all of the following: 

 
a. CCDC provides written confirmation to the Participant that the Project has been 

constructed in compliance with this Agreement.  CCDC may require proof of 
completion at CCDCs sole discretion. 

 
b. CCDC receives Cost Documentation from Participant as described in Section 5 in 

a format acceptable to CCDC. 
 

Participant’s failure to comply with all Agreement provisions shall be a basis for 
termination of CCDC’s reimbursement obligation. 

 
8. Subordination of Reimbursement Obligations.  The Parties agree this 

Agreement does not provide Participant with a security interest in any CCDC revenues for the 
Central District Area or any other urban renewal plan area, including but not limited to revenue 
from any “Revenue Allocation Area” (as defined in Title 50, Chapter 29 of the Idaho Code) or 
any revenue from CCDC’s parking garages.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this 
Agreement, the obligation of CCDC to make the payments as specified in this Agreement shall 
be subordinate to all CCDC obligations that have committed or in the future commit available 
CCDC revenues, including but not limited to revenue from any Revenue Allocation Area or any 
revenue from CCDC’s parking garages, and may be subject to consent and approval by CCDC 
lenders. 

 
9.  Default.  Neither Party shall be deemed to be in default of this Agreement 

except upon the expiration of forty-five (45) days [ten (10) days in the event of failure to pay 
money] from receipt of written notice from the other Party specifying the particulars in which 
such Party has failed to perform its obligations under this Agreement unless such Party, prior to 
expiration of said 45-day period [ten (10) day period in the event of failure to pay money], has 
rectified the particulars specified in said notice of default.  In the event of a default, the 
nondefaulting Party may do the following: 

 
a. The nondefaulting Party may terminate this Agreement upon written notice to the 

defaulting Party and recover from the defaulting Party all direct damages incurred 
by the nondefaulting Party. 

 
b. The nondefaulting Party may seek specific performance of those elements of this 

Agreement which can be specifically performed and recover all damages incurred 
by the nondefaulting Party.  The Parties declare it to be their intent that elements of 
this Agreement requiring certain actions be taken for which there are not adequate 
legal remedies may be specifically enforced. 

 
c. The nondefaulting Party may perform or pay any obligation or encumbrance 

necessary to cure the default and offset the cost thereof from monies otherwise due 
the defaulting Party or recover said monies from the defaulting Party. 

 
d. The nondefaulting Party may pursue all other remedies available at law, it being the 

intent of the Parties that remedies be cumulative and liberally enforced so as to 
adequately and completely compensate the nondefaulting Party. 



TYPE 1 STREETSCAPE GRANT AGREEMENT - 5 

 
e. In the event Participant defaults under this Agreement, CCDC (the nondefaulting 

Party) shall have the right to suspend or terminate its payment under this Agreement, 
as more specifically defined in this Agreement, for so long as the default continues 
and if not cured, CCDC’s obligation for payment shall be deemed extinguished.  In 
addition, if CCDC funds shall have been paid, Participant shall reimburse CCDC for 
any such funds Participant received. 

 
 10. Captions and Headings.  The captions and headings in this Agreement are for 
reference only and shall not be deemed to define or limit the scope or intent of any of the terms, 
covenants, conditions, or agreements contained herein. 
 
 11. No Joint Venture or Partnership.  CCDC and Participant agree that nothing 
contained in this Agreement or in any document executed in connection with this Agreement 
shall be construed as making CCDC and Participant a joint venture or partners. 
 
 12. Successors and Assignment.  This Agreement is not assignable except that 
the Participant may assign Participant’s rights or obligations under this Agreement to a third 
party only with the written approval of CCDC, at CCDC’s sole discretion which cannot be 
reasonably denied. 
 
 13. Notices and Receipt.  All notices given pursuant to this Agreement shall be in 
writing and shall be given by personal service, by United States mail, or by United States 
express mail or other established express delivery service (such as Federal Express) with 
postage or delivery charges prepaid and return receipt requested, or by electronic mail (e-mail) 
addressed to the appropriate Party at the address set forth below: 
 
If to Participant:  

ODC-FIC, LP 
Oppenheimer Development Corporation 
877 West Main Street, Suite 700 
Boise, Idaho 83701 
208-343-4883 
Coby-barlow@oppcos.com   

  
If to CCDC:  John Brunelle, Executive Director 

Capital City Development Corporation 
   121 N. 9th Street, Suite 501 
   Boise, Idaho  83702 
   208-384-4264 

jbrunelle@ccdcboise.com         
  
 14. Applicable Law; Attorney Fees.  This Agreement shall be construed and 
enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of Idaho.  Should any legal action be brought 
by either Party because of breach of this Agreement or to enforce any provision of this 
Agreement, the prevailing Party shall be entitled to reasonable attorney fees, court costs, and 
such other costs as may be found by the court. 
 
 15. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement constitutes the entire understanding and 
agreement of the Parties.  Exhibits to this Agreement are as follows: 
 

mailto:Coby-barlow@oppcos.com
mailto:jbrunelle@ccdcboise.com


TYPE 1 STREETSCAPE GRANT AGREEMENT - 6 

   
  Exhibit A Project Site Map 
  Exhibit B Project Plan 
  Exhibit C Schedule of Eligible Costs  
  

  16. Indemnification.  Participant shall indemnify and hold CCDC and its officers, 
agents, and employees harmless from and against all liabilities, obligations, damages, 
penalties, claims, costs, charges, and expenses, including reasonable architect and attorney 
fees (collectively referred to in this section as “Claim”), which may be imposed upon or incurred 
by or asserted against CCDC or its respective officers, agents, and employees relating to the 
construction or design of the Streetscape Project or otherwise arising out of Participant’s actions 
or inactions.  In the event an action or proceeding is brought against CCDC or its respective 
officers, agents, and employees by reason of any such Claim, Participant, upon written notice 
from CCDC shall, at Participant’s expense, resist or defend such action or proceeding.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing, Participant shall have no obligation to indemnify, defend, or hold 
CCDC and its respective officers, agents, and employees harmless from and against any matter 
to the extent it arises from the active negligence or willful act of CCDC or its respective officers, 
agents, or employees.  

 
  17. Antidiscrimination During Construction.  Participant, for itself and its 

successors and assigns, agrees that in the rehabilitation and/or construction of improvements 
on the Project Site provided for in this Agreement, the Participant will not discriminate against 
any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, religion, sex, sexual 
orientation, gender identity/expression, national origin or ancestry, marital status, age, or 
physical disability. 

 
  18. Maintenance. Participant recognizes CCDC has no specific authority to accept 

maintenance responsibility of the Project or any improvements constructed by Participant and 
that no agreement has been reached with CCDC or City to accept any maintenance obligations 
for such improvements.  
 
 19. Promotion of Project.  Participant agrees CCDC may advertise the Project and 
CCDC’s involvement with the Project.  Such promotion includes reasonable signage at the Site 
notifying the public of CCDC’s involvement with the Project. 
 
 

End of Agreement 
[Signatures appear on the following page.]  



TYPE 1 STREETSCAPE GRANT AGREEMENT - 7 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Agreement with an 
Effective Date as of the last date written below. 
 
 
CCDC: CCDC: the urban renewal agency of the City of 

Boise, a public body, corporate and politic 
 
 
              

John Brunelle, Executive Director 
   
Date         

 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 
              
 
 
 
PARTICIPANT:    ODC-FIC, LP 
 
 
              

Coby Barlow, Property & Operations Manager 
 
Date         

 
 
 
Exhibits 
 
A: Project Site 
B: Project Depiction 
C: Schedule of Eligible Streetscape and Infrastructure Costs 
 
 

Budget Info / For Office Use 

Fund/District 301 

Account 6251 

Activity Code 18089 

PO # 180114 

Contract Term September 30, 2018 

 



TYPE 1 STREETSCAPE GRANT AGREEMENT - 8 

Exhibit A: Project Site Map 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 

 

 

  

Main Street 

The Grove Plaza 
 
 

 



TYPE 1 STREETSCAPE GRANT AGREEMENT - 9 

Exhibit B: Project Depiction 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



TYPE 1 STREETSCAPE GRANT AGREEMENT - 10 

  



TYPE 1 STREETSCAPE GRANT AGREEMENT - 11 

NOTE: Total reimbursement Not-to-Exceed $150,000. 

Exhibit C: Schedule of Eligible Costs 
 
 
 
 



Page 5 
 

  Attachment 2 – Existing Conditions 



 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

IV. 
ACTION  
ITEMS 

 
 
  



 

Page 1 
 

 

 

 

AGENDA BILL 

Agenda Subject: 
Resolution 1556  
 
Adoption of the First Amendment to the Urban Renewal Plan, 30th Street 
Area Urban Renewal Project, seeking to deannex certain parcels from 
the existing 30th Street Project Area.  

Date: 
 
6/11/2018 

Staff Contact: 
 
Shellan Rodriguez 

Attachments: 
1) Resolution No. 1556 
2) 30th  Street Urban Renewal Plan – First Amendment 

a. Map  
b. Legal Description 

3) Letter to taxing districts  
4) Fiscal Impact Estimate  

Action Requested: 
  
Adopt Resolution No. 1556 approving and adopting the First Amendment to the Urban Renewal 
Plan, 30th Street Area Urban Renewal Project, seeking to deannex certain parcels from the 
existing 30th Street Project Area. 

 

Background: 

In late 2017, the Boise City Council adopted the River Street Master Plan. The area within this 

Plan is between the Boise River Greenbelt, the I-184 Connector, Myrtle Street and 9th Street, 

and is considered underdeveloped. Starting in 2016, a planning and outreach process occurred 

to obtain input from various stakeholders including area business owners, property owners, 

residents and representatives of public agencies.  

In late 2013, the Lusk Street Master Plan was finalized and adopted by the Boise City Council. 

That Plan included the area east of Ann Morrison Park, south of the Boise River, west of Capitol 

Boulevard, and north of the Boise Depot. One of its primary goals was to support Lusk Street as 

a pedestrian and bicycle oriented mixed-use storefront area that provides a unique mix of 

services.  The Lusk Street Master Plan includes an Implementation Plan which identifies high 

priority actions such as working with CCDC to examine the possibility of a new urban renewal 

district and working with CCDC to explore partnerships and funding opportunities for locating a 

new parking garage/options in the area.   

The River Street Master Plan and the Lusk Street Master Plan (collectively, the “Master Plans”) 

incorporate areas that are within or just outside existing URDs. These Master Plans identify a 

range of existing conditions and outline goals around transportation, sidewalks, 

bicycle/pedestrian, park improvements and land uses.  



 

Page 2 
 

Since early 2017, CCDC staff has been working to determine geographic boundaries for a 

proposed urban renewal study area to leverage the effort of the above-mentioned Master Plans 

as well as to identify areas that have experienced less investment compared with neighboring 

areas. In determining the boundaries of the proposed study area. CCDC staff worked closely 

with the City of Boise staff to research and review areas where the creation of an urban renewal 

district would enable access to unique tools and resources not otherwise available to stimulate 

reinvestment and attract new development in an area that may not otherwise occur.  The study 

area was intended to be small enough to create meaningful and measurable outcomes and 

development plans, while also catalyzing areas that have not benefited as broadly from 

investment as perhaps nearby URDs have. The boundaries of the proposed study area were 

drafted, studied and reviewed by CCDC staff and leadership as well as City of Boise staff.  

In late 2017, the City Council approved the Eligibility Study completed by SB Friedman 

Development Advisors.  The area studied is now referred to as the “proposed Shoreline Urban 

Renewal Area.” This area, approx. 195 acres, includes much of the area included in the Master 

Plans.  

Of the 195 acres within the proposed Shoreline Urban Renewal Area approximately 36 acres 

are currently within the boundaries of the 30th Street District. Idaho Code, as applied, does not 

allow for a parcel to be within the boundaries of two urban renewal districts, therefore, the 36 

acre portion currently in the 30th Street District must be deannexed via a plan amendment of the 

30th Street Urban Renewal Plan (the “Plan Amendment”). The intent is for this 36 acre area to 

become part of the proposed Shoreline Urban Renewal District later in 2018, or in 2019.  

All taxing districts were notified of the intent to proceed with the creation of the proposed 

Shoreline Urban Renewal District and the proposed Plan Amendment via letter dated May 16, 

2018. 

Fiscal Notes: 

There is no outstanding debt or bond covenants in the 30th Street District.  

The cost of the Plan Amendment lies in legal and consultant fees, staff time and public noticing 

costs and is incorporated within the FY 2018 budget and will be within the FY 2019 budget. 

This Plan Amendment will have no impact on the duration of the 30th Street District and will not 

reset the base value of the 30th Street District. It will remove the described parcels from the 

30th Street District, and therefore, the 30th Street District will no longer receive an allocation of 

revenues from the deannexed parcels.  The total 2018 increment value of the parcels 

contemplated for deannexation is $7,291,300, which results in a reduction of tax increment 

revenue for the next fiscal year in the estimated amount of $109,744.    

Staff Recommendation: 

Adopt Resolution No. 1556 adopting the First Amendment to the Urban Renewal Plan, 30th 

Street Area Urban Renewal Project, seeking to deannex certain parcels from the existing 30th 

Street Project Area. 



 

Page 3 
 

Suggested Motion: 
 
I move to adopt Resolution #1556 approving and adopting the First Amendment to the Urban 
Renewal Plan, 30th Street Area Urban Renewal Project, seeking to deannex certain parcels 
from the existing 30th Street Project Area. 

 

4843-4708-8488, v. 1 



RESOLUTION NO. 1556 - 1 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 1556            

  
BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF 
BOISE CITY, IDAHO: 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF 
THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY, IDAHO, 
ALSO KNOWN AS CAPITAL CITY DEVELOPMENT 
CORPORATION, RECOMMENDING AND ADOPTING THE 
FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE URBAN RENEWAL PLAN, 
30TH STREET AREA URBAN RENEWAL PROJECT, WHICH 
FIRST AMENDMENT SEEKS TO DEANNEX CERTAIN 
PARCELS FROM THE EXISTING 30TH STREET PROJECT 
AREA; AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE CHAIR, VICE-
CHAIR, OR EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO TAKE 
APPROPRIATE ACTION; PROVIDING FOR THE 
RESOLUTION TO BE EFFECTIVE UPON ITS PASSAGE AND 
APPROVAL; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.   

 
 THIS RESOLUTION, made on the date hereinafter set forth by the Urban Renewal 
Agency of Boise City, Idaho, also known as Capital City Development Corporation, an 
independent public body corporate and politic, authorized under the authority of the Idaho Urban 
Renewal Law of 1965, Chapter 20, Title 50, Idaho Code, as amended (hereinafter the “Law”) 
and the Local Economic Development Act, Chapter 29, Title 50, Idaho Code, as amended 
(hereinafter the “Act”), a duly created and functioning urban renewal agency for Boise City, 
Idaho, hereinafter referred to as “Agency.” 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council (the “City Council”) of the City of Boise City, Idaho (the 
“City”), after notice duly published, conducted a public hearing on the Urban Renewal Plan, 30th 
Street Area Urban Renewal Project (the “30th Street Plan”); 
 
 WHEREAS, following said public hearing, the City Council adopted its Ordinance No. 
6868 on December 4, 2012, approving the 30th Street Plan and making certain findings;  
 
 WHEREAS, the 30th Street Plan project area is referred to herein as the “Existing Project 
Area;” 
 
 WHEREAS, the Agency seeks to amend the Existing Project Area to deannex certain 
parcels as described in the First Amendment defined below;  
 
 WHEREAS, the Agency has reviewed the financial impact of the deannexation on its 
allocation of revenue and has concluded the remaining allocation of revenue is sufficient to pay 
its operations, obligations and to continue to implement the terms of the 30th Street Plan;  

srodriguez
Text Box
Attachment 1



RESOLUTION NO. 1556 - 2 

 
WHEREAS, the Agency, in coordination with the City, has prepared the First 

Amendment to the 30th Street Plan (the “First Amendment”), as set forth in Exhibit 1 attached 
hereto, identifying the parcels to be deannexed from the Existing Project Area;   
 
 WHEREAS, the First Amendment amends the 30th Street Plan, which contains provisions 
of revenue allocation financing as allowed by the Act;   
 
 WHEREAS, the First Amendment is expected to be adopted by the City Council in 
accordance with the requirements of the Law and the Act, specifically, but not limited to the 
requirements set forth in Idaho Code §§ 50-2008 and 50-2906;   
 
 WHEREAS, the Agency Board finds it in the best interests of the Agency and the public 
to recommend approval of the adoption of the First Amendment, as prepared by the Agency in 
coordination with the City, and as set forth in Exhibit 1 attached hereto, and to forward it to the 
Mayor and City, for adoption in accordance with the requirements of the Law and the Act.        
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS OF THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY, IDAHO, AS 
FOLLOWS:   
 
 Section 1. The above statements are true and correct.   
 

Section 2. That the Agency Board recommends that the First Amendment, attached 
hereto as Exhibit 1, identifying the parcels to be deannexed from the Existing Project Area, be 
adopted by the City Council including any sections, modifications, or text discussed at the June 
11, 2018, Agency Board meeting. 
 
 Section 3. That this Resolution constitutes the necessary action of the Agency under 
the Law, Section 50-2008, Idaho Code and the Act. 
 
 Section 4. The Chair or Vice-Chair of the Board of Commissioners, or the Executive 
Director of the Agency are hereby authorized and directed to take all steps necessary and 
convenient in partnership with the City to facilitate the City’s adoption of the First Amendment.   
   
 Section 5. That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its 
adoption and approval.   
 
 PASSED by the Urban Renewal Agency of Boise City, Idaho, also known as Capital City 
Development Corporation on June 11, 2018.  Signed by the Chair of the Board of 
Commissioners, and attested by the Secretary to the Board of Commissioners, on June 11, 2018. 
  
 
      



RESOLUTION NO. 1556 - 3 

APPROVED: 
 
 
 
       By_________________________________ 
           Chair of the Board 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
By_______________________________ 
   Secretary 
 
4828-6120-5351, v. 2 



FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE URBAN RENEWAL PLAN 30TH STREET AREA- 1 
 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE 
URBAN RENEWAL PLAN 

30TH STREET AREA 
URBAN RENEWAL PROJECT 

 
URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY 

(also known as Capital City Development Corporation) 
 

BOISE, IDAHO 
 
 

 
Ordinance No. 6868 

Adopted December 4, 2012 
Effective December 15, 2012, publication 

 
 

First Amendment 
Ordinance No. _______ 
Adopted ________, 2018 

Effective ______________, 2018, publication 
 
  

srodriguez
Text Box
Attachment 2



FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE URBAN RENEWAL PLAN 30TH STREET AREA- 2 
 

BACKGROUND 

 This First Amendment (“First Amendment”) to the Urban Renewal Plan, 30th Street Area, 
Urban Renewal Project (the “Plan”) deannexes certain parcels from the plan area/revenue 
allocation area created by the Plan commonly referred to as the “30th Street Project Area,” 
adopted by Boise City Council Ordinance No. 6868, on December 4, 2012.  The scope of this 
First Amendment is limited to addressing the deannexation of certain parcels from the 30th Street 
Project Area.  It is important to note the deannexation of parcels from the 30th Street Project Area 
does not change the termination date set forth in the Plan. 

As a result of the deannexation, in 2018 through the remaining years of the Plan, the 
Urban Renewal Agency of Boise City, Idaho also known as Capital City Development 
Corporation (the “Agency”) will cease receiving an allocation of revenues from the deannexed 
parcels.  The increment value of the parcels deannexed from the 30th Street Project Area shall be 
included in the net taxable value of the taxing district when calculating the subsequent property 
tax levies pursuant to section 63-803, Idaho Code. The increment value shall also be included in 
subsequent notification of taxable value for each taxing district pursuant to section 63-1312, 
Idaho Code, and subsequent certification of actual and adjusted market values for each school 
district pursuant to section 63-315, Idaho Code. The Ada County Assessor’s Office maintains the 
value information, including the increment value, if any, included on the new construction roll 
for new construction associated with the deannexed parcels.  The amount added to the new 
construction roll will equal the amount by which the December 31, 2017, increment value 
exceeds the increment value as of December 31, 2006.     

 
House Bill 606, effective July 1, 2016, amended the Idaho Urban Renewal Law of 1965, 

Chapter 20, Title 50, Idaho Code, as amended (the “Law”) and the Local Economic 
Development Act, Chapter 29, Title 50, Idaho Code, as amended (the “Act”) confirming that a 
plan amendment to the Plan does not result in a reset of the base assessment roll values to the 
current year’s equalized assessed values:  “[f]or plans adopted or modified prior to July 1, 2016, 
and for subsequent modifications of those urban renewal plans, the value of the base assessment 
roll of property within the revenue allocation area shall be determined as if the modification had 
not occurred.”  Idaho Code § 50-2903(4). Further a plan amendment to accommodate a de-
annexation in the revenue allocation boundary is also an identified exception to the base reset 
requirement.  Idaho Code § 50-2903A(1)(a)(iii).   

AMENDMENTS TO THE PLAN 

1. Definitions.  Capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the respective 
meanings ascribed to such terms in the Plan. 

2. The following defined terms are amended throughout the Plan as follows: 

(a) Delete “Project Area” and replace with “Amended Project Area” except where 
specifically referenced in this First Amendment. 



FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE URBAN RENEWAL PLAN 30TH STREET AREA- 3 
 

(b) Delete references to Attachment 1 entitled “Boundary Map of 30th Street Urban 
Renewal Project Area and Revenue Allocation Area” and replace with Attachment 1 entitled 
“Boundary Map of 30th Street Amended Project Area and Amended Revenue Allocation Area.” 

(c) Delete references to Attachment 2 entitled “Description of 30th Street Urban 
Renewal Project Area and Revenue Allocation Area” and replace with Attachment 2 entitled 
“Description of 30th Street Amended Project Area and Amended Revenue Allocation Area.” 

3 Amendment to Section 102.1 of the Plan. 

(a) Section 102.1 entitled “CONFORMANCE WITH THE IDAHO URBAN 
RENEWAL LAW OF 1965, AS AMENDED” is amended by adding new paragraphs to the end 
of the existing language as follows: 

e. This First Amendment to the Plan (the “First Amendment”) 
deannexes certain parcels from the existing Project Area, resulting 
in an “Amended Project Area” as further described and shown in 
Attachments 1 and 2.   

 
f. In accordance with the Law, the First Amendment was submitted 

to the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City.  After 
consideration of the First Amendment, the Commission filed a 
statement or resolution with the City Council stating that the First 
Amendment is in conformity with the Comprehensive Plan, as 
amended.   
 

g. Pursuant to the Law, the City Council, having published due notice 
thereof, held a public hearing on the First Amendment.  Notice of 
the hearing was duly published in a newspaper having general 
circulation.  The City Council adopted the First Amendment on 
____________, 2018, pursuant to Ordinance No. _____.  

 

4. Amendment to Section 200 of the Plan. 

(a) Section 200 entitled “DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT AREA” is deleted and 
replaced as follows:  

DESCRIPTION OF THE AMENDED PROJECT AREA 
 

The boundaries of the Amended Project Area and of the Amended 
Revenue Allocation Area are shown on the Amended Project Area 
and Amended Revenue Allocation Area Boundary Map, attached 
hereto as Attachment 1 and incorporated herein by reference, and 
are described in the Description of the Amended Project Area and 



FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE URBAN RENEWAL PLAN 30TH STREET AREA- 4 
 

Amended Revenue Allocation Area, attached hereto as 
Attachment 2 and incorporated herein by reference.  For purposes 
of boundary descriptions and use of proceeds for payment of 
improvements, the boundary shall be deemed to extend to the outer 
boundary of rights-of-way or other natural boundary unless 
otherwise stated. 
 

5. Amendment to Section 302 of the Plan. 

(a) Section 302 is amended by deleting the first sentence of the second paragraph and 
replacing it as follows: 

Following de-annexation of certain parcels, the Amended Project 
Area and Amended Revenue Allocation Area consists of 
approximately 213 acres, west of the Boise Central Business 
District and adjacent to the Westside Downtown and River Myrtle-
Old Boise Urban Renewal Project Areas.  

6. Amendment to Section 404 of the Plan. 

(a) Section 404 is amended by deleting the first sentence of the first 
paragraph and replacing it as follows: 

 The Amended Project Area contains primary public streets 
including but not limited to Fairview Avenue, Main Street, Idaho Street, Stewart 
Avenue, 23rd Street, 27th Street, 30th Street Extension (or as renamed by local 
government).   

7. Amendment to Section 504 of the Plan. 

(a) Section 504 is amended by adding a new sentence immediately following the end 
of the first sentence of the first paragraph as follows: Revenue allocation financing authority for 
the deannexed parcels pursuant to the First Amendment will be terminated effective January 1, 
2018. 

(b) Section 504 is amended by adding a new sentence at the end of the fourth 
paragraph as follows: No modifications to the analysis set forth in Attachment 5 have been made 
as a result of the First Amendment.  

8. Amendment to Section 504.1 of the Plan. 

(a) Section 504.1 is amended by adding a new sentence immediately following the 
end of the paragraph as follows: No modifications to the Study have been made as a result of this 
First Amendment. 



FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE URBAN RENEWAL PLAN 30TH STREET AREA- 5 
 

9. Amendment to Section 504.3 of the Plan. 

 (a) Section 504.3 is amended by adding a new sentence at the end of the paragraph as 
follows: The deannexation of parcels from the existing Project Area pursuant to the First 
Amendment will not change this analysis. 

 
10. Amendment to Section 504.4 of the Plan. 

 (a) Section 504.4 is amended by adding a new sentence at the end of the second 
paragraph as follows: The deannexation of parcels from the existing Project Area pursuant to the 
First Amendment will reduce the amount of revenue generated by revenue allocation.   
 
 (b) Section 504.4 is amended by adding a new sentence at the end of the third 
paragraph as follows: The deannexation of parcels from the existing Project Area pursuant to the 
First Amendment does not materially reduce revenue allocation and the Project continues to be 
feasible.  
 
 11. Amendment to Section 800 of the Plan. 
 
 (a) Section 800 is amended by adding a new sentence at the end of the first paragraph 
as follows: The deannexation of parcels from the existing Project Area has no impact on the 
duration of this Plan. 
 

12. Amendment to Attachment 1 of the Plan.   

(a) Attachment 1 entitled “Boundary Map of 30th Street Urban Renewal Project Area and 
Revenue Allocation Area” is deleted and replaced with Attachment 1 entitled “Boundary Map of 
30th Street Amended Project Area and Amended Revenue Allocation Area,”  attached hereto.  

13. Amendment to Attachment 2 of the Plan. 

(a) Attachment 2 entitled “Description of 30th Street Urban Renewal Project Area and 
Revenue Allocation Area” is deleted and replaced with Attachment 2 entitled “Description of 
30th Street Amended Project Area and Amended Revenue Allocation Area,” attached hereto. 

14. 30th Street Plan Remains in Effect.  Except as expressly modified in this First 
Amendment, the Plan and the Attachments thereto remain in full force and effect. 

   

 

4830-0048-2148, v. 1 



AutoCAD SHX Text
S 30TH ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 30TH ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 28TH ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 26TH ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 25TH ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
28TH

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROSS ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
REGAN AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROSS ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
30TH ST EXTENSION

AutoCAD SHX Text
REGAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
HESTER ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROSE ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
W JORDAN ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 32ND ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 31ST ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 30TH ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
W GOODING ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 29TH ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 28TH ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
MOORE ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
DAVIS ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
W STATE ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
DAVIS

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. STEWART AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. REGAN AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOODLAWN AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
W MADISON AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
W JEFFERSON ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
W BANNOCK ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAIN ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
W IDAHO ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
W FAIRVIEW AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONNECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
AMERICANA BLVD

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 17TH ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
GROVE ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 18TH ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 19TH ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 24TH ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 23TH ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 22TH ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 21TH ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXIT RAMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRANK DAVIS ADD

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLEASANTON ADD AMD. BLOCK 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLEASANTON ADD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAIRVIEW ADDITION

AutoCAD SHX Text
DAVIS HESTER ADD AMD

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEST SIDE ADDITION

AutoCAD SHX Text
MCCARTYS 2nd   ADD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
QUINNS SUB.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOKKA SUB.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MILLARS SUB.

AutoCAD SHX Text
VAIL'S SUB.

AutoCAD SHX Text
C "A-LINE"

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
I-84 - STAGE 5 R-O-W

AutoCAD SHX Text
65.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
GARDEN ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
W PLEASANTON AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
I-184

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONNECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
I-184

AutoCAD SHX Text
W MAIN ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
QUINN'S POND

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOISE RIVER

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOISE RIVER

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
33

AutoCAD SHX Text
34

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
32

AutoCAD SHX Text
33

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
POND

AutoCAD SHX Text
POND

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 27TH ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 29TH ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
W IDAHO ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIVER MYRTLE U.R.D.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WESTSIDE   U.R.D.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED R-O-W

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHORELINE DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
DE-ANNEX AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT BOUNDARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
i

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
c

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
n

AutoCAD SHX Text
n

AutoCAD SHX Text
g

AutoCAD SHX Text
l

AutoCAD SHX Text
u

AutoCAD SHX Text
s

AutoCAD SHX Text
n

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
CIVIL ENGINEERING-SURVEYING-CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
(208) 342-0091 PHONE     (208) 342-0092 FAX

AutoCAD SHX Text
Boise, Idaho 83705

AutoCAD SHX Text
1904 West Overland Road

AutoCAD SHX Text
uadran

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
800

AutoCAD SHX Text
1600

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1"=800'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30TH STREET PROJECT BOUNDARY AND PROPOSED DE-ANNEXATION AREAS

srodriguez
Text Box
Attachment 1 to the First Amendment





 

1904 West Overland Road  Boise, ID  83705  Phone (208) 342-0091  Fax (208) 342-0092  Internet:  quadrant@quadrant.cc 
Civil Engineering  Surveying  

May 31, 2018 
 

DE-ANNEXATION OF A PORTION OF THE 
30th STREET URBAN RENEWAL PROJECT 

BOISE, IDAHO 
 

A tract of land being a portion of Section 9, Township 3 North, Range 2 East, Boise Meridian, 
Boise City, Ada County, Idaho.  Said tract of land being more particularly described by record 
information as follows: 
 
Commencing at the Section Corner common to Sections 3, 4, 9, and 10, of Township 3 
North, Range 2 East, Boise Meridian, thence North 89°19’15” West 243.95 feet along the 
Section line common to said Sections 4 and 9 to a point on the Northwesterly Right-of-Way 
of South 16th Street, thence along said Northwesterly Right-Of-Way South 35°08”45” West 
155.22 feet, to a point on the Northerly Right-Of-Way of South Americana Boulevard, thence 
along said Northerly Right-Of-Way South 64°53’07” West 127.27 feet to the POINT OF 
BEGINNING; thence continuing along said Northerly Right-Of-Way the following ten 
courses: 
 
South 64°53’07” West 529.56 feet, thence 
South 64°46’49” West 624.15 feet, thence 
North 25°13’11” West 10.00 feet, thence 
 
223.77 feet along a curve to the left, said curve having a radius of 1453.37 feet, a delta 
angle of 8°49’18” and a chord bearing and distance of South 60°22’26” West 
223.55 feet, thence 
 
North 78°33’11” West 39.05 feet, thence 
South 48°31’19” West 81.55 feet, thence 
South 21°07’46” West 43.42 feet, thence  
 
49.31 feet along a curve to the left, said curve having a radius of 1453.37 feet, a delta 
angle of 1°56’38” and a chord bearing and distance of South 49°14’05” West 
49.31 feet, thence 
 
South 48°46’52” West 328.48 feet, thence 
 
South 47°04'24" West 36.29 feet, thence leaving said Northerly Right-of-Way of South  
Americana Boulevard and following the boundary of a parcel of land identified as Ada 
County Assessor Parcel Number S1009120895 the following three courses: 
 
North 34°10'58" West 10.16 feet, thence 
North 38°44'57" West 299.96 feet, thence 
North 45°30'09" West 290.31 feet to a point being on the boundary of a parcel of land 
identified as Ada County Assessor Parcel Number S1009120888, thence along said parcel 
boundary 

srodriguez
Text Box
Attachment 2 to the First Amendment



 

May 31, 2018  
Page 2 
 

 
 
North 45°30’09” West 40.85 feet, thence leaving said parcel boundary and following 
the boundary of a parcel of land identified as Ada County Assessor Parcel 
Number S1009212410, thence along said parcel boundary 
 
South 18°14'11" West 77.63 feet to the North bank of the Boise River, thence along said 
North bank 
 
North 67°00'24" West 327.52 feet, thence 
North 74°29'51" West 265.41 feet, thence 
North 69°37'10" West 162.42 feet, thence 
North 52°58'21" West 200.10 feet to the Southerly Right-Of-Way of the I-84 Connector, 
thence along said Southerly Right-Of-Way 
 
North 63° 50' 42" East 186.94 feet, thence 
 
528.69 feet along a curve to the right, said curve having a radius of 2267.00 feet, a delta 
angle of 13° 21' 43” and a chord bearing and distance of North 71° 23' 27" East 527.49 feet, 
to a point on the Westerly Right-Of-Way of West Shoreline Drive thence 
 
South 89° 10' 40" East 103.05 feet to a point on the Easterly Right-Of-Way of West 
Shoreline Drive, thence continuing along said Southerly Right-Of-Way of the I-84 
Connector 
 
North 83° 20' 00" East 38.76 feet, thence 
North 83° 21' 41" East 178.95 feet, thence 
North 83° 23' 17" East 100.42 feet, thence  
North 88° 20' 14" East 288.62 feet to a point on the Westerly Right-Of-Way of South 25th 
Street, thence 
 
North 89° 55' 36" East 60.00 feet to a point on the Easterly Right-Of-Way of South 25th 
Street, thence continuing along said Southerly Right-Of-Way of the I-84 Connector 
 
North 89° 55' 36" East 586.07 feet, thence 
South 84° 53' 49" East 185.40 feet, thence 
South 78° 32' 03" East 77.97 feet, thence 
South 63° 34' 34" East 101.53 feet, thence 
 
North 64° 46' 56" East 12.83 feet to a point on the Westerly Right-Of-Way of West River 
Street, thence 
 
North 64° 55' 58" East 80.00 feet to a point on the Easterly Right-Of-Way of said West 
River Street, thence continuing along said Southerly Right-Of-Way of the I-84 Connector. 
 
North 64° 55' 58" East 66.63 feet, thence 
South 89° 31' 57" East 229.76 feet, thence 



 

May 31, 2018  
Page 3 
 

 
South 25° 31' 47" East 57.82 feet, thence 
North 64° 37' 51" East 74.80 feet to a point on the Westerly Right-Of-Way of West Cooper 
Street, thence 
 
South 85° 12' 57" East 57.70 feet to a point on the Easterly Right-Of-Way of West Cooper 
Street, thence continuing along said Southerly Right-Of-Way of the I-84 Connector. 
 
South 70° 38' 00" East 70.49 feet, thence 
 
South 25° 04' 06" East 66.02 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING.   
 
Said Tract contains 35.4 acres, more or less. 
 

 
 

 



 
 

 

 

May 16, 2018 

 

Ada County 
Attention: Board of County Commissioners 
Attention: Assessor 
Attention: Treasurer 
200 W Front Street 
Boise, Idaho   83702 

Boise City 
Attention: Office of the Mayor 
Attention: City Clerk 
150 N Capitol Boulevard 
Boise, Idaho   83702 

Ada County Highway District 
Attention: Board of Commissioners 
3775 Adams Street 
Garden City, Idaho   83714 

Boise School District 
Attention: Board of Trustees 
8169 W Victory Road 
Boise, Idaho   83709 

Ada County Emergency Medical Services 
District  
Attention: Mr. Darby Weston, Chief 
370 N Benjamin Lane 
Boise, Idaho   83704 

College of Western Idaho 
Attention: Board of Trustees 
MS 2000 
PO Box 3010 
Nampa, Idaho   83653 

Ada County Mosquito Abatement District 
Attention: Mr. Adam Schroeder, Director 
975 E  Pine Avenue 
Meridian, Idaho   83642 

Idaho State Tax Commission 
Attention: Alan Dornfest 
Attention: Mr. Gary Houde 
PO Box 36 
Boise, Idaho   83722 

 

Re: New Shoreline Urban Renewal District 

 

Greetings Public Officials,  

 

In the next few months CCDC will be proposing to Boise City a new Urban Renewal District 

(URD), the Shoreline District.  As currently conceived the Shoreline District will contain 

approximately 190 acres located within the city’s Downtown Planning Area.  It will include 

parcels from the existing River-Myrtle / Old Boise (RMOB) and 30th Street URDs plus portions of 

the River Street neighborhood and, south of the river, a portion of the Lusk District 

neighborhood as well as public rights-of-way and a section of the Boise River (map attached).  

Parcels currently in the RMOB or 30th Street URD’s will be de-annexed from those districts prior 

to September 1, 2018.  Under the governing statutes, the deannexation process is deemed a 

formal plan amendment.  CCDC’s Board of Commissioners will consider the RMOB and 30th 

Street amendments at its June 11, 2018, Board meeting and forward the amendments to Boise 

City to complete the process by September 1, 2018.  

According to a recent Eligibility Study commissioned by the City Council, the area of the 

proposed Shoreline District meets the statutorily-defined requirements for a URD.  The City 

Council’s approval of the study led to further assessment and planning for the formation of this  

srodriguez
Text Box
Attachment 3



 
New Shoreline Urban Renewal District 

May 16, 2018 
Page 2 of 2 

 

 

new district.  CCDC engaged consultants to draft a formal Urban Renewal Plan to revitalize this 

area of the city. 

The total estimated Taxable Value (base assessment roll) of the property in the proposed 

Shoreline District is $108 million (2017 values).  Forty-percent of that amount would be 

generated by parcels that would be de-annexed from either the RMOB or 30th Street districts.  

The remaining proposed parcels, representing 60% the proposed district’s Taxable Value, do 

not reside in an existing URD. 

URD Acres 
Taxable 

Value 

 From River Myrtle-Old Boise URD 35 $22,008,300 

 From 30th Street URD 36 $21,292,300 

 New to URD 120 $64,722,300 

Proposed Shoreline URD 191 $108,022,900 

 
Outreach to Shoreline District stakeholders – property owners, the public, taxing districts and 

the city – will occur over the next few months.  A draft urban renewal plan is being created for 

review by the CCDC Board of Commissioners in a public meeting this summer.  It will then go to 

Boise City for approval in early fall.  As statutorily-required, all affected taxing districts will 

receive formal notification regarding both the creation of the Shoreline District and the de-

annexation of the identified parcels from the existing RMOB and 30th Street URDs.  

It is important to me that you are fully informed of CCDC’s work.  Contact Shellan Rodriguez, 

Real Estate Development Manager (srodriguez@ccdcboise.com or 208.384.4264) anytime with 

questions or comments.  A great resource for answers to frequently asked questions and up-to-

date information is www.ccdcshoreline.com.   

Urban renewal districts, by design, come and go.  As the Shoreline District takes shape, the 

Agency’s first URD, the Central District, ten blocks and 34 acres in the heart of downtown, will 

sunset this year on September 30.  Over the past thirty years CCDC and the Central District 

have played essential roles in the by-all-measures extremely successful redevelopment of the 

downtown core.  As the soon-to-be-former Central District’s increment revenue begins to flow 

back to the taxing districts with the distribution of Tax Year 2018 property values and tax 

distributions in January and July 2019, let’s hope for similar good fortune over the life of the 

Shoreline District.  

Sincerely,  

 

 
 

John Brunelle 
Executive Director 
 

Attachment:  1. Map of Proposed Shoreline URD 
4848-5545-3029, v. 2 

mailto:srodriguez@ccdcboise.com
http://www.ccdcshoreline.com/


30TH STREET DISTRICT WESTSIDE DISTRICT

RIVER MYRTLE-OLD BOISE

DISTRICT
PROPOSED 

SHORELINE 

DISTRICT

SLawrence
Text Box
Attachment 1



 

 

 

Created by SBF 6/5/2018 

Fiscal Impact 
30th Street Urban Renewal Proposed Deannex 

PARCEL PROPYEAR TOTALVALUE 2017 BASE VALUE INCREMENT 
R1431000186 2018 $392,400 $247,000 $145,400 
R1431000220 2018 $0 $0 $0 
R7293550010 2018 $1,861,300 $972,600 $888,700 
R7293550020 2018 $3,195,100 $2,415,400 $779,700 
R7293550030 2018 $2,385,400 $2,346,200 $39,200 
R7476000592 2018 $732,200 $590,400 $141,800 
R7476000616 2018 $734,200 $610,800 $123,400 
R7476000681 2018 $51,600 $44,900 $6,700 
R7476000813 2018 $423,500 $377,700 $45,800 
R1431000176 2018 $286,600 $255,700 $30,900 
S1009120600 2018 $0 $0 $0 
S1009120652 2018 $383,000 $319,300 $63,700 
S1009120842 2018 $1,672,100 $1,424,500 $247,600 
S1009120844 2018 $0 $0 $0 
R7476000560 2018 $1,104,400 $661,700 $442,700 
R7476000670 2018 $185,700 $147,800 $37,900 
R7476000691 2018 $403,800 $333,300 $70,500 
R7476000710 2018 $0 $0 $0 
S1009120680 2018 $0 $0 $0 
S1009120895 2018 $0 $0 $0 
S1009212400 2018 $0 $0 $0 
S1009120593 2018 $20,000 $17,400 $2,600 
S1009120702 2018 $0 $0 $0 
S1009120860 2018 $7,095,000 $2,950,400 $4,144,600 
S1009120882 2018 $0 $0 $0 
R1431000160 2018 $0 $0 $0 
R1431000245 2018 $0 $0 $0 
R7476000645 2018 $28,800 $24,000 $4,800 
R7476000650 2018 $40,800 $28,900 $11,900 
R7476000705 2018 $147,400 $108,900 $38,500 
S1009120672 2018 $149,000 $124,100 $24,900 
S1009212410 2018 $0 $0 $0 

  $21,292,300 $14,001,000 $7,291,300 

   Levy Rate 0.01505139 

   Tax Incr. Revenue $109,744 
 



 

Page 1 
 

 

 

 

AGENDA BILL 

Agenda Subject: 
Resolution 1555A and1555B 
 
Adoption of the First Amendment to the First Amended and Restated 
Urban Renewal Plan, River Myrtle –Old Boise Urban Renewal Project, 
seeking to deannex certain parcels from the existing River Myrtle-Old 
Boise Project Area, Option A and B. 

Date: 
 
6/11/2018 

Staff Contact: 
 
Shellan Rodriguez 

Attachments: 
1. Resolution No. 1555A  

1.1. First Amended and Restated Urban Renewal Plan-  
First Amendment, Option A 

1.2 Attachment 1 to the Plan: Option A Legal 
Description 

1.3  Attachment 2 to the Plan: Option A Maps 
1.4 Attachment 7 to the Plan: Fiscal Impact on 

CCDC’s River-Myrtle/Old Boise Urban Renewal 
District of the Proposed De-Annexation of 31 
Parcels  

 
2. Resolution No. 1555B  

2.1. First Amended and Restated Urban Renewal Plan-  
First Amendment, Option B 

2.2. Attachment 1 to the Plan: Option B Legal 
Description 

2.3. Attachment 2 to the Plan: Option B Maps 
2.4. Attachment 7 to the Plan: Fiscal Impact on 

CCDC’s River-Myrtle/Old Boise Urban Renewal 
District of the Proposed De-Annexation of 31 
Parcels  

3. Letter to taxing districts 
 

Action Requested: 
  
Adopt Resolution No. 1555A and1555B approving and adopting the First Amendment to the 
First Amended and Restated Urban Renewal Plan, River Myrtle –Old Boise Urban Renewal 
Project, seeking to deannex certain parcels from the existing River Myrtle-Old Boise Project 
Area.   

 

Background: 

In late 2017, the Boise City Council adopted the River Street Master Plan. The area within this 

Plan is between the Boise River Greenbelt, the I-184 Connector, Myrtle Street and 9th Street, 

and is considered underdeveloped. Starting in 2016, a planning and outreach process occurred 



 

Page 2 
 

to obtain input from various stakeholders including area business owners, property owners, 

residents and representatives of public agencies.  

In late 2013, the Lusk Street Master Plan was finalized and adopted by the Boise City Council. 

That Plan included the area east of Ann Morrison Park, south of the Boise River, west of Capitol 

Boulevard, and north of the Boise Depot. One of its primary goals was to support Lusk Street as 

a pedestrian and bicycle oriented mixed-use storefront area that provides a unique mix of 

services.  The Lusk Street Master Plan includes an Implementation Plan which identifies high 

priority actions such as working with CCDC to examine the possibility of a new urban renewal 

district and working with CCDC to explore partnerships and funding opportunities for locating a 

new parking garage/options in the area.   

The River Street Master Plan and the Lusk Street Master Plan (collectively, the “Master Plans”) 

incorporate areas that are within or just outside existing URDs. These Master Plans identify a 

range of existing conditions and outline goals around transportation, sidewalks, 

bicycle/pedestrian, park improvements and land uses.  

Since early 2017, CCDC staff has been working to determine geographic boundaries for a 

proposed urban renewal study area to leverage the effort of the above-mentioned Master Plans 

as well as to identify areas that have experienced less investment compared with neighboring 

areas. In determining the boundaries of the proposed study area. CCDC staff worked closely 

with the City of Boise staff to research and review areas where the creation of an urban renewal 

district would enable access to unique tools and resources not otherwise available to stimulate 

reinvestment and attract new development in an area that may not otherwise occur.  The study 

area was intended to be small enough to create meaningful and measurable outcomes and 

development plans, while also catalyzing areas that have not benefited as broadly from 

investment as perhaps nearby URDs have. The boundaries of the proposed study area were 

drafted, studied and reviewed by CCDC staff and leadership as well as City of Boise staff.  

In late 2017, the City Council approved the Eligibility Study completed by SB Friedman 

Development Advisors.  The area studied is now referred to as the “proposed Shoreline Urban 

Renewal Area.” This area, approx. 195 acres, includes much of the area included in the Master 

Plans.  

Of the approximately 195 acres within the proposed Shoreline Urban Renewal Area between 25 

and 37 acres is also currently within the boundaries of the River Myrtle-Old Boise Urban 

Renewal District (the “RMOB District”). Idaho Code, as applied, does not allow for a parcel to be 

within the boundaries of two urban renewal districts, therefore, the parcels currently in the 

RMOB District must be deannexed via a plan amendment of the RMOB Urban Renewal Plan 

(the “Plan Amendment”). The intent is for this area to become part of the proposed Shoreline 

Urban Renewal District later in 2018, or in 2019.  



 

Page 3 
 

 

There are two deannexation options at this time with the only difference being that Option A 

includes the deannexation of 37 acres and 31 parcels whereas Option B includes slightly less, 

25 acres and 27 parcels. The four additional parcels (the “Additional Parcels”) that are included 

in Option A are identified as:  

 

1) S1009111064: 1500 W. Shoreline Drive, Boise  
2) S100911068: 688 S. Americana Blvd., Boise 
3) R74760000231: 670 S. 15th Street, Boise 
4) R7476000305: 610 S. 15th Street, Boise 

 

The Additional Parcels are currently owned  or leased by St. Luke’s and are part of an 

Annexation/ Rezone Application submitted to the City of Boise Planning & Development 

Services by Greenstone Boise, LLC on or around April 24, 2018. The Additional Parcels are 

generally bounded by Shoreline Drive, Americana Boulevard and Spa Street. The applicant’s 

cover letter describes the request to rezone the land to construct a new Boise Sports Park, a 

multipurpose stadium, which will anchor a larger mixed-use development. The application 

includes the Boise Sports Park, as well as, 300 multifamily units, 40,000 square feet of ground 

floor retail, 120,000 s.f. of office space, a parking garage and improvements to Shoreline Drive. 

Based on a May 24, 2018, written request from the developer, the application has been 

deferred, or put on hold. Although this transformative project would be important to the future 

creation of a Shoreline Urban Renewal District it is not a requirement. The establishment of the 

proposed Shoreline Urban Renewal District is not dependent upon the above-mentioned 

development occurring. With that said it is unclear at this time whether the Additional Parcels 

may be better suited to remain in the RMOB District or perhaps be deannexed and become part 

of the proposed Shoreline Urban Renewal District. In order to provide additional time to review 

and also meet the schedule of the proposed Shoreline Urban Renewal District there are two 

alternative geographic options for deannexation from the RMOB District, Resolution Nos. 1555A 

and 1555B.   Ultimately, only one option to amend the RMOB District will move forward and go 

before City Council.  



 

Page 4 
 

Option A 

 

Option B 

 



 

Page 5 
 

All taxing districts were notified of the intent to proceed with the creation of the proposed 

Shoreline Urban Renewal District and the proposed Plan Amendment via letter dated May 16, 

2018. 

Fiscal Notes: 

The RMOB District has outstanding obligations subject to certain bond covenants. Attachment 7 

to the Plan Amendment is a report dated May 15, 2018 by Don Holley, PhD and Don Reading, 

PhD, the Feasibility Consultants, which concludes and opines that the deannexation of up to 31 

parcels from the existing RMOB District does result in a material reduction of tax increment. 

This report has been shared with the RMOB District bond holder, specifically Z.B., NA, as per 

the requirements of the Bond Resolutions. 

There are additional costs of the Plan Amendment such as legal and consultant fees, staff time 

and public noticing costs which are incorporated within the FY 2018 budget and will be within 

the FY 2019 budget. 

This Plan Amendment will have no impact on the duration of the RMOB District and will not 

reset the base value of the RMOB District. It will remove parcels as described in either Option A 

(31 Parcels) or Option B (27 parcels) from the RMOB District, and therefore, the RMOB District 

will no longer receive an allocation of revenues from the deannexed parcels.  The total FY 2017 

increment revenue for the RMOB District is $8,675,983 and the reduction of 31 parcels 

contemplated in Option A will reduce revenue by an estimated $198,436 in 2018, based on 

2017 numbers.    

Staff Recommendation: 

Adopt Resolution No. 1555A and1555B adopting the First Amendment to the First Amended 

and Restated Urban Renewal Plan, River Myrtle –Old Boise Urban Renewal Project, seeking to 

deannex certain parcels from the existing River Myrtle-Old Boise Project Area. 

Suggested Motions: 
 
I move to adopt Resolution No. 1555A approving and adopting the First Amendment to the First 
Amended and Restated Urban Renewal Plan, River Myrtle –Old Boise Urban Renewal Project, 
seeking to deannex certain parcels from the existing River Myrtle-Old Boise Project Area based 
on Option A.   
 
and 
 
I move to adopt Resolution No. 1555B approving and adopting the First Amendment to the First 
Amended and Restated Urban Renewal Plan, River Myrtle –Old Boise Urban Renewal Project, 
seeking to deannex certain parcels from the existing River Myrtle-Old Boise Project Area based 
on Option B.   
 

 

4828-1605-3608, v. 1 



 

RESOLUTION NO. 1555A- 1 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 1555A            

  
BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF 
BOISE CITY, IDAHO: 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF 
THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY, IDAHO, 
ALSO KNOWN AS CAPITAL CITY DEVELOPMENT 
CORPORATION, RECOMMENDING AND ADOPTING THE 
FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE FIRST AMENDED AND 
RESTATED URBAN RENEWAL PLAN, RIVER STREET-
MYRTLE STREET URBAN RENEWAL PROJECT, AND 
RENAMED RIVER MYRTLE-OLD BOISE URBAN RENEWAL 
PROJECT, WHICH FIRST AMENDMENT SEEKS TO 
DEANNEX CERTAIN PARCELS FROM THE EXISTING 
RIVER MYRTLE-OLD BOISE PROJECT AREA; 
AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE CHAIR, VICE-
CHAIR, OR EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO TAKE 
APPROPRIATE ACTION; PROVIDING FOR THE 
RESOLUTION TO BE EFFECTIVE UPON ITS PASSAGE AND 
APPROVAL; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.   

 
 THIS RESOLUTION, made on the date hereinafter set forth by the Urban Renewal 
Agency of Boise City, Idaho, also known as Capital City Development Corporation, an 
independent public body corporate and politic, authorized under the authority of the Idaho Urban 
Renewal Law of 1965, Chapter 20, Title 50, Idaho Code, as amended (hereinafter the “Law”) 
and the Local Economic Development Act, Chapter 29, Title 50, Idaho Code, as amended 
(hereinafter the “Act”), a duly created and functioning urban renewal agency for Boise City, 
Idaho, hereinafter referred to as “Agency.” 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council (the “City Council”) of the City of Boise City, Idaho (the 
“City”), after notice duly published, conducted a public hearing on the River Street-Myrtle Street 
Urban Renewal Plan (the “River Street-Myrtle Street Plan”);   
 
 WHEREAS, following said public hearing, the City Council adopted its Ordinance No. 
5596 on December 6, 1994, approving the River Street-Myrtle Street Plan and making certain 
findings;   
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council, after notice duly published, conducted a public hearing on 
the First Amended and Restated Urban Renewal Plan, River Street-Myrtle Street Urban Renewal 
Project (annexation of the Old Boise Eastside Study Area and Several Minor Parcels) and 
Renamed River Myrtle-Old Boise Urban Renewal Project (the “River Myrtle-Old Boise Plan”);   
 

srodriguez
Text Box
Attachment 1



 

RESOLUTION NO. 1555A- 2 

 WHEREAS, following said public hearing, the City Council adopted its Ordinance No. 
6362 on November 30, 2004, approving the River Myrtle-Old Boise Plan and making certain 
findings;   
 
 WHEREAS, the River Myrtle-Old Boise project area is referred to herein as the “Existing 
Project Area;” 
 
  
 WHEREAS, the Agency seeks to amend the Existing Project Area to deannex certain 
parcels as described in the First Amendment defined below;  
 
 WHEREAS, the Agency has reviewed the financial impact of the deannexation on its 
allocation of revenue and has concluded the remaining allocation of revenue is sufficient to pay 
its operations, obligations and to continue to implement the terms of the River-Myrtle-Old Boise 
Plan;  

 
WHEREAS, the Agency, in coordination with the City, has prepared the First 

Amendment to the River Myrtle-Old Boise Plan (the “First Amendment”), as set forth in Exhibit 
1 attached hereto, identifying the parcels to be deannexed from the Existing Project Area;   
 
 WHEREAS, the First Amendment amends the River Myrtle-Old Boise Plan, which 
contains provisions of revenue allocation financing as allowed by the Act;   
 
 WHEREAS, the First Amendment is expected to be adopted by the City Council in 
accordance with the requirements of the Law and the Act, specifically, but not limited to the 
requirements set forth in Idaho Code §§ 50-2008 and 50-2906;   
 
 WHEREAS, the Agency Board finds it in the best interests of the Agency and the public 
to recommend approval of the adoption of the First Amendment, as prepared by the Agency in 
coordination with the City, and as set forth in Exhibit 1 attached hereto, and to forward it to the 
Mayor and City, for adoption in accordance with the requirements of the Law and the Act.        
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS OF THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY, IDAHO, AS 
FOLLOWS:   
 
 Section 1. The above statements are true and correct.   
 

Section 2. That the Agency Board recommends that the First Amendment, attached 
hereto as Exhibit 1, identifying the parcels to be deannexed from the Existing Project Area, be 
adopted by the City Council including any sections, modifications, or text discussed at the June 
11, 2018, Agency Board meeting. 
 



 

RESOLUTION NO. 1555A- 3 

 Section 3. That this Resolution constitutes the necessary action of the Agency under 
the Law, Section 50-2008, Idaho Code and the Act. 
 
 Section 4. The Chair or Vice-Chair of the Board of Commissioners, or the Executive 
Director of the Agency are hereby authorized and directed to take all steps necessary and 
convenient in partnership with the City to facilitate the City’s adoption of the First Amendment.   
   
 Section 5. That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its 
adoption and approval.   
 
 PASSED by the Urban Renewal Agency of Boise City, Idaho, also known as Capital City 
Development Corporation on June 11, 2018.  Signed by the Chair of the Board of 
Commissioners, and attested by the Secretary to the Board of Commissioners, on June 11, 2018. 
       

APPROVED: 
 
 
 
       By_________________________________ 
           Chair of the Board 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
By_______________________________ 
   Secretary 
 
4849-9488-5474, v. 2 



OPTION A 
 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE FIRST AMENDED AND RESTATED RIVER MYRTLE – 
OLD BOISE URBAN RENEWAL PLAN- 1 

 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE 
FIRST AMENDED AND RESTATED URBAN RENEWAL PLAN 

 
RIVER STREET-MYRTLE STREET 

 
URBAN RENEWAL PROJECT 

(ANNEXATION OF THE OLD BOISE EASTSIDE STUDY AREA AND SEVERAL MINOR 
PARCELS) 

AND RENAMED 

RIVER MYRTLE – OLD BOISE 

URBAN RENEWAL PROJECT 

 
URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY 

BOISE, IDAHO 
 
 

 
Ordinance No. 5596 

Adopted December 6, 1994 
Effective December 25, 1994, publication 

 
First Amended and Restated 

Ordinance No. 6362 
Adopted November 30, 2004 

Effective December 6, 2004, publication 
 

Issued with Minor Corrections 
December 2011 

March 2015 
 

First Amendment to the First Amended and Restated 
Ordinance No. _____ 

Adopted July ___, 2018 
Effective ___________, 2018, publication 

 
  

srodriguez
Text Box
Attachment 1.1



OPTION A 
 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE FIRST AMENDED AND RESTATED RIVER MYRTLE – 
OLD BOISE URBAN RENEWAL PLAN- 2 

 

BACKGROUND 

 This First Amendment (“First Amendment”) to the First Amended and Restated Urban 
Renewal Plan, River Street-Myrtle Street Urban Renewal Project and renamed River Myrtle – 
Old Boise Urban Renewal Project (the “Plan”) deannexes certain parcels from the plan 
area/revenue allocation area created by the Plan commonly referred to as the “River Myrtle – 
Old Boise Project Area,” adopted by Boise City Council Ordinance No. 5596, on December 6, 
1994, and as subsequently amended in 2004. The scope of this First Amendment is limited to 
addressing the deannexation of certain parcels from the River Myrtle – Old Boise Project Area.  
It is important to note the deannexation of parcels from the River Myrtle – Old Boise Project 
Area does not change the termination date set forth in the Plan. 

As a result of the deannexation, in 2018 through the remaining years of the Plan, the 
Urban Renewal Agency of Boise City, Idaho also known as Capital City Development 
Corporation (the “Agency”) will cease receiving an allocation of revenues from the deannexed 
parcels.  The increment value of the parcels deannexed from the River Myrtle – Old Boise 
Project Area shall be included in the net taxable value of the taxing district when calculating the 
subsequent property tax levies pursuant to section 63-803, Idaho Code. The increment value 
shall also be included in subsequent notification of taxable value for each taxing district pursuant 
to section 63-1312, Idaho Code, and subsequent certification of actual and adjusted market 
values for each school district pursuant to section 63-315, Idaho Code. The Ada County 
Assessor’s Office maintains the value information, including the increment value, if any, 
included on the new construction roll for new construction associated with the deannexed 
parcels.  The amount added to the new construction roll will equal the amount by which the 
December 31, 2017, increment value exceeds the increment value as of December 31, 2006.     

 
House Bill 606, effective July 1, 2016, amended the Idaho Urban Renewal Law of 1965, 

Chapter 20, Title 50, Idaho Code, as amended (the “Law”) and the Local Economic 
Development Act, Chapter 29, Title 50, Idaho Code, as amended (the “Act”) confirming that a 
plan amendment to the Plan does not result in a reset of the base assessment roll values to the 
current year’s equalized assessed values:  “[f]or plans adopted or modified prior to July 1, 2016, 
and for subsequent modifications of those urban renewal plans, the value of the base assessment 
roll of property within the revenue allocation area shall be determined as if the modification had 
not occurred.”  Idaho Code § 50-2903(4). Further a plan amendment to accommodate a de-
annexation in the revenue allocation boundary is also an identified exception to the base reset 
requirement.  Idaho Code § 50-2903A(1)(a)(iii).   

AMENDMENTS TO THE PLAN 

1. Definitions.  Capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the respective 
meanings ascribed to such terms in the Plan. 

2. The following defined terms are amended throughout the Plan as follows:   



OPTION A 
 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE FIRST AMENDED AND RESTATED RIVER MYRTLE – 
OLD BOISE URBAN RENEWAL PLAN- 3 

 

(a) Delete “Project Area” and replace with “Amended Project Area” except 
where specifically referenced in this First Amendment. 

 (b) Delete references to Attachment 1 entitled “Description of the Project 
Area and Revenue Allocation Area” and replace with Attachment 1 entitled “Description of the 
Amended Project Area and Amended Revenue Allocation Area.” 

 (c) Delete references to Attachment 2 entitled “Project Area-Revenue 
Allocation Area Boundary Map” and replace with Attachment 2 entitled “Amended Project 
Area-Amended Revenue Allocation Area Boundary Map.” 

3 Amendment to Section 101 of the Plan. 

(a) Section 101 entitled “PROVISIONS NECESSARY TO MEET STATE AND 
LOCAL REQUIREMENTS CONFORMANCE WITH STATE OF IDAHO URBAN 
RENEWAL LAW OF 1965, AS AMENDED” is amended by adding new paragraphs to the end 
of the existing language as follows: 

g. This First Amendment to the Plan (the “First Amendment”) 
deannexes certain parcels from the existing Project Area, resulting 
in an “Amended Project Area” as further described and shown in 
Attachments 1 and 2.   

 
h. In accordance with the Idaho Urban Renewal Law of 1965, this 

First Amendment was submitted to the Planning Commission of 
the City of Boise.  After consideration of the First Amendment, the 
Commission filed a Resolution dated July __, 2018, with the City 
Council stating that the First Amendment is in conformity with 
Blueprint Boise, the Comprehensive Plan for the city of Boise, 
adopted on November 29, 2011, and as subsequently amended. 
 

i. Pursuant to the Idaho Urban Renewal Law of 1965, the City 
Council, having published due notice thereof, held a public hearing 
on the First Amendment.  Notice of the hearing was duly published 
in a newspaper having general circulation.  The City Council 
adopted the First Amendment on ______, 2018, pursuant to 
Ordinance No. _____.  

 

4. Amendment to Section 200 of the Plan. 

(a) Section 200 entitled “DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT AREA” is deleted and 
replaced as follows:  

DESCRIPTION OF THE AMENDED PROJECT AREA 



OPTION A 
 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE FIRST AMENDED AND RESTATED RIVER MYRTLE – 
OLD BOISE URBAN RENEWAL PLAN- 4 

 

 
The boundaries of the Amended Project Area and of the Amended 
Revenue Allocation Area are described in Attachment 1, which is 
attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference, and are 
shown on the Amended Project Area and Amended Revenue 
Allocation Area Boundary Map, attached hereto as Attachment 2 
and incorporated herein by reference.  The map shows the original 
boundary of the River Street-Myrtle Street Urban Renewal Project, 
the areas added as part of the 2004 amendment process, and the 
areas deannexed as part of the 2018 amendment process.   
 
The area contained within the original boundary was designated as 
appropriate for an urban renewal project by City Council 
Resolution Nos. 12475 and 12737 and Ordinance 5596.  The 2004 
additions to the original boundary included annexation of a portion 
of the Old Boise-Eastside Study Area to the River Street-Myrtle 
Street District, designated as appropriate for an urban renewal 
project by City Council Resolution No. 17216, and additions to the 
River Street-Myrtle Street Area, designated as appropriate for an 
urban renewal project by Council Resolution No. 18232.  The 
Agency has received reports prepared by Harlan W. Mann, 
consultant, concerning findings of deteriorated or deteriorating 
conditions for the original area (dated September 23, 1991, April 8, 
1994, and September 19, 1994), and reports for the areas added in 
2004 (dated July 13, 2001, and June 30, 2004).   
 

5. Amendment to Section 302 of the Plan. 

(a) Section 302 is amended by deleting the first sentence of the second paragraph and 
replacing it as follows: 

Following de-annexation of certain parcels, the Amended Project 
Area and Amended Revenue Allocation Area consists of 
approximately 300 acres adjacent to the Boise Central Business 
District.   

6. Amendment to Section 504 of the Plan. 

(a) Section 504 is amended by adding a new sentence immediately following the end 
of the first sentence of the first paragraph as follows: Revenue allocation financing authority for 
the deannexed parcels pursuant to the First Amendment will be terminated effective January 1, 
2018. 



OPTION A 
 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE FIRST AMENDED AND RESTATED RIVER MYRTLE – 
OLD BOISE URBAN RENEWAL PLAN- 5 

 

(b) Section 504 is amended by adding a new sentence at the end of the fourth 
paragraph as follows: No modifications to the analysis set forth in Attachment 6 have been made 
as a result of the First Amendment.  

7. Amendment to Section 504.01 of the Plan. 

(a) Section 504.01 is amended by adding a new sentence immediately following the 
end of the second sentence as follows: No modifications to the Study have been made as a result 
of this First Amendment; however, the estimated financial impact to the Agency as a result of the 
deannexation of certain parcels from the existing Project Area pursuant to the First Amendment 
is set forth in the Fiscal Impact on CCDC’s River Myrtle/Old Boise Urban Renewal District of 
the Proposed De-Annexation of 31 Parcels, which analysis is included in Attachment 7 to the 
Plan. 

8. Amendment to Section 504.03 of the Plan. 

 (a) Section 504.03 is amended by adding a new sentence at the end of the paragraph 
as follows: The deannexation of parcels from the existing Project Area pursuant to the First 
Amendment will not change this analysis. 

 
9. Amendment to Section 504.04 of the Plan. 

 (a) Section 504.04 is amended by adding a new sentence at the end of the second 
paragraph as follows: The deannexation of parcels from the existing Project Area pursuant to the 
First Amendment will reduce the amount of revenue generated by revenue allocation as set forth 
in Attachment 7.   
 
 (b) Section 504.04 is amended by adding a new sentence at the end of the third 
paragraph as follows: Based on the findings set forth in Attachment 7 pursuant to the First 
Amendment the conclusion is the deannexation of certain parcels from the existing Project Area 
pursuant to the First Amendment does not materially reduce revenue allocation and the Project 
continues to be feasible. 
 
 10. Amendment to Section 800 of the Plan. 
 
 (a) Section 800 is amended by adding a new sentence at the end of the first paragraph 
as follows: The deannexation of parcels from the existing Project Area has no impact on the 
duration of this Plan. 
 

 
 

  



OPTION A 
 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE FIRST AMENDED AND RESTATED RIVER MYRTLE – 
OLD BOISE URBAN RENEWAL PLAN- 6 

 

11. Amendment to Attachment 1 of the Plan.   

(a) Attachment 1 entitled “Description of the Project Area and Revenue Allocation Area” 
is deleted and replaced with Attachment 1 entitled “Description of the Amended Project Area 
and Amended Revenue Allocation Area,” attached hereto.  

12. Amendment to Attachment 2 of the Plan. 

(a) Attachment 2 entitled “Project Area – Revenue Allocation Area Boundary Map” is 
deleted and replaced with Attachment 2 entitled “Amended Project Area-Amended Revenue 
Allocation Area Boundary Map,” attached hereto. 

13. Amendment to Plan to add new Attachment 7. 

(a) The Plan is amended to add new Attachment 7 entitled “Fiscal Impact on CCDC’s 
River-Myrtle/Old Boise Urban Renewal District of the Proposed De-Annexation of 31 Parcels,” 
attached hereto. 

14. River Myrtle – Old Boise Plan Remains in Effect.  Except as expressly modified in 
this First Amendment, the Plan and the Attachments thereto remain in full force and effect. 

 

 
   

 

 
 
 
4819-0564-9506, v. 2 



 

1904 West Overland Road  Boise, ID  83705  Phone (208) 342-0091  Fax (208) 342-0092  Internet:  quadrant@quadrant.cc 
Civil Engineering  Surveying  

 
June 7, 2018 

 
 

EXHIBIT A.1 
RIVER-MYRTLE DE-ANNEXATION 

WEST AREA 
 
 

A tract of land being a portion of Section 9 in Township 3 North, Range 2 East, Boise 
Meridian, Boise City, Ada County, Idaho.  Said tract of land being more particularly described 
by record information as follows: 
 
Commencing at the Section Corner common to Sections 3, 4, 9, and 10, of Township 3 
North, Range 2 East, Boise Meridian, thence North 89°19’15” West 243.95 feet along the 
Section line common to said Sections 4 and 9 to a point on the Northwesterly Right-of-Way 
of South 16th Street, thence along said Northwesterly Right-Of-Way South 35°08”45” West 
155.22 feet, to a point on the Northerly Right-Of-Way of South Americana Boulevard, thence 
along said Northerly Right-Of-Way South 64°53’07” West 127.27 feet; thence continuing 
along said Northerly Right-Of-Way South 64° 53' 07" West 449.18 feet to the intersection 
with the Northerly Right-Of-Way of West River Street Being the POINT OF BEGINNING, 
thence along said Northerly Right-Of-Way 
 
South 25° 26' 23" East 1231.62 feet, to a point on the Southerly Right-Of-Way of South 13th 
Street, thence leaving said Northerly Right-Of-Way and following said Southerly Right-Of-
Way the following two courses: 
 

South 71° 18' 16" West 103.28 feet to the Northeasterly corner of the Abri Condominiums, 
thence 
 

South 64° 35' 49" West 178.76 feet to a point being the Northwesterly corner of said 
Condominiums, thence leaving said Southerly Right-Of-Way 
 

South 25° 32' 02" East 141.81 feet along the Westerly boundary of said Abri Condominiums, 
thence crossing a public alley 
 

South 32° 45' 25" East 15.58 feet to a point on the Northwesterly line of Parcel Number 
R5011000060, thence following said Northwesterly line 
 

South 64° 45' 55" West 199.16 feet, thence leaving said Northwesterly line 
 
North 45° 18' 08" West 251.90 feet to a point on the Northerly Right-Of-Way of South 13th 
Street, thence along said Northerly Right-Of-Way 
 
North 64° 31' 04" East 332.49 feet, thence leaving said Northerly Right-Of-Way 
 

srodriguez
Text Box
Attachment 1.2



 

June 7, 2018  
Page 2 
 

 
North 25° 21' 15" West 149.46 feet along the Easterly line of Parcel Number R7476000093, 
thence  
 
South 64° 37' 11" West 599.92 feet along the Northerly lines of Parcel Numbers 
R7476000093, S1009141880 and S1009141860 to a point on the Easterly line of Parcel 
Number S1009141850 thence along said Easterly line and the Easterly line of Parcel 
Number S1009141830 
 
North 25° 21' 58" West 150.72 feet to the Southerly Right-Of-Way line of South 14th Street, 
thence along said Southerly Right-Of-Way  
 
South 65° 08' 53" West 285.33 feet to a point on the Westerly Right-Of-Way line of West 
Shoreline Drive, thence along said Westerly Right-Of-Way the following 5 courses: 
  
North 25° 09' 27" West 87.62 feet, thence 
North 05° 43' 51" West 87.63 feet, thence 
North 15° 25' 55" West 145.63 feet, thence 
North 25° 13' 41" West 395.33 feet to the Southerly Right-Of-Way of South Americana 
Boulevard, thence 
 
North 31° 00' 13" West 94.23 feet to the Northerly Right-Of-Way of said South Americana 
Boulevard, thence along said Northerly Right-Of-Way the following  
 
North 21° 07' 46" East 43.42 feet, thence 
North 48° 31' 19" East 81.55 feet, thence 
South 78° 33' 11" East 39.05 feet, thence 
 
223.77 feet along a curve to the right, said curve having a radius of 1453.37 feet, a delta 
angle of 08° 49' 18" and a chord bearing and distance of North 60° 22' 26" East 223.55 feet, 
thence 
 
South 25° 13' 11" East 10.00 feet, thence 
 
North 64° 47' 32" East 704.53 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING. 
 
Said Tract contains 26.2 acres, more or less.  

             



 

1904 West Overland Road  Boise, ID  83705  Phone (208) 342-0091  Fax (208) 342-0092  Internet:  quadrant@quadrant.cc 
Civil Engineering  Surveying  

May 31, 2018 
EXHIBIT A.2 

RIVER-MYRTLE DE-ANNEXATION 
EAST AREA 

 
A tract of land being a portion of Section 9 and a portion of Section 10 both in Township 3 
North, Range 2 East, Boise Meridian, Boise City, Ada County, Idaho.  Said tract of land 
being more particularly described by record information as follows: 
 
Commencing at the Section Corner common to Sections 3, 4, 9, and 10, of Township 3 
North, Range 2 East, Boise Meridian, thence South 00°34’20” West 1741.17 feet along the 
Section line common to said Sections 9 and 10 to a point on the Southeasterly Right-of-Way 
of South 12th Street, thence along said Southeasterly Right-Of-Way South 64°43”27” West 
158.58 feet, to the intersection with the Northerly Right-Of-Way of West River Street and the 
POINT OF BEGINNING; thence following said Northerly Right-Of-Way the following 7 
courses: 
 
South 29° 02' 32" East 175.67 feet  
South 13° 36' 17" East 26.84 feet, thence 

South 30° 29' 54" East 148.56 feet, thence 

South 54° 37' 05" East 121.94 feet, thence 

South 31° 17' 55" East 61.81 feet, thence 

South 55° 00' 37" East 984.67 feet, thence 

South 87° 50' 05" East 118.70 feet to the intersection with the Westerly Right-Of-Way of 
South 9th Street, thence following said Westerly Right-Of-Way 
 

North 06° 35' 46" East 18.61 feet, thence 

North 02° 29' 36" East 19.08 feet, thence leaving said Westerly Right-Of-Way 
 

South 87° 30' 24" East 103.25 feet to a point on the Easterly Right-Of-Way of South 9th 
Street, thence along said Easterly Right-Of-Way 
 

18.59 feet along a curve to the left, said curve having a radius of 10.00 feet, a delta angle of 
106° 30' 47" and a chord bearing and distance of South 42° 47' 39" East 16.03 feet, thence 
leaving said Easterly Right-Of-Way 
 

South 08° 12' 23" East 76.59 feet to a point on the Southerly Right-Of-Way of West River 
Street, thence along said Southerly Right-Of-Way 

36.70 feet along a curve to the left, said curve having a radius of 219.12 feet, a delta angle 
of 09° 35' 45" and a chord bearing and distance of South 74° 42' 39" West 36.66 feet, thence 
 
8.63 feet along a curve to the left, said curve having a radius of 20.00 feet, a delta angle of 
24° 42' 34" and a chord bearing and distance of South 56° 21' 56" West 8.56 feet to a point 
on said Easterly Right-Of-Way of South 9th Street, thence along said Easterly Right-Of-Way 

 

 



 

May 31, 2018  
Page 2 
 

 
South 01° 58' 16" West 334.32 feet, thence 
South 04° 51' 25" West 112.24 feet  
 

South 27° 26' 08" East 91.16 feet to a point on the Northerly bank of the Boise River, thence 
along said Northerly bank, thence along said Northerly bank 
 
North 64° 01' 18" West 161.48 feet to a point on the Westerly Right-Of-Way of South 9th 
Street, thence along said Westerly Right-Of-Way, the following 11 courses: 
 
North 10° 01' 37" East 111.63 feet, thence 
North 02° 30' 58" East 110.12 feet, thence 
North 39° 21' 58" West 7.94 feet, thence 
North 87° 05' 15" West 9.88 feet, thence 
North 02° 38' 54" East 42.67 feet, thence 
North 22° 23' 42" East 10.70 feet, thence 
North 78° 23' 02" East 6.00 feet, thence 
North 69° 03' 45" West 1.06 feet, thence 
North 02° 30' 34" East 82.67 feet, thence 
North 14° 18' 19" East 27.56 feet, thence 
North 03° 37' 56" East 50.33 feet to the intersection of the Southerly Right-Of-Way of West 
River Street, thence along said Southerly Right-Of-Way the following 11 courses: 
 
38.44 feet along a curve to the left, said curve having a radius of 45.65 feet, a delta angle of 
48° 14' 45" and a chord bearing and distance of North 56° 02' 36" West 37.31 feet, thence 
 
13.99 feet along a curve to the left, said curve having a radius of 114.50 feet, a delta angle 
of 07° 00' 00" and a chord bearing and distance of North 83° 45' 07" West 13.98 feet, thence 
 
197.48 feet along a curve to the right, said curve having a radius of 380.19 feet, a delta angle 
of 29° 45' 40" and a chord bearing and distance of North 69° 33' 32" West 195.27 feet, 
thence 
 
North 54° 47' 03" West 466.84 feet, thence 
North 54° 47' 03" West 55.90 feet, thence 
North 53° 55' 51" West 80.21 feet, thence 
North 54° 50' 45" West 272.03 feet, thence 
North 60° 30' 47" West 50.67 feet, thence 
North 54° 50' 45" West 50.76 feet, thence 
 
136.12 feet along a curve to the right, said curve having a radius of 265.00 feet, a delta angle 
of 29° 25' 51" and a chord bearing and distance of North 41° 52' 45" West 134.63 feet, 
thence 
 
North 28° 54' 45" West 9.77 feet, thence leaving said Southerly Right-Of-Way 
 
6.80 feet along a curve to the left, said curve having a radius of 4.33 feet, a delta angle of 
89° 56' 01" and a chord bearing and distance of North 73° 54' 45" West 6.12 feet to a point 



 

May 31, 2018  
Page 3 
 

 
on the Southeasterly Right-Of-Way of South Pioneer Street, thence along said 
Southeasterly Right-Of-Way 

 
23.57 feet along a curve to the right, said curve having a radius of 56.00 feet, a delta angle 
of 24° 07' 09" and a chord bearing and distance of South 73° 08' 45" West 23.40 feet, thence 
 
South 85° 12' 15" West 20.43 feet, thence 
 
23.25 feet along a curve to the left, said curve having a radius of 65.00 feet, a delta angle of 
20° 29' 51" and a chord bearing and distance of South 74° 57' 15" West 23.13 feet, thence 
 
South 64° 42' 15" West 177.58 feet to the most northerly corner of Parcel Number 
R2887290150, thence leaving Southeasterly Right-Of-Way and tracing said Parcel the 
following 2 courses: 
 
 
South 25° 17' 45" East 55.00 feet, thence 
South 64° 42' 15" West 215.42 feet, thence 
 
North 65° 44' 45" West 41.78 feet, thence 
 
South 24° 13' 34" West 136.99 feet to a point being the most Southerly corner of Lot 8 of 
the Forest River No. 3 Subdivision said point also being on the Northerly boundary of Parcel 
number S1009142330, thence tracing said parcel the following 20 courses: 
 
South 65° 30' 22" East 527.02 feet, thence 
South 19° 56' 48" West 45.00 feet, thence 
South 70° 03' 12" East 50.00 feet, thence 
 
South 63° 36' 12" East 22.71 feet to the line common to said Sections 9 and 10, thence 
along said line 
 
South 01° 00' 48" West 40.00 feet to the Northerly Bank of the Boise River, thence along 
said Northerly Bank the following courses: 
 
North 66° 23' 25" West 645.60 feet, thence 
North 85° 05' 12" West 58.94 feet, thence 
North 60° 25' 12" West 150.90 feet, thence 
North 78° 25' 12" West 55.40 feet, thence 
North 50° 25' 12" West 69.00 feet, thence 
North 57° 40' 14" West 302.69 feet, thence 
North 50° 45' 12" West 200.00 feet, thence 
North 65° 45' 12" West 51.90 feet, thence 
North 55° 25' 12" West 113.94 feet, thence 
North 25° 18' 12" West 22.40 feet, thence 



 

May 31, 2018  
Page 4 
 

 
North 43° 59' 10" West 42.51 feet to the centerline of a vacated portion of South 13th Street, 
thence leaving said Northerly Bank and continuing along said Parcel, thence 
 
North 64° 24' 32" East 111.12 feet along said centerline to the Southwesterly Right-Of-Way 
of West Shoreline Drive, thence along said Southwesterly Right-Of-Way 
 
South 27° 11' 29" East 40.00 feet, thence leaving said Southwesterly Right-Of-Way and 
continuing along said Parcel 
 
South 47° 21' 26" East 363.97 feet, thence 
 
South 65° 30' 56" East 195.16 feet to the most Easterly of said Parcel Number R2887280080 
thence leaving said Parcel Number S1009142330 and tracing said parcel R2887280080 the 
following 6 courses: 
 
North 24° 29' 31" East 59.23 feet, thence 
North 64° 42' 15" East 150.39 feet, thence 
North 25° 17' 45" West 32.00 feet, thence 
North 64° 42' 15" East 94.70 feet, thence 
North 25° 17' 45" West 88.00 feet, thence 
 
North 64° 45' 55" East 37.82 feet to the Northwesterly corner of Parcel Number 
R2287280052, thence tracing said Parcel the following 3 courses: 
 
South 25° 15' 04" East 309.28 feet, thence 

North 64° 45' 55" East 295.60 feet, thence 

North 25° 14' 05" West 239.40 feet to a point on the Southeasterly line of Parcel Number 
R5011000060, thence along said Southeasterly line 
 

North 64° 45' 55" East 216.25 feet to the Southerly Right-Of-Way for West River Street, 
thence along said Southerly Right-Of-Way 
 

North 64° 45' 55" East 7.01 feet, thence leaving said Southerly Right-Of-Way 

North 50° 08' 53" East 74.54 feet to the intersection of said Northerly Right-Of-Way of West 
River Street and the Southerly Right-Of-Way being the POINT OF BEGINNING.   
 
Said Tract of land contains 11.2 acres, more or less. 

        



srodriguez
Text Box
Attachment 1.3



R-M DeAnnex.dwg DATE: MAY 31, 2018 JOB NO. 204-26

EXHIBIT B

DE-ANNEXATION OF A PORTION OF THE

 RIVER-MYRTLE URBAN RENEWAL DISTRICT

R
O

Y

E

V

R

U

S

D

N

AL

A

T

D

E

S
I

G

E

R

O

H

D

I

FO

E

T

A

T

S

Y

R

U

U

OL

W

.

R

E

T

E

P

L

A

N

O

I

S

S

E

F

O
R

P

7876

B

S

N

R

E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S. ASH ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S. AMERICANA BLVD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S. 15TH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
S. 16TH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
S. 14TH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
S. 13TH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
S. 12TH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
S. 11TH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
S. 9TH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
S. 10TH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
S. CAPITOL BLVD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S. 9TH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
S. LUSK STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. ROYAL BLVD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. RIVER STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. SHORELINE DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
S. 17TH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
S. 25TH ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. SHORELINE DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
HWY. 26 - I-84 CONNECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
QUINN SUB.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROS 9177 SWD 2014-076308

AutoCAD SHX Text
S. 8TH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL R2887280052

AutoCAD SHX Text
ABRI CONDO'S

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL R5011000060

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOISE RIVER

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOISE RIVER

AutoCAD SHX Text
 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
 9

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAST AREA POINT OF  BEGINNING

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL S1009142330

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOREST RIVER NO. 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
S. PIONEER STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOREST RIVER NO. 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEST AREA POINT OF  BEGINNING

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIVER/MYRTLE  DE-ANNEX WEST AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIVER/MYRTLE DE-ANNEX      EAST AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
R7476000093

AutoCAD SHX Text
S1009141880

AutoCAD SHX Text
S1009141860

AutoCAD SHX Text
S1009141850

AutoCAD SHX Text
S1009141830

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL R2887290150

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL R2887280080

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. COOPER ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. RIVER STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
i

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
c

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
n

AutoCAD SHX Text
n

AutoCAD SHX Text
g

AutoCAD SHX Text
l

AutoCAD SHX Text
u

AutoCAD SHX Text
s

AutoCAD SHX Text
n

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
CIVIL ENGINEERING-SURVEYING

AutoCAD SHX Text
(208) 342-0091 PHONE     (208) 342-0092 FAX

AutoCAD SHX Text
Boise, Idaho 83705

AutoCAD SHX Text
1904 West Overland Road

AutoCAD SHX Text
uadran

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
500

AutoCAD SHX Text
1000

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/31/2018



 

1 
 

FISCAL IMPACT ON CCDC’S RIVER-MYRTLE/OLD BOISE 

URBAN RENEWAL DISTRICT OF THE PROPOSED 

DE-ANNEXATION OF 31 PARCELS  
Prepared for the 

Board of Commissioners  
and 

Executive Director  
of the 

Capital City Development Corporation 
Boise, Idaho. 

 
 

Don Holley, PhD 
Don Reading, PhD 

 
May 15, 2018 

 

 

INTRODUCTION 

 

Capital City Development Corporation (CCDC), Boise’s redevelopment agency, intends to de-

annex 31 parcels from the current River-Myrtle/Old Boise District (RMOB) Urban Renewal 

District (URD).  We are Feasibility Consultants as defined in the outstanding River-Myrtle/Old 

Boise Urban Renewal District Bond Resolutions (the “Bond Resolution”).   

 

DE-ANNEXATION REQUIREMENTS 

 

The RMOB URD, as currently configured, consists of 340 acres with a 30 year term that expires 

in 2024, except for revenues received in 2025. When land is de-annexed from a URD the 

meaningful issue is whether the RMOB Incremental Tax Revenues will be materially reduced by 

the proposed de-annexation.  According to Section 510 of the Bond Resolutions, if CCDC proposes 

to amend the RMOB Urban Renewal Project Plan, it will file with the Bondholders an urban development 

Consultant’s Report on the effect of the proposed amendment.  If the Consultant’s Report concludes that 

the amendment will not materially reduce RMOB Incremental Tax Revenues, the Plan can be amended.  

The Plan cannot be amended if the Consultant’s Report concludes that RMOB Incremental Tax Revenues 

will be materially reduced. 

srodriguez
Text Box
Attachment 1.4



 

2 
 

 

For CCDC’s Fiscal Year 2017 RMOB generated $8,675,983 of Incremental Tax Revenue.  The 

Incremental Tax Revenue generated from the proposed de-annexed portion of RMOB for 2017 is 

$193,436, or 2.2% [$193,436 / $8,675,983] of the total Incremental Tax Revenues.  

 

 RMOB INCREMENT VALUATION 
 $560,776,023 2017 December Total Increment Value 
 $12,502,800 Proposed Plan Amendment: Reduced Increment Value 
   2.2% Plan Amendment as % of Total RMOB Valuation 
 

 RMOB TAX INCREMENT REVENUE 
 $8,675,983 2017 December Total Tax Increment Revenue 
 $193,436 Proposed Plan Amendment: Reduced Tax Increment Revenue 
   2.2% Plan Amendment as % of Total RMOB Valuation 
 

The standard practice for lending institutions in determining a borrower’s ability to repay the loan 

is to calculate the ratio of the borrower’s annual income to the amount required to cover the 

maximum annual debt servicing.  This is called the ‘Debt Coverage Ratio’ (DCR).  Currently, 

institutions lending to CCDC require a DCR of 1.2.  CCDC secures its debt with a combination of 

a URD’s Tax Increment Revenue and net operating revenues from its seven garage, 2,796-space, 

public parking system.  CCDC’s FY 2018 maximum annual debt service for the RMOB District 

is $4,328,121.  The combination of FY 2018 RMOB Tax Increment Revenue ($8,675,983) and the 

parking system’s net operating revenue ($4,225,162) generates $12,901,145 resulting in a DCR 

for RMOB of 3.0 [$12,901,145 / $4,328,121].  

 

OPINION 
 

We conclude that the withdrawal of 31 parcels from the River-Myrtle/Old Boise District resulting 

in a 2.2% reduction in Incremental Tax Revenue does not result in a material reduction.  

  





 

4 
 

MAP of RMOB PARCELS to be DE-ANNEXED

 
 



 

5 
 

RESUME: Don C. Reading, PhD 

 



 

6 
 

 

 
 



 

7 
 

 

 
 

  



 

8 
 

RESUME: Donald W. Holley, PhD 
 
Donald W. Holley 
Emeritus Faculty 
Department of Economics 
Boise State University 

 
EDUCATION 
B.S., Economics, Brigham Young University 
M.S., Economics, University of Oregon 
Ph.D., Economics, University of California, Riverside 

 
PROFESSIONAL POSITIONS 
2017:  Emeritus Faculty, Boise State University 
1999‐2017:  Instructor, Department of Economics, Boise State University 
1982‐99:  Management Science Associate, Ore‐Ida Foods Inc. 
1978‐82: Professor, Boise State University 
1976‐78:  Associate Professor, Boise State University 
1973‐76:  Assistant Professor, Boise State University 
1971‐73:  Assistant Professor, Idaho State University 
 

OTHER PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE 
Since the early 1970’s Dr. Holley has completed many economic impact studies estimating the local impact of 
different firms and industries at the state and local level.  Clients include U.S. Forest Service, the city of Soda 
Springs, Idaho National Laboratory, Milk Producers of Idaho and the Idaho Dairy Association, Idaho Department of 
Parks and Recreation, a civic group assessing the feasibility of an assisted living facility in Council, Idaho, Idaho 
grape growers and wineries, the city of Mountain Home, Mountain Home Air Force Base, Idaho Air National Guard. 
In 2015 Dr. Holley completed a study evaluating the feasibility of electricity generation with wind power in the 

Mountain West. 

Since 1974 Dr. Holley has participated in providing the Idaho legislature with a forecast of General Fund revenues 

and a forecast of Idaho Personal Income to the Idaho State Tax Commission. 

At Ore‐Ida Foods Dr. Holley provided estimates of frozen potato sales and prices, forecasts of acres planted of the 

fall potato crop, and dozens of estimates of price elasticities for various frozen potato products. 

Dr. Holley has worked as an expert witness estimating and evaluating the loss of income and asset valuation 

resulting from assertions of wrongful firing, medical and pharmaceutical malpractice, machinery malfunction, 

mismanagement of resources by public authorities, wrongful denial of highway access, and perjury. 

RECENT AND RELEVANT PUBLICATIONS 
With Geoffrey Black, Department of Economics; David Solan, Boise State’s Energy Policy Institute; and Michael 
Bergloff, COBE student, “Fiscal and Economic Impacts of State Incentives for Wind Energy Development in the 
Western United State,” in Renewable and Sustainable Energy, Volume 34, June 2014, pages 136‐144.  This journal 
is ranked in the top four percent of journals ranked by SCImago Journal and Country Rank (SJR).  
 

With Susan Mason, Aaron Wells, Amit Jain all of Boise State University, Thomas Wuerser  of Nova Southeastern 

University, and Joshi Alark of University of San Francisco, “An experiment‐based methodology to understand the 

dynamics of group decision making,” in Socio‐Economic Planning Sciences 56 – June 2016.  This is a theoretical 

paper investigating how groups value various options and come to a collective decision.  
4834-3949-8851, v. 4 



RESOLUTION NO. 1555B- 1 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 1555B            

  
BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF 
BOISE CITY, IDAHO: 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF 
THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY, IDAHO, 
ALSO KNOWN AS CAPITAL CITY DEVELOPMENT 
CORPORATION, RECOMMENDING AND ADOPTING THE 
FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE FIRST AMENDED AND 
RESTATED URBAN RENEWAL PLAN, RIVER STREET-
MYRTLE STREET URBAN RENEWAL PROJECT, AND 
RENAMED RIVER MYRTLE-OLD BOISE URBAN RENEWAL 
PROJECT, WHICH FIRST AMENDMENT SEEKS TO 
DEANNEX CERTAIN PARCELS FROM THE EXISTING 
RIVER MYRTLE-OLD BOISE PROJECT AREA; 
AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE CHAIR, VICE-
CHAIR, OR EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO TAKE 
APPROPRIATE ACTION; PROVIDING FOR THE 
RESOLUTION TO BE EFFECTIVE UPON ITS PASSAGE AND 
APPROVAL; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.   

 
 THIS RESOLUTION, made on the date hereinafter set forth by the Urban Renewal 
Agency of Boise City, Idaho, also known as Capital City Development Corporation, an 
independent public body corporate and politic, authorized under the authority of the Idaho Urban 
Renewal Law of 1965, Chapter 20, Title 50, Idaho Code, as amended (hereinafter the “Law”) 
and the Local Economic Development Act, Chapter 29, Title 50, Idaho Code, as amended 
(hereinafter the “Act”), a duly created and functioning urban renewal agency for Boise City, 
Idaho, hereinafter referred to as “Agency.” 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council (the “City Council”) of the City of Boise City, Idaho (the 
“City”), after notice duly published, conducted a public hearing on the River Street-Myrtle Street 
Urban Renewal Plan (the “River Street-Myrtle Street Plan”);   
 
 WHEREAS, following said public hearing, the City Council adopted its Ordinance No. 
5596 on December 6, 1994, approving the River Street-Myrtle Street Plan and making certain 
findings;   
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council, after notice duly published, conducted a public hearing on 
the First Amended and Restated Urban Renewal Plan, River Street-Myrtle Street Urban Renewal 
Project (annexation of the Old Boise Eastside Study Area and Several Minor Parcels) and 
Renamed River Myrtle-Old Boise Urban Renewal Project (the “River Myrtle-Old Boise Plan”);   
 

srodriguez
Text Box
Attachment 2



RESOLUTION NO. 1555B- 2 

 WHEREAS, following said public hearing, the City Council adopted its Ordinance No. 
6362 on November 30, 2004, approving the River Myrtle-Old Boise Plan and making certain 
findings;   
 
 WHEREAS, the River Myrtle-Old Boise project area is referred to herein as the “Existing 
Project Area;” 
 
  
 
 WHEREAS, the Agency seeks to amend the Existing Project Area to deannex certain 
parcels as described in the First Amendment defined below;  
 
 WHEREAS, the Agency has reviewed the financial impact of the deannexation on its 
allocation of revenue and has concluded the remaining allocation of revenue is sufficient to pay 
its operations, obligations and to continue to implement the terms of the River-Myrtle-Old Boise 
Plan;  

 
WHEREAS, the Agency, in coordination with the City, has prepared the First 

Amendment to the River Myrtle-Old Boise Plan (the “First Amendment”), as set forth in Exhibit 
1 attached hereto, identifying the parcels to be deannexed from the Existing Project Area;   
 
 WHEREAS, the First Amendment amends the River Myrtle-Old Boise Plan, which 
contains provisions of revenue allocation financing as allowed by the Act;   
 
 WHEREAS, the First Amendment is expected to be adopted by the City Council in 
accordance with the requirements of the Law and the Act, specifically, but not limited to the 
requirements set forth in Idaho Code §§ 50-2008 and 50-2906;   
 
 WHEREAS, the Agency Board finds it in the best interests of the Agency and the public 
to recommend approval of the adoption of the First Amendment, as prepared by the Agency in 
coordination with the City, and as set forth in Exhibit 1 attached hereto, and to forward it to the 
Mayor and City, for adoption in accordance with the requirements of the Law and the Act.        
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS OF THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY, IDAHO, AS 
FOLLOWS:   
 
 Section 1. The above statements are true and correct.   
 

Section 2. That the Agency Board recommends that the First Amendment, attached 
hereto as Exhibit 1, identifying the parcels to be deannexed from the Existing Project Area, be 
adopted by the City Council including any sections, modifications, or text discussed at the June 
11, 2018, Agency Board meeting. 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 1555B- 3 

 Section 3. That this Resolution constitutes the necessary action of the Agency under 
the Law, Section 50-2008, Idaho Code and the Act. 
 
 Section 4. The Chair or Vice-Chair of the Board of Commissioners, or the Executive 
Director of the Agency are hereby authorized and directed to take all steps necessary and 
convenient in partnership with the City to facilitate the City’s adoption of the First Amendment.   
   
 Section 5. That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its 
adoption and approval.   
 
 PASSED by the Urban Renewal Agency of Boise City, Idaho, also known as Capital City 
Development Corporation on June 11, 2018.  Signed by the Chair of the Board of 
Commissioners, and attested by the Secretary to the Board of Commissioners, on June 11, 2018. 
       

APPROVED: 
 
 
 
       By_________________________________ 
           Chair of the Board 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
By_______________________________ 
   Secretary 
 
4831-1250-7239, v. 1 



OPTION B 

 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE FIRST AMENDED AND RESTATED RIVER MYRTLE – 

OLD BOISE URBAN RENEWAL PLAN- 1 
 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE 

FIRST AMENDED AND RESTATED URBAN RENEWAL PLAN 

 

RIVER STREET-MYRTLE STREET 

 

URBAN RENEWAL PROJECT 

(ANNEXATION OF THE OLD BOISE EASTSIDE STUDY AREA AND SEVERAL MINOR 

PARCELS) 

AND RENAMED 

RIVER MYRTLE – OLD BOISE 

URBAN RENEWAL PROJECT 

 

URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY 

BOISE, IDAHO 

 

 

 

Ordinance No. 5596 

Adopted December 6, 1994 

Effective December 25, 1994, publication 

 

First Amended and Restated 

Ordinance No. 6362 

Adopted November 30, 2004 

Effective December 6, 2004, publication 

 

Issued with Minor Corrections 

December 2011 

March 2015 

 

First Amendment to the First Amended and Restated 

Ordinance No. _____ 

Adopted July ___, 2018 

Effective ___________, 2018, publication 

 

  

srodriguez
Text Box
Attachment 2.1



OPTION B 

 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE FIRST AMENDED AND RESTATED RIVER MYRTLE – 

OLD BOISE URBAN RENEWAL PLAN- 2 
 

BACKGROUND 

 This First Amendment (“First Amendment”) to the First Amended and Restated Urban 

Renewal Plan, River Street-Myrtle Street Urban Renewal Project and renamed River Myrtle – 

Old Boise Urban Renewal Project (the “Plan”) deannexes certain parcels from the plan 

area/revenue allocation area created by the Plan commonly referred to as the “River Myrtle – 

Old Boise Project Area,” adopted by Boise City Council Ordinance No. 5596, on December 6, 

1994, and as subsequently amended in 2004. The scope of this First Amendment is limited to 

addressing the deannexation of certain parcels from the River Myrtle – Old Boise Project Area.  

It is important to note the deannexation of parcels from the River Myrtle – Old Boise Project 

Area does not change the termination date set forth in the Plan. 

As a result of the deannexation, in 2018 through the remaining years of the Plan, the 

Urban Renewal Agency of Boise City, Idaho also known as Capital City Development 

Corporation (the “Agency”) will cease receiving an allocation of revenues from the deannexed 

parcels.  The increment value of the parcels deannexed from the River Myrtle – Old Boise 

Project Area shall be included in the net taxable value of the taxing district when calculating the 

subsequent property tax levies pursuant to section 63-803, Idaho Code. The increment value 

shall also be included in subsequent notification of taxable value for each taxing district pursuant 

to section 63-1312, Idaho Code, and subsequent certification of actual and adjusted market 

values for each school district pursuant to section 63-315, Idaho Code. The Ada County 

Assessor’s Office maintains the value information, including the increment value, if any, 

included on the new construction roll for new construction associated with the deannexed 

parcels.  The amount added to the new construction roll will equal the amount by which the 

December 31, 2017, increment value exceeds the increment value as of December 31, 2006.     

 

House Bill 606, effective July 1, 2016, amended the Idaho Urban Renewal Law of 1965, 

Chapter 20, Title 50, Idaho Code, as amended (the “Law”) and the Local Economic 

Development Act, Chapter 29, Title 50, Idaho Code, as amended (the “Act”) confirming that a 

plan amendment to the Plan does not result in a reset of the base assessment roll values to the 

current year’s equalized assessed values:  “[f]or plans adopted or modified prior to July 1, 2016, 

and for subsequent modifications of those urban renewal plans, the value of the base assessment 

roll of property within the revenue allocation area shall be determined as if the modification had 

not occurred.”  Idaho Code § 50-2903(4). Further a plan amendment to accommodate a de-

annexation in the revenue allocation boundary is also an identified exception to the base reset 

requirement.  Idaho Code § 50-2903A(1)(a)(iii).   

AMENDMENTS TO THE PLAN 

1. Definitions.  Capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the respective 

meanings ascribed to such terms in the Plan. 

2. The following defined terms are amended throughout the Plan as follows:   



OPTION B 

 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE FIRST AMENDED AND RESTATED RIVER MYRTLE – 

OLD BOISE URBAN RENEWAL PLAN- 3 
 

(a) Delete “Project Area” and replace with “Amended Project Area” except 

where specifically referenced in this First Amendment. 

 (b) Delete references to Attachment 1 entitled “Description of the Project 

Area and Revenue Allocation Area” and replace with Attachment 1 entitled “Description of the 

Amended Project Area and Amended Revenue Allocation Area.” 

 (c) Delete references to Attachment 2 entitled “Project Area-Revenue 

Allocation Area Boundary Map” and replace with Attachment 2 entitled “Amended Project 

Area-Amended Revenue Allocation Area Boundary Map.” 

3 Amendment to Section 101 of the Plan. 

(a) Section 101 entitled “PROVISIONS NECESSARY TO MEET STATE AND 

LOCAL REQUIREMENTS CONFORMANCE WITH STATE OF IDAHO URBAN 

RENEWAL LAW OF 1965, AS AMENDED” is amended by adding new paragraphs to the end 

of the existing language as follows: 

g. This First Amendment to the Plan (the “First Amendment”) 

deannexes certain parcels from the existing Project Area, resulting 

in an “Amended Project Area” as further described and shown in 

Attachments 1 and 2.   

 

h. In accordance with the Idaho Urban Renewal Law of 1965, this 

First Amendment was submitted to the Planning Commission of 

the City of Boise.  After consideration of the First Amendment, the 

Commission filed a Resolution dated July __, 2018, with the City 

Council stating that the First Amendment is in conformity with 

Blueprint Boise, the Comprehensive Plan for the city of Boise, 

adopted on November 29, 2011, and as subsequently amended. 

 

i. Pursuant to the Idaho Urban Renewal Law of 1965, the City 

Council, having published due notice thereof, held a public hearing 

on the First Amendment.  Notice of the hearing was duly published 

in a newspaper having general circulation.  The City Council 

adopted the First Amendment on ______, 2018, pursuant to 

Ordinance No. _____.  

 

4. Amendment to Section 200 of the Plan. 

(a) Section 200 entitled “DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT AREA” is deleted and 

replaced as follows:  

DESCRIPTION OF THE AMENDED PROJECT AREA 



OPTION B 

 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE FIRST AMENDED AND RESTATED RIVER MYRTLE – 

OLD BOISE URBAN RENEWAL PLAN- 4 
 

 

The boundaries of the Amended Project Area and of the Amended 

Revenue Allocation Area are described in Attachment 1, which is 

attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference, and are 

shown on the Amended Project Area and Amended Revenue 

Allocation Area Boundary Map, attached hereto as Attachment 2 

and incorporated herein by reference.  The map shows the original 

boundary of the River Street-Myrtle Street Urban Renewal Project, 

the areas added as part of the 2004 amendment process, and the 

areas deannexed as part of the 2018 amendment process.   

 

The area contained within the original boundary was designated as 

appropriate for an urban renewal project by City Council 

Resolution Nos. 12475 and 12737 and Ordinance 5596.  The 2004 

additions to the original boundary included annexation of a portion 

of the Old Boise-Eastside Study Area to the River Street-Myrtle 

Street District, designated as appropriate for an urban renewal 

project by City Council Resolution No. 17216, and additions to the 

River Street-Myrtle Street Area, designated as appropriate for an 

urban renewal project by Council Resolution No. 18232.  The 

Agency has received reports prepared by Harlan W. Mann, 

consultant, concerning findings of deteriorated or deteriorating 

conditions for the original area (dated September 23, 1991, April 8, 

1994, and September 19, 1994), and reports for the areas added in 

2004 (dated July 13, 2001, and June 30, 2004).   

 

5. Amendment to Section 302 of the Plan. 

(a) Section 302 is amended by deleting the first sentence of the second paragraph and 

replacing it as follows: 

Following de-annexation of certain parcels, the Amended Project 

Area and Amended Revenue Allocation Area consists of 

approximately 315 acres adjacent to the Boise Central Business 

District.   

6. Amendment to Section 504 of the Plan. 

(a) Section 504 is amended by adding a new sentence immediately following the end 

of the first sentence of the first paragraph as follows: Revenue allocation financing authority for 

the deannexed parcels pursuant to the First Amendment will be terminated effective January 1, 

2018. 



OPTION B 

 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE FIRST AMENDED AND RESTATED RIVER MYRTLE – 

OLD BOISE URBAN RENEWAL PLAN- 5 
 

(b) Section 504 is amended by adding a new sentence at the end of the fourth 

paragraph as follows: No modifications to the analysis set forth in Attachment 6 have been made 

as a result of the First Amendment.  

7. Amendment to Section 504.01 of the Plan. 

(a) Section 504.01 is amended by adding new text immediately following the end of 

the second sentence as follows: No modifications to the Study have been made as a result of this 

First Amendment; however, the estimated financial impact to the Agency as a result of the 

deannexation of certain parcels from the existing Project Area pursuant to the First Amendment 

is set forth in the Fiscal Impact on CCDC’s River Myrtle/Old Boise Urban Renewal District of 

the Proposed De-Annexation of 31 Parcels, which analysis is included in Attachment 7 to the 

Plan.  The number of parcels reviewed in Attachment 7 is greater than the number of parcels 

deannexed from the existing Project Area pursuant to the First Amendment, resulting in an even 

less significant impact to the Agency than shown in Attachment 7.  

8. Amendment to Section 504.03 of the Plan. 

 (a) Section 504.03 is amended by adding a new sentence at the end of the paragraph 

as follows: The deannexation of parcels from the existing Project Area pursuant to the First 

Amendment will not change this analysis. 

 

9. Amendment to Section 504.04 of the Plan. 

 (a) Section 504.04 is amended by adding new text at the end of the second paragraph 

as follows: The deannexation of parcels from the existing Project Area pursuant to the First 

Amendment will reduce the amount of revenue generated by revenue allocation as generally 

shown in Attachment 7.  The number of parcels reviewed in Attachment 7 is greater than the 

number of parcels deannexed from the existing Project Area pursuant to the First Amendment, 

resulting in an even less significant impact to the Agency than shown in Attachment 7. 

 

 (b) Section 504.04 is amended by adding a new sentence at the end of the third 

paragraph as follows: Based on the findings set forth in Attachment 7, which included a review 

of more parcels than ultimately considered for deannexation, the conclusion is the deannexation 

of certain parcels from the existing Project Area pursuant to the First Amendment does not 

materially reduce revenue allocation and the Project continues to be feasible. 

 

 10. Amendment to Section 800 of the Plan. 

 

 (a) Section 800 is amended by adding a new sentence at the end of the first paragraph 

as follows: The deannexation of parcels from the existing Project Area has no impact on the 

duration of this Plan. 

 

 

11. Amendment to Attachment 1 of the Plan.   



OPTION B 

 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE FIRST AMENDED AND RESTATED RIVER MYRTLE – 

OLD BOISE URBAN RENEWAL PLAN- 6 
 

(a) Attachment 1 entitled “Description of the Project Area and Revenue Allocation Area” 

is deleted and replaced with Attachment 1 entitled “Description of the Amended Project Area 

and Amended Revenue Allocation Area,” attached hereto.  

12. Amendment to Attachment 2 of the Plan. 

(a) Attachment 2 entitled “Project Area – Revenue Allocation Area Boundary Map” is 

deleted and replaced with Attachment 2 entitled “Amended Project Area-Amended Revenue 

Allocation Area Boundary Map,” attached hereto. 

13. Amendment to Plan to add new Attachment 7. 

(a) The Plan is amended to add new Attachment 7 entitled “Fiscal Impact on CCDC’s 

River-Myrtle/Old Boise Urban Renewal District of the Proposed De-Annexation of 31 Parcels,” 

attached hereto. 

14. River Myrtle – Old Boise Plan Remains in Effect.  Except as expressly modified in 

this First Amendment, the Plan and the Attachments thereto remain in full force and effect. 

 

 

   

 

 

 
 

4817-9071-1399, v. 1 



 

1904 West Overland Road  Boise, ID  83705  Phone (208) 342-0091  Fax (208) 342-0092  Internet:  quadrant@quadrant.cc 
Civil Engineering  Surveying  

 
June 7, 2018 

 
 

EXHIBIT A.1.2 
RIVER-MYRTLE DE-ANNEXATION 

WEST AREA OPTION 2 
 
 

A tract of land being a portion of Section 9 in Township 3 North, Range 2 East, Boise 
Meridian, Boise City, Ada County, Idaho.  Said tract of land being more particularly described 
by record information as follows: 
 
Commencing at the Section Corner common to Sections 3, 4, 9, and 10, of Township 3 
North, Range 2 East, Boise Meridian, thence North 89°19’15” West 243.95 feet along the 
Section line common to said Sections 4 and 9 to a point on the Northwesterly Right-of-Way 
of South 16th Street, thence along said Northwesterly Right-Of-Way South 35°08”45” West 
155.22 feet, to a point on the Northerly Right-Of-Way of South Americana Boulevard, thence 
along said Northerly Right-Of-Way South 64°53’07” West 127.27 feet; thence continuing 
along said Northerly Right-Of-Way South 64° 53' 07" West 449.18 feet to the intersection 
with the Northerly Right-Of-Way of West River Street Being the POINT OF BEGINNING, 
thence along said Northerly Right-Of-Way 
 
South 25° 26' 23" East 759.41 feet, to a point on the Northerly Right-Of-Way of South 14th 
Street, thence leaving said Northerly Right-Of-Way of West River Street and following said 
Northerly Right-Of-Way of South 14th Street 
 

South 64° 35' 15" West 231.05 feet to the Southwest corner of Parcel Number 
R7476000250, thence along the westerly line of said Parcel the following 3 courses: 
 

North 25° 21' 25" West 141.92 feet, thence  
 

North 64° 12' 51" East 24.91 feet, thence 
 
North 25° 23' 18" West 157.85 feet to a point on the Southerly Right-Of-Way line of South 
15th Street, thence following said Southerly Right-Of-way line the following 5 courses: 
 

South 64° 37' 25" West 159.25 feet, thence 
 
North 25° 16' 56" West 45.60 feet, thence  
 
North 25° 16' 07" West 190.14 feet, thence  
 
16.05 feet along a curve to the left, said curve having a radius of 442.47 feet, a delta angle 
of 02° 04' 42" and a chord bearing and distance of North 66° 29' 41" East 16.05 feet, thence 
 
 

srodriguez
Text Box
Attachment 2.2



 

June 7, 2018  
Page 2 
 

 
273.34 feet along a curve to the left, said curve having a radius of 448.10 feet, a delta angle 
of 34° 57' 00" and a chord bearing and distance of North 85° 43' 23" East 269.12 feet to the 
Southerly Right-Of-Way line of South Americana Boulevard, thence following said Southerly 
Right-Of-Way line of South Americana Boulevard 
 
South 64° 38' 11" West 97.82 feet, thence  
 
64.63 feet along a curve to the left, said curve having a radius of 1362.91 feet, a delta angle 
of 02° 43' 01" and a chord bearing and distance of South 62° 13' 55" West 64.62 feet, thence 
leaving said Southerly Right-Of-Way line 
 
South 25° 06' 13" East 59.18 feet, thence  
 
North 64° 49' 22" East 52.00 feet, thence  
 
South 25° 06' 13" East 145.03 feet, thence  
 
South 64° 49' 23" West 339.82 feet to a point on the Westerly Right-Of-Way of West 
Shoreline Drive, thence  
 
North 25° 13' 41" West 157.14 feet to the Southerly Right-Of-Way of South Americana 
Boulevard, thence 
 
North 31° 00' 13" West 94.23 feet to the Northerly Right-Of-Way of said South Americana 
Boulevard, thence along said Northerly Right-Of-Way the following  
 
North 21° 07' 46" East 43.42 feet, thence 
North 48° 31' 19" East 81.55 feet, thence 
South 78° 33' 11" East 39.05 feet, thence 
 
223.77 feet along a curve to the right, said curve having a radius of 1453.37 feet, a delta 
angle of 08° 49' 18" and a chord bearing and distance of North 60° 22' 26" East 223.55 feet, 
thence 
 
South 25° 13' 11" East 10.00 feet, thence 
 
North 64° 47' 32" East 704.53 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING. 
 
Said Tract contains 8.52 acres, more or less. 

        



 

1904 West Overland Road  Boise, ID  83705  Phone (208) 342-0091  Fax (208) 342-0092  Internet:  quadrant@quadrant.cc 
Civil Engineering  Surveying  

June 5, 2018 
 
 

EXHIBIT A.2.2 
RIVER-MYRTLE DE-ANNEXATION 

CENTRAL AREA OPTION 2 
 
 

A tract of land being a portion of Section 9 in Township 3 North, Range 2 East, Boise 
Meridian, Boise City, Ada County, Idaho.  Said tract of land being more particularly described 
by record information as follows: 
 
Commencing at the Section Corner common to Sections 3, 4, 9, and 10, of Township 3 
North, Range 2 East, Boise Meridian, thence North 89°19’15” West 243.95 feet along the 
Section line common to said Sections 4 and 9 to a point on the Northwesterly Right-of-Way 
of South 16th Street, thence along said Northwesterly Right-Of-Way South 35°08”45” West 
155.22 feet, to a point on the Northerly Right-Of-Way of South Americana Boulevard, thence 
along said Northerly Right-Of-Way South 64°53’07” West 127.27 feet; thence continuing 
along said Northerly Right-Of-Way South 64° 53' 07" West 449.18 feet to the intersection 
with the Northerly Right-Of-Way of West River Street, thence along said Northerly Right-Of-
Way South 25° 26' 23" East 839.41 feet, to the point of intersection with the Southerly Right-
Of-Way of South 14th Street, being the POINT OF BEGINNING, thence continuing along 
said Northerly Right-Of-Way 
 

South 25° 26' 23" East 392.20 feet, thence leaving said Northerly Right-Of-Way 
 
South 71° 18' 16" West 103.28 feet to the Northeasterly corner of the Abri Condominiums, 
being on the Southerly Right-Of-Way of South 13th Street thence along said Southerly Right-
of-way 
 

South 64° 35' 49" West 178.76 feet to a point being the Northwesterly corner of said 
Condominiums, thence leaving said Southerly Right-Of-Way 
 

South 25° 32' 02" East 141.81 feet along the Westerly boundary of said Abri Condominiums, 
thence crossing a public alley 
 

South 32° 45' 25" East 15.58 feet to a point on the Northwesterly line of Parcel Number 
R5011000060, thence following said Northwesterly line 
 

South 64° 45' 55" West 199.16 feet, thence leaving said Northwesterly line 
 
North 45° 18' 08" West 251.90 feet to a point on the Northerly Right-Of-Way of South 13th 
Street, thence along said Northerly Right-Of-Way 
 
North 64° 31' 04" East 332.49 feet, thence leaving said Northerly Right-Of-Way 
 



 

June 5, 2018  
Page 2 
 

 
North 25° 21' 15" West 149.46 feet along the Easterly line of Parcel Number R7476000093, 
thence  
 
South 64° 37' 11" West 599.92 feet along the Northerly lines of Parcel Numbers 
R7476000093, S1009141880 and S1009141860 to a point on the Easterly line of Parcel 
Number S1009141850, thence along said Easterly line and the Easterly line of Parcel 
Number S1009141830 
 
North 25° 21' 58" West 150.72 feet to said Southerly Right-Of-Way line of South 14th Street, 
thence along said Southerly Right-Of-Way  
 
North 64° 39' 34" East 830.87 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING. 
 
Said Tract contains 5.5 acres, more or less.  
 
 

         
      



 

1904 West Overland Road  Boise, ID  83705  Phone (208) 342-0091  Fax (208) 342-0092  Internet:  quadrant@quadrant.cc 
Civil Engineering  Surveying  

June 5, 2018 
EXHIBIT A.3.2 

RIVER-MYRTLE DE-ANNEXATION 
EAST AREA OPTION 2 

 
A tract of land being a portion of Section 9 and a portion of Section 10 both in Township 3 
North, Range 2 East, Boise Meridian, Boise City, Ada County, Idaho.  Said tract of land 
being more particularly described by record information as follows: 
 
Commencing at the Section Corner common to Sections 3, 4, 9, and 10, of Township 3 
North, Range 2 East, Boise Meridian, thence South 00°34’20” West 1741.17 feet along the 
Section line common to said Sections 9 and 10 to a point on the Southeasterly Right-of-Way 
of South 12th Street, thence along said Southeasterly Right-Of-Way South 64°43”27” West 
158.58 feet, to the intersection with the Northerly Right-Of-Way of West River Street and the 
POINT OF BEGINNING; thence following said Northerly Right-Of-Way the following 7 
courses: 
 
South 29° 02' 32" East 175.67 feet  
South 13° 36' 17" East 26.84 feet, thence 

South 30° 29' 54" East 148.56 feet, thence 

South 54° 37' 05" East 121.94 feet, thence 

South 31° 17' 55" East 61.81 feet, thence 

South 55° 00' 37" East 984.67 feet, thence 

South 87° 50' 05" East 118.70 feet to the intersection with the Westerly Right-Of-Way of 
South 9th Street, thence following said Westerly Right-Of-Way 
 

North 06° 35' 46" East 18.61 feet, thence 

North 02° 29' 36" East 19.08 feet, thence leaving said Westerly Right-Of-Way 
 

South 87° 30' 24" East 103.25 feet to a point on the Easterly Right-Of-Way of South 9th 
Street, thence along said Easterly Right-Of-Way 
 

18.59 feet along a curve to the left, said curve having a radius of 10.00 feet, a delta angle of 
106° 30' 47" and a chord bearing and distance of South 42° 47' 39" East 16.03 feet, thence 
leaving said Easterly Right-Of-Way 
 

South 08° 12' 23" East 76.59 feet to a point on the Southerly Right-Of-Way of West River 
Street, thence along said Southerly Right-Of-Way 

36.70 feet along a curve to the left, said curve having a radius of 219.12 feet, a delta angle 
of 09° 35' 45" and a chord bearing and distance of South 74° 42' 39" West 36.66 feet, thence 
 
8.63 feet along a curve to the left, said curve having a radius of 20.00 feet, a delta angle of 
24° 42' 34" and a chord bearing and distance of South 56° 21' 56" West 8.56 feet to a point 
on said Easterly Right-Of-Way of South 9th Street, thence along said Easterly Right-Of-Way 

 

 



 

June 5, 2018  
Page 2 
 

 
South 01° 58' 16" West 334.32 feet, thence 
South 04° 51' 25" West 112.24 feet  
 

South 27° 26' 08" East 91.16 feet to a point on the Northerly bank of the Boise River, thence 
along said Northerly bank, thence along said Northerly bank 
 
North 64° 01' 18" West 161.48 feet to a point on the Westerly Right-Of-Way of South 9th 
Street, thence along said Westerly Right-Of-Way, the following 11 courses: 
 
North 10° 01' 37" East 111.63 feet, thence 
North 02° 30' 58" East 110.12 feet, thence 
North 39° 21' 58" West 7.94 feet, thence 
North 87° 05' 15" West 9.88 feet, thence 
North 02° 38' 54" East 42.67 feet, thence 
North 22° 23' 42" East 10.70 feet, thence 
North 78° 23' 02" East 6.00 feet, thence 
North 69° 03' 45" West 1.06 feet, thence 
North 02° 30' 34" East 82.67 feet, thence 
North 14° 18' 19" East 27.56 feet, thence 
North 03° 37' 56" East 50.33 feet to the intersection of the Southerly Right-Of-Way of West 
River Street, thence along said Southerly Right-Of-Way the following 11 courses: 
 
38.44 feet along a curve to the left, said curve having a radius of 45.65 feet, a delta angle of 
48° 14' 45" and a chord bearing and distance of North 56° 02' 36" West 37.31 feet, thence 
 
13.99 feet along a curve to the left, said curve having a radius of 114.50 feet, a delta angle 
of 07° 00' 00" and a chord bearing and distance of North 83° 45' 07" West 13.98 feet, thence 
 
197.48 feet along a curve to the right, said curve having a radius of 380.19 feet, a delta angle 
of 29° 45' 40" and a chord bearing and distance of North 69° 33' 32" West 195.27 feet, 
thence 
 
North 54° 47' 03" West 466.84 feet, thence 
North 54° 47' 03" West 55.90 feet, thence 
North 53° 55' 51" West 80.21 feet, thence 
North 54° 50' 45" West 272.03 feet, thence 
North 60° 30' 47" West 50.67 feet, thence 
North 54° 50' 45" West 50.76 feet, thence 
 
136.12 feet along a curve to the right, said curve having a radius of 265.00 feet, a delta angle 
of 29° 25' 51" and a chord bearing and distance of North 41° 52' 45" West 134.63 feet, 
thence 
 
North 28° 54' 45" West 9.77 feet, thence leaving said Southerly Right-Of-Way 
 
6.80 feet along a curve to the left, said curve having a radius of 4.33 feet, a delta angle of 
89° 56' 01" and a chord bearing and distance of North 73° 54' 45" West 6.12 feet to a point 



 

June 5, 2018  
Page 3 
 

 
on the Southeasterly Right-Of-Way of South Pioneer Street, thence along said 
Southeasterly Right-Of-Way 

 
23.57 feet along a curve to the right, said curve having a radius of 56.00 feet, a delta angle 
of 24° 07' 09" and a chord bearing and distance of South 73° 08' 45" West 23.40 feet, thence 
 
South 85° 12' 15" West 20.43 feet, thence 
 
23.25 feet along a curve to the left, said curve having a radius of 65.00 feet, a delta angle of 
20° 29' 51" and a chord bearing and distance of South 74° 57' 15" West 23.13 feet, thence 
 
South 64° 42' 15" West 177.58 feet to the most northerly corner of Parcel Number 
R2887290150, thence leaving Southeasterly Right-Of-Way and tracing said Parcel the 
following 2 courses: 
 
 
South 25° 17' 45" East 55.00 feet, thence 
South 64° 42' 15" West 215.42 feet, thence 
 
North 65° 44' 45" West 41.78 feet, thence 
 
South 24° 13' 34" West 136.99 feet to a point being the most Southerly corner of Lot 8 of 
the Forest River No. 3 Subdivision said point also being on the Northerly boundary of Parcel 
number S1009142330, thence tracing said parcel the following 20 courses: 
 
South 65° 30' 22" East 527.02 feet, thence 
South 19° 56' 48" West 45.00 feet, thence 
South 70° 03' 12" East 50.00 feet, thence 
 
South 63° 36' 12" East 22.71 feet to the line common to said Sections 9 and 10, thence 
along said line 
 
South 01° 00' 48" West 40.00 feet to the Northerly Bank of the Boise River, thence along 
said Northerly Bank the following courses: 
 
North 66° 23' 25" West 645.60 feet, thence 
North 85° 05' 12" West 58.94 feet, thence 
North 60° 25' 12" West 150.90 feet, thence 
North 78° 25' 12" West 55.40 feet, thence 
North 50° 25' 12" West 69.00 feet, thence 
North 57° 40' 14" West 302.69 feet, thence 
North 50° 45' 12" West 200.00 feet, thence 
North 65° 45' 12" West 51.90 feet, thence 
North 55° 25' 12" West 113.94 feet, thence 
North 25° 18' 12" West 22.40 feet, thence 



 

June 5, 2018  
Page 4 
 

 
North 43° 59' 10" West 42.51 feet to the centerline of a vacated portion of South 13th Street, 
thence leaving said Northerly Bank and continuing along said Parcel, thence 
 
North 64° 24' 32" East 111.12 feet along said centerline to the Southwesterly Right-Of-Way 
of West Shoreline Drive, thence along said Southwesterly Right-Of-Way 
 
South 27° 11' 29" East 40.00 feet, thence leaving said Southwesterly Right-Of-Way and 
continuing along said Parcel 
 
South 47° 21' 26" East 363.97 feet, thence 
 
South 65° 30' 56" East 195.16 feet to the most Easterly of said Parcel Number R2887280080 
thence leaving said Parcel Number S1009142330 and tracing said parcel R2887280080 the 
following 6 courses: 
 
North 24° 29' 31" East 59.23 feet, thence 
North 64° 42' 15" East 150.39 feet, thence 
North 25° 17' 45" West 32.00 feet, thence 
North 64° 42' 15" East 94.70 feet, thence 
North 25° 17' 45" West 88.00 feet, thence 
 
North 64° 45' 55" East 37.82 feet to the Northwesterly corner of Parcel Number 
R2287280052, thence tracing said Parcel the following 3 courses: 
 
South 25° 15' 04" East 309.28 feet, thence 

North 64° 45' 55" East 295.60 feet, thence 

North 25° 14' 05" West 239.40 feet to a point on the Southeasterly line of Parcel Number 
R5011000060, thence along said Southeasterly line 
 

North 64° 45' 55" East 216.25 feet to the Southerly Right-Of-Way for West River Street, 
thence along said Southerly Right-Of-Way 
 

North 64° 45' 55" East 7.01 feet, thence leaving said Southerly Right-Of-Way 

North 50° 08' 53" East 74.54 feet to the intersection of said Northerly Right-Of-Way of West 
River Street and the Southerly Right-Of-Way being the POINT OF BEGINNING.   
 
Said Tract of land contains 11.2 acres, more or less.       

        



AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
BANNOCK

AutoCAD SHX Text
IDAHO

AutoCAD SHX Text
MYRTLE    STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRONT    STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
GROVE    STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
N. 6TH ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
E. IDAHO ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S. BROADWAY AVE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MAIN ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. FRONT ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
N. CAPITAL BOULEVARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
S. 4TH ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S. 3RD ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S. 5TH ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S. 6TH ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. BROAD ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. FULTON ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S. 13TH ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. RIVER ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S. 12TH ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S. 8TH ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S. 9TH ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S. 10TH ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S. 11TH ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASH ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. RIVER ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S. 14TH ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S. 15TH ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. SHORELINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOG CABIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIBRARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOHN 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CIVIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAZA

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONDOMINIUM

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONDOS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
N. 3RD ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
N. 2ND ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
N. 1ST ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. GROVE ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MAIN ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. IDAHO ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. BANNOCK ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. JEFFERSON ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
KRALL'S 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ADDITION

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOISE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIVER

AutoCAD SHX Text
S. AMERICANA BLVD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
N. 7TH ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
N. 8TH ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
N. 9TH ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
N. 10TH ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
N. 11TH ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
N. 12TH ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
N. 13TH ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
N. 15TH ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
JULIA DAVIS PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text
DE-ANNEX AREAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. BROAD ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT BOUNDARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT BOUNDARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT BOUNDARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
i

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
c

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
n

AutoCAD SHX Text
n

AutoCAD SHX Text
g

AutoCAD SHX Text
l

AutoCAD SHX Text
u

AutoCAD SHX Text
s

AutoCAD SHX Text
n

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
CIVIL ENGINEERING-SURVEYING

AutoCAD SHX Text
(208) 342-0091 PHONE     (208) 342-0092 FAX

AutoCAD SHX Text
Boise, Idaho 83705

AutoCAD SHX Text
1904 West Overland Road

AutoCAD SHX Text
uadran

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
800

AutoCAD SHX Text
1600

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIVER-MYRTLE PROJECT BOUNDARY AND PROPOSED DE-ANNEXATION AREAS OPTION 2

srodriguez
Text Box
Attachment 2.3



Option 2 R-M DeAnnex.dwg DATE: JUNE 5, 2018 JOB NO. 204-26

EXHIBIT B-2

DE-ANNEXATION OF A PORTION OF THE

 RIVER-MYRTLE URBAN RENEWAL DISTRICT

R
O

Y

E

V

R

U

S

D

N

AL

A

T

D

E

S
I

G

E

R

O

H

D

I

FO

E

T

A

T

S

Y

R

U

U

OL

W

.

R

E

T

E

P

L

A

N

O

I

S

S

E

F

O
R

P

7876

B

S

N

R

E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S. ASH ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S. AMERICANA BLVD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S. 15TH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
S. 14TH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
S. 13TH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
S. 12TH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
S. 11TH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
S. 9TH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
S. 10TH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
S. CAPITOL BLVD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S. 9TH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
S. LUSK STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. ROYAL BLVD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. RIVER STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. SHORELINE DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
S. 17TH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
S. 25TH ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. SHORELINE DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
HWY. 26 - I-84 CONNECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
QUINN SUB.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROS 9177 SWD 2014-076308

AutoCAD SHX Text
S. 8TH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL R2887280052

AutoCAD SHX Text
ABRI CONDO'S

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL R5011000060

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOISE RIVER

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOISE RIVER

AutoCAD SHX Text
 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
 9

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAST AREA POINT OF  BEGINNING

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL S1009142330

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOREST RIVER NO. 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
S. PIONEER STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOREST RIVER NO. 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL R2887280080

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEST AREA POINT OF  BEGINNING

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIVER/MYRTLE DE-ANNEX      EAST AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
R7476000093

AutoCAD SHX Text
S1009141880

AutoCAD SHX Text
S1009141860

AutoCAD SHX Text
S1009141850

AutoCAD SHX Text
S1009141830

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL R2887290150

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. COOPER ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. RIVER STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
S1009111068

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIVER/MYRTLE DE-ANNEX WEST AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
R7476000250

AutoCAD SHX Text
CENTRAL AREA POINT OF BEGINNING

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIVER/MYRTLE DE-ANNEX CENTRAL AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
S. 16TH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
S. 15TH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
S. AMERICANA BLVD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
i

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
c

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
n

AutoCAD SHX Text
n

AutoCAD SHX Text
g

AutoCAD SHX Text
l

AutoCAD SHX Text
u

AutoCAD SHX Text
s

AutoCAD SHX Text
n

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
CIVIL ENGINEERING-SURVEYING

AutoCAD SHX Text
(208) 342-0091 PHONE     (208) 342-0092 FAX

AutoCAD SHX Text
Boise, Idaho 83705

AutoCAD SHX Text
1904 West Overland Road

AutoCAD SHX Text
uadran

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
500

AutoCAD SHX Text
1000

AutoCAD SHX Text
6/5/2018



 

1 
 

FISCAL IMPACT ON CCDC’S RIVER-MYRTLE/OLD BOISE 

URBAN RENEWAL DISTRICT OF THE PROPOSED 

DE-ANNEXATION OF 31 PARCELS  
Prepared for the 

Board of Commissioners  
and 

Executive Director  
of the 

Capital City Development Corporation 
Boise, Idaho. 

 
 

Don Holley, PhD 
Don Reading, PhD 

 
May 15, 2018 

 

 

INTRODUCTION 

 

Capital City Development Corporation (CCDC), Boise’s redevelopment agency, intends to de-

annex 31 parcels from the current River-Myrtle/Old Boise District (RMOB) Urban Renewal 

District (URD).  We are Feasibility Consultants as defined in the outstanding River-Myrtle/Old 

Boise Urban Renewal District Bond Resolutions (the “Bond Resolution”).   

 

DE-ANNEXATION REQUIREMENTS 

 

The RMOB URD, as currently configured, consists of 340 acres with a 30 year term that expires 

in 2024, except for revenues received in 2025. When land is de-annexed from a URD the 

meaningful issue is whether the RMOB Incremental Tax Revenues will be materially reduced by 

the proposed de-annexation.  According to Section 510 of the Bond Resolutions, if CCDC proposes 

to amend the RMOB Urban Renewal Project Plan, it will file with the Bondholders an urban development 

Consultant’s Report on the effect of the proposed amendment.  If the Consultant’s Report concludes that 

the amendment will not materially reduce RMOB Incremental Tax Revenues, the Plan can be amended.  

The Plan cannot be amended if the Consultant’s Report concludes that RMOB Incremental Tax Revenues 

will be materially reduced. 

srodriguez
Text Box
Attachment 2.4



 

2 
 

 

For CCDC’s Fiscal Year 2017 RMOB generated $8,675,983 of Incremental Tax Revenue.  The 

Incremental Tax Revenue generated from the proposed de-annexed portion of RMOB for 2017 is 

$193,436, or 2.2% [$193,436 / $8,675,983] of the total Incremental Tax Revenues.  

 

 RMOB INCREMENT VALUATION 
 $560,776,023 2017 December Total Increment Value 
 $12,502,800 Proposed Plan Amendment: Reduced Increment Value 
   2.2% Plan Amendment as % of Total RMOB Valuation 
 

 RMOB TAX INCREMENT REVENUE 
 $8,675,983 2017 December Total Tax Increment Revenue 
 $193,436 Proposed Plan Amendment: Reduced Tax Increment Revenue 
   2.2% Plan Amendment as % of Total RMOB Valuation 
 

The standard practice for lending institutions in determining a borrower’s ability to repay the loan 

is to calculate the ratio of the borrower’s annual income to the amount required to cover the 

maximum annual debt servicing.  This is called the ‘Debt Coverage Ratio’ (DCR).  Currently, 

institutions lending to CCDC require a DCR of 1.2.  CCDC secures its debt with a combination of 

a URD’s Tax Increment Revenue and net operating revenues from its seven garage, 2,796-space, 

public parking system.  CCDC’s FY 2018 maximum annual debt service for the RMOB District 

is $4,328,121.  The combination of FY 2018 RMOB Tax Increment Revenue ($8,675,983) and the 

parking system’s net operating revenue ($4,225,162) generates $12,901,145 resulting in a DCR 

for RMOB of 3.0 [$12,901,145 / $4,328,121].  

 

OPINION 
 

We conclude that the withdrawal of 31 parcels from the River-Myrtle/Old Boise District resulting 

in a 2.2% reduction in Incremental Tax Revenue does not result in a material reduction.  

  





 

4 
 

MAP of RMOB PARCELS to be DE-ANNEXED

 
 



 

5 
 

RESUME: Don C. Reading, PhD 

 



 

6 
 

 

 
 



 

7 
 

 

 
 

  



 

8 
 

RESUME: Donald W. Holley, PhD 
 
Donald W. Holley 
Emeritus Faculty 
Department of Economics 
Boise State University 

 
EDUCATION 
B.S., Economics, Brigham Young University 
M.S., Economics, University of Oregon 
Ph.D., Economics, University of California, Riverside 

 
PROFESSIONAL POSITIONS 
2017:  Emeritus Faculty, Boise State University 
1999‐2017:  Instructor, Department of Economics, Boise State University 
1982‐99:  Management Science Associate, Ore‐Ida Foods Inc. 
1978‐82: Professor, Boise State University 
1976‐78:  Associate Professor, Boise State University 
1973‐76:  Assistant Professor, Boise State University 
1971‐73:  Assistant Professor, Idaho State University 
 

OTHER PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE 
Since the early 1970’s Dr. Holley has completed many economic impact studies estimating the local impact of 
different firms and industries at the state and local level.  Clients include U.S. Forest Service, the city of Soda 
Springs, Idaho National Laboratory, Milk Producers of Idaho and the Idaho Dairy Association, Idaho Department of 
Parks and Recreation, a civic group assessing the feasibility of an assisted living facility in Council, Idaho, Idaho 
grape growers and wineries, the city of Mountain Home, Mountain Home Air Force Base, Idaho Air National Guard. 
In 2015 Dr. Holley completed a study evaluating the feasibility of electricity generation with wind power in the 

Mountain West. 

Since 1974 Dr. Holley has participated in providing the Idaho legislature with a forecast of General Fund revenues 

and a forecast of Idaho Personal Income to the Idaho State Tax Commission. 

At Ore‐Ida Foods Dr. Holley provided estimates of frozen potato sales and prices, forecasts of acres planted of the 

fall potato crop, and dozens of estimates of price elasticities for various frozen potato products. 

Dr. Holley has worked as an expert witness estimating and evaluating the loss of income and asset valuation 

resulting from assertions of wrongful firing, medical and pharmaceutical malpractice, machinery malfunction, 

mismanagement of resources by public authorities, wrongful denial of highway access, and perjury. 

RECENT AND RELEVANT PUBLICATIONS 
With Geoffrey Black, Department of Economics; David Solan, Boise State’s Energy Policy Institute; and Michael 
Bergloff, COBE student, “Fiscal and Economic Impacts of State Incentives for Wind Energy Development in the 
Western United State,” in Renewable and Sustainable Energy, Volume 34, June 2014, pages 136‐144.  This journal 
is ranked in the top four percent of journals ranked by SCImago Journal and Country Rank (SJR).  
 

With Susan Mason, Aaron Wells, Amit Jain all of Boise State University, Thomas Wuerser  of Nova Southeastern 

University, and Joshi Alark of University of San Francisco, “An experiment‐based methodology to understand the 

dynamics of group decision making,” in Socio‐Economic Planning Sciences 56 – June 2016.  This is a theoretical 

paper investigating how groups value various options and come to a collective decision.  
4834-3949-8851, v. 4 



 

8 
 

RESUME: Donald W. Holley, PhD 
 
Donald W. Holley 
Emeritus Faculty 
Department of Economics 
Boise State University 

 
EDUCATION 
B.S., Economics, Brigham Young University 
M.S., Economics, University of Oregon 
Ph.D., Economics, University of California, Riverside 

 
PROFESSIONAL POSITIONS 
2017:  Emeritus Faculty, Boise State University 
1999‐2017:  Instructor, Department of Economics, Boise State University 
1982‐99:  Management Science Associate, Ore‐Ida Foods Inc. 
1978‐82: Professor, Boise State University 
1976‐78:  Associate Professor, Boise State University 
1973‐76:  Assistant Professor, Boise State University 
1971‐73:  Assistant Professor, Idaho State University 
 

OTHER PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE 
Since the early 1970’s Dr. Holley has completed many economic impact studies estimating the local impact of 
different firms and industries at the state and local level.  Clients include U.S. Forest Service, the city of Soda 
Springs, Idaho National Laboratory, Milk Producers of Idaho and the Idaho Dairy Association, Idaho Department of 
Parks and Recreation, a civic group assessing the feasibility of an assisted living facility in Council, Idaho, Idaho 
grape growers and wineries, the city of Mountain Home, Mountain Home Air Force Base, Idaho Air National Guard. 
In 2015 Dr. Holley completed a study evaluating the feasibility of electricity generation with wind power in the 

Mountain West. 

Since 1974 Dr. Holley has participated in providing the Idaho legislature with a forecast of General Fund revenues 

and a forecast of Idaho Personal Income to the Idaho State Tax Commission. 

At Ore‐Ida Foods Dr. Holley provided estimates of frozen potato sales and prices, forecasts of acres planted of the 

fall potato crop, and dozens of estimates of price elasticities for various frozen potato products. 

Dr. Holley has worked as an expert witness estimating and evaluating the loss of income and asset valuation 

resulting from assertions of wrongful firing, medical and pharmaceutical malpractice, machinery malfunction, 

mismanagement of resources by public authorities, wrongful denial of highway access, and perjury. 

RECENT AND RELEVANT PUBLICATIONS 
With Geoffrey Black, Department of Economics; David Solan, Boise State’s Energy Policy Institute; and Michael 
Bergloff, COBE student, “Fiscal and Economic Impacts of State Incentives for Wind Energy Development in the 
Western United State,” in Renewable and Sustainable Energy, Volume 34, June 2014, pages 136‐144.  This journal 
is ranked in the top four percent of journals ranked by SCImago Journal and Country Rank (SJR).  
 

With Susan Mason, Aaron Wells, Amit Jain all of Boise State University, Thomas Wuerser  of Nova Southeastern 

University, and Joshi Alark of University of San Francisco, “An experiment‐based methodology to understand the 

dynamics of group decision making,” in Socio‐Economic Planning Sciences 56 – June 2016.  This is a theoretical 

paper investigating how groups value various options and come to a collective decision.  
4834-3949-8851, v. 4 



 
 

 

 

May 16, 2018 

 

Ada County 
Attention: Board of County Commissioners 
Attention: Assessor 
Attention: Treasurer 
200 W Front Street 
Boise, Idaho   83702 

Boise City 
Attention: Office of the Mayor 
Attention: City Clerk 
150 N Capitol Boulevard 
Boise, Idaho   83702 

Ada County Highway District 
Attention: Board of Commissioners 
3775 Adams Street 
Garden City, Idaho   83714 

Boise School District 
Attention: Board of Trustees 
8169 W Victory Road 
Boise, Idaho   83709 

Ada County Emergency Medical Services 
District  
Attention: Mr. Darby Weston, Chief 
370 N Benjamin Lane 
Boise, Idaho   83704 

College of Western Idaho 
Attention: Board of Trustees 
MS 2000 
PO Box 3010 
Nampa, Idaho   83653 

Ada County Mosquito Abatement District 
Attention: Mr. Adam Schroeder, Director 
975 E  Pine Avenue 
Meridian, Idaho   83642 

Idaho State Tax Commission 
Attention: Alan Dornfest 
Attention: Mr. Gary Houde 
PO Box 36 
Boise, Idaho   83722 

 

Re: New Shoreline Urban Renewal District 

 

Greetings Public Officials,  

 

In the next few months CCDC will be proposing to Boise City a new Urban Renewal District 

(URD), the Shoreline District.  As currently conceived the Shoreline District will contain 

approximately 190 acres located within the city’s Downtown Planning Area.  It will include 

parcels from the existing River-Myrtle / Old Boise (RMOB) and 30th Street URDs plus portions of 

the River Street neighborhood and, south of the river, a portion of the Lusk District 

neighborhood as well as public rights-of-way and a section of the Boise River (map attached).  

Parcels currently in the RMOB or 30th Street URD’s will be de-annexed from those districts prior 

to September 1, 2018.  Under the governing statutes, the deannexation process is deemed a 

formal plan amendment.  CCDC’s Board of Commissioners will consider the RMOB and 30th 

Street amendments at its June 11, 2018, Board meeting and forward the amendments to Boise 

City to complete the process by September 1, 2018.  

According to a recent Eligibility Study commissioned by the City Council, the area of the 

proposed Shoreline District meets the statutorily-defined requirements for a URD.  The City 

Council’s approval of the study led to further assessment and planning for the formation of this  

srodriguez
Text Box
Attachment 3



 
New Shoreline Urban Renewal District 

May 16, 2018 
Page 2 of 2 

 

 

new district.  CCDC engaged consultants to draft a formal Urban Renewal Plan to revitalize this 

area of the city. 

The total estimated Taxable Value (base assessment roll) of the property in the proposed 

Shoreline District is $108 million (2017 values).  Forty-percent of that amount would be 

generated by parcels that would be de-annexed from either the RMOB or 30th Street districts.  

The remaining proposed parcels, representing 60% the proposed district’s Taxable Value, do 

not reside in an existing URD. 

URD Acres 
Taxable 

Value 

 From River Myrtle-Old Boise URD 35 $22,008,300 

 From 30th Street URD 36 $21,292,300 

 New to URD 120 $64,722,300 

Proposed Shoreline URD 191 $108,022,900 

 
Outreach to Shoreline District stakeholders – property owners, the public, taxing districts and 

the city – will occur over the next few months.  A draft urban renewal plan is being created for 

review by the CCDC Board of Commissioners in a public meeting this summer.  It will then go to 

Boise City for approval in early fall.  As statutorily-required, all affected taxing districts will 

receive formal notification regarding both the creation of the Shoreline District and the de-

annexation of the identified parcels from the existing RMOB and 30th Street URDs.  

It is important to me that you are fully informed of CCDC’s work.  Contact Shellan Rodriguez, 

Real Estate Development Manager (srodriguez@ccdcboise.com or 208.384.4264) anytime with 

questions or comments.  A great resource for answers to frequently asked questions and up-to-

date information is www.ccdcshoreline.com.   

Urban renewal districts, by design, come and go.  As the Shoreline District takes shape, the 

Agency’s first URD, the Central District, ten blocks and 34 acres in the heart of downtown, will 

sunset this year on September 30.  Over the past thirty years CCDC and the Central District 

have played essential roles in the by-all-measures extremely successful redevelopment of the 

downtown core.  As the soon-to-be-former Central District’s increment revenue begins to flow 

back to the taxing districts with the distribution of Tax Year 2018 property values and tax 

distributions in January and July 2019, let’s hope for similar good fortune over the life of the 

Shoreline District.  

Sincerely,  

 

 
 

John Brunelle 
Executive Director 
 

Attachment:  1. Map of Proposed Shoreline URD 
4848-5545-3029, v. 2 

mailto:srodriguez@ccdcboise.com
http://www.ccdcshoreline.com/


30TH STREET DISTRICT WESTSIDE DISTRICT

RIVER MYRTLE-OLD BOISE

DISTRICT
PROPOSED 

SHORELINE 

DISTRICT

SLawrence
Text Box
Attachment 1



AGENDA BILL – Resolution 1542 Central District Termination  Page 1 of 3 

 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA BILL 

Subject: 
   Central District Termination Resolution 1542 

Date: 
   June 11, 2018 

Staff Contact: 
   Ross Borden,  
     Finance Director 
 

Attachments: 
1. Resolution 1542 – Central District Termination Resolution 
2. Exhibit A: Central District Termination Narrative 
3. Exhibit B: Central District Termination Budget 
4. Exhibit C: Central District Map 

Action Requested: 
1. Approve Resolution 1542 Central District Termination and provide notice to taxing 

districts including Ada County, and the Idaho State Tax Commission. 

BACKGROUND: 

The Central District, the Agency’s (and Idaho’s) first Revenue Allocation Area, will sunset after a 
30-year term on September 30, 2018.  This is the Agency’s first RAA termination.  See Exhibit 
C, Central District Map.  If adopted, Resolution 1542 will be the Board’s final, official, non-
budget related Central District action.  The final, formal Central District termination step is city 
council adoption of an ordinance terminating the Central District Plan.  That action must take 
place prior to the end of calendar year 2018.   

The Board first began informal preparations for this milestone in June 2014.  Since then a 
Working Group chaired by former Board Chair John Hale and including Commissioner 
Maryanne Jordan (also a recent city councilor and current state senator), Jade Riley, Chief of 
Staff, Boise City, and CCDC Executive Director John Brunelle, met five times to discuss and 
resolve related issues.  Agency Counsel Ryan Armbruster and Meghan Conrad and staff have 
complied with all related statutory requirements in timely fashion, including notification to the 
seven affected taxing districts (1. Ada County, 2. Boise City, 3. Boise Public Schools, 4. Ada 
County Highway District, 5. College of Western Idaho, 6. Emergency Medical Services District, 
7. Mosquito Abatement District) and the State Tax Commission.   

With the Central District’s sunset, the Agency will have three active Revenue Allocation Areas:  

1. River-Myrtle / Old Boise – sunsets in 2025 after a 30-year term 

2. Westside – sunsets in 2026 after a 24-year term 

3. 30th Street – sunsets in 2033 after a 20-year term   

The Agency is also well down the road creating two new districts:  

4. Shoreline 

5. Gateway East 

With two more districts in the early stages of development:  

6. Bench  

7. State Street  



AGENDA BILL – Resolution 1542 Central District Termination  Page 2 of 3 

The new districts will have the current statutorily-allowed 20-year maximum terms.  

The Termination Resolution terminates the Central District Plan on or before December 31, 
2018.  The seven taxing entities can add the Increment Value generated between Tax Years 
2006 and 2017 to the Base Assessment Roll for their FY 2019 budget year calculations.   

 The Agency expects to have sufficient FY 2018 Central District revenues to complete all 
budgeted projects and is working diligently to ensure all budgeted projects are 
completed by September 30, 2018.   

o In this instance, the annual property tax assessment / collection / distribution 
cycle concludes with Ada County distributing property taxes from 2017 assessed 
values to recipients in January and July 2018.  The July 2018 distribution is the 
final distribution of Central District Tax Increment Revenue the Agency will 
receive (or accept).  

 The Agency will return any Tax Increment Revenue received in FY 2018 and 
unexpended by September 30, 2018 to Ada County to be redistributed to the seven 
taxing districts pro rata according to their respective FY 2018 levies.   

 The Agency will also direct Ada County to distribute any Tax Increment Revenue 
available for distribution after September 30, 2018, such as delinquent Tax Increment 
Revenue, to the seven taxing districts pro rata rather than accepting and including it in 
the Agency’s FY 2019 spending plan.   

The Termination Resolution will be delivered to the seven taxing districts – one of which is Ada 
County – and the Idaho State Tax Commission as notification that the Board of Commissioners 
has acted with finality to terminate the Central District.  

Exhibit A, Termination Narrative, describes how the various loose ends will be addressed:  

 Unfinished Capital Improvement Program projects, if any.  The intent is to have all 
projects completed by September 30 although the vagaries of construction can lead to 
unforeseeable and unavoidable delays.  

 Disposition or retention of real property and other assets:  

o The Grove Plaza (convey to city) 

o 8th Street between Bannock and Main streets (convey to city) 

o Four Central District parking garages (retained by Agency) 

 Interagency contracts, licenses and agreements: 

o 8th Street Parking Meters & Enforcement (with city) 

o 8th Street and The Grove Plaza Patio Licensing (with city) 

o The Grove Plaza Operations & Maintenance (with GBAD) 

o Maintenance & Service of Greater Downtown (with city, Downtown Boise 
Association, Valley Regional Transit) 

 Delinquent tax increment revenue (distribute to seven taxing districts) 

Save the Date: Monday, November 5, 2018.  CCDC and the Central District will be feted at 
Idaho Smart Growth’s annual awards, East Ballroom, Boise Centre.   
 
 



AGENDA BILL – Resolution 1542 Central District Termination  Page 3 of 3 

FISCAL NOTES: 

Exhibit B, Termination Budget, is also the Central District’s FY 2018 Amended budget.  It 
reflects mid-year changes to the FY 2018 Original Budget adopted by the Board in August 2017.  
The Agency’s goal is for all final year Central District projects to be complete and funds 
expended or encumbered by the termination date, September 30, 2018.  There will be an FY 
2019 Central District Original Budget, estimated at $50,000, for miscellaneous expenses funded 
exclusively with Agency operating funds since distributions of Central District Tax Increment 
Revenue will terminate with the Central District at the end of FY 2018.   

The Board will see Resolution 1549, the Central District’s Termination Budget Resolution, as 
part of the Agency’s regular budget cycle in August along with a FY 2019 budget for nominal 
miscellaneous legal and administrative expenses that will be incurred after September 30.   

A URD’s Tax Increment Revenue is restricted for use in only the district from which it is 
generated.  Rather than expending all of a district’s revenue each fiscal year, the Agency 
employs a long range financial plan (Business Plan) for each of its districts that estimates and 
projects the Tax Increment and other revenue a district will receive each year then plans for the 
various uses of those funds.  The Business Plan must be updated frequently to reflect the 
constant changes in a district’s evolution.  On the revenue side, planning elements include new 
revenue generated by new assessed value being added to the property tax roll, a growth factor, 
bond proceeds, miscellaneous revenue, etc.  On the expenditure side, planning elements 
include contract and Participation Program commitments, debt service, the Capital Improvement 
Plan, Agency operations, etc.  The Business Plan is essential and allows revenues to be 
accumulated in a Working Capital fund in anticipation of big projects or initiatives in the out-
years.  As shown in Exhibit B, the Central District Business Plan accumulated $4.9 million in 
Working Capital to go along with the estimated $5.0 million in FY 2018 Tax Increment Revenue 
to allow $9.97 million of investment in the Central District’s final year.  These six line items total 
$7.2 million and account for 72% of the available revenue:  

 $2.29 million for Year 3 of 3 debt service for Series 2015 bonds ($5M original principal) 

 $1.38 million for Capitol Boulevard streetscapes 

 $1.37 million for City Hall Plaza Renovation 

 $764k for Year 4 of 4, Type 3 reimbursement: 8th & Main building 

 $750k for Central District’s allocation to Agency operations 

 $600k total for Type 1 grants (four awning projects, $150k max match each) 

The Termination Budget estimates there will be $2,096 remaining at the end of the current fiscal 
year on September 30, 2018.  The Agency will send the actual amount to Ada County who will 
distribute it pro rata to the seven taxing districts according to their respective FY 2018 levies.   
 

Staff Recommendation and Suggested Motion: 
I move adoption of Resolution 1542 terminating the Central District and providing notice to the 
seven affected taxing districts including Ada County, and the Idaho State Tax Commission. 

 



RESOLUTION NO. 1542 - Page - 1 

RESOLUTION NO. 1542 
 

 
BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF 
BOISE CITY, IDAHO: 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF 
THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY, IDAHO, 
ALSO KNOWN AS CAPITAL CITY DEVELOPMENT 
CORPORATION, AN URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY 
ORGANIZED UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF IDAHO, 
MAKING CERTAIN FINDINGS THAT REVENUES ARE 
SUFFICIENT TO COVER ALL ESTIMATED AGENCY 
EXPENSES FOR FUTURE YEARS FOR THE URBAN 
RENEWAL AREA AND REVENUE ALLOCATION AREA 
KNOWN AS THE CENTRAL DISTRICT PROJECT AREA; 
ESTIMATING THE REMAINING PROJECT OBLIGATIONS 
AND COSTS; RECOMMENDING TO THE CITY COUNCIL 
THAT THE REVENUE ALLOCATION PROVISION FOR THE 
CENTRAL DISTRICT PROJECT AREA BE TERMINATED; 
RECOMMENDING FURTHER THAT THE CITY COUNCIL 
PASS AN ORDINANCE TERMINATING THE REVENUE 
ALLOCATION PROVISION FOR THE CENTRAL DISTRICT 
URBAN RENEWAL PLAN AND RETURNING THE REVENUE 
ALLOCATION AREA TO THE REGULAR TAX ROLL 
EFFECTIVE TAX YEAR 2018; PROVIDING FOR THE 
PAYMENT OF DELINQUENT PROPERTY TAXES 
FOLLOWING TERMINATION; PROVIDING FOR PAYMENT 
OF CERTAIN EXPENSES FOR FISCAL YEARS 2018 AND 
2019; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

THIS RESOLUTION, made on the date hereinafter set forth by the Urban Renewal 
Agency of Boise City, Idaho, also known as Capital City Development Corporation, an 
independent public body, corporate and politic, is an urban renewal agency created by and 
existing under the authority of the Idaho Urban Renewal Law of 1965, Chapter 20, Title 50, 
Idaho Code, as amended (the “Law”), a duly created and functioning urban renewal agency for 
Boise City, Idaho, hereinafter referred to as the “Agency.”   

 
WHEREAS, the City Council (“City Council”) of the city of Boise City, Idaho (the 

“City”), after notice duly published, conducted a public hearing on the Amended and Restated 
Urban Renewal Plan for the Boise Central District Project I, Idaho R-4 and Project II, Idaho R-5 
(the “Boise Central District Urban Renewal Plan”);   

 
WHEREAS, following said public hearing, the City Council adopted its Ordinance No. 

5026 on August 19, 1987, approving the Boise Central District Urban Renewal Plan and making 
certain findings;   



RESOLUTION NO. 1542 - Page - 2 

WHEREAS, the City Council, after notice duly published, conducted a public hearing on 
the Amended and Restated Boise Central District Urban Renewal Plan (the “1994 Central 
District Plan”);   

 
WHEREAS, following said public hearing, the City Council adopted its Ordinance No. 

5597 on December 6, 1994, approving the 1994 Central District Plan and making certain 
findings;   

 
WHEREAS, the City Council, after notice duly published, conducted a public hearing on 

the 2007 Amended and Restated Urban Renewal Plan, for the Boise Central District Project I, 
Idaho R-4 and Project II, Idaho R-5 (the “2007 Central District Plan”); 

 
WHEREAS, following said public hearing, the City Council adopted its Ordinance No. 

6576 on June 26, 2007, effective upon publication on July 23, 2007, approving the 2007 Central 
District Plan; 

 
WHEREAS, the Boise Central District Urban Renewal Plan, as amended by the 1994 

Central District Plan and the 2007 Central District Plan collectively will be referred to as the 
“Central District Plan;” 

 
WHEREAS, the Central District Plan contained a revenue allocation financing provision 

pursuant to the Local Economic Development Act, Title 50, Chapter 29, Idaho Code, as amended 
(the “Act”);  

 
WHEREAS, the termination date for this revenue allocation area, as set forth in the 

Central District Plan, is December 31, 2017, except for revenues to be received in 2018, as 
authorized pursuant to Idaho Code § 50-2905(7); 

 
WHEREAS, a substantial portion of identified projects have been completed in the 

Central District Plan area; 
 
WHEREAS, the Agency expects all the expenses from any remaining projects to be 

completed under the Central District Plan, and as identified in the Central District Termination 
Budget (FY 2018) attached hereto as Exhibit B, to be incurred and satisfied by the Agency’s 
current fiscal year ending September 30, 2018, with the exception of (1) possible cost overruns 
from current projects; and/or (2) unexpected construction delays.  An estimate of the remaining 
project costs and other administrative fees and costs are set forth in the Termination Plan 
attached hereto as Exhibit A;   

 
WHEREAS, the Agency will request the County Treasurer to not distribute to the 

Agency any Central District Plan revenue allocation funds from delinquency tax payments in 
calendar year 2019, or subsequent years, generated from the 2017 assessed values, or earlier.  To 
the extent any Central District Plan revenue allocation funds are received by the Agency in 
calendar year 2019, or later, the Agency will return those funds to the County Treasurer for 
distribution to the taxing districts;  

 



RESOLUTION NO. 1542 - Page - 3 

WHEREAS, the Agency will have sufficient funds on deposit for payment of all final 
project costs and administrative fees; 

 
WHEREAS, the Agency has reviewed the remaining projects and based on projected 

revenues and expenses of the Central District Plan, has determined there are sufficient funds for 
payment of all final project costs and Agency expenses and has further determined the revenue 
allocation area can be terminated on or before December 31, 2018; 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Exhibit A, the Agency estimates a minimal surplus will be 

available for remittance to the County Treasurer for distribution to the taxing districts or before 
September 30, 2018, and which will be included in the Agency’s amended FY 2018 budget;   

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Exhibit A, and as shown on Exhibit C, the Agency intends to 

retain the Agency owned parking garages in the Central District Plan area and will dispose of 
certain Agency owned parcels to the City; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

OF THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY, IDAHO, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1: That the above statements are true and correct. 
 
Section 2: That the Termination Plan attached hereto as Exhibit A is hereby approved 

and adopted by the Agency Board. 
 
Section 3: That the revenue allocation area contained in the Central District Plan 

shall be terminated on or before December 31, 2018, consistent with the termination provisions 
set forth in the Act, allowing certain taxing entities to use the 2018 estimated assessed values 
above the adjusted base assessment roll for the Central District Project Area for their budgetary 
purposes, and further, those certain taxing entities may, for their budgetary purposes, take into 
account the difference between the increment value as of December 31, 2006, and the December 
31, 2017, increment value for the Central District Project Area, which difference shall be added 
to the 2018 new construction roll, pursuant to § 63-301A(3)(g), Idaho Code. 

 
Section 4:  That the Agency does not intend to take revenue allocation funds in 

calendar year 2019, generated from the 2018 assessed values, and the allocation of revenues 
under section 50-2908, Idaho Code, shall cease effective January 1, 2018.  

 
Section 5: That all financial obligations have been provided for and any outstanding 

obligations will be paid in full on or before September 30, 2018, with the exception of any 
project cost overruns from current projects, project costs for unexpected construction delays and 
an allocation of administrative fees and costs.   

 
Section 6: That any delinquent property taxes due to the Agency that were levied for 

calendar year 2017, or earlier, shall not be paid to the Agency, but shall be distributed by the 
County Treasurer to the taxing districts in the same manner and proportion as the most recent 



RESOLUTION NO. 1542 - Page - 4 

distribution to the taxing districts of the taxes on the taxable property located within the revenue 
allocation area.     

 
Section 7: That any surplus will be remitted to the County Treasurer for distribution 

to the taxing districts prior to the end of the Agency’s 2018 fiscal year on or before September 
30, 2018 in the same manner and proportion as the most recent distribution to the taxing districts 
of the taxes on the taxable property located within the revenue allocation area.  See I.C. 50-
2909(4).   

 
Section 8: That the Agency does hereby request that the City Council, pursuant to 

50-2903(5), Idaho Code, adopt an Ordinance providing for the termination of the revenue 
allocation area in the Central District Plan, to be effective on or before December 31, 2018, and 
declaring that the tax year 2018 revenues from the increment value as levied upon within the 
revenue allocation area are not needed for the payment of any Agency indebtedness or Agency 
projects to be completed before September 30, 2018, and should flow to the respective taxing 
districts pursuant to Idaho law.   

 
Section 9: That real property owned by the Agency in the terminated revenue 

allocation area, as set forth in Exhibit A, and as shown on Exhibit C, shall be transferred to the 
City on or before September 30, 2018, but in no event later than December 31, 2018.  The 
Agency hereby authorizes the Agency Chair, Vice-Chair and/or Executive Director to execute 
any and all documents required to effectuate the transfer. 

 
Section 10: That a copy of this Resolution be sent to the Ada County Assessor’s 

Office, the County Auditor/Recorder and the Idaho State Tax Commission to provide notice of 
termination of the revenue allocation area in the Central District Plan. 

 
Section 11: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its 

adoption and approval.   
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Urban Renewal Agency of the city of Boise City, 

Idaho, on June 11, 2018.  Signed by the Chair of the Board of Commissioners and attested by the 
Secretary to the Board of Commissioners, on this 11th day of June 2018.   

 
      APPROVED; 
        
      By:____________________________ 
            Chair 

ATTEST: 
 

By:____________________________ 
      Secretary 
  
 

4813-8672-8802, v. 4 



Resolution 1542 Central District Termination – EXHIBIT A  1 

EXHIBIT A 

THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY, IDAHO, ALSO KNOWN AS 
CAPITAL CITY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 

TERMINATION PLAN FOR THE REVENUE ALLOCATION AREA SET FORTH IN THE 
2007 AMENDED AND RESTATED URBAN RENEWAL PLAN, FOR THE BOISE 

CENTRAL DISTRICT PROJECT I, IDAHO R-4 AND PROJECT II, IDAHO R-5, THE 
“CENTRAL DISTRICT PLAN” 

 The Urban Renewal Agency of Boise City, Idaho, also known as Capital City 
Development Corporation (“CCDC ”) intends to terminate the revenue allocation area adopted at 
the time of the original adoption of the Amended and Restated Urban Renewal Plan for the Boise 
Central District Project I, Idaho R-4 and Project II, Idaho R-5 in Boise City, effective August 19, 
1987, as amended, and currently referred to as the Central District Plan (the “Plan”) for the 
Central District Project Area.  The termination date for this revenue allocation area as set forth in 
the Plan is December 31, 2017; except for revenues to be received in 2018, as authorized 
pursuant to Idaho Code § 50-2905(7).  CCDC has reviewed the projected revenues and expenses 
of the Plan and has determined the revenue allocation area can be terminated by December 31, 
2018, effective retroactive to January 1, 2018, as it relates to assessed values within the project 
area.  As a result, CCDC cannot receive revenue allocation funds in calendar year 2019, 
generated from the 2018 assessed values, and the allocation of revenues under § 50-2908, Idaho 
Code, shall cease effective January 1, 2018.   

Intent Regarding Delinquencies: 

CCDC will request the County Treasurer to not distribute to CCDC any Central District 
revenue allocation funds from delinquency tax payments in calendar year 2019, or subsequent 
years, generated from the 2017 assessed values, or earlier.  To the extent any Central District 
revenue allocation funds are received by CCDC in calendar year 2019, or later, CCDC will 
return those funds to the County Treasurer for distribution to the taxing districts in the same 
manner and proportion as the most recent distribution to the taxing districts of the taxes on the 
taxable property located within the revenue allocation area.   

Fiscal Year 2019 Budget Summary: 

 CCDC expects all the expenses from any remaining projects to be completed under the 
Plan, and as identified in the Central District Termination Budget (FY 2018), Exhibit B to 
Resolution No. 1542, to be incurred and satisfied by the Agency’s current fiscal year ending 
September 30, 2018, with the exception of (1) possible cost overruns from current projects; 
and/or (2) unexpected construction delays.  Additionally, there are administrative fees and costs 
due to termination that will be incurred during CCDC’s next fiscal year (FY 2019).  An estimate 
of the remaining administrative fees and costs to be paid from non-Central District revenue 
allocation funds is $50,000.  CCDC will have sufficient funds on deposit for payment of all final 
project costs, including any cost overruns, and administrative fees.  

  



Resolution 1542 Central District Termination – EXHIBIT A  2 

At this point, CCDC is anticipating there will be a de minimis surplus to be distributed 
back to the taxing districts prior to the end of CCDC’s 2018 fiscal year, September 30, 2018. No 
surplus is anticipated to be distributed back to the taxing districts prior to the end of CCDC’s 
2019 fiscal year, September 30, 2019.  An estimate of the total surplus funds to be available for 
distribution on or before September 30, 2018, is $2,096.  Any available funds will be remitted to 
the County Treasurer to be distributed to the taxing districts in the same manner and proportion 
as the most recent distribution to the taxing districts of the taxes on the taxable property located 
within the revenue allocation area.  

Real Property Disposition:  

The real property owned by CCDC in the Central District Project Area, more specifically 
described below and as shown on Exhibit C to Resolution No. 1542, shall be transferred to the 
City of Boise (the “City”) on or before December 31, 2018.   

1) 8th Street, two segments owned by CCDC, (1) between Bannock and Idaho streets and 
(2) between Idaho and Main streets:  It is anticipated 8th Street will be conveyed to the City on or 
before September 30, 2018, but no later than December 31, 2018; 

2) The Grove Plaza, including the central plaza and the north, south and west spokes: 
CCDC anticipates conveying The Grove Plaza to the City on or before September 30, 2018, but 
no later than December 31, 2018.  The Grove Plaza will be transferred to the City subject to a 
Declaration of Deed Restrictions and Covenants (the “Covenants”).  The Covenants provide for 
The Grove Plaza to be a space for public use, public access, public enjoyment and public 
celebrations, keeping with a public square-type space open for public uses.  Subject to certain 
conditions private events may be held in The Grove Plaza, but cannot exceed 24 hours, and the 
public reserves the right to use the remaining portions of The Grove Plaza for its intended uses.  
The Covenants run with land and shall be binding on all successors and assigns.  The public is 
granted the right to use and enjoy The Grove Plaza subject to such reasonable rules and 
regulations, and time, place and manner restrictions as may be appropriate.   

After conveyance by CCDC, the City may transfer, convey, gift or sell any of its interest 
in The Grove Plaza, but only to a tax supported governmental unit.  The City’s use of any sale 
proceeds shall be limited to the design, construction or purchase of a public facility within an 
existing or future urban renewal area and revenue allocation area for which an urban renewal 
plan has been adopted by the City. 

CCDC Contracts, Licenses and Maintenance Agreements: 

 All contracts, licenses, and agreements will expire or be terminated and/or assigned to the 
appropriate assignee. 



Resolution 1542 Central District Termination – EXHIBIT A  3 

Parking Garages: 

CCDC owns four public parking garages in the Central District Project Area: 

 9th & Main 
 9th & Front (a portion of which lies in the River Myrtle/Old Boise project area) 
 Capital & Main 
 Capital & Front  
 
(Collectively, the Central District Parking Garages.) 
 
The Central District Parking Garages together with three other public parking garages owned by 
CCDC and located in downtown Boise constitute CCDC’s parking system (the “Parking 
System”).  The net parking revenues from the Parking System are pledged along with revenue 
allocation from the River Myrtle/Old Boise Project Area to service certain CCDC debt.  (All 
Central District Project Area obligations have been satisfied).  Because of the pledge of net 
parking revenues, CCDC will retain ownership of the Central District Parking Garages (except as 
described below) through at least the termination of the River Myrtle-Old Boise Project Area.  
The River Myrtle-Old Boise Project Area revenue allocation authority expires as of December 
31, 2024, except for revenue allocation revenues received in 2025.  CCDC will retain ownership 
of the Central District Parking Garages, under the authority provided for in Idaho Code § 50-
2905(8). 
 
CCDC has initiated the process to dispose of the Capital & Front garage, which process is 
contemplated to be completed by September 30, 2018.  Under the applicable River Myrtle-Old 
Boise bond covenants, proceeds from any disposition must be deposited into the Parking 
Revenue Fund or into a special book account for the betterment, enlargement, extension, other 
improvement, and equipment of the Parking System.  Thus, any disposition proceeds from the 
disposition of the Capital & Front garage are encumbered and not available for any other 
purpose. 
   

4811-0472-7650, v. 7 



EXHIBIT B 

FY 2018 Tax Increment Revenue 5,032,391$        

Balance of Central District Working Capital 4,933,695$        

Total Revenue 9,966,086$    

Project 
 Termination

Budget 

1 Newspaper Stand Consolidation 60,000$              

2 Capitol & Main Parking Garage ‐ Painting 35,000$              

3 8th Street ‐ Trash Collection 17,000$              

4 8th Street ‐ Operations 17,448$              

5 The Grove Plaza ‐ Operations 120,000$           

6 District‐wide (exclude 8th St, Grove Plaza) ‐ Repairs & Maintenance 155,000$           

7 District‐wide (exclude 8th St, Grove Plaza) ‐ Utilities 2,000$                

406,448$           

8 City Hall Plaza Renovation 1,371,352$        

9 8th Street ‐ Repair & Enhance, Bannock to Main, E&W sides 750,000$           

10 Capitol Blvd ‐ Streetscape, Bannock to Front, E side 1,380,000$        

11 District‐wide‐ Spot Repair & Furnishing Replacement  550,000$           

12 Freak Alley & Union Alley ‐ Public Improvements 570,000$           

13 Union Block ‐ Geothermal Relocation Project 210,000$           

4,831,352$        

14 Main Street Station ‐ Public Art 83,000$              

15 176 Capitol Blvd (Business Interiors of Idaho) ‐ Type 1 ‐ Awnings 150,000$           

16 150 8th Street (Capitol Terrace) ‐ Type 1 Grant ‐ Awnings 150,000$           

17 Union Block (Diablo & Sons) ‐ Type 1 Grant ‐ Awnings 150,000$           

18 801 Main Street (Oppenheimer  Retail) ‐ Type 1 ‐ Awnings 150,000$           

19 801 W Bannock (Funky Taco) ‐ Public Art ‐ Mural 50,000$              

20 The Grove Plaza & Brick Program ‐ Outreach 2,546$                

21 Capitol & Front Parking Garage ‐ Disposition 13,750$              

666,296$           

22 9th & Main Parking Garage ‐ Secure Bike Parking Facility 45,000$              

23 Central District Termination 102,500$           

24 Central District Termination and Property Transfer 25,000$              

127,500$           

25 8th & Main Building ‐ Type 3 Reimbursement, Year 4 / 4 764,345$           

26 Series 2015 Bond Payment, Year 3 / 3 2,290,050$        

27 Program Operations 750,000$           

3,804,395$        

Total Expenses 9,963,991$        

Balance* 2,096$                

   

 CENTRAL DISTRICT 

TERMINATION BUDGET 

FY 2018 

* CCDC will refund the Balance to Ada County prior to Sept 30, 2018.  Ada County will 
distribute that amount to the seven taxing districts pro rata based on FY 2018 levy rates. 
The seven taxing districts are: Ada County, Boise City, Boise Public Schools, Ada County 
Highway District, College of Western Idaho, Emergency Medical Services, Mosquito 
Abatement.



10th & Front

rborden
Typewritten Text

rborden
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT C



Page 1 

AGENDA BILL 

Agenda Subject: 

Capitol & Front Garage Disposition - RFP update and revisions 

Date: 

June 11, 2018 

Staff Contact: 

Laura Williams 

Attachments: 

1) Garage Site

2) Garage Photos

3) Revised Request for Proposals from Interested

Buyers

Action Requested: 

Authorize the Executive Director to revise the Capitol & Front Garage Request for Proposals 

and publish the revised RFP using the process as outlined. 

Background: 

At the May 11 Board Meeting after extensive discussion, the CCDC Board of Commissioners asked 

staff to review and analyze the Request for Proposals from Interested Buyers for the Capitol & Front 

Garage to determine if revisions could be made to the existing RFP that would help draw responses in 

a future RFP effort. The board asked that staff report findings back to the Board in order to decide if a 

revised RFP should be issued. The original RFP was published on April 10, and no responses were 

submitted by the deadline of April 30.  

Staff researched through inquiries with known interested respondents to find out why they ultimately 

decided against submitting a proposal. Staff discussed the feedback with Executive Committee and is 

recommending that the RFP be revised to reflect the feedback in the following ways: 

1) Decrease the minimum bid price by $1.5 million to $5.3 million (approx.. $25,600 per space)

2) Increase the submission timeframe by 2 weeks to allow 5 weeks for responses

3) Revise dates and times as necessary to reflect updated timeframe

Additional selection criteria and all other RFP information would remain the same. 

Revised Tentative Timeline and Process 

• June 11 – Board Review / Approve Revised RFP

• June 18 – Finalize RFP with comments from Board

• June 20 – Publish RFP on CCDC website

o notice at least twice in local publication (June 20 and 27)

o notify interested parties

• July 25 – Proposals Due

• August 7 – Executive Committee Review

• August 13 – Board Awards Proposal

• 90 – 120 Day Due Diligence



Page 2 

• December – Board Approves Purchase and Sale Agreement

• January 2019 - Closing

Garage Stats 

• Formerly Boulevard Garage

• Located underground on the southeast corner of The Grove Plaza

• Completed in 1998 as part of a 1996 Development Agreement with Block 22, LLC (included

CenturyLink arena and the Grove Hotel)

• 207 Spaces

• 40 triple stack

• 30 double stack (tandem)

• Accounts for 5% of ParkBOI revenue

• Any potential sale will still be subject to the restrictions already in place for operations of the

garage as determined in several agreements (hotel, event, and condominium parking options).

Fiscal Notes: 

There are budgeted funds for legal fees associated with the disposition of Capitol & Front Garage. 

CCDC intends to use the revenue from the sale to invest in a new parking facility in the River Myrtle 

District, most likely in the south 8th Street area. 

The net parking income to the parking system will be reduced by approximately $200,000 a year which 

comprises about 5% of the ParkBOI system revenue.   

A bond was originally issued to pay for the acquisition of this parking garage. This bond has been paid 

for in full and no debt service remains; however, the garage revenue is pledged as part of the public 

parking system for other bond payments on other parking garages in the system. The bond covenants 

set out the requirements for disposition of any parking facility in the system. Because the revenue 

generated by this garage is not a substantial portion of the total system revenue, the disposition of this 

garage complies with the bond covenants. The bond covenants state that the garage must be sold for 

at least the appraised value. 

Staff Recommendation: 

Authorize the Executive Director to revise the Capitol & Front Garage Request for Proposals and 

publish the revised RFP using the process as outlined. 

Suggested Motion: 

I move to authorize the Executive Director to revise the Capitol & Front Garage Request for 

Proposals and publish the revised RFP using the process as outlined. 



Page 3 
 

Attachment 1: Garage Site 

  

Front Street 

Ca
pi

to
l B

lv
d.

 



Page 4 
 

Attachment 2: Garage Photos 

 



Page 5 
 

 



Page 6 
 

Attachment 3: Revised Request for Proposals from Interested Buyers 



1 
 

 

 

 

REQUEST FOR 

PROPOSALS FROM INTERESTED BUYERS 

 

 

CAPITOL & FRONT PUBLIC PARKING GARAGE 

(207 UNDERGROUND PARKING SPACES) 

BOISE, IDAHO 

 

Minimum Purchase Price: $5,300,000 

 

DUE MONDAY JULY 25, 2018, 3:00 PM MDT 



2 
 

 

INVITATION 

Capital City Development Corporation (“CCDC”) is requesting proposals from interested Buyers 

(“Respondents”) for the purchase of its Capitol & Front Public Parking Garage, formerly known 

as the Boulevard Public Parking Garage (“Garage”).  The Garage is located on the west side of 

Capitol Boulevard between Main and Front streets in Downtown Boise, below The Grove Hotel, 

a 17-story mixed use building containing 250 hotel rooms below 20 residential condominiums.  

The Garage is a unit in the Block Twenty-Two Condominiums established in 1998.  CenturyLink 

Arena, an approximately 6,000 seat multi-use arena and home to the Idaho Steelheads hockey 

team, is another condominium unit attached to The Grove Hotel building and facing The Grove 

Plaza.  The Garage along with The Grove Hotel were completed in 1998 pursuant to a 

Disposition and Development Agreement between CCDC and Block 22, LLC. The deadline to 

submit responses to this Request for Proposals from Interested Buyers (the “Request”) is JULY 

25, 2018 by 3:00 p.m. local time.   

 

I. ABOUT CCDC 

 

CCDC is the urban renewal agency for Boise, Idaho.  In addition to overseeing four urban 

renewal districts, CCDC also owns and operates seven downtown public parking garages. 

Since 1985 CCDC has focused on creating a lively, pedestrian-oriented, mixed-use urban 

center in downtown that includes office, retail, restaurants, lodging, convention facilities, 

regional health care, and educational, cultural and entertainment opportunities.  

 

A seven-member Board of Commissioners governs CCDC. The Boise City Mayor appoints the 

commissioners, subject to City Council confirmation. John Brunelle is CCDC’s Executive 

Director. More information about CCDC is available at www.ccdcboise.com.  

 

II. SUMMARY AND SITE INFORMATION 

 

A. MINIMUM PURCHASE PRICE: FIVE MILLION THREE HUNDRED THOUSAND 

Dollars ($ 5,300,000) 

B. LOCATION: 245 S. CAPITOL BOULEVARD, BOISE, ID 83702 

 

The garage is a single condominium owned by CCDC within the Block Twenty Two 

Condominiums located in the heart of Downtown Boise.  It is subterranean and is accessed by a 

single entrance ramp on the western side of Capitol Boulevard between Front and Main Streets. 

A portion of the Garage is below one quadrant of The Grove Plaza, adjacent to or in close 

proximity to various downtown amenities, including The Grove Hotel (17 stories with 250 hotel 

rooms and 20 residential condominiums), US Bank Plaza (19-story office), Wells Fargo Center 

(11 story office) and Boise Centre (which includes a recently expanded and renovated 

convention center) and the Basque Block. The Garage includes 207 spaces of which 70 are 

triple stacked or tandem. The triple stacked spaces have historically been used as valet for The 

Grove Hotel.   

http://www.ccdcboise.com/


3 
 

Garage operational equipment included in the sale of the garage includes Scheidt & Bachmann 

gate arms, computer system, and a pay on foot station. The existing equipment can also be 

removed if Respondent chooses not to use the system.  

 

Address 245 S. Capitol Boulevard, Boise, ID 83702 

Ownership Capital City Development Corporation 

Legal/Tax ID Condominium Unit 4 as shown on the Condominium plat of Block Twenty 

Two Condominiums, according to the official plat thereof, filed in Book 75 of 

Plats at pages 7829 through 7841, as Instrument No. 98015003, and as 

defined and described in that condominium declaration for Block Twenty Two 

Condominiums recorded February 20, 1998, as Instrument No. 98015004, 

official records of Ada County, Idaho. 

 

R0998100500 

Zoning and 

Current Use 

C-5DDC, Parking Garage Subterranean with 207 public parking spaces 

existing.  

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Any sale of the Garage is subject to the terms of the Agreement Relating to the Operation, 
Maintenance, and Management of the Block 22 Public Parking Facility, executed in 1998 

(the “Parking Agreement”) and the Parking Lease Agreement between the Agency and 
Block 22, LLC, and the Boulevard Two Fifty Five Condominium Association, Inc. (the 

“Parking Lease”).  Copies of these documents, and other additional information will be made 

available on CCDC’s website.  



4 
 

 

Restrictions of Use on the Capitol & Front Garage 
1. Subject to the terms of the Agreement Of Operation, Maintenance, and Management of 

the Block 22 Public Parking Facility 
a. A provision in this agreement requires that any sale of the Garage “include an 

appropriate covenant that will require the garage to be operated in compliance 
with the Agency’s Public Parking Management Plan.” Specifically, the overnight 
validation program and event parking provisions.  

2. Subject to the terms of the Parking Lease Agreement between CCDC and Block 22, 
LLC, and Boulevard Two Fifty Five Condominiums. 

a. Spaces made available to Hotel guests – not specified, in practice it is the 40 
triple stack tandem spaces 

b. 21 Spaces leased to Condo Owners 
c. Storage lockers leased to Condo owners 

 

Broker 

CCDC will not be using a broker and will not be responsible for any Brokerage fees 

incurred by any party.  

 

 

SUBMISSION PROCESS 
 

III. Registration 
Interested Respondents are required to register with CCDC no later than July 18, 2018 at 
5:00 p.m.  Written registrations should be submitted to Laura Williams by email to 
lwilliams@ccdcboise.com and include the following information: 

• Company Name 

• Company Address 

• Contact Person 

• Phone number 

• Email Address 

Failure to register by submitting written notice shall waive any obligation on behalf of CCDC to 
provide notice of any alterations in the RFP process and/or responses to questions concerning 
the RFP process.  A submission from a Respondent that has not registered may not be 
accepted. Each Respondent bears all responsibility for obtaining confirmation from CCDC that 
Respondent has been listed as a registered Respondent. 

 

IV. Proposal Submission 

Proposals must be received by CCDC by 3:00 p.m. local time, July 25, 2018. The submission 
package must be sealed and plainly marked for delivery as follows: 
 

Capital City Development Corporation 
Attn: Laura Williams 
121 N. 9th Street, Suite 501 
Boise, Idaho  83702 

mailto:lwilliams@ccdcboise.com


5 
 

 
Indicate “CAPITOL & FRONT PARKING GARAGE RFP” on the outside of the package.   
 
Sign your proposal.  UNSIGNED PROPOSALS WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED.  Late or incomplete 
submissions will not be accepted.  Email or fax submissions will not be accepted.  DO NOT FAX 
OR EMAIL YOUR PROPOSAL.  
 
Respondent assumes full responsibility for the timely delivery of its proposal package to CCDC.  
Respondent will be responsible for all costs (including site visits where needed) incurred in 
preparing or responding to this RFP.  All materials and documents submitted in response to this 
RFP become the property of CCDC and will not be returned. 

 

Modification or Withdrawal of Proposal  
A proposal may be modified or withdrawn by the Respondent prior to the submission deadline 
set forth in this RFP.  After the submission deadline, the submitted proposal shall remain in 
effect for a minimum of 90 days for evaluation purposes. 

 

 
 

REQUIRED CONTENT, EVALUATION, AND SELECTION 
 
V. Required Submission Materials 

The Proposal format described here is meant to allow uniform review and easy access to 
information by the review committee.  Proposals not conforming to the requested format or not 
in compliance with the specifications may be considered non-responsive.  
 

SUBMITTAL PACKAGES MUST INCLUDE:  

− Submittal Cover Sheet (attached to this RFP as Exhibit A) 

− Required Acknowledgement & Release (attached to this RFP as Exhibit B) 

− ONE (1) signed original proposal 

− ONE (1) flash drive or ONE (1) compact disk with a digital (PDF) version of the 
entire proposal. 

 

PAGE LIMIT:  Not including the Submittal Cover Sheet and the Required Acknowledgement & 

Release, proposals shall not exceed 10 pages. Double-sided printing is acceptable.  

Submittal Format 

Proposals must include the following information in the sequence set forth below.  

 
1. Submittal Cover Sheet (Exhibit A) 

 
2. Required Acknowledgement & Release (Exhibit B) 

 
3. Detailed Proposal – organized as outlined with all the following information: 



6 
 

 

1. General information.  Provide a detailed response, in the order listed, to the 

following.   

 

a. Describe how your proposal for Garage use will impact the current users of the 

Garage? 

 

b. Describe how your proposal for Garage use will help advance economic vitality in 

downtown Boise? 

 

c. Include an overview of your proposed Parking Management Plan describing 

operations, pricing, and how the proposal will take into account the parking 

needs of adjacent public and private development and the existing lease 

arrangements with The Grove Hotel. 

 

d. Describe your experience with and understanding of the downtown Boise 

business community and experience working with the public and private sectors 

in Boise.  

 

e. Describe your experience in operating or owning a parking structure and 

demonstrated ability to do so in a safe and secure manner. 

 

2. Proposed Financial Terms.  Prepare and include the following information:  

 

a. Purchase Price (in numbers) 

b. Purchase Price (in words) 

Must meet or exceed the Minimum Price (as defined in Section II above). 
         

c. Initial Deposit Money aka Earnest Money (in numbers) 

d. Initial Deposit Money aka Earnest Money (in words) 

 

If Respondent is awarded the proposal the earnest money shall be deposited 

within 5 business days of CCDC Board Approval and will go towards purchase 

price. The initial deposit is refundable, should a final sale be terminated. 

 

e. Describe Respondent’s financial capacity and ability to finance with investors 

and/or lenders. Include documentation of Respondent’s financial capacity and/or 

any commitment letter from lenders as indications of proof of financial capability. 

Please submit these as separate documents, they will not be included in the 10 

page maximum.  

 

3. Other Terms.  Include the following information in proposal: 

 

a. Proposed timeline for taking occupancy of the Garage. 



7 
 

 

b. If earliest proposed closing date is not prior to January 1, 2019, provide an 

explanation as to why closing could not occur prior to January 1, 2018. 

 

c. Requested Title Company and Officer 

 

4. References. 

Provide three (3) references that can speak to Respondent’s abilities and competence in 

relation to parking garage operations, business acumen and commitment to downtown 

Boise.  

Include Names, company, addresses, phone numbers, email addresses, and brief 

description. 

 

 

VI. SELECTION PROCESS 

CCDC shall conduct a three-step process for evaluation and selection the proposal that best 

meets the priorities of this RFP.  CCDC’s final decision concerning selection of the best 

proposal will be based on a collective assessment of the proposal in light of the criteria contain 

in this RFP and shall be in CCDC’s unfettered discretion. 

 

Step 1. Request for Proposals 

The Request for Proposal will be publically noticed in the Idaho Statesman newspaper 

and posted on the CCDC website. Proposals must be received by Wednesday, July 25, 

2018 by 3:00 pm, local time.   

 

Proposals will not be accepted after the Submission Deadline. 

 
Step 2.  Evaluation and Award of Proposals 

A subcommittee will meet and review the proposals. Proposals will be considered by 

CCDC Board of Commissioners at a scheduled board meeting. Respondents will be 

notified of the meeting date and time and may have an opportunity to make a brief 

presentation to the CCDC Board.  

 

CCDC will evaluate the proposals using the following criteria: 

a. How the proposed use of the Garage impact the current uses of the Garage; 

b. How the proposed use will help advance economic vitality in the downtown Boise 

area; 

c. The Respondent’s Parking Management Plan including how well  the proposed 

use takes into account the parking needs of adjacent public and private 

development and the existing lease arrangements with The Grove Hotel; 

d. The Respondent’s experience with and understanding of the downtown Boise 

business community and experience working with the public and private sectors 

in Boise;  



8 
 

e. The Respondent’s experience in operating or owning a parking structure and 

demonstrated ability to do so in a safe and secure manner; 

f. The Respondent’s willingness to purchase the Garage for an amount that meets 

or exceeds the stated minimum purchase price;  

g. The Respondent’s ability to purchase in terms of financial capacity (with or 

without investors or lenders); and 

h. Respondent’s ability to close in a timely manner. 

 

Step 3.  Purchase and Sale Agreement  

Upon selection and approval of a proposal by the CCDC Board, staff will negotiate a 

Purchase and Sale Agreement (PSA) with the Respondent to be approved by the CCDC 

Board of Commissioners.  A sample Purchase and Sale Agreement is provided in 

reference documentation to this RFP.  

 

Any due diligence Respondent deems necessary, must be completed by the 

Respondent within 60 days of the award. Any surveys, reports, or studies done during 

due diligence will be the responsibility of the Respondent to obtain and pay for, CCDC 

will supply necessary site use approvals.  

 

VII. REQUEST CONTACT INFORMATION 

Respondents may contact the Project Manager, Laura Williams, about this Request for 

Proposals at lwilliams@ccdcboise.com no later than July 20, 2018 at 5:00 PM.  

 

All questions submitted to CCDC will be shared with responses on the CCDC website. It is the 

Respondent’s responsibility to check the website for updated question and answer information. 

Questions and responses of any one Respondent, which CCDC deems may affect or cause an 

ambiguity in proposal responses, will be made available to all Respondent’s by addendum. 

Addenda will be made available by way of the CCDC website: www.ccdcboise.com.  It is the 

Respondent’s responsibility to check for addenda prior to submitting a submission package.  

Respondents are requested to acknowledge all addenda in the space provided on the Submittal 

Cover Sheet.  No addenda will be issued fewer than four (4) business days before the 

submission deadline unless the deadline is extended. 

 

VIII. PUBLIC NATURE OF SUBMISSIONS 

CCDC is a public agency.  All documents in its possession are public records subject to 

inspection and copying under the Idaho Public Records Act, Idaho Code § 74-101 through 

§74-126. The Public Records Act contains certain exemptions – including an exemption for 

trade secrets.  Trade secrets include a formula, pattern, compilation, program, computer 

program, device, method, technique, or process that derives economic value, actual or 

potential, from not being generally known to, and not being readily ascertainable by proper 

means by other persons and is subject to the efforts that are reasonable under the 

circumstances to maintain its secrecy.  Prices quoted in a proposal are not trade secrets. 

mailto:srodriguez@ccdcboise.com
http://www.ccdcboise.com/


9 
 

If any Respondent claims any part of a proposal is exempt from disclosure under the Idaho 

Public Records Act, the Respondent must: 1.) Indicate by marking the pertinent document 

“CONFIDENTIAL”;  and, 2.) Include the specific basis for the position that it be treated as 

exempt from disclosure.  Marking the entire proposal as “Confidential” is not in accordance with 

Idaho Public Records Act and will not be honored. 

CCDC, to the extent allowed by law and in accordance with these Instructions, will honor a 

nondisclosure designation.  By claiming material to be exempt from disclosure under the Idaho 

Public Records Act, Respondent expressly agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold CCDC 

harmless from any claim or suit arising from CCDC’s refusal to disclose such materials pursuant 

to the Respondent’s designation. Any questions regarding the applicability of the Public Records 

Act should be addressed to your own legal counsel prior to submission. 

 

IX. CCDC DISCRETION AND AUTHORITY, DISCLAIMERS 

CCDC may terminate this RFP process at any time for any reason with no requirement to 

disclose its reasoning.  

 

CCDC also reserves the right to reject any proposal at any time, or to terminate any 

negotiations initiated subsequent to this RFP being issued. 

 

CCDC may change any part of this RFP process at any time for any reason. 

 

CCDC may accept such proposals as it deems to be in the public interest and furtherance of the 

purposes of the Idaho Urban Renewal Law, the River Myrtle-Old Boise Urban Renewal Plan.  

CCDC may also reject any or all proposals and proceed with additional selection processes or 

none at all. The CCDC Board of Commissioners will determine the proposal that best meets the 

priorities set forth in this Request for Proposal based on the information submitted in the 

responses and any follow up presentations.  

 

CCDC retains the discretion to consider the Proposals and select the Proposal that will best 

serve the city of Boise, as determined by CCDC. 

 

The issuance of this Request for Proposals and the receipt and evaluation of proposals does 

not obligate CDCC to select a proposal and/or enter into any agreement. A proposal submitted 

in response to this RFP does not constitute business terms under any eventual agreement. 

CCDC will not pay any costs incurred in responding to this RFP.  

 

X. EXHIBITS 

A. Submittal Cover Sheet (Required) 

B. Acknowledgment & Release (Required) 

 

XI. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION / REFERENCE DOCUMENTATION  

AVAILABLE ON WEBSITE OR BY REQUEST 

 



10 
 

1. Site Map 

2. Condominium Declarations 

3. Existing Leases/ Agreements known to CCDC 

4. CCDC Parking Management Plan 

5. Value Consulting Letter 

6. DRAFT Purchase and Sale Agreement  

7. Revenue and Expenses Financial Information 

8. Preliminary Research Report (Preliminary Title Report) 

9. Contact information for Block Twenty-Two Condominiums  

 

These documents can be accessed on the CCDC website at this link: 
http://www.ccdcboise.com/development/rfps/capitol-front-garage/ 
 

http://www.ccdcboise.com/?post_type=rfps-bids&p=6468&preview=true


11 
 

EXHIBIT A 

 
SUBMITTAL COVER SHEET 

FOR RFP:  CAPITOL & FRONT PARKING GARAGE 
 (REQUIRED FOR SUBMISSION) 

 
TO:  Capital City Development Corporation 
 Attn: Laura Williams, Project Manager 
 121 N. 9th Street, Suite 501 
 Boise, Idaho 83702 
 
 

Company Name:            
 
Contact Person:            
 
Mailing Address:             
 
              
 
Physical Address:            
 
              
 
Telephone:         Fax:       
 
E-mail Address:             
 
 

 
 
The following Addenda have been received:         

Addendum No.                                     Dated                                      

                                                                                     

Addendum No.                                     Dated                                      

 

AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE:   X          

 
Print Name / Title:            
 
Date:               
 

 

END OF EXHIBIT A 



12 
 

EXHIBIT B 

 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT AND RELEASE 

FOR RFP:  CAPITOL & FRONT PARKING GARAGE 
 (REQUIRED FOR SUBMISSION) 

 

The undersigned (“Respondent”), on behalf of Respondent and all participants and parties 

included or subsequently added in/to Respondent’s team, has read this Acknowledgment and 

Release and fully accepts the Capital City Development Corporation’s (“CCDC”) discretion and 

non-liability as stipulated herein, expressly for, but not limited to, CCDC’s decision to proceed 

with a selection process by issuing the Request for Proposals from Interested Buyers for the 

sale of the Capitol & Front Public Parking Garage (the “Request”). Capitalized terms not defined 

herein shall have the meaning ascribed in the Request. 

 

Respondent accepts and agrees to the terms and conditions as described or as may be 

modified as well as the following: 

 
1. CCDC reserves the right in its sole discretion and judgment, for whatever reasons it 

deems appropriate and at any time: 
a. To suspend or modify any part of the selection process or terminate the Request at 

any time for any reason with no financial or other obligation to Respondent.    
b. Obtain further information from any person, entity, or group, including, but not 

limited to, any person, entity, or group responding to the Request and to ascertain 
the depth of Respondent’s capability and desire to purchase the Capitol & Front 
Public Parking Garage; 

c. Waive any formalities or defects as to form, procedure, or content with respect to 
its Request and any proposal by any respondent; 

d. Accept or reject any proposal or part thereof received in response to the Request, 
including any statement submitted by the undersigned, or select any one proposal 
over another; 

e. Accept or reject all or any part of any materials, plans, proposals or statements 
included in a proposal, including, but not limited to, the nature and type of proposal. 

 
2. CCDC is governed by Idaho Code as provided by Title 50, Chapter 20, and Title 50, 

Chapter 29 and other state and federal regulations that may apply, and Respondent 
acknowledges that the Request selection process and any assistance in the sale of the 
Capitol & Front Public Parking Garage from CCDC must conform to all applicable 
laws, rules and regulations. 

 
3. CCDC may, in its discretion, conduct public hearings during the Request selection 

process that would require disclosure of the Respondent’s proposal and related details 
to the public and the media. 

 
4. CCDC may accept or reject any proposal or statement and/or information received in 

response to the Request, including any proposal, statement, or information submitted 
by the undersigned, or select one Respondent over another. 



13 
 

 
5. Respondent understands that by responding to the Request, its proposal may be 

subject to review and comment by CCDC staff and consultants.   

 
6. Respondent agrees to waive any formalities or defects as to form, procedure, or 

content with respect to the Request and any responses by any respondent thereto. 

 
7. Respondent consents to the acquisition of information by CCDC in conjunction with 

this Request, and waives all claims, and releases CCDC from any liability in the 
acquisition of this information and use of this information. 
 

8. Respondent agrees that CCDC staff, officers or commissioners shall have no liability 
whatsoever of any kind or character, directly or indirectly, by reason of all or any 
decisions made at the discretion of CCDC with respect to the Request. 
 

9. Non-Liability of CCDC.  Respondent agrees that CCDC shall not have any liability 
whatsoever of any kind or character, directly or indirectly, by reason of all or any 
decision made at the discretion of CCDC as identified above.  Respondent hereby 
waives any claims against CCDC arising out of the selection of the Respondent to 
purchase the Capitol & Front Public Parking Garage or decision to not select any 
Respondent and to terminate this RFP process. 

 
10. Respondent, including all of its team members, have carefully and thoroughly reviewed 

the Request and have found the Request and all attachments thereto to be complete 
and free from ambiguities and sufficient for their intended purpose. 

 
11. Respondent participates in the Request process at its own risk. 

  

Company Name:           

 

AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE:   X          

 
Print Name / Title:             
 
Date:              
 

       

End of Exhibit B 

 



 Page 1 

 

 

 

AGENDA BILL 
 
 

 

Agenda Subject: 
Awarding Contract – 10th & Front Garage Concrete Repairs 
 

 

Date: 
June 11, 2018 

 

Staff Contact: 
Kathy Wanner, Contracts Specialist 

 

Attachments:   
    A.  Resolution No. 1551 
    B.  Bid Results 
    C.  Bid Received from Guho Corp. 

 

Action Requested: 
Adopt Resolution No. 1551 awarding the contract for the 10th & Front Garage Concrete 
Repairs Project to Guho Corp.  

 

Background: 
The 10th & Front Garage Concrete Repairs Project (“Project”) consists of repairing locations of 
spalling concrete and crack routing and sealing of concrete on all levels of the garage, including 
full depth repair, removing precast panels for access, shoring the existing decks, and installing 
new guardrails in some locations.  In addition to concrete deck repair, both stair tower roofs need 
repairing which may include roof deck replacement, roofing replacement, and waterproofing.   
 
In advance of inviting bids for this Project, the Agency conducted a pre-qualification process for 
public works contractors in accordance with Idaho Code § 67-2805(2)(b).  On April 9, 2018, the 
Agency Board adopted Resolution No. 1539 prequalifying Guho Corp., McAlvain Construction, 
Inc., and Structural Group, Inc., as eligible to submit competitive bids for the Project. 
 
The Agency issued a Project Manual with Invitation to Bid on May 9, 2018, which invited sealed 
bids from the three (3) prequalified companies.   
 
2 bids were received by the May 30 deadline: 
 

Company 
Total Bid Amount 
(Base Bid + Bid Alt.) 

Guho Corp. $397,087.97 

McAlvain Construction, Inc. Did not bid. 

Structural Group, Inc.  $647,800.00 



 Page 2 

Each bid was submitted in a timely manner and met all required submission criteria; each bidder 
has appropriate and valid public works contractor licenses.   
 
 
Fiscal Notes: 
The Project was separated into two components: a Base Bid for the concrete repairs and a Bid 
Alternate for the stair tower roof repairs and elevator shaft roof repairs.  The bid amounts shown 
above are the sum of the two components.  The Agency’s FY2018 budget includes sufficient 
funding to proceed with Guho Corp. performing the work for both the Base Bid and Bid Alternate 
elements.  Resolution No. 1551 includes a provision for a 20% contingency, also within budget, 
to account for the uncertain nature of these concrete repairs. 
 
 
Staff Recommendation: 

Staff recommends that the Agency Board adopt Resolution No. 1551 recognizing Guho Corp. as 
the lowest responsive bidder for the Project and award the 10th & Front Garage Concrete Repairs 
Project to Guho Corp. for a total Base Bid + Bid Alt. amount of $397,087.97, and authorizing the 
Executive Director to negotiate and execute the contract and to expend funds as set forth in the 
resolution. 
 
 

 

Suggested Motion: 
I move to adopt Resolution No. 1551 recognizing Guho Corp. as the lowest responsive bidder, 
awarding the 10th & Front Garage Concrete Repairs Project contract to Guho Corp. for the total 
Base Bid plus Bid Alternate amount of $397,087.97, and authorizing the Executive Director to 
negotiate and execute the contract and to expend funds as set forth in the resolution. 
 

 

 

 

 

 



RESOLUTION NO. 1551 Page 1 

RESOLUTION NO. 1551 

BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY, 
IDAHO:   

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE 
URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY, IDAHO, FINDING 
GUHO CORP. SUBMITTED THE LOWEST RESPONSIVE BID 
FOR THE 10TH & FRONT GARAGE CONCRETE REPAIRS 
PROJECT; AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO 
NEGOTIATE AND EXECUTE A PUBLIC WORKS 
CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT BETWEEN THE AGENCY AND 
GUHO CORP. TO UNDERTAKE AND COMPLETE THE 10TH & 
FRONT GARAGE CONCRETE REPAIRS PROJECT; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

THIS RESOLUTION is made on the date hereinafter set forth by the Urban Renewal 
Agency of Boise City, Idaho, an independent public body, corporate and politic, a duly created 
and functioning urban renewal agency for Boise City, Idaho (the “Agency”), authorized under the 
authority of the Idaho Urban Renewal Law of 1965, as amended, Chapter 20, Title 50, Idaho 
Code, and the Local Economic Development Act, as amended and supplemented, Chapter 29, 
Title 50, Idaho Code, for the purpose of financing the undertaking of any urban renewal project 
(collectively the "Act"); and,  

WHEREAS, Idaho Code § 67-2805(2)(b) provides for a two-stage process for 
procurement of public works construction, which includes:  

• Stage 1:  Allows public agencies to establish preliminary supplemental
qualifications for purposes of prequalifying licensed public works contractors prior
to a competitive bidding process, and

• Stage 2:  Invites competitive bids only from licensed public works contractors that
have been prequalified at Stage 1; and,

WHEREAS, Idaho Code § 67-2805(2)(b) allows a political jurisdiction to examine a public 
works contractor’s qualifications related to: demonstrated technical competence; experience 
constructing similar facilities; prior experience with the political subdivision; availability of 
resources, equipment, and personnel; and overall performance history; and, 

WHEREAS, the Agency issued a Request for Qualifications from licensed public works 
contractors for the 10th & Front Garage Concrete Repairs Project (the “Project”) on March 1, 
2018, and published notice of the RFQ in the Idaho Statesman newspaper on March 1 and 
March 8, 2018; and,  

WHEREAS, the following seven (7) construction companies provided their Statement of 
Qualifications and Required Waiver & Release Forms by the March 15, 2018, deadline: 
Consurco, Inc., ESI-Engineered Structures, Inc., Guho Corp., McAlvain Construction, Inc., 
Structural Preservation Systems, Inc., Watson Associates, and Western Specialty Contractors; 
and, 

ATTACHMENT A

mwatson
Rectangle



RESOLUTION NO. 1551  Page 2 

WHEREAS, the Board adopted Resolution No. 1539 on April 9, 2018, prequalifying 
Guho Corp., McAlvain Construction, Inc., and Structural Preservation Systems, Inc., as the only 
three (3) companies eligible to submit competitive bids for the Project; and,   

 
WHEREAS, the Agency issued a Project Manual with Invitation to Bid for the Project on 

May 9, 2018, which invited sealed bids from the three (3) prequalified companies; and,  
 

WHEREAS, since the Invitation to Bid was preceded by a prequalification process, no 
public notice was required or published regarding this Invitation to Bid; and,   

 
WHEREAS, the Agency received two (2) sealed bids in accordance with Idaho Code 

§ 67-2805(2)(b) by the due date and time of 3:00 p.m. on May 30, 2018; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Guho Corp. submitted the lowest responsive bid; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Agency staff is recommending to the Board that the contract award for the 

10th & Front Garage Concrete Repairs Project be made to Guho Corp. as the lowest responsive 
bidder, in accordance with Idaho Code § 67-2805(2)(b). 
  
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS OF THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY, AS FOLLOWS:   
 
 Section 1: That the above statements are true and correct. 
 
 Section 2: That the Board hereby finds that on May 30, 2018, Guho Corp. submitted 
the lowest responsive bid for the 10th & Front Garage Concrete Repairs Project.   
 

Section 3: That the Executive Director of the Agency is hereby authorized to 
negotiate and execute a public works construction agreement with Guho Corp. for the total bid 
amount (Base Bid plus Bid Alternate) of THREE HUNDRED NINETY-SEVEN THOUSAND 
EIGHTY-SEVEN AND 97/100 DOLLARS ($397,087.97), plus allowing up to 20% of this amount 
to address unforeseen circumstances if determined necessary in his best judgement. 

 
Section 4:  That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its 

adoption and approval.    
 
PASSED by the Urban Renewal Agency of Boise City, Idaho, on June 11, 2018.  Signed 

by the Chairman of the Board of Commissioners, and attested by the Secretary to the Board of 
Commissioners, on June 11, 2018.     
 
 

URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY: 
 
 
      By:         
            Dana Zuckerman, Chair 
ATTEST: 
 
 
By:        
      David H. Bieter, Secretary 



10th & Front Garage Concrete Repairs
BIDS DUE:  May 30, 2018  - 3:00 PM 

Bid Results

CONTRACTOR
PWC

License

Bid Security
(5% of Base 

Bid)

Signed
Contractor's 

Affidavit
Concerning 

Taxes
Addendum #1 

Acknwldgd 
Addendum #2 

Acknwldgd 

Subcontractor 
List per

Idaho Code
§ 67-2310

Completed 
Signed Bid Form BASE BID AMOUNT ADD ALTERNATE #1

TOTAL
BASE BID + ADD ALT

Guho Corp yes yes yes n/a yes yes $365,276.84 $31,811.13 $397,087.97

McAlvain $0.00

Structural Group yes yes yes n/a yes yes $524,900.00 $122,900.00 $647,800.00

<< Did not bid >>

PWC-C-12569

PWC-017535

PWC-C-16359

ATTACHMENT B

mwatson
Rectangle



ATTACHMENT C

mwatson
Rectangle



















Page 1 
 

 

 

 

AGENDA BILL 

Agenda Subject: 
Resolution #1553 Central District CMGC Contract Amendment, GMP #3 

Date: 
June 11, 2018 
 

Staff Contact: 
Doug Woodruff  

Attachments: 
1. Resolution #1553 which includes 3rd Amendment to 

CM/GC Contract with Guho Corp. 
 

Action Requested: 
Adopt Resolution No. 1553 authorizing the amendment of the Central District CMGC contract.  
 

 
Background: 
On February 12, 2018, the Agency Board approved Amendment No. 1 to the Central District 
Improvements Construction Manager / General Contractor (CM/GC) contract with Guho Corp. to 
make improvements to 8th Street.   Construction of the 8th Street improvements began on 
February 26, 2018, and are slated to be complete by June 15.   
 
In March 2018, the Agency Board approved Amendment No. 2 to make improvements to Freak 
Alley and Union Block Alley.  Construction progress is on schedule to be complete by July 15. 
 
This Amendment No. 3 to the CM/GC contract sets a third Guaranteed Maximum Price 
(GMP #3) and authorizes Guho Corp. to proceed with construction of Capitol Boulevard 
streetscape improvement and protected bike lane improvements.   

 
Later this summer, likely at the August Board meeting, CCDC and Guho Corp. will need to 
execute one final contract amendment to authorize construction of Union Block geothermal 
improvements and miscellaneous district-wide streetscape repairs, thereby finalizing all 
components of the Central District Public Improvements Project. 
 
The CM/GC construction delivery method contemplates that the construction agreement must 
be amended from time to time as the construction project moves forward so that the parties can 
best address construction complexities and pertinent financial details – such as procurement of 
long lead-time materials and the award of subcontracts.  Here, the CM/GC contract with Guho 
Corp. allows us to amend the contract to establish a third GMP to proceed with new elements of 
the project which have been approved and bid.   
 
Guho Corp. has competitively bid the various subcontractor packages included in this 
Amendment No. 3 and is required by state law to award the contracts to the lowest responsive 
bidders.  Representatives from CCDC have been present for bid openings.  Upon approval of 
Resolution #1553, Guho will begin awarding subcontracts and mobilizing for construction of the 
Capitol Boulevard streetscape and protected bike lane improvements. 
 



Page 2 
 

Fiscal Notes: 
Amendment No. 3 to the CM/GC contract with Guho Corp. approves the guaranteed maximum 
price amount of $1,011,588 for construction services to complete Capitol Boulevard 
streetscape and protected bike lane improvements.   
 
This Amendment does not include costs for construction of improvements on 8th Street, Freak 
Alley, Union Block Alley, planned Union Block geothermal improvements, nor miscellaneous 
repairs throughout the district.  CCDC and Guho Corp. anticipate a fourth amendment in the 
coming months to approve construction costs for the remaining phases of the Central District 
Public Improvements Project.  
 

Guho Corp. Contract Summary  

 Estimate Approved 
Pre-construction Services  $ 80,060 

Amendment GMP No. 1 – 8th Street & long lead-time items  $ 762,238 

Amendment GMP No. 2 – Freak & Union Alleys  $ 561,020 

TODAY:  Amendment GMP No. 3 – Capitol Blvd  $ 1,011,588 

Amendment GMP No. 4 – Geothermal, Misc. Repairs $ 386,839   

Estimated Subtotal:  $ 386,839  

Amended Construction Contract Amount:  $2,334,846 

   

Estimated Final Contract Amount: $ 2,721,685  

* Approved upon today’s adoption of Resolution #1553, this agenda bill’s recommendation. 

 
The Estimated Final Contract Amount is within the approved FY2018 agency budget.   
 
In order to address any unforeseen circumstances that can arise during construction, Resolution 
#1553 authorizes the Executive Director to amend the GMP amount up to 5%, if determined 
necessary in his best judgment. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
Staff recommends the Board find it in the best interest of CCDC and the public to adopt 
Resolution #1553 approving Amendment No. 3 to the CM/GC contract with Guho Corp. for 
Capitol Boulevard streetscape and protected bike lane improvements. 
 
Suggested Motion: 
 
I move to adopt Resolution #1553 authorizing the amendment of the Central District CMGC 
Agreement with Guho Corporation.  
 

 



RESOLUTION No. 1553:  Amendment 3 to the Central District CM/GC Contract  Page 1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 1553 
 
 
BY  THE  BOARD  OF  COMMISSIONERS  OF  THE  URBAN  RENEWAL  AGENCY  OF 
BOISE CITY, IDAHO: 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE URBAN 
RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY, IDAHO, APPROVING AMENDMENT 
NO. 3 TO THE CONSTRUCTION MANAGER / GENERAL CONTRACTOR 
CONSTRUCTION AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE AGENCY AND GUHO CORP. 
TO INCREASE THE GUARANTEED MAXIMUM PRICE (GMP) FOR 
CONSTRUCTION OF THE CENTRAL DISTRICT PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS 
PROJECT; AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO EXECUTE 
AMENDMENT NO. 3; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

THIS RESOLUTION, is made on the date hereinafter set forth by the Urban Renewal 
Agency of Boise City, Idaho, an independent public body, corporate and politic, authorized 
under the authority of the Idaho Urban Renewal Law of 1965, as amended, Chapter 20, Title 50, 
Idaho Code, and the Local Economic Development Act, as amended and supplemented, 
Chapter 29, Title 50, Idaho Code (collectively the "Act"), a duly created and functioning urban 
renewal agency for Boise City, Idaho, hereinafter referred to as the "Agency." 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Boise City, Idaho (the “City”), after notice duly 

published, conducted a public hearing on the 1987 Amended and Restated Urban Renewal 
Plan for the Boise Central District Project I, Idaho R-4, and Project II, Idaho R-5 (the “Boise 
Central District Urban Renewal Plan”) and, following said public hearing, the City adopted its 
Ordinance No. 5026 on August 19, 1987, approving the Boise Central District Urban Renewal 
Plan and making certain findings; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the City, after notice duly published, conducted a public hearing on the 1994 

Amended and Restated Urban Renewal Plan for the Boise Central District Project I, Idaho R-4, 
and Project II, Idaho R-5 (the “1994 Amended Urban Renewal Plan”) and, following said public 
hearing, the City adopted its Ordinance No. 5597 on December 6, 1994, approving the 1994 
Amended Urban Renewal Plan and making certain findings; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the City, after notice duly published, conducted a public hearing on the 2007 

Amended and Restated Urban Renewal Plan for the Boise Central District Project I, Idaho R-4, 
and Project II, Idaho R-5 (the “Central District Plan”) and, following said public hearing, the City 
adopted its Ordinance No. 6576 on June 26, 2007, effective upon publication on July 23, 2007, 
approving the Central District Plan; and, 

 
WHEREAS, upon approval of Resolution No. 1510 by its Board of Commissioners on 

October 9, 2017, the Agency entered into a Construction Manager / General Contractor 
(CM/GC) construction agreement with Guho Corp, for the Central District Public Improvements 
Project (“Project”) using the CM/GC construction delivery method; and   

 
WHEREAS, the CM/GC construction delivery method contemplates that the construction 

agreement must be amended from time to time as the construction project moves forward so 
that the parties to the agreement can best address construction complexities and pertinent 
financial details, including procurement of materials and buy-out of subcontracts; and  

 



RESOLUTION No. 1553:  Amendment 3 to the Central District CM/GC Contract  Page 2 
 

WHEREAS, on February 12, 2018, the Agency Board of Commissioners adopted 
Resolution No. 1526 approving and authorizing the Executive Director to execute “Amendment 
No. 1 to Standard Agreement and General Conditions Between Owner and Construction 
Manager” with Guho Corp. in order to establish a Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) for the 
initial phase of construction services, including early procurement of long lead-time materials for 
the Project; and, 

 
WHEREAS, on March 12, 2018, the Agency Board of Commissioners adopted 

Resolution No. 1532 approving and authorizing the Executive Director to execute “Amendment 
No. 2 to Standard Agreement and General Conditions Between Owner and Construction 
Manager” with Guho Corp. in order to increase the GMP for costs related to construction 
improvements to Union Block and Freak Alleys as well as long lead procurement of site 
furnishings; and,  

 
WHEREAS, the Agency and Guho Corp. desire to amend the CM/GC construction 

agreement at this time with the execution of “Amendment No. 3 to Standard Agreement and 
General Conditions Between Owner and Construction Manager,” attached as Exhibit A, in order 
to increase the GMP by ONE MILLION ELEVEN THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED EIGHTY-EIGHT 
DOLLARS ($1,011,588.00) to include the costs associated with construction of specified Capitol 
Boulevard streetscape improvements; and 

 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners finds it to be in the best public interest to 
approve the Amendment and to authorize the Executive Director to execute same. 
 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS OF THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1:  That the above statements are true and correct. 
 
Section 2:  That Amendment No. 3 to the Construction Manager / General Contractor 

construction agreement between the Agency and Guho Corp., attached hereto as Exhibit A and 
incorporated herein by reference, is approved as to both form and content. 

 
Section 3: That the Executive Director of the Agency is hereby authorized to execute 

Amendment No. 3to the Construction Manager / General Contractor construction agreement 
with Guho Corp., which will increase the Guaranteed Maximum Price of the Project to TWO 
MILLION THREE HUNDRED THIRTY-FOUR THOUSAND EIGHT HUNDRED FORTY-SIX 
DOLLARS ($2,334,846.00), plus allowing up to 5% of this amount to address unforeseen 
circumstances if determined necessary in his best judgment. 

 
Section 4: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its 

adoption and approval. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION No. 1553:  Amendment 3 to the Central District CM/GC Contract  Page 3 
 

PASSED by the Urban Renewal Agency of Boise City, Idaho, on June 11, 2018.  Signed 
by the Chairman of the Board of Commissioners and attested by the Secretary to the Board of 
Commissioners on June 11, 2018. 
 
 

URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY 
 
 
By:         

            Dana Zuckerman, Chair 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
By:        
      David H. Bieter, Secretary 



CM/GC – CENTRAL DISTRICT PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS PAGE 1
AMENDMENT NO. 1

AMENDMENT NO. 3 TO THE
STANDARD AGREEMENT AND GENERAL CONDITIONS
BETWEEN OWNER AND CONSTRUCTION MANAGER

(WHERE THE CM IS AT-RISK)

DATED JUNE 11, 2018

Pursuant to Section 3.4 of the Agreement dated November 21, 2017, between the Owner,
Capital City Development Corporation, and the Construction Manager, Guho Corp., for the
Central District Public Improvements Project located in downtown Boise, the Owner and the
Contractor desire now to establish a Guaranteed Maximum Price (the “GMP”) for the Work.
The Owner and the Contractor hereby agree as follows:

ARTICLE 1 GUARANTEED MAXIMUM PRICE

The Contractor’s GMP for the Work, including the Cost of the Work as defined in Article 8 and 
the Contractor’s Fee as set forth in Section 7.3, is TWO MILLION THREE HUNDRED THIRTY-
FOUR THOUSAND EIGHT HUNDRED FORTY-SIX DOLLARS ($2,334,846.00).

The GMP is for the performance of the Work in accordance with the exhibits listed below, which
are a part of this Agreement:

EXHIBIT A:  GMP 3 Summary -2 pages
EXHIBIT B: GMP 3 Schedule of Values -1 page
EXHIBIT C: GMP 3 Cost Estimate Detail -3 pages
EXHIBIT D:  GMP 3 Allowances -1 page
EXHIBIT E: GMP 3 General Conditions- 1 page
EXHIBIT F:  GMP 3 Purchase Orders -1 page
EXHIBIT G:  GMP 3 Subcontracts -1 page
EXHIBIT H:  GMP 3 Self Perform Work -1 page
EXHIBIT I: GMP 3 Assumptions and Clarification -2 pages
EXHIBIT J: GMP 3 Schedule – dated June 4, 2018 -2 pages
EXHIBIT K: GMP 3 Plans and Specs -21 pages

ARTICLE 2 DATE OF SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION

The Date of Substantial Completion of the Work is September 28, 2018.

ARTICLE 3 DATE OF FINAL COMPLETION

The Date of Final Completion of the Work is Twenty-One (21) Days after the Date of Substantial
Completion, subject to adjustments as provided for in the Contract Documents.

[ End of Amendment No. 3  |  Signatures appear on the following page. ]

EXHIBIT A to Resolution No. 1553

mwatson
Rectangle



CM/GC – CENTRAL DISTRICT PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS PAGE 2 
AMENDMENT NO. 1 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Owner and Construction Manager have executed this 
Agreement with an effective date as first written above. 
 
 
OWNER: Capital City Development Corporation 
 
 
By:         
      John Brunelle, Executive Director 
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
 
        
Mary Watson, General Counsel | Contracts Manager 
 
 
 
 
CONSTRUCTION MANAGER:  Guho Corp. 
 
 
By:         
      Anthony Guho, Vice-President 
 
Attest: 
 
 
        
 
 
 

Budget Info / For Office Use 

Fund/District 301 

Account 6250 

Activity Code 18008 

PO # 180059 

Contract Term September 30, 2018 

 



GMP AMENDMENT 3 CCDC Central District

EXHIBIT A REV 1 Renovation

Description GMP 1  Area Total GMP 1 Total GMP 2  Area Total  GMP 2 Total GMP 3  Area Total  GMP 3 Total CONTRACT TOTAL  Area Total CONTRACT TOTAL

1 8th Street Streetscapes

01-4523 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS 12,000 12,000

01-3110 PROJECT MANAGEMENT 10,719 10,719

01-3111 PROJECT SUPERVISION 54,444 54,444

01-5200 CONSTRUCTION FACILITIES 317 317

01-5526 TRAFFIC CONTROL 27,600 27,600

01-5529 STAGING AREAS 20,900 20,900

01-5600 TEMP BARRIERS AND ENCLOSURES 3,120 3,120

01-5713 EROSION/SEDIMENT CTRL. (SWPPP) 1,200 1,200

01-7419 WASTE MANAGEMENT AND DISPOSAL 1,000 1,000

02-4113 DEMO / SALVAGE 29,328 1,623 30,951

12-9300 SITE FURNISHINGS 12,189 23,853 36,042

26-0010 ELECTRICAL SUBCONTRACTOR 60,724 60,724

26-0100 ELECTRICAL SERVICES 33,600 33,600

26-5613 LIGHT POLES & STANDARDS 33,547 33,547

31-1313 TREE REMOVAL 2,160 2,160

31-2000 EXCAVATION 8,992 8,992

32-1100 BASE COURSE 2,824 1,571 4,395

32-1313 CONCRETE PAVING 32,373 4,446 36,819

32-1416 BRICK PAVERS 53,759 6,113 59,872

32-1613 CURB & GUTTER 8,001 8,001

32-1726 PED RAMPS 15,407 15,407

32-3913 BOLLARDS 8,145 8,145

32-8000 IRRIGATION 45,380 45,380

32-9100 LANDSCAPING 5,060 5,060

32-9443 TREE GRATES/FRAMES 56,964 56,964

34-4000 SIGNAGE 2,000 2,000

Recycle Recepticals 0

Total Cost 541,753$       37,606$               579,359$       

CM/GC Fee 40,631$         2,820$                 43,452$         

Contingency 27,088$         1,880$                 28,968$         

Bond 7,612$           412$                    8,024$           

* Math Error on GMP 2 on Bond Calculation (8,022)$                (8,022)$          

617,084$                34,696                      651,780$                                       

2 Freak / Union Alleys

01-3110 PROJECT MANAGEMENT 5,024 5,024

01-3111 PROJECT SUPERVISION 18,688 18,688

01-3223 SURVEY 2,500 2,500

01-4123 PERMITS 6,750 6,750

01-4523 TESTING AND INSPECTION SERVICE 10,000 10,000

01-5200 CONSTRUCTION FACILITIES 181 181

01-5510 PARKING FEES 7,500 7,500

01-5526 TRAFFIC CONTROL 20,664 20,664

01-5600 TEMP BARRIERS AND ENCLOSURES 780 780

01-5713 EROSION/SEDIMENT CTRL. (SWPPP) 1,200 1,200

01-7419 WASTE MANAGEMENT AND DISPOSAL 1,000 1,000

02-4113 DEMO-SITE 25,739 25,739

03-8100 SAW CUTTING 1,050 1,050

26-0010 ELECTRICAL COLUMNS AND BASES 23,699 23,699

26-0100 ELECTRICAL 24,336 24,336

26-5613 LIGHT FIXTURE PACKAGE 43,009 43,009

32-1100 BASE COURSE 24,916 24,916

32-1216 ASPHALT PAVING 2,000 2,000

32-1313 CONCRETE PAVING 68,484 68,484

32-1413 CONCRETE UNIT PAVERS 34,000 34,000

32-1416 BRICK PAVERS 9,034 9,034

32-3913 BOLLARDS 36,552 36,552

33-4000 STORM DRAINAGE 22,536 22,536

33-8126 COMMUNICATION VAULTS 6,160 6,160

VAULT ALLOWANCE 15,000 15,000

ART ALLOWANCE STAINLESS STEEL 10,000 10,000

Total Cost 420,802$             420,802$       

CM/GC Fee 31,560$               31,560$         

 Contingency 42,080$               42,080$         

Bond 4,697$                 4,697$           

2 Freak / Union Alleys Total 499,140                    499,140$                                       

3 Capitol Blvd Streetscapes

01-3110 PROJECT MANAGEMENT 14,655 14,655

01-3111 PROJECT SUPERVISION 59,548 59,548

01-3223 LAYOUT 3,000 3,000

01-4123 PERMITS 7,500 7,500

01-4523 TESTING AND INSPECTION SERVICE 10,500 10,500

01-5200 CONSTRUCTION FACILITIES 724 724

01-5526 TRAFFIC CONTROL 32,600 32,600

01-5529 STAGING AREAS 16,050 16,050

01-5600 TEMP BARRIERS AND ENCLOSURES 1,950 1,950

01-5713 EROSION/SEDIMENT CTRL. (SWPPP) 3,900 3,900

01-7419 WASTE MANAGEMENT AND DISPOSAL 2,000 2,000

02-4113 DEMO-SITE 34,306 34,306

10-1453 Traffic Signage 1,311 1,311

12-9300 SITE FURNISHINGS 1,526 6,680 3,748 11,954

26-0010 ELECTRICAL SUBCONTRACTOR 58,935 58,935

26-5613 LIGHT POLES & STANDARDS 18,870 5,426 24,296

32-1100 BASE COURSE 42,088 42,088

32-1216 ASPHALT PAVING 40,491 40,491

32-1313 CONCRETE PAVING 84,199 84,199

32-1416 BRICK PAVERS 112,992 112,992

32-1613 CURB & GUTTER 52,857 52,857

32-1726 PED RAMPS 6,900 6,900

32-9100 LANDSCAPING 29,389 29,389

32-9443 TREE GRATES/FRAMES 31,701 1,257 32,958

32-9446 TREE GRIDS (SILVA CELL) 156,369 156,369

33-4000 STORM DRAINAGE 18,108 18,108

33-7000 ELECTRIC UTILITIES 13,500 13,500

33-8000 COMMUNICATION UTILITIES 24,832 24,832

Total Cost 52,097$         6,680$                 839,135$       897,912

CM/GC Fee 3,907$           501$                    62,935$         67,343

Contingency -$               -$                     7.50% 62,935$         62,935

Bond 699$              68$                      9,168$           9,935

3 Capitol Blvd Streetscapes 56,703$                  7,249                        974,173$                              1,038,126$                                    

GMP 3 SUMMARY

Anthony
Image



GMP AMENDMENT 3 CCDC Central District

EXHIBIT A REV 1 Renovation

Description GMP 1  Area Total GMP 1 Total GMP 2  Area Total  GMP 2 Total GMP 3  Area Total  GMP 3 Total CONTRACT TOTAL  Area Total CONTRACT TOTAL

GMP 3 SUMMARY

4 Repair Work

2 MATERIAL PROCURMENT

12-9300 SITE FURNISHINGS 7,462 18,370 25,832

32-9443 TREE GRATES/FRAMES 73,803 73,803

LOADING ZONE INFILL

01-5526 TRAFFIC CONTROL 4,650 4,650

01-5600 TEMP BARRIERS AND ENCLOSURES 390 390

01-5713 EROSION/SEDIMENT CTRL. (SWPPP) 450 450

02-4100 DEMOLITION 6,937 6,937

10-1453 Traffic Signage 386 386

32-1216 ASPHALT PAVING 2,700 2,700

32-1416 BRICK PAVERS 9,509 9,509

32-1613 CURB & GUTTER 6,521 6,521

Total Cost 81,265$         18,370$               31,543$         131,178

CM/GC Fee 6,095$           1,378$                 2,366$           9,838

Contingency -$               -$                     3,154$           3,154

Bond 1,091$           188$                    352$              1,631

4 Repair Work Total 88,451$                  19,935                      37,415$                                145,801

GMP 1 TOTAL 762,238$                GMP 2 SUBTOTAL 561,020                    GMP 3 SUBTOTAL 1,011,588$                           GMP 1+ 2 + 3 TOTAL 2,334,846$                    

GMP 1 SUBTOTAL 762,238                    GMP 2 SUBTOTAL 1,323,258$                           

GMP 2 TOTAL 1,323,258                 GMP 3 TOTAL 2,334,846$             

Anthony
Image



GMP AMENDMENT 3 CCDC Central District

EXHIBIT B REV 1 Renovation

01-3110 PROJECT MANAGEMENT 14,655

01-3111 PROJECT SUPERVISION 59,548

01-3223 LAYOUT 3,000

01-4123 PERMITS 7,500

01-4523 TESTING AND INSPECTION SERVICE 10,500

01-5200 CONSTRUCTION FACILITIES 724

01-5526 TRAFFIC CONTROL 32,600

01-5529 STAGING AREAS 16,050

01-5600 TEMP BARRIERS AND ENCLOSURES 1,950

01-5713 EROSION/SEDIMENT CTRL. (SWPPP) 3,900

01-7419 WASTE MANAGEMENT AND DISPOSAL 2,000

02-4113 DEMO-SITE 34,306

10-1453 Traffic Signage 1,311

12-9300 SITE FURNISHINGS 3,748

26-0010 ELECTRICAL SUBCONTRACTOR 58,935

26-5613 LIGHT POLES & STANDARDS 5,426

32-1100 BASE COURSE 42,088

32-1216 ASPHALT PAVING 40,491

32-1313 CONCRETE PAVING 84,199

32-1416 BRICK PAVERS 112,992

32-1613 CURB & GUTTER 52,857

32-1726 PED RAMPS 6,900

32-9100 LANDSCAPING 29,389

32-9443 TREE GRATES/FRAMES 1,257

32-9446 TREE GRIDS (SILVA CELL) 156,369

33-4000 STORM DRAINAGE 18,108

33-7000 ELECTRIC UTILITIES 13,500

33-8000 COMMUNICATION UTILITIES 24,832

TOTAL 839,135                         

CM/GC FEE 62,935                           

7.5%  Contingency 62,935                           

Bond 9,168                             

AREA 3 CAPITOL BLVD TOTAL 974,173$                       

01-5526 TRAFFIC CONTROL 4,650                  

01-5600 TEMP BARRIERS AND ENCLOSURES 390                     

01-5713 EROSION/SEDIMENT CTRL. (SWPPP) 450                     

02-4100 DEMOLITION 6,937                  

10-1453 Traffic Signage 386                     

32-1216 ASPHALT PAVING 2,700                  

32-1416 BRICK PAVERS 9,509                  

32-1613 CURB & GUTTER 6,521                  

TOTAL 31,543                           

CM/GC FEE 2,366                             

10% Contingency 3,154                             

Bond 352                                

AREA 4 MISC REPAIRS TOTAL 37,415$                         

AMMENDMENT 3 TOTAL 1,011,588$          

3. Capitol Blvd Streetscapes

4. Repair Work- Loading Zone Infill

SCHEDULE OF VALUES

Anthony
Image



GMP AMENDMENT 3 CCDC Central District

EXHIBIT C REV 1 Renovation

Description Qty Total Amount SOV Total

01-3110 PROJECT MANAGEMENT 14,655               

Project Manager 175.00 HR 14,655                    GENERAL CONDITIONS

01-3111 PROJECT SUPERVISION 59,548               

Superintendent Senior 140.00 HR 11,724                    GENERAL CONDITIONS

Superintendent 700.00 HR 47,824                    GENERAL CONDITIONS

01-3223 LAYOUT 3,000                 

Survey 1.00 ls 3,000                      

01-4123 PERMITS 7,500                 

ACHD ROW Permit Fee 100.00 day 7,500                      ALLOWANCE

01-4523 TESTING AND INSPECTION SERVICE 10,500               

3rd Party Testing and Inspections 1.00 al 10,500                    ALLOWANCE

01-5200 CONSTRUCTION FACILITIES 724                    

Portable Toilet 4.00 mth 362                         GENERAL CONDITIONS

Portable Toilet (Staging Yard) 4.00 mth 362                         GENERAL CONDITIONS

01-5526 TRAFFIC CONTROL 32,600               

Traffic Control (Capitol , Front to Grove) 2.00 mth 5,000                      ALLOWANCE

Ped Traffic Control / Block 1.00 mth 500                         ALLOWANCE

Custom Signage 1.00 ls 2,500                      ALLOWANCE

Traffic Control (Maintenance) 80.00 hrs 2,400                      ALLOWANCE

Traffic Control (Capitol, Grove to Main) 1.00 mth 2,500                      ALLOWANCE

Ped Traffic Control / Block 1.00 mth 500                         ALLOWANCE

Traffic Control (Maintenance) 40.00 hrs 1,200                      ALLOWANCE

Traffic Control (Capitol, Idaho to Bannock) 3.00 mth 7,500                      ALLOWANCE

Ped Traffic Control / Block 1.00 mth 500                         ALLOWANCE

Traffic Control (Maintenance) 60.00 hrs 1,800                      ALLOWANCE

Traffic Control (Capitol, Idaho Corners) 1.00 mth 2,500                      ALLOWANCE

Ped Traffic Control / Block 2.00 mth 1,000                      ALLOWANCE

Traffic Control (Maintenance) 20.00 hrs 600                         ALLOWANCE

Traffic Control (Idaho St, Corners) 1.00 mth 2,500                      ALLOWANCE

Ped Traffic Control / Block 2.00 mth 1,000                      ALLOWANCE

Traffic Control (Maintenance) 20.00 hrs 600                         ALLOWANCE

01-5529 STAGING AREAS 16,050               

5k Forklift in Staging Yard 3.00 mth 8,400                      GENERAL CONDITIONS

Staging Yard Rental 3.00 mth 7,050                      GENERAL CONDITIONS

Temporary Chainlink Staging Yard 3.00 mth 600                         GENERAL CONDITIONS

01-5600 TEMP BARRIERS AND ENCLOSURES 1,950                 

Temporary Fencing 1,500.00 ft 1,950                      GENERAL CONDITIONS

01-5713 EROSION/SEDIMENT CTRL. (SWPPP) 3,900                 

SWPPP Allowance 1.00 allo 2,400                      ALLOWANCE

SWPPP Plan and NOI 1.00 allo 1,500                      ALLOWANCE

01-7419 WASTE MANAGEMENT AND DISPOSAL 2,000                 

Trash 4.00 mth 2,000                      GENERAL CONDITIONS

02-4113 DEMO-SITE 34,306               

Demo 1.00 ls 34,306                    SELF PERFORM

10-1453 Traffic Signage 1,311                 

Bike Lane Sign 7.00 ea 450                         

Bike Lane Delineator Post (36") 15.00 ea 336                         

Parking Meter Install 7.00 ea 525                         

12-9300 SITE FURNISHINGS 3,748                 

Bike Rack (supply) 6.00 ea 1,018                      PURCHASE ORDER

Bike Rack (Install) 15.00 ea 2,250                      

Trash Receptacle (Install) 4.00 ea 480                         

26-0010 ELECTRICAL SUBCONTRACTOR 58,935               

Streetlight Electrical 1.00 ls 58,935                    SUBCONTRACT

26-5613 LIGHT POLES & STANDARDS 5,426                 

20' Conex Box 4.00 mth 318                         

20' Conex Box Drop Off/Pickup 2.00 ea 250                         

Historical Light Poles (Supply) 2.00 ea 4,858                      PURCHASE ORDER

32-1100 BASE COURSE 42,088               

Grading and Base Section (Sidewalks) 1.00 ls 42,088                    SELF PERFORM

32-1216 ASPHALT PAVING 40,491               

Small Asphalt Patch 1,816.00 sf 5,448                      SUBCONTRACT

Asphalt Saw Cutting 425.00 lf 850                         SUBCONTRACT

Demo Asphalt 3,682.00 sf 2,762                      SUBCONTRACT

3. Capitol Blvd Streetscapes

COST ESTIMATE DETAIL

Anthony
Image



GMP AMENDMENT 3 CCDC Central District

EXHIBIT C REV 1 Renovation

COST ESTIMATE DETAIL
Excavation for Asphalt 341.00 sf 5,627                      SUBCONTRACT

3/4" Road base for Asphalt 341.00 sf 8,099                      SUBCONTRACT

Mobilization 1.00 ea 1,000                      SUBCONTRACT

Asphalt Paving 3,682.00 sf 9,205                      SUBCONTRACT

Striping 1.00 allo 7,500                      ALLOWANCE

32-1313 CONCRETE PAVING 84,199               

Concrete Approaches 1.00 ls 14,571                    SUBCONTRACT

Bike Lane 1.00 ls 69,628                    SUBCONTRACT

32-1416 BRICK PAVERS 112,992             

Endicott Unit Pavers 1.00 ls 111,552                  SUBCONTRACT

Salvage and Replace Idaho/Capitol Corners 1.00 ls 1,440                      SUBCONTRACT

32-1613 CURB & GUTTER 52,857               

Curb and Gutter 1.00 ls 52,857                    SUBCONTRACT

32-1726 PED RAMPS 6,900                 

Concrete Ped Ramp 1.00 ls 6,900                      SUBCONTRACT

32-9100 LANDSCAPING 29,389               

Landscape and Irrigation (Silva Cells) 1.00 ls 23,989                    SUBCONTRACT

2" Chanticleer Pear (Supply) 18.00 ls 5,400                      ALLOWANCE

32-9443 TREE GRATES/FRAMES 1,257                 

4x8 Frame Brick 2.00 ea 1,257                      

32-9446 TREE GRIDS (SILVA CELL) 156,369             

Silva Cell 1.00 ls 156,369                  SELF PERFORM

33-4000 STORM DRAINAGE 18,108               

Storm Drain Pipe 1.00 ls 18,108                    SELF PERFORM

33-7000 ELECTRIC UTILITIES 13,500               

Idaho Power Vault  Allowance 3.00 ea 13,500                    ALLOWANCE

33-8000 COMMUNICATION UTILITIES 24,832               

Communication Conduits 1.00 ls 24,832                    SELF PERFORM

TOTAL 839,135                          

CM/GC FEE 62,935                            

7.5%  Contingency 62,935                            

Bond 9,168                              

AREA 3 CAPITOL BLVD TOTAL 974,173$                        

01-5526 TRAFFIC CONTROL 4,650                 

Traffic Control (Main St. Loading Zone) 0.50 mth 1,250                      ALLOWANCE

Traffic Control (Maintenance) 10.00 hrs 300                         ALLOWANCE

Traffic Control (9th St. Loading Zone) 1.00 mth 2,500                      ALLOWANCE

Traffic Control (Maintenance) 20.00 hrs 600                         ALLOWANCE

01-5600 TEMP BARRIERS AND ENCLOSURES 390                    

Temporary Fencing 300.00 ft 390                         GENERAL CONDITIONS

01-5713 EROSION/SEDIMENT CTRL. (SWPPP) 450                    

SWPPP Allowance 3.00 allo 450                         ALLOWANCE

02-4100 DEMOLITION 6,937                 

Demo 1.00 ls 6,937                      SELF PERFORM

10-1453 Traffic Signage 386                    

Sings 6.00 ea 386                         

32-1216 ASPHALT PAVING 2,700                 

Asphalt Patch (Loading Zone) 900.00 sqft 2,700                      SUBCONTRACT

32-1416 BRICK PAVERS 9,509                 

Endicott Unit Pavers Loading Zone 924.00 sqft 9,009                      SUBCONTRACT

Pickup Pavers from CCDC Storage 1.00 ls 500                         

32-1613 CURB & GUTTER 6,521                 

Curb and Gutter Loading Zone Infill 1.00 ls 6,521                      SUBCONTRACT

TOTAL 31,543                            

CM/GC FEE 2,366                              

7.5%  Contingency 3,154                              

Bond 352                                 

AREA 4 MISC REPAIRS TOTAL 37,415$                          

AMENDMENT 3 TOTAL 1,011,588$          

4. Repair Work- Loading Zone Infill

Anthony
Image



GMP AMENDMENT 3 CCDC Central District

EXHIBIT C REV 1 Renovation

COST ESTIMATE DETAIL

THIS PAGE WAS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

Anthony
Image



GMP AMENDMENT 3 CCDC Central District

EXHIBIT D REV 1 Renovation

Description Qty Total Amount SOV Total

01-4123 PERMITS 7,500                 

ACHD ROW Permit Fee 100.00 day 7,500                     

01-4523 TESTING AND INSPECTION SERVICE 10,500               

3rd Party Testing and Inspections 1.00 al 10,500                   

01-5526 TRAFFIC CONTROL 32,600               

Traffic Control (Capitol , Front to Grove) 2.00 mth 5,000                     

Ped Traffic Control / Block 1.00 mth 500                        

Custom Signage 1.00 ls 2,500                     

Traffic Control (Maintenance) 80.00 hrs 2,400                     

Traffic Control (Capitol, Grove to Main) 1.00 mth 2,500                     

Ped Traffic Control / Block 1.00 mth 500                        

Traffic Control (Maintenance) 40.00 hrs 1,200                     

Traffic Control (Capitol, Idaho to Bannock) 3.00 mth 7,500                     

Ped Traffic Control / Block 1.00 mth 500                        

Traffic Control (Maintenance) 60.00 hrs 1,800                     

Traffic Control (Capitol, Idaho Corners) 1.00 mth 2,500                     

Ped Traffic Control / Block 2.00 mth 1,000                     

Traffic Control (Maintenance) 20.00 hrs 600                        

Traffic Control (Idaho St, Corners) 1.00 mth 2,500                     

Ped Traffic Control / Block 2.00 mth 1,000                     

Traffic Control (Maintenance) 20.00 hrs 600                        

01-5713 EROSION/SEDIMENT CTRL. (SWPPP) 3,900                 

SWPPP Allowance 1.00 allo 2,400                     

SWPPP Plan and NOI 1.00 allo 1,500                     

32-1216 ASPHALT PAVING 7,500                 

Striping 1.00 allo 7,500                     

32-9100 LANDSCAPING 5,400                 

2" Chanticleer Pear (Supply) 18.00 ls 5,400                     

33-7000 ELECTRIC UTILITIES 13,500               

Idaho Power Vault  Allowance 3.00 ea 13,500                   

AREA 3 CAPITOL BLVD TOTAL 80,900                          

01-5526 TRAFFIC CONTROL 4,650                 

Traffic Control (Main St. Loading Zone) 0.50 mth 1,250                     

Traffic Control (Maintenance) 10.00 hrs 300                        

Traffic Control (9th St. Loading Zone) 1.00 mth 2,500                     

Traffic Control (Maintenance) 20.00 hrs 600                        

01-5713 EROSION/SEDIMENT CTRL. (SWPPP) 450                    

SWPPP Allowance 3.00 allo 450                        

AREA 4 MISC REPAIRS TOTAL 5,100                            

AMMENDMENT 3 ALLOWANCES TOTAL 86,000             

3. Capitol Blvd Streetscapes

4. Repair Work- Loading Zone Infill

ALLOWANCES

Anthony
Image



GMP AMENDMENT 3 CCDC Central District

EXHIBIT E REV 1 Renovation

3. Capitol Blvd Streetscapes
01-3110 PROJECT MANAGEMENT 14,655               

Project Manager 175.00 HR 14,655                   

01-3111 PROJECT SUPERVISION 59,548               

Superintendent Senior 140.00 HR 11,724                   

Superintendent 700.00 HR 47,824                   

01-5200 CONSTRUCTION FACILITIES 724                    

Portable Toilet 4.00 mth 362                        

Portable Toilet (Staging Yard) 4.00 mth 362                        

01-5529 STAGING AREAS 16,050               

5k Forklift in Staging Yard 3.00 mth 8,400                     

Staging Yard Rental 3.00 mth 7,050                     

Temporary Chainlink Staging Yard 3.00 mth 600                        

01-5600 TEMP BARRIERS AND ENCLOSURES 1,950                 

Temporary Fencing 1,500.00 ft 1,950                     

01-7419 WASTE MANAGEMENT AND DISPOSAL 2,000                 

Trash 4.00 mth 2,000                     

4 01-5600 TEMP BARRIERS AND ENCLOSURES 390                    

Temporary Fencing 300.00 ft 390                        

TOTAL GENERAL CONDITIONS 95,317             

GENERAL CONDITIONS

Anthony
Image



GMP AMENDMENT 3 CCDC Central District

EXHIBIT F REV 1 Renovation

26-5613 LIGHT POLES & STANDARDS 4,858                 

Historical Light Poles (Supply) 2.00 ea 4,858                     

12-9300 SITE FURNISHINGS 1,018                 

Bike Rack (supply) 6.00 ea 1,018                     

PURCHASE ORDER TOTAL 5,876                    

PURCHASE ORDERS

CED SUPPLY

KB WELDING

Anthony
Image



GMP AMENDMENT 3 CCDC Central District

EXHIBIT G REV 1 Renovation

Description Qty Total Amount SOV Total

A-1 CONCRETE 150,477              
3 32-1313 CONCRETE PAVING 84,199               

Concrete Approaches 1.00 ls 14,571                   

Bike Lane 1.00 ls 69,628                   

3 32-1613 CURB & GUTTER 52,857               

Curb and Gutter 1.00 ls 52,857                   

3 32-1726 PED RAMPS 6,900                 

Concrete Ped Ramp 1.00 ls 6,900                     

4 32-1613 CURB & GUTTER 6,521                 

Curb and Gutter Loading Zone Infill 1.00 ls 6,521                     

BODEN HAUS 9,009                  
4 32-1416 BRICK PAVERS 9,009                 

Endicott Unit Pavers Loading Zone 924.00 sqft 9,009                     

CAPITOL LANDSCAPE 112,992              
3 32-1416 BRICK PAVERS 112,992             

Endicott Unit Pavers 1.00 ls 111,552                 

Salvage and Replace Idaho/Capitol Corners 1.00 ls 1,440                     

CAPITOL PAVING 35,691                
3 32-1216 ASPHALT PAVING 32,991               

Small Asphalt Patch 1,816.00 sf 5,448                     

Asphalt Saw Cutting 425.00 lf 850                        

Demo Asphalt 3,682.00 sf 2,762                     

Excavation for Asphalt 341.00 sf 5,627                     

3/4" Road base for Asphalt 341.00 sf 8,099                     

Mobilization 1.00 ea 1,000                     

Asphalt Paving 3,682.00 sf 9,205                     

4 32-1216 ASPHALT PAVING 2,700                 

Asphalt Patch (Loading Zone) 900.00 sqft 2,700                     

GINGERICH 23,989                
3 32-9100 LANDSCAPING 23,989               

Landscape and Irrigation (Silva Cells) 1.00 ls 23,989                   

QUALITY ELECTRIC 58,935                
3 26-0010 ELECTRICAL SUBCONTRACTOR 58,935               

Streetlight Electrical 1.00 ls 58,935                   

SUBCONTRACTED TOTAL 391,093               

SUBCONTRACTS

Anthony
Image



GMP AMENDMENT 3 CCDC Central District

EXHIBIT H REV 1 Renovation

Description Qty Total Amount SOV Total

02-4113 DEMO-SITE 34,306               

Demo 1.00 ls 34,306                    

32-1100 BASE COURSE 42,088               

Grading and Base Section (Sidewalks) 1.00 ls 42,088                    

32-9446 TREE GRIDS (SILVA CELL) 156,369             

Silva Cell 1.00 ls 156,369                  

33-4000 STORM DRAINAGE 18,108               

Storm Drain Pipe 1.00 ls 18,108                    

33-8000 COMMUNICATION UTILITIES 24,832               

Communication Conduits 1.00 ls 24,832                    

AREA 3 CAPITOL BLVD TOTAL 275,703                          

02-4100 DEMOLITION 6,937                 

Demo 1.00 ls 6,937                      

AREA 4 MISC REPAIRS TOTAL 6,937                              

SELF PERFORM WORK 282,640$              

3. Capitol Blvd Streetscapes

4. Repair Work- Loading Zone Infill

SELF PERFORM WORK

Anthony
Image



GMP 3 

Assumptions and Clarifications 

 

Traffic Control 

• Lane Closure and/or Shift on Capitol at Work Area 

• Lane Closures for Loading Zone Infill 

• Bike Lane Closed 

• Sidewalk Closed with Detour Routes 

o A gravel 4ft  temp sidewalk will be provided to the maximum extent possible 

during construction from demo time to new hardscape 

• Construction Areas will fenced off with 4 ft tall orange fence on each side 

• Alley and Parking Lot Access will be restricted during construction 

• Construction Hours are Monday-Friday 6am to 6pm, Saturdays possible 

• ACHD ROW Permits Included 

 

Pavers and Hardscape 

• New Pavers on Streetscapes 

• Reuse Pavers on West Corner rebuild on Idaho and Capitol 

• Reuse/ CCDC Provided Pavers for Loading Zone infill 

• Damaged pavers will be replaced with pavers provided from CCDC 

 

Light Poles and Electrical 

• (2) New Light Poles purchased in GMP 3 for additional area added at Idaho and Capitol 

• (9) New Light Poles Purchased under GMP 1 

• Light Poles will connect to existing lighting circuits at the end of project limits 

• Does not include work beyond streetscape replacement limits 

 

Sprinkler and Irrigation- 

• Silva Cell Soil Mix Design same as past CCDC projects 

• Connect to (3) Existing Valve Boxes 

o Provide new Valves and Puck Timers 

• Backflow and Value Assemblies assumed to be up to current code 

• No Landscaping/irrigation Included in planter beds 

• 18” Root Guide included at new tree locations 

 

Misc. Items 

•  

• Parking Meters removed and reset by City of Boise 

• Parking Meter Post provided by City of Boise Installed by Guho Corp 

• Provide Additional 6 Bike Racks 

• Install (15) Bike Racks 

o Supply of 9 Bike Racks included in GMP 1 

• Install (4) Trash Receptacles 

GMP AMENDMENT  3
EXHIBIT I

CCDC Central District
Renovation



o Supply of (4) Trash Receptacles included in GMP 3 

• Supply (2) Additional Tree Grate Frames 

o Supply of (16) Tree Grate Frames included in GMP 1 

•  No Precast Concrete Planters Included 

 

Owner Provided Items 

• City of Boise Permit Fees 

 

Allowances 

• ACHD Permits 100 days @ $75/day 

o Testing and Inspections Services  

o Infiltration Test on Silva Cell Strom Drain Areas 

o Compaction Test on Backfill in trenches and subgrade 

o Concrete Cylinders for Concrete Paving  

o Asphalt Compaction Testing 

• Traffic Control 

o Pedestrian and vehicle traffic control as required by ACHD, CoB 

o Custom Signage for Business Access and Detours 

• Striping of Bike Lanes and Travel Lanes 

o Removal of Existing Marking, (Crosswalks, Bike Lane, Skip Line) 

o New Markings for Bike Lane, Crosswalks, Skip Lines, and parking 

• Landscaping 

o Supply 2” Chanticleer Pears 

• Electrical Utilities 

o Rework of Vents at ATT Building Vaults 

 

Work Not Included in GMP 3 

• Bollards at Front and Capitol 

• Misc. Repairs District Wide 

• Repair of Light Wells at Adelmann Building 

• Reconstruction of Covered Entry at Adelmann Building 

 

 

 

 

GMP AMENDMENT  3
EXHIBIT I

CCDC Central District
Renovation

1



ID Task Name Duration Start Finish % Complete

1 EVENTS 45 days S 4/14/18 S 6/16/18 0%

2 Farmers Market 189 days S 4/14/18 S 6/16/18 0%

13 8th Street Streetscapes 92 days T 2/1/18 S 6/9/18 99%

205 Freak / Union Alley 109 days W 1/31/18 M 7/2/18 53%

206 Design / Pre-Construction 38 days W 1/31/18 F 3/23/18 0%

223 Freak Alley Construction 35 days W 4/18/18 T 6/5/18 92%

224 Freak Alley Closed 34 days W 4/18/18 T 6/5/18 0%

227 Setup Fencing 1 day W 4/18/18 W 4/18/18 100%

228 Demo, Excavation and Gravel Prep 10 days T 4/19/18 W 5/2/18 100%

229 Excavate Light Poles, Catch Basins, and Bollards 6 days T 5/3/18 T 5/10/18 100%

230 Fiber Vault Adjustment 3 days T 5/8/18 T 5/10/18 100%

231 Light pole Bases and Bollards 10 days T 5/8/18 M 5/21/18 100%

232 Concrete Paving 5 days T 5/22/18 M 5/28/18 100%

233 Unit Pavers 6 days T 5/29/18 T 6/5/18 75%

234 Set Light Poles 2 days M 6/4/18 T 6/5/18 0%

235 Field Measure Light Poles 0 days T 6/5/18 T 6/5/18 0%

236 Overhead Lighting 3 days W 8/1/18 F 8/3/18 0%

237 Freak Alley Substantial Completion 0 days T 6/5/18 T 6/5/18 0%

238 Union Alley Construction 38 days T 5/10/18 M 7/2/18 60%

239 Union Alley Closed 34 days T 5/10/18 W 6/27/18 0%

242 Setup Fencing 1 day T 5/10/18 T 5/10/18 100%

243 Demo, Excavation, Strom Drain and Gravel Prep 10 days F 5/11/18 T 5/24/18 100%

244 Excavate Light Poles, Catch Basins, and Bollards 6 days F 5/25/18 F 6/1/18 100%

245 Fiber Vault Adjustment 3 days M 6/4/18 W 6/6/18 100%

246 Concrete Catch Basins and Light pole Bases 10 days W 5/30/18 T 6/12/18 75%

247 Concrete Paving 5 days W 6/13/18 T 6/19/18 0%

248 Unit Pavers 6 days W 6/20/18 W 6/27/18 0%

249 Set Light Poles 2 days T 6/26/18 W 6/27/18 0%

250 Overhead Lighting 3 days T 6/28/18 M 7/2/18 0%

251 Union Alley Substantial Completion 0 days W 6/27/18 W 6/27/18 0%

252 Capitol Blvd Streetscapes 79 days M 6/11/18 T 9/27/18 0%

253 GMP #3 Board Approval 0 days M 6/11/18 M 6/11/18 0%

254 ACHD Permit 100 days W 6/20/18 T 9/27/18 0%

257 Capitol | Idaho to Bannock 51 days W 6/20/18 W 8/29/18 0%

258 Idaho to Alley 51 days W 6/20/18 W 8/29/18 0%

259 Traffic Control (East lane Closed) 51 days W 6/20/18 W 8/29/18 0%

262 Saw Cut and Pre Demo 1 day W 6/20/18 W 6/20/18 0%

263 Demo Sidewalk 2 days T 6/21/18 F 6/22/18 0%

264 Temp Gravel Sidewalk for Business Access 1 day M 6/25/18 M 6/25/18 0%

265 Silva Cells South Half 5 days T 6/26/18 M 7/2/18 0%

266 Silva Cell Excavation 2 days T 6/26/18 W 6/27/18 0%

267 Set Silva Cell and Backfill 2 days T 6/28/18 F 6/29/18 0%

268 Electrical Light Pole Bases and Conduits 1 day F 6/29/18 F 6/29/18 0%

269 Irrigation Sleeves 1 day F 6/29/18 F 6/29/18 0%

270 Rough Grade Sidewalk Base Section 1 day M 7/2/18 M 7/2/18 0%

271 Silva Cells North Half 5 days T 7/3/18 M 7/9/18 0%

272 Silva Cell Excavation 2 days T 7/3/18 W 7/4/18 0%

273 Set Silva Cell and Backfill 2 days T 7/5/18 F 7/6/18 0%

274 Electrical Light Pole Bases and Conduits 1 day F 7/6/18 F 7/6/18 0%

275 Irrigation Sleeves 1 day F 7/6/18 F 7/6/18 0%

276 Rough Grade Sidewalk Base Section 1 day M 7/9/18 M 7/9/18 0%

277 Curb and Gutter 4 days T 7/10/18 F 7/13/18 0%

278 Tree Well Foundations 2 days M 7/16/18 T 7/17/18 0%

279 Finish Grade Sidewalk Base Section 2 days W 7/18/18 T 7/19/18 0%

280 Install Furnishings 1 day F 7/20/18 F 7/20/18 0%

281 Unit Pavers 4 days F 7/20/18 W 7/25/18 0%

282 Prep Bike Lane 2 days T 7/26/18 F 7/27/18 0%

283 Protected Bike Lane Concrete Curb 4 days M 7/30/18 T 8/2/18 0%

284 Bike Lane Concrete 1 day F 8/3/18 F 8/3/18 0%

285 Alley to Bannock 21 days T 7/10/18 T 8/7/18 0%

286 Saw Cut and Pre Demo 1 day T 7/10/18 T 7/10/18 0%

287 Demo Sidewalk/Excavation 2 days W 7/11/18 T 7/12/18 0%

288 Tree Well Foundations 2 days F 7/13/18 M 7/16/18 0%

289 Rough Grade Sidewalk Base Section 2 days T 7/17/18 W 7/18/18 0%

290 Curb and Gutter 2 days T 7/19/18 F 7/20/18 0%

291 Finish Grade Sidewalk Base Section 1 day M 7/23/18 M 7/23/18 0%

EVENTS

5/19 5/26 6/2 6/9 6/16

8th Street Streetscapes

Freak / Union Alley

Freak Alley Closed

Excavate Light Poles, Catch Basins, and Bollards

Light pole Bases and Bollards

Concrete Paving

Unit Pavers

Set Light Poles

Field Measure Light Poles 6/5

Overhead Lighting

Freak Alley Substantial Completion 6/5

Union Alley Construction

Union Alley Closed

Demo, Excavation, Strom Drain and Gravel Prep

Excavate Light Poles, Catch Basins, and Bollards

Fiber Vault Adjustment

Concrete Catch Basins and Light pole Bases

Concrete Paving

Unit Pavers

Set Light Poles

Overhead Lighting

Union Alley Substantial Completion 6/27

Capitol Blvd Streetscapes

GMP #3 Board Approval 6/11

ACHD Permit

Capitol | Idaho to Bannock

Idaho to Alley

Traffic Control (East lane Closed)

Saw Cut and Pre Demo

Demo Sidewalk

Temp Gravel Sidewalk for Business Access

Silva Cells South Half

Silva Cell Excavation

Set Silva Cell and Backfill

Electrical Light Pole Bases and Conduits

Irrigation Sleeves

Rough Grade Sidewalk Base Section

Silva Cells North Half

Silva Cell Excavation

Set Silva Cell and Backfill

Electrical Light Pole Bases and Conduits

Irrigation Sleeves

Rough Grade Sidewalk Base Section

Curb and Gutter

Tree Well Foundations

Finish Grade Sidewalk Base Section

Install Furnishings

Unit Pavers

Prep Bike Lane

Protected Bike Lane Concrete Curb

Bike Lane Concrete

Alley to Bannock

Saw Cut and Pre Demo

Demo Sidewalk/Excavation

Tree Well Foundations

Rough Grade Sidewalk Base Section

Curb and Gutter

Finish Grade Sidewalk Base Section

M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M

20 27 3 10 17 24 1 8 15 22 29 5 12 19 26 2 9 16 23 30

June 2018 July 2018 August 2018 September 2018 October 2018

CCDC Central District Renovation

GMP 3 SCHEDULE

06/04/18

Page 1 OF 2 02/05/17

GMP AMENDMENT  3
EXHIBIT J



ID Task Name Duration Start Finish % Complete

292 Install Furnishings 1 day T 7/24/18 T 7/24/18 0%

293 Unit Pavers 4 days T 7/24/18 F 7/27/18 0%

294 Asphalt Prep and Paving 3 days F 8/3/18 T 8/7/18 0%

295 Capitol and Idaho West Corners 16 days W 8/8/18 W 8/29/18 0%

296 North Corner 8 days W 8/8/18 F 8/17/18 0%

297 Traffic Control 7 days W 8/8/18 F 8/17/18 0%

300 Demo/Salvage Paver 1 day W 8/8/18 W 8/8/18 0%

301 Curb and Gutter 2 days T 8/9/18 F 8/10/18 0%

302 Backfill 1 day M 8/13/18 M 8/13/18 0%

303 Paver Patch Back 2 days T 8/14/18 W 8/15/18 0%

304 Asphalt Patch 1 day T 8/16/18 T 8/16/18 0%

305 Striping 1 day F 8/17/18 F 8/17/18 0%

306 South Corner 8 days M 8/20/18 W 8/29/18 0%

307 Traffic Control 7 days M 8/20/18 W 8/29/18 0%

310 Demo/Salvage Paver 1 day M 8/20/18 M 8/20/18 0%

311 Curb and Gutter 2 days T 8/21/18 W 8/22/18 0%

312 Backfill 1 day T 8/23/18 T 8/23/18 0%

313 Paver Patch Back 2 days F 8/24/18 M 8/27/18 0%

314 Asphalt Patch 1 day T 8/28/18 T 8/28/18 0%

315 Striping 1 day W 8/29/18 W 8/29/18 0%

316 Capitol | Front to Main 62 days W 7/4/18 T 9/27/18 0%

350 Grove to Main Street 37 days W 8/8/18 T 9/27/18 0%

351 Saw Cut and Pre Demo 1 day W 8/8/18 W 8/8/18 0%

352 Demo Sidewalk 2 days T 8/9/18 F 8/10/18 0%

353 Temp Gravel Sidewalk for Business Access 1 day M 8/13/18 M 8/13/18 0%

354 Silva Cells South Half 8 days T 8/14/18 T 8/23/18 0%

355 Silva Cell Excavation 3 days T 8/14/18 T 8/16/18 0%

356 Install Fiber Conduits 1 day F 8/17/18 F 8/17/18 0%

357 Permeability Test 1 day T 8/16/18 T 8/16/18 0%

358 Set Silva Cell and Backfill 3 days F 8/17/18 T 8/21/18 0%

359 Electrical Light Pole Bases and Conduits 1 day M 8/20/18 T 8/21/18 0%

360 Irrigation Sleeves 1 day T 8/21/18 T 8/21/18 0%

361 Rough Grade Sidewalk Base Section 2 days W 8/22/18 T 8/23/18 0%

362 Curb and Gutter 4 days F 8/24/18 W 8/29/18 0%

363 Alley/Drive Way Approaches 2 days T 8/30/18 F 8/31/18 0%

364 Tree Well Foundations 2 days T 8/30/18 F 8/31/18 0%

365 Finish Grade Sidewalk Base Section 2 days M 9/3/18 T 9/4/18 0%

366 Install Furnishings 1 day W 9/5/18 W 9/5/18 0%

367 Unit Pavers 6 days W 9/5/18 W 9/12/18 0%

368 Light Poles 5 days T 9/13/18 W 9/19/18 0%

369 Prep Bike Lane 2 days T 9/13/18 F 9/14/18 0%

370 Protected Bike Lane Concrete Curb 4 days M 9/17/18 T 9/20/18 0%

371 Bike Lane Concrete 3 days F 9/21/18 T 9/25/18 0%

372 Asphalt Patch 2 days W 9/26/18 T 9/27/18 0%

373 Major Repairs 16 days M 8/13/18 M 9/3/18 0%

374 Loading Zones (2x) (9th Street) 8 days M 8/13/18 W 8/22/18 0%

375 Traffic Control 7 days M 8/13/18 W 8/22/18 0%

376 Start 0 days M 8/13/18 M 8/13/18 0%

377 End 0 days W 8/22/18 W 8/22/18 0%

378 Demo/Salvage Paver 1 day M 8/13/18 M 8/13/18 0%

379 Curb and Gutter 2 days T 8/14/18 W 8/15/18 0%

380 Backfill 1 day T 8/16/18 T 8/16/18 0%

381 Paver Patch Back 2 days F 8/17/18 M 8/20/18 0%

382 Asphalt Patch 1 day T 8/21/18 T 8/21/18 0%

383 Striping 1 day W 8/22/18 W 8/22/18 0%

384 Loading Zone Main Street 8 days T 8/23/18 M 9/3/18 0%

385 Traffic Control 7 days T 8/23/18 M 9/3/18 0%

386 Start 0 days T 8/23/18 T 8/23/18 0%

387 End 0 days M 9/3/18 M 9/3/18 0%

388 Demo/Salvage Paver 1 day T 8/23/18 T 8/23/18 0%

389 Curb and Gutter 2 days F 8/24/18 M 8/27/18 0%

390 Backfill 1 day T 8/28/18 T 8/28/18 0%

391 Paver Patch Back 2 days W 8/29/18 T 8/30/18 0%

392 Asphalt Patch 1 day F 8/31/18 F 8/31/18 0%

393 Striping 1 day M 9/3/18 M 9/3/18 0%

Install Furnishings

Unit Pavers

Asphalt Prep and Paving

Capitol and Idaho West Corners

North Corner

Traffic Control

Demo/Salvage Paver

Curb and Gutter

Backfill

Paver Patch Back

Asphalt Patch

Striping

South Corner

Traffic Control

Demo/Salvage Paver

Curb and Gutter

Backfill

Paver Patch Back

Asphalt Patch

Striping

Capitol | Front to Main

Grove to Main Street

Saw Cut and Pre Demo

Demo Sidewalk

Temp Gravel Sidewalk for Business Access

Silva Cells South Half

Silva Cell Excavation

Install Fiber Conduits

Permeability Test

Set Silva Cell and Backfill

Electrical Light Pole Bases and Conduits

Irrigation Sleeves

Rough Grade Sidewalk Base Section

Curb and Gutter

Alley/Drive Way Approaches

Tree Well Foundations

Finish Grade Sidewalk Base Section

Install Furnishings

Unit Pavers

Light Poles

Prep Bike Lane

Protected Bike Lane Concrete Curb

Bike Lane Concrete

Asphalt Patch

Major Repairs

Loading Zones (2x) (9th Street)

Traffic Control

Start 8/13

End 8/22

Demo/Salvage Paver

Curb and Gutter

Backfill

Paver Patch Back

Asphalt Patch

Striping

Loading Zone Main Street

Traffic Control

Start 8/23

End 9/3

Demo/Salvage Paver

Curb and Gutter

Backfill

Paver Patch Back

Asphalt Patch

Striping

M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M

20 27 3 10 17 24 1 8 15 22 29 5 12 19 26 2 9 16 23 30

June 2018 July 2018 August 2018 September 2018 October 2018

CCDC Central District Renovation

GMP 3 SCHEDULE

06/04/18

Page 2 OF 2 02/05/17

GMP AMENDMENT  3
EXHIBIT J



CB

CB

CB

CB

CB

CB

CONC BOLLARD

CONC BOLLARD

CB

CB

T

T

SD

"ISG PLS7729"

7
0

.
0

0
'

6
0

.
0

0
'

8
0

.
0

0
'

8
0

.
0

0
'

(VACATED ROW BOUNDARY)

(VACATED ROW BOUNDARY)

"
I
S

G
 
P

L
S

7
0

1
5

"

"
I
S

G
 
P

L
S

7
7

2
9

"

D
I
S

T
U

R
B

E
D

SEE SHEET 3 FOR MORE DETAIL

SEE SHEET 3 FOR MORE DETAIL

V
A

C
A

T
E

D

V
A

C
A

T
E

D

CB

CB

W
. M

A
IN

 S
T

.

N. 8th ST. (PRIVATE)

1
6
' A

L
L

E
Y

 W
. F

R
O

N
T

 S
T

.

W
. M

A
IN

 S
T

.

N. CAPITOL BLVD.

 W
. F

R
O

N
T

 S
T

.

G
R

O
V

E
 S

T
.

N. CAPITOL BLVD.

W
. ID

A
H

O
 S

T
.

W
. M

A
IN

 S
T

.

N. 9th ST.

1
6
' A

L
L

E
Y

W
. ID

A
H

O
 S

T
.

N. 9th ST.

1
6
' A

L
L

E
Y

1
6
' A

L
L

E
Y

F
R

E
A

K
 A

L
L

E
Y

W
. M

A
IN

 S
T

.

U
N

IO
N

 A
L

L
E

Y

W
. B

A
N

N
O

C
K

 S
T

.
W

. B
A

N
N

O
C

K
 S

T
.

W
. ID

A
H

O
 S

T
.

T
H

E
S

E
 
D

R
A

W
I
N

G
S

 
A

N
D

 
S

P
E

C
I
F

I
C

A
T

I
O

N
S

,
 
A

S
 
I
N

S
T

R
U

M
E

N
T

S

O
F

 
S

E
R

V
I
C

E
,
 
A

R
E

 
A

N
D

 
S

H
A

L
L
 
R

E
M

A
I
N

 
T

H
E

 
P

R
O

P
E

R
T

Y
 
O

F

T
H

E
 
A

R
C

H
I
T

E
C

T
 
/
 
E

N
G

I
N

E
E

R
 
W

H
E

T
H

E
R

 
T

H
E

 
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

 
F

O
R

W
H

I
C

H
 
T

H
E

Y
 
A

R
E

 
M

A
D

E
 
I
S

 
E

X
E

C
U

T
E

D
 
O

R
 
N

O
T

.
 
T

H
E

S
E

D
R

A
W

I
N

G
S

 
A

N
D

 
S

P
E

C
I
F

I
C

A
T

I
O

N
S

 
S

H
A

L
L
 
N

O
T

 
B

E
 
U

S
E

D
 
B

Y

A
N

Y
 
P

E
R

S
O

N
 
O

R
 
E

N
T

I
T

Y
 
O

N
 
O

T
H

E
R

 
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
,
 
F

O
R

A
D

D
I
T

I
O

N
S

 
T

O
 
T

H
I
S

 
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

,
 
O

R
 
C

O
M

P
L
E

T
I
O

N
 
O

F
 
T

H
I
S

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

-
W

H
E

N
 
P

H
A

S
E

D
-
W

I
T

H
O

U
T

 
T

H
E

 
W

R
I
T

T
E

N
 
C

O
N

S
E

N
T

O
F

 
C

S
H

Q
A

 
O

R
 
I
T

S
 
A

F
F

I
L
I
A

T
E

S
.

B
O

I
S

E
,
 
I
D

 
 
8

3
7

0
2

(
2

0
8

)
 
3

4
3

-
4

6
3

5
 
 
 
 
F

A
X

 
(
2

0
8

)
 
3

4
3

-
1

8
5

8

2
0

0
 
B

R
O

A
D

 
S

T
R

E
E

T

w
w

w
.
c
s
h

q
a

.
c
o

m

C
o
p
y
r
i
g
h
t
 
 
 
2
0
1
8

P
H

O
N

E
:
 
2
0
8
-
3
4
3
-
4
6
3
5
 
 
F

A
X

:
 
2
0
8
-
3
4
3
-
1
8
5
8

B
O

I
S

E
,
 
I
D

A
H

O

2
0
0
 
B

R
O

A
D

 
S

T
R

E
E

T

 

 

BID SET
05/09/18

GMP AMENDMENT  3
EXHIBIT K



BID SET
05/09/18



BID SET
05/09/18



BID SET
05/09/18



BID SET
05/09/18



BID SET
05/09/18



BID SET
05/09/18



BID SET
05/09/18



BID SET
05/09/18



BID SET
05/09/18



G
R

O
V

E
 S

T
.

1
6

' A
L

L
E

Y

BASQUE MUSEUM &

CULTURAL CTR

JSC INVESTMENTS INC

N. CAPITOL BLVD.

 W
. F

R
O

N
T

 S
T

.

1
6

' A
L

L
E

Y

JSC INVESTMENTS INC

T
H

E
S

E
 
D

R
A

W
I
N

G
S

 
A

N
D

 
S

P
E

C
I
F

I
C

A
T

I
O

N
S

,
 
A

S
 
I
N

S
T

R
U

M
E

N
T

S

O
F

 
S

E
R

V
I
C

E
,
 
A

R
E

 
A

N
D

 
S

H
A

L
L

 
R

E
M

A
I
N

 
T

H
E

 
P

R
O

P
E

R
T

Y
 
O

F

T
H

E
 
A

R
C

H
I
T

E
C

T
 
/
 
E

N
G

I
N

E
E

R
 
W

H
E

T
H

E
R

 
T

H
E

 
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

 
F

O
R

W
H

I
C

H
 
T

H
E

Y
 
A

R
E

 
M

A
D

E
 
I
S

 
E

X
E

C
U

T
E

D
 
O

R
 
N

O
T

.
 
T

H
E

S
E

D
R

A
W

I
N

G
S

 
A

N
D

 
S

P
E

C
I
F

I
C

A
T

I
O

N
S

 
S

H
A

L
L

 
N

O
T

 
B

E
 
U

S
E

D
 
B

Y

A
N

Y
 
P

E
R

S
O

N
 
O

R
 
E

N
T

I
T

Y
 
O

N
 
O

T
H

E
R

 
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
,
 
F

O
R

A
D

D
I
T

I
O

N
S

 
T

O
 
T

H
I
S

 
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

,
 
O

R
 
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

I
O

N
 
O

F
 
T

H
I
S

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

-
W

H
E

N
 
P

H
A

S
E

D
-
W

I
T

H
O

U
T

 
T

H
E

 
W

R
I
T

T
E

N
 
C

O
N

S
E

N
T

O
F

 
C

S
H

Q
A

 
O

R
 
I
T

S
 
A

F
F

I
L

I
A

T
E

S
.

B
O

I
S

E
,
 
I
D

 
 
8

3
7

0
2

(
2

0
8

)
 
3

4
3

-
4

6
3

5
 
 
 
 
F

A
X

 
(
2

0
8

)
 
3

4
3

-
1

8
5

8

2
0

0
 
B

R
O

A
D

 
S

T
R

E
E

T

w
w

w
.
c
s
h

q
a

.
c
o

m

C
o

p
y
r
i
g

h
t
 
 
 
2

0
1

8

P
H

O
N

E
:
 
2
0
8
-
3
4
3
-
4
6
3
5
 
 
F

A
X

:
 
2
0
8
-
3
4
3
-
1
8
5
8

B
O

I
S

E
,
 
I
D

A
H

O

2
0
0
 
B

R
O

A
D

 
S

T
R

E
E

T

BID SET
05/09/18



N. CAPITOL BLVD.

G
R

O
V

E
 S

T
.

1
6
' A

L
L

E
Y

HEATH ONE LLCHEATH ONE LLC

W
. 
B

A
N

N
O

C
K

 S
T

.

1
6
' A

L
L

E
Y

AT&T COMMUNICATIONS

MTN STATES

N. CAPITOL BLVD.

G

AT&T COMMUNICATIONS

MTN STATES

N. CAPITOL BLVD.

1
6

' A
L

L
E

Y

G

N. CAPITOL BLVD.

W
. ID

A
H

O
 S

T
.

T
H

E
S

E
 
D

R
A

W
I
N

G
S

 
A

N
D

 
S

P
E

C
I
F

I
C

A
T

I
O

N
S

,
 
A

S
 
I
N

S
T

R
U

M
E

N
T

S

O
F

 
S

E
R

V
I
C

E
,
 
A

R
E

 
A

N
D

 
S

H
A

L
L

 
R

E
M

A
I
N

 
T

H
E

 
P

R
O

P
E

R
T

Y
 
O

F

T
H

E
 
A

R
C

H
I
T

E
C

T
 
/
 
E

N
G

I
N

E
E

R
 
W

H
E

T
H

E
R

 
T

H
E

 
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

 
F

O
R

W
H

I
C

H
 
T

H
E

Y
 
A

R
E

 
M

A
D

E
 
I
S

 
E

X
E

C
U

T
E

D
 
O

R
 
N

O
T

.
 
T

H
E

S
E

D
R

A
W

I
N

G
S

 
A

N
D

 
S

P
E

C
I
F

I
C

A
T

I
O

N
S

 
S

H
A

L
L

 
N

O
T

 
B

E
 
U

S
E

D
 
B

Y

A
N

Y
 
P

E
R

S
O

N
 
O

R
 
E

N
T

I
T

Y
 
O

N
 
O

T
H

E
R

 
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
,
 
F

O
R

A
D

D
I
T

I
O

N
S

 
T

O
 
T

H
I
S

 
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

,
 
O

R
 
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

I
O

N
 
O

F
 
T

H
I
S

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

-
W

H
E

N
 
P

H
A

S
E

D
-
W

I
T

H
O

U
T

 
T

H
E

 
W

R
I
T

T
E

N
 
C

O
N

S
E

N
T

O
F

 
C

S
H

Q
A

 
O

R
 
I
T

S
 
A

F
F

I
L

I
A

T
E

S
.

B
O

I
S

E
,
 
I
D

 
 
8

3
7

0
2

(
2

0
8

)
 
3

4
3

-
4

6
3

5
 
 
 
 
F

A
X

 
(
2

0
8

)
 
3

4
3

-
1

8
5

8

2
0

0
 
B

R
O

A
D

 
S

T
R

E
E

T

w
w

w
.
c
s
h

q
a

.
c
o

m

C
o

p
y
r
i
g

h
t
 
 
 
2

0
1

8

P
H

O
N

E
:
 
2
0
8
-
3
4
3
-
4
6
3
5
 
 
F

A
X

:
 
2
0
8
-
3
4
3
-
1
8
5
8

B
O

I
S

E
,
 
I
D

A
H

O

2
0
0
 
B

R
O

A
D

 
S

T
R

E
E

T

BID SET
05/09/18



G
R

O
V

E
 S

T
.

1
6

' A
L

L
E

Y

BASQUE MUSEUM &

CULTURAL CTR

JSC INVESTMENTS INC

N. CAPITOL BLVD.

 W
. F

R
O

N
T

 S
T

.

G

1
6

' A
L

L
E

Y

JSC INVESTMENTS INC

N. CAPITOL BLVD. 

N. CAPITOL BLVD.

G
R

O
V

E
 S

T
.

1
6
' A

L
L

E
Y

HEATH ONE LLCHEATH ONE LLC

1
6
' A

L
L

E
Y

G

W
. ID

A
H

O
 S

T
.

T
H

E
S

E
 
D

R
A

W
I
N

G
S

 
A

N
D

 
S

P
E

C
I
F

I
C

A
T

I
O

N
S

,
 
A

S
 
I
N

S
T

R
U

M
E

N
T

S

O
F

 
S

E
R

V
I
C

E
,
 
A

R
E

 
A

N
D

 
S

H
A

L
L

 
R

E
M

A
I
N

 
T

H
E

 
P

R
O

P
E

R
T

Y
 
O

F

T
H

E
 
A

R
C

H
I
T

E
C

T
 
/
 
E

N
G

I
N

E
E

R
 
W

H
E

T
H

E
R

 
T

H
E

 
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

 
F

O
R

W
H

I
C

H
 
T

H
E

Y
 
A

R
E

 
M

A
D

E
 
I
S

 
E

X
E

C
U

T
E

D
 
O

R
 
N

O
T

.
 
T

H
E

S
E

D
R

A
W

I
N

G
S

 
A

N
D

 
S

P
E

C
I
F

I
C

A
T

I
O

N
S

 
S

H
A

L
L

 
N

O
T

 
B

E
 
U

S
E

D
 
B

Y

A
N

Y
 
P

E
R

S
O

N
 
O

R
 
E

N
T

I
T

Y
 
O

N
 
O

T
H

E
R

 
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
,
 
F

O
R

A
D

D
I
T

I
O

N
S

 
T

O
 
T

H
I
S

 
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

,
 
O

R
 
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

I
O

N
 
O

F
 
T

H
I
S

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

-
W

H
E

N
 
P

H
A

S
E

D
-
W

I
T

H
O

U
T

 
T

H
E

 
W

R
I
T

T
E

N
 
C

O
N

S
E

N
T

O
F

 
C

S
H

Q
A

 
O

R
 
I
T

S
 
A

F
F

I
L

I
A

T
E

S
.

B
O

I
S

E
,
 
I
D

 
 
8

3
7

0
2

(
2

0
8

)
 
3

4
3

-
4

6
3

5
 
 
 
 
F

A
X

 
(
2

0
8

)
 
3

4
3

-
1

8
5

8

2
0

0
 
B

R
O

A
D

 
S

T
R

E
E

T

w
w

w
.
c
s
h

q
a

.
c
o

m

C
o

p
y
r
i
g

h
t
 
 
 
2

0
1

8

P
H

O
N

E
:
 
2
0
8
-
3
4
3
-
4
6
3
5
 
 
F

A
X

:
 
2
0
8
-
3
4
3
-
1
8
5
8

B
O

I
S

E
,
 
I
D

A
H

O

2
0
0
 
B

R
O

A
D

 
S

T
R

E
E

T

BID SET
05/09/18

3' x 3' x 3' Precast Vault
with 30" Man Hole

Existing 
3' x 3' x 3' Precast Vault

with 30" Man Hole



G
R

O
V

E
 S

T
.

1
6

' A
L

L
E

Y

BASQUE MUSEUM &

CULTURAL CTR

JSC INVESTMENTS INC

N. CAPITOL BLVD.

 W
. F

R
O

N
T

 S
T

.

1
6

' A
L

L
E

Y

JSC INVESTMENTS INC

G
R

O
V

E
 S

T
.

1
6

' A
L

L
E

Y

BASQUE MUSEUM &

CULTURAL CTR

JSC INVESTMENTS INC

N. CAPITOL BLVD.

 W
. F

R
O

N
T

 S
T

.

1
6

' A
L

L
E

Y

JSC INVESTMENTS INC

T
H

E
S

E
 
D

R
A

W
I
N

G
S

 
A

N
D

 
S

P
E

C
I
F

I
C

A
T

I
O

N
S

,
 
A

S
 
I
N

S
T

R
U

M
E

N
T

S

O
F

 
S

E
R

V
I
C

E
,
 
A

R
E

 
A

N
D

 
S

H
A

L
L

 
R

E
M

A
I
N

 
T

H
E

 
P

R
O

P
E

R
T

Y
 
O

F

T
H

E
 
A

R
C

H
I
T

E
C

T
 
/
 
E

N
G

I
N

E
E

R
 
W

H
E

T
H

E
R

 
T

H
E

 
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

 
F

O
R

W
H

I
C

H
 
T

H
E

Y
 
A

R
E

 
M

A
D

E
 
I
S

 
E

X
E

C
U

T
E

D
 
O

R
 
N

O
T

.
 
T

H
E

S
E

D
R

A
W

I
N

G
S

 
A

N
D

 
S

P
E

C
I
F

I
C

A
T

I
O

N
S

 
S

H
A

L
L

 
N

O
T

 
B

E
 
U

S
E

D
 
B

Y

A
N

Y
 
P

E
R

S
O

N
 
O

R
 
E

N
T

I
T

Y
 
O

N
 
O

T
H

E
R

 
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
,
 
F

O
R

A
D

D
I
T

I
O

N
S

 
T

O
 
T

H
I
S

 
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

,
 
O

R
 
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

I
O

N
 
O

F
 
T

H
I
S

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

-
W

H
E

N
 
P

H
A

S
E

D
-
W

I
T

H
O

U
T

 
T

H
E

 
W

R
I
T

T
E

N
 
C

O
N

S
E

N
T

O
F

 
C

S
H

Q
A

 
O

R
 
I
T

S
 
A

F
F

I
L

I
A

T
E

S
.

B
O

I
S

E
,
 
I
D

 
 
8

3
7

0
2

(
2

0
8

)
 
3

4
3

-
4

6
3

5
 
 
 
 
F

A
X

 
(
2

0
8

)
 
3

4
3

-
1

8
5

8

2
0

0
 
B

R
O

A
D

 
S

T
R

E
E

T

w
w

w
.
c
s
h

q
a

.
c
o

m

C
o

p
y
r
i
g

h
t
 
 
 
2

0
1

8

P
H

O
N

E
:
 
2
0
8
-
3
4
3
-
4
6
3
5
 
 
F

A
X

:
 
2
0
8
-
3
4
3
-
1
8
5
8

B
O

I
S

E
,
 
I
D

A
H

O

2
0
0
 
B

R
O

A
D

 
S

T
R

E
E

T

BID SET
05/09/18



N. CAPITOL BLVD.

G
R

O
V

E
 S

T
.

1
6
' A

L
L

E
Y

HEATH ONE LLCHEATH ONE LLC

N. CAPITOL BLVD.

G
R

O
V

E
 S

T
.

1
6
' A

L
L

E
Y

HEATH ONE LLCHEATH ONE LLC

1
6

' A
L

L
E

Y

AT&T COMMUNICATIONS

MTN STATES

N. CAPITOL BLVD.

AT&T COMMUNICATIONS

MTN STATES

W
. ID

A
H

O
 S

T
.

1
6

' A
L

L
E

Y

AT&T COMMUNICATIONS

MTN STATES

N. CAPITOL BLVD.

AT&T COMMUNICATIONS

MTN STATES

W
. ID

A
H

O
 S

T
.

T
H

E
S

E
 
D

R
A

W
I
N

G
S

 
A

N
D

 
S

P
E

C
I
F

I
C

A
T

I
O

N
S

,
 
A

S
 
I
N

S
T

R
U

M
E

N
T

S

O
F

 
S

E
R

V
I
C

E
,
 
A

R
E

 
A

N
D

 
S

H
A

L
L

 
R

E
M

A
I
N

 
T

H
E

 
P

R
O

P
E

R
T

Y
 
O

F

T
H

E
 
A

R
C

H
I
T

E
C

T
 
/
 
E

N
G

I
N

E
E

R
 
W

H
E

T
H

E
R

 
T

H
E

 
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

 
F

O
R

W
H

I
C

H
 
T

H
E

Y
 
A

R
E

 
M

A
D

E
 
I
S

 
E

X
E

C
U

T
E

D
 
O

R
 
N

O
T

.
 
T

H
E

S
E

D
R

A
W

I
N

G
S

 
A

N
D

 
S

P
E

C
I
F

I
C

A
T

I
O

N
S

 
S

H
A

L
L

 
N

O
T

 
B

E
 
U

S
E

D
 
B

Y

A
N

Y
 
P

E
R

S
O

N
 
O

R
 
E

N
T

I
T

Y
 
O

N
 
O

T
H

E
R

 
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
,
 
F

O
R

A
D

D
I
T

I
O

N
S

 
T

O
 
T

H
I
S

 
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

,
 
O

R
 
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

I
O

N
 
O

F
 
T

H
I
S

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

-
W

H
E

N
 
P

H
A

S
E

D
-
W

I
T

H
O

U
T

 
T

H
E

 
W

R
I
T

T
E

N
 
C

O
N

S
E

N
T

O
F

 
C

S
H

Q
A

 
O

R
 
I
T

S
 
A

F
F

I
L

I
A

T
E

S
.

B
O

I
S

E
,
 
I
D

 
 
8

3
7

0
2

(
2

0
8

)
 
3

4
3

-
4

6
3

5
 
 
 
 
F

A
X

 
(
2

0
8

)
 
3

4
3

-
1

8
5

8

2
0

0
 
B

R
O

A
D

 
S

T
R

E
E

T

w
w

w
.
c
s
h

q
a

.
c
o

m

C
o

p
y
r
i
g

h
t
 
 
 
2

0
1

8

P
H

O
N

E
:
 
2
0
8
-
3
4
3
-
4
6
3
5
 
 
F

A
X

:
 
2
0
8
-
3
4
3
-
1
8
5
8

B
O

I
S

E
,
 
I
D

A
H

O

2
0
0
 
B

R
O

A
D

 
S

T
R

E
E

T

BID SET
05/09/18



T
H

E
S

E
 
D

R
A

W
I
N

G
S

 
A

N
D

 
S

P
E

C
I
F

I
C

A
T

I
O

N
S

,
 
A

S
 
I
N

S
T

R
U

M
E

N
T

S

O
F

 
S

E
R

V
I
C

E
,
 
A

R
E

 
A

N
D

 
S

H
A

L
L
 
R

E
M

A
I
N

 
T

H
E

 
P

R
O

P
E

R
T

Y
 
O

F

T
H

E
 
A

R
C

H
I
T

E
C

T
 
/
 
E

N
G

I
N

E
E

R
 
W

H
E

T
H

E
R

 
T

H
E

 
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

 
F

O
R

W
H

I
C

H
 
T

H
E

Y
 
A

R
E

 
M

A
D

E
 
I
S

 
E

X
E

C
U

T
E

D
 
O

R
 
N

O
T

.
 
T

H
E

S
E

D
R

A
W

I
N

G
S

 
A

N
D

 
S

P
E

C
I
F

I
C

A
T

I
O

N
S

 
S

H
A

L
L
 
N

O
T

 
B

E
 
U

S
E

D
 
B

Y

A
N

Y
 
P

E
R

S
O

N
 
O

R
 
E

N
T

I
T

Y
 
O

N
 
O

T
H

E
R

 
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
,
 
F

O
R

A
D

D
I
T

I
O

N
S

 
T

O
 
T

H
I
S

 
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

,
 
O

R
 
C

O
M

P
L
E

T
I
O

N
 
O

F
 
T

H
I
S

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

-
W

H
E

N
 
P

H
A

S
E

D
-
W

I
T

H
O

U
T

 
T

H
E

 
W

R
I
T

T
E

N
 
C

O
N

S
E

N
T

O
F

 
C

S
H

Q
A

 
O

R
 
I
T

S
 
A

F
F

I
L
I
A

T
E

S
.

B
O

I
S

E
,
 
I
D

 
 
8

3
7

0
2

(
2

0
8

)
 
3

4
3

-
4

6
3

5
 
 
 
 
F

A
X

 
(
2

0
8

)
 
3

4
3

-
1

8
5

8

2
0

0
 
B

R
O

A
D

 
S

T
R

E
E

T

w
w

w
.
c
s
h

q
a

.
c
o

m

C
o
p
y
r
i
g
h
t
 
 
 
2
0
1
8

P
H

O
N

E
:
 
2
0
8
-
3
4
3
-
4
6
3
5
 
 
F

A
X

:
 
2
0
8
-
3
4
3
-
1
8
5
8

B
O

I
S

E
,
 
I
D

A
H

O

2
0
0
 
B

R
O

A
D

 
S

T
R

E
E

T

DEEPROOT UB 18-2
ROOT BARRIERS

(OR APPROVED EQUAL)

BID SET
05/09/18



T
H

E
S

E
 
D

R
A

W
I
N

G
S

 
A

N
D

 
S

P
E

C
I
F

I
C

A
T

I
O

N
S

,
 
A

S
 
I
N

S
T

R
U

M
E

N
T

S

O
F

 
S

E
R

V
I
C

E
,
 
A

R
E

 
A

N
D

 
S

H
A

L
L
 
R

E
M

A
I
N

 
T

H
E

 
P

R
O

P
E

R
T

Y
 
O

F

T
H

E
 
A

R
C

H
I
T

E
C

T
 
/
 
E

N
G

I
N

E
E

R
 
W

H
E

T
H

E
R

 
T

H
E

 
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

 
F

O
R

W
H

I
C

H
 
T

H
E

Y
 
A

R
E

 
M

A
D

E
 
I
S

 
E

X
E

C
U

T
E

D
 
O

R
 
N

O
T

.
 
T

H
E

S
E

D
R

A
W

I
N

G
S

 
A

N
D

 
S

P
E

C
I
F

I
C

A
T

I
O

N
S

 
S

H
A

L
L
 
N

O
T

 
B

E
 
U

S
E

D
 
B

Y

A
N

Y
 
P

E
R

S
O

N
 
O

R
 
E

N
T

I
T

Y
 
O

N
 
O

T
H

E
R

 
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
,
 
F

O
R

A
D

D
I
T

I
O

N
S

 
T

O
 
T

H
I
S

 
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

,
 
O

R
 
C

O
M

P
L
E

T
I
O

N
 
O

F
 
T

H
I
S

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

-
W

H
E

N
 
P

H
A

S
E

D
-
W

I
T

H
O

U
T

 
T

H
E

 
W

R
I
T

T
E

N
 
C

O
N

S
E

N
T

O
F

 
C

S
H

Q
A

 
O

R
 
I
T

S
 
A

F
F

I
L
I
A

T
E

S
.

B
O

I
S

E
,
 
I
D

 
 
8

3
7

0
2

(
2

0
8

)
 
3

4
3

-
4

6
3

5
 
 
 
 
F

A
X

 
(
2

0
8

)
 
3

4
3

-
1

8
5

8

2
0

0
 
B

R
O

A
D

 
S

T
R

E
E

T

w
w

w
.
c
s
h

q
a

.
c
o

m

C
o
p
y
r
i
g
h
t
 
 
 
2
0
1
8

P
H

O
N

E
:
 
2
0
8
-
3
4
3
-
4
6
3
5
 
 
F

A
X

:
 
2
0
8
-
3
4
3
-
1
8
5
8

B
O

I
S

E
,
 
I
D

A
H

O

2
0
0
 
B

R
O

A
D

 
S

T
R

E
E

T

BID SET
05/09/18



BID SET
05/09/18



BID SET
05/09/18



BID SET
05/09/18



BID SET
05/09/18



Page 1 
 

 

 

 

AGENDA BILL 

 

Agenda Subject: 
Resolution No. 1554 Westside Downtown Urban Park Master 
Development Agreement  

Date: 
June 11, 2018 
 

Staff Contact: 
Doug Woodruff 
 

Attachments: 
Resolution No. 1554 which includes the Master 
Development Agreement  
 
 

Action Requested: 
Adopt Resolution No. 1554 approving the Westside Downtown Urban Park Master 
Development Agreement  

 
 
Background: 
If approved and subsequently executed by all parties, the Master Development Agreement 
(MDA) sets forth the Agency’s ability to create a public urban park in the Westside Downtown 
urban renewal district.  
 
The proposed project site was identified and the associated agreements were negotiated in 
response to a myriad of public interests. These public interests include: 
 

• A need identified by the public in the City’s Downtown Parks and Public Spaces Master 
Plan for a public open space in this neighborhood. 
 

• Shifting land use is trending toward residential infill in this area. A public space within 
walking distance of these new downtown residents is needed.  

 

• 11th Street and Bannock Street are important bicycle corridors to which a public space 
with bicycle amenities would be beneficial. 

 

• CCDC owned real estate within walking distance of the project site has potential for 
redevelopment of uses that will both complement and utilize this public park. 

 

• The park site is surrounded by surface parking lots that detract from downtown’s 
vibrancy, walkability and economic vitality.  Making this public investment will catalyze 
private investment in housing, dining, office, and neighborhood services next to and near 
the public park.  



Page 2 
 

 
Master Development Agreement 
CCDC, City, and Eleven Eleven West Jefferson LLC (“Eleven Eleven”) have negotiated the 
terms of Agency’s participation in the construction of the Park and have draft a Master 
Development Agreement (the “Master Agreement”).  It addresses the City’s sublease of the 
Site, the ongoing maintenance and operation of the Project, parking needs for the park, the 
process to select a final design of the Project, and the construction and funding for the Project. 
 
Eleven Eleven leases the half block of real property that fronts 12th Street, Bannock Street, and 
11th Street.  That lease expires September 30, 2058.  Eleven Eleven intends to sublease an 
approximate two-thirds portion (0.56 acres) of the Site to the City of Boise to be used as a public 
park. Refer to the “Park Parcel” on the included map. The sublease of the Park Parcel will 
expire by its own terms September 30, 2058.   
 
 

 
 
 

Eleven Eleven and the City have also negotiated a joint use agreement of the “Parking Parcel,” 
as depicted on the included map, to provide private visitor parking for Eleven Eleven’s adjacent 
property Boise Plaza during business hours, and to provide public parking every evening and 
weekend.  It also includes provision for occassional public event use of the Parking Parcel 
during business hours.   
 
The process to select the final design includes a key stakeholder working group composed of 
public and private parties.  A public open house is scheduled on Boise Plaza’s terrace on June 
14, 2018 from 5 to 7:30pm to gather input from the general public.  Property owners and 
residents within a half mile radius of the park were notified two weeks in advance. After public 
input has been collected, a preferred design concept will be prepared and then presented to the 
Agency, the Parks Commission, and City Council for approval later this summer.  
 
CCDC is responsible for design, public engagement, and construction of the park.  City of Boise 
Parks and Recreation department is responsible for the ongoing ownership, operation, and 



Page 3 
 

maintenance of the public park.  Eleven Eleven is responsible for the ongoing ownership, 
operation, and maintenance of the parking lot.   
 
 
Fiscal Notes: 
The total project budget for the Westside Downtown Urban Park (the “Westside Park”) is 
$3,030,000.  This includes all planning, design, soft costs, and construction costs.   
 
The Agency’s FY2018 approved budget includes $2,000,000 for the Westside Park project.  The 
City of Boise agrees to contribute $1,000,000 to the Westside Park project per the terms of the 
Type 4 Participation Agreement.  Eleven Eleven West Jefferson LLC agrees to contribute 
$30,000 to the Westside Park project per the terms of the Master Development Agreement.   
 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. 1554.  
 
 

Suggested Motion: 
I move to Adopt Resolution No. 1554 approving the Westside Downtown Urban Park Master 
Development Agreement. 

 

 



RESOLUTION NO. 1554 - 1  

RESOLUTION NO.  1554 
 
BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF 
BOISE CITY, IDAHO:   
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF 
THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY, IDAHO, 
APPROVING THE MASTER DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE AGENCY, ELEVEN ELEVEN WEST 
JEFFERSON, LLC, AND THE CITY OF BOISE; 
AUTHORIZING THE CHAIRMAN, VICE-CHAIRMAN, OR 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO EXECUTE THE AGREEMENT 
AND ANY NECESSARY DOCUMENTS, SUBJECT TO 
CERTAIN CONTINGENCIES; AUTHORIZING ANY 
TECHNICAL CORRECTIONS TO THE AGREEMENT; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.   

 
 THIS RESOLUTION is made on the date hereinafter set forth by the Urban 
Renewal Agency of Boise City, Idaho, an independent public body, corporate and 
politic, authorized under the authority of the Idaho Urban Renewal Law of 1965, as 
amended, Chapter 20, Title 50, Idaho Code, a duly created and functioning urban 
renewal agency for Boise City, Idaho (hereinafter referred to as the “Agency”);   
 
 WHEREAS, the Agency, a public body, corporate and politic, is an urban renewal 
agency created by and existing under the authority of and pursuant to the Idaho Urban 
Renewal Law of 1965, being Idaho Code, Title 50, Chapter 20, and the Local Economic 
Development Act, being Idaho Code, Title 50, Chapter 29, as amended and 
supplemented for the purpose of financing the undertaking of any urban renewal project 
(collectively the "Act"); 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Boise City, Idaho (“City”), after notice duly published, 
conducted a public hearing on the Westside Downtown Urban Renewal Plan (the 
“Westside Plan”); 
 

WHEREAS, following said hearing, the City adopted its Ordinance No. 6108 on 
December 4, 2001, approving the Westside Plan and making certain findings; 
 

WHEREAS, Eleven Eleven West Jefferson, LLC (“Eleven Eleven”), leases 
certain real property (the “Site”) located in the Westside Urban Renewal District 
(“Westside District”), as created by the Westside Plan;   

 
WHEREAS, the term of Eleven Eleven’s lease of the Site expires September 30, 

2058; 
 
WHEREAS, Eleven Eleven intends on leasing a portion of the Site to City to be 

used as a City urban park for the benefit of the public (the “Project”); 



RESOLUTION NO. 1554 - 2  

 
WHEREAS, Agency, City, and Eleven Eleven have negotiated the terms of 

Agency’s participation in the construction of the Project and have draft a Master 
Development Agreement (the “Master Agreement”) that addresses the process to select 
a final design of the Project, the City’s lease of the Site, the ongoing maintenance and 
operation of the Project, parking needs for the park, Agency’s rights to cure any defaults 
of the agreements between City and Eleven Eleven, and the construction and funding 
for the Project;  
 

WHEREAS, the Agency has determined that it is in the public interest to enter 
into the Master Agreement with City and Eleven Eleven whereby Agency will design and 
construct the Project with participation from both City and Eleven Eleven;  
 
 WHEREAS, attached hereto as Attachment 1, and incorporated herein as if set 
forth in full, is the Master Agreement with City and Eleven Eleven, and exhibits thereto;    
 
 WHEREAS, the Agency deems it appropriate to approve the Agreement; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners finds it in the best public interest to 
approve the Master Agreement and to authorize the Chairman, Vice-Chairman or 
Executive Director to execute the Master Agreement; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE BOARD 
OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY, 
IDAHO, AS FOLLOWS:   
 
 
 Section 1: That the above statements are true and correct. 
 
 Section 2: That the Master Agreement, which is attached hereto as 
Attachment 1 and incorporated herein by reference, is hereby approved. 
 
 Section 3: That the Chairman, Vice-Chairman, or Executive Director of the 
Agency are hereby authorized to sign and enter into the Master Agreement on behalf of 
the Agency and to execute all necessary documents required to implement the actions 
contemplated by the Master Agreement, subject to representations by the Agency staff 
and the Agency legal counsel that all conditions precedent to such actions have been 
met; and further, any necessary technical changes to the Agreement or other 
documents are acceptable, upon advice from the Agency’s legal counsel that said 
changes are consistent with the provisions of the Agreement and the comments and 
discussions received at the June 11, 2018, Agency Board meeting; the Agency is 
further authorized to appropriate any and all funds contemplated by the Master 
Agreement and to perform any and all other duties required pursuant to said Master 
Agreement. 
 
 Section 4: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately 



RESOLUTION NO. 1554 - 3  

upon its adoption and approval.   
 
 PASSED by the Urban Renewal Agency of Boise City, Idaho, on June 11, 2018.  
Signed by the Chairman of the Board of Commissioners, and attested by the Secretary 
to the Board of Commissioners, on June 11, 2018.   
       

APPROVED:   
 
 
      By                                                             
             Chairman 
ATTEST: 
By                                                   
       Secretary 
 
 
4840-6711-9663, v.  1 



MASTER DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT- PAGE - 1  

MASTER DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
 

THIS MASTER DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is effective the date last 
indicated below and entered into between Eleven Eleven West Jefferson LLC, an Idaho limited 
liability company (“Developer”), The Urban Renewal Agency of Boise City, Idaho, also known as 
Capital City Development Corporation, an independent public body corporate and politic, 
organized under the laws of the state of Idaho (“Agency”), and the city of Boise City, an Idaho 
municipal corporation (“City”) (collectively, the “Parties”). 

 
RECITALS 

 
Developer leases certain property (the “Property”) described in Exhibit A, incorporated 

herein by reference, which is currently used for surface parking, pursuant to a Lease Agreement, 
dated June 3, 1968, with Developer, as tenant, and Rudolph Investments, Inc., as landlord 
(“Rudolph”). 

 
Developer, City, and Agency desire to construct a public park (to be referred to herein as 

the “Westside Downtown Urban Park” or “Westside Park”) on a portion of the Property for the 
use and enjoyment of the public and to improve the current parking facilities located on the 
remaining portion of the Property (collectively, such construction and improvements, the 
“Project”). 

 
Public parks add to the vibrancy of downtown Boise, provide amenities to the public, help 

to foster adjacent economic growth, create a pedestrian and bicycle friendly atmosphere, and 
benefit the public. 

 
The Parties have agreed it to be in the best interest of the Parties and the public to 

redevelop the Property as a public park and private parking on the terms and conditions set forth 
herein. 

 
AGREEMENT 

 
The Parties do hereby enter into this Agreement to memorialize their respective duties, 

rights and obligations related to the redevelopment of the Property for the purposes set forth 
herein. 

 
 

1. Purpose. The purpose of this Agreement is to memorialize the Parties’ agreement 
concerning (i) the sublease of a portion of the Property (the “Public Park Parcel”) from Developer 
by the City, (ii) the construction of approved improvements to develop a public park on the Public 
Park Parcel (the “Park Improvements”) and approved parking improvements on the Private 
Parcel (the “Parking Lot Improvements”), (iii) the design and approval of the Park Improvements 
and Parking Lot Improvements to be constructed by Agency on the Parcels; (iv) the construction 
of streetscape improvements on the adjacent public rights of way, and (v) the use and 



MASTER DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT- PAGE - 2  

maintenance of the Parcels by the Parties. Public Park Parcel and Private Parcel are identified and 
generally depicted on Exhibit B and may be referred to herein collectively as the “Parcels”. The 
Parties agree to amend this Agreement to attach the final legal descriptions of the Public Park 
Parcel and Private Parcel upon the Subdivision (described in Section 3). 

 
2. Documents. To facilitate the development of the Project as set forth herein, the 

Parties have agreed to the form of the following documents (“Project Documents”): 
 

a. T4 Participation Agreement. City and Agency shall execute the T4 
Participation Agreement substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit C. Developer has no 
obligations under the T4 Participation Agreement. 

 
b. Sublease. City and Developer shall execute the agreement substantially in 

the form attached hereto as Exhibit D (the “Sublease”), relating to and providing for the sublease 
of Public Park Parcel to City from Developer. Agency has no obligations under the Sublease, but 
does have a right to cure any tenant default as set forth in the Sublease. 

 
c. Park and the Parking Lot Maintenance Agreement. City and Developer 

shall execute the agreement substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit E (the “Joint Use 
and Maintenance Agreement”), relating to and providing for the use maintenance of the Parcels. 
Agency has no obligations under Joint Use and Maintenance Agreement, but does have a right to 
cure any City default as set forth in the Joint Use and Maintenance Agreement. 

 
The Parties acknowledge that the Project Documents are an important part of the development, 
design, and construction of the Project and hereby incorporate the Project Documents into this 
Agreement. In addition to the Parties' respective duties, rights, and obligations found in this 
Agreement, the Project Documents set forth additional duties, rights and obligations associated 
with the development, design, and construction of the Project. The duties, rights and obligations 
in the Project Documents have equal force as those duties, rights and obligations found in this 
Agreement. 

 
3. Parcel Split. The Property is currently one parcel, Ada County Tax Parcel No. 

R1013003153. Prior to the Commencement of Construction (defined below), Agency or the City, 
at their sole cost and expense will cause the Property to be subdivided into two separate taxable 
parcels (corresponding with Public Park Parcel and Private Parcel) (the “Subdivision”). Developer 
agrees to assist Agency or City in obtaining the necessary approvals from Rudolph to file the 
application and complete the Subdivision. 

 
4. Park Design. 

 
a. Stakeholder Working Group. All parties shall in good faith participate in a 

three-part workshop (“Workshop”) with Agency’s design consultants to develop a “Final Design 



MASTER DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT- PAGE - 3  

Concept.” The Final Design Concept shall be agreed upon and approved by the Parties within 
ninety (90) days of the Effective Date. The approval process shall substantially be as follows: 

 
i. At the conclusion of the Workshop, Developer will either provide 

written approval of the Final Design Concept or, if Developer does not 
approve of the Final Concept Design, provide written notice of 
termination of this Agreement 

ii. Upon Agency’s receipt of Developer’s written notice of approval of the 
Final Design Concept, Agency shall consider approval of the Final 
Design at a regularly scheduled or special meeting of the Agency’s 
Board of Commissioners. 

iii. Upon the Agency’s Board of Commissioner’s approval of the Final 
Concept Design, the Final Concept Design shall be submitted to Boise 
City Design Review (“Design Review”) for review and approval by 
Design Review. Any substantial changes requested by Design Review 
must be approved by Agency and Developer. 

iv. Upon approval of the Final Concept Design by Design Review, the City’s 
Parks and Recreation Department will consider recommending 
approval of the Final Concept Design approved by Design Review to the 
Boise City Council. 

v. Upon Parks & Rec’s recommendation for approval of the Final Concept 
Design, City Council shall consider approval of the Final Concept 
Design. 

vi. Upon approval of the Final Concept Design by the City Council, the 
Parties shall have approved the Final Concept Design. 

 
In the event the conditions set forth in 4(a)(ii)-(vi) are not satisfied, this Agreement shall 
terminate and be of no further force effect, unless otherwise agreed to by the Parties. 

 
b. Final Concept Design. The Final Concept Design shall include a narrative 

description of the Project, statement of any proposed phasing, a critical path analysis identifying 
key milestones in the planning and construction stages for the Project, an estimate for Project 
construction and design costs (including any construction management fees for any design 
professionals), and an estimated Project construction schedule. 

 
The Final Concept Design, once approved by the Parties, shall not be subject to 

subsequent disapproval unless substantial changes to the Final Concept Design are required by 
Design Review or substantial changes are proposed by Agency, at which time the approval 
process shall be re-started among the Parties as noted below. 

 
For purposes of this section, and this section only, a “substantial change” is defined as any 

change in the Final Concept Design that changes the circulation patterns of the Park 
Improvements and the Parking Lot Improvements, changes the ratio of green space in relation to 
hardscape in the Park or Parking Lot, materially changes the function of or use of features of the 



MASTER DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT- PAGE - 4  

Park, or reduces the parking counts on the Private Parcel below thirty-two (32) stalls which 
includes two (2) ADA parking stalls. Changes that would not be considered “substantial” are 
changes to building materials or landscaping materials (plants, trees, etc.), changes to concept 
plan and park features required to meet civil, mechanical, electrical, or structural engineering 
standards; changes to plans required to obtain building permits for construction; adjustments to 
concept plan or use features to improve constructability, durability, or cost effectiveness; or 
similar immaterial changes so long as such changes would not require a re-submittal to Design 
Review. 

The Final Concept Design shall be used by Agency (through its selected design 
professional) to draft the technical drawings and construction plans to be provided to the 
contractor selected to construct the Project. 

 
c. Revised Design Concept. In the event that after the Final Design Concept 

is agreed to by all parties, a substantial change is desired by any party, Agency shall provide City 
and Developer, for their approval, the revised Final Concept Design (the “Revised Design”) and a 
narrative indicating how the Revised Design differs from the previously approved design. If the 
City or Developer fails to either approve or disapprove of the Revised Design within ten (10) days 
after receipt, said non-responding Party will be deemed to have approved the Revised Design. 
Any disapproval shall state in writing the reasons for disapproval and the requested changes. 
Agency upon receipt of a disapproval shall either (1) revise such plans, drawings, and related 
documents (or such portions thereof) and resubmit them to the Parties as soon as possible after 
receipt of the notice of disapproval for review and approval as set forth in this subsection, or (2) 
respond to the Parties that no changes to the Final Concept Design will be made if the Parties do 
not agree to the such changes. 

 
5. Costs of Construction and Payment of Obligations. Upon completion and 

approval of the Final Concept Design, the Parties shall contribute the following amounts on the 
stated terms and conditions: 

 
a. Agency agrees to pay up to Two Million Dollars for the design and construction 

of the Project. 
 

b. City agrees to pay up to One Million Dollars which shall be used by Agency to 
assist in the payment for the design and construction of the Project, payable 
according to the T4 Agreement between Agency and the City. 

 
c. Upon approval of the Final Concept Design by Design Review, Developer 

agrees to pay up to $30,000 which shall be used by Agency to assist in the 
payment for a portion of the design and construction of the Parking Lot 
Improvements upon Developer’ approval the materials and improvements to 
be installed as part of the Parking Lot Improvements. 



MASTER DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT- PAGE - 5  

Agency’s obligations to construct Park Improvements and the Parking Lot Improvements are 
expressly conditioned on both City and Developer meeting their respective payment 
obligations under this Section. 

 
6. Construction of Park Improvements and the Parking Lot Improvements. 

 

a. Agency Obligations for Construction. Agency shall be responsible for the 
following: 

 

i. Construction of the Project as depicted on the Final Concept Design. 
 

ii. Management of the construction of Project. Agency shall enter into a 
contract for the construction of Project with a properly licensed 
general contractor. 

 
iii. Obtaining all building permits and necessary government approvals for 

the construction of the Project, provided the City and Developer agree 
to assist Agency as necessary to obtain such permits and approvals. 

 
b. Preliminary Commencement and Completion Schedule 

 
i. Construction of the Project shall commence within seven (7) days of 

the effective date of the Sublease. 
 

ii. Construction of the Project shall be completed no later than seven (7) 
months after the Commencement of Construction. 

 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Parking Lot Improvements will be completed within sixty (60) 
days after the Commencement Date of the Sublease unless otherwise agreed by the Parties. 

 
“Commencement of Construction” shall mean issuance of a building permit for the Project and 
start of excavation. 

 
“Completion of Construction” shall mean the date the Agency issues the Agency’s contractor a 
Certificate of Substantial Completion for the Project and the Park Parcel has been released to City 
and the Parking Parcel has been released to Developer. 

 
7. Use and Maintenance. Following completion of construction of Project, the 

operation and maintenance of Project shall be as set forth in Joint Use and Maintenance 
Agreement. 

 
8. Design and Construction Plan Ownership. Agency shall own the Initial Designs 

Concept, the Final Concept Design, and the technical drawings and construction plans for Project 



MASTER DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT- PAGE - 6  

(collectively the “Plans”). Agency shall provide a non-revocable license for the Plans to the City 
and Developer, which shall be limited to use of the Plans in connection with the operation, 
maintenance, repair, and replacement of Westside Park and the Parking Lot, as applicable, but 
may not otherwise be used for purposes unrelated to the Project. 

 
9. Assignment of Warranties. Upon completion of construction of Bannock Park, 

Agency shall assign (to the extent such assignment will not invalidate such warranty) any 
warranties for the work performed by Agency’s general contractor and subcontractors and 
material suppliers with respect to Westside Park to the City. Upon completion of construction of 
the Parking Lot Improvements, Agency shall assign (to the extent such assignment will not 
invalidate such warranty) any warranties for the work performed by Agency’s general contractor 
and subcontractors and material suppliers with respect to the Parking Lot Improvements to 
Developer. 

 
In the event any warranty is not assignable or the assignment or would invalidate or reduce the 
scope of any warranty, Agency shall enforce, for the benefit of the City or Developer, as 
applicable, at the benefited Party’s sole cost and expense the non-assigned warranties. Agency 
shall provide the City and Developer with copies of all applicable non-assigned warranties. No 
Party shall take any action, which to the Party’s actual knowledge, shall invalidate any of the 
warranties and shall provide the other Party’s with written notice of all warranty claims. Each 
Party will notify the other Parties as soon as reasonably practicable following actual discovery of 
any potential problems which may be covered by a warranty, but no delay in providing such 
notice shall affect or limit the enforcement of any warranty. 

 
10. Insurance Obligations 

 
With respect to the construction of the Project, Agency shall, or through its contractors, obtain 
and maintain in force insurance of the following types, with limits not less than those set forth 
below with respect to the Project, and with the following requirements: 

 
a. Commercial General Liability Insurance (Occurrence Form) with a 

minimum combined single limit liability of $2,000,000 each occurrence for bodily injury 
and property damage; with a minimum limit of liability of $2,000,000 each person for 
personal and advertising injury liability. Such policy shall have an aggregate 
products/completed operations liability limit of not less than $2,000,000 and a general 
aggregate limit of not less than $2,000,000. The products/completed operations liability 
coverage shall be maintained in full force and effect for not less than two (2) years 
following Final Completion of the Project. All policies shall be occurrence form policies 
and not a claims-made policy. 

 
b. Workers’ Compensation Insurance, including occupational illness or 

disease coverage, in accordance with the laws of the nation, state, territory, or province 
having jurisdiction over Developer’s employees, and Employer’s Liability Insurance with 



MASTER DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT- PAGE - 7  

minimum limits as required by law. Agency shall not utilize occupational accident or 
health insurance policies, or the equivalent, in lieu of mandatory Workers’ Compensation 
Insurance or otherwise attempt to opt out of the statutory Workers’ Compensation 
system. 

 
c. Automobile Liability Insurance covering use of all, non-owned, and hired 

automobiles with a minimum combined single limit of liability for bodily injury and 
property damage of $1,000,000 per occurrence. 

 
All insurance provided under this Agreement shall include a waiver of subrogation by the insurers 
in favor of the other Parties. Developer hereby releases Agency, including its respective affiliates, 
directors, and employees, for losses or claims for bodily injury, property damage, or other insured 
claims arising out of Agency’s performance under this Agreement or construction of the Project 
to the extent such losses or claims are covered by an applicable insurance policy. Agency hereby 
releases Developer, including its respective affiliates, directors, and employees, for losses or 
claims for bodily injury, property damage, or other insured claims arising out of Developer’s 
performance under this Agreement or construction of the Project to the extent such losses or 
claims are covered by an applicable insurance policy. Agency (or its contractors) shall name 
Developer and City as loss payees and additional insured by endorsement to the CGL and 
Automobile Liability policies. 

 
All policies of insurance required by this Agreement shall be issued by insurance companies with 
a financial strength rating of A (or equivalent ratings if such are changed) as rated in the most 
current available “Best’s Insurance Reports” and qualified to do business in the State of Idaho. 

 
11. Indemnification. 

 
To the fullest extent permitted by law, Developer, either through itself or others, shall indemnify 
and hold harmless Agency, City and their respective officers, directors, board members, 
members, consultants, agents and employees (the "Indemnitees") from all claims for bodily 
injury and property damage, other than property insured, including reasonable attorneys' fees, 
costs and expenses, that may arise from the performance of Developer’s obligations under this 
Agreement, but only to the extent caused by the negligent or intentional acts or omissions of 
Developer or anyone employed directly or indirectly by Developer or by anyone for whose acts 
Developer may be liable. Developer shall not be required to indemnify or hold harmless the 
Indemnitees for any negligent acts or omissions of the Indemnitees. 

 
To the fullest extent permitted by law, Agency shall indemnify and hold harmless Developer, its 
officers, directors or members, contractors, subcontractors or anyone employed directly or 
indirectly by any of them, from all claims for bodily injury and property damage, other than 
property insured, including reasonable attorneys' fees, costs and expenses, but only to the extent 
caused by the negligent or intentional acts or omissions of Agency; provided, however, that 
nothing in the foregoing or elsewhere in this Agreement is intended, nor may it be construed 



MASTER DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT- PAGE - 8  

to increase the limits of liability of Agency as capped by the Idaho Tort Claims Act (Idaho Code § 
6-901 through § 6-929), or to otherwise lessen the protections afforded Agency under said Act. 
Agency shall be entitled to reimbursement of any defense costs paid above Agency's percentage 
of liability for the underlying claim to the extent provided for by the subsection above. 

 
To the fullest extent permitted by law, City shall indemnify and hold harmless Developer, its 
officers, directors or members, contractors, subcontractors or anyone employed directly or 
indirectly by any of them, from all claims for bodily injury and property damage, other than 
property insured, including reasonable attorneys' fees, costs and expenses, but only to the extent 
caused by the negligent or intentional acts or omissions of City; provided, however, that nothing 
in the foregoing or elsewhere in this Agreement is intended, nor may it be construed to increase 
the limits of liability of City as capped by the Idaho Tort Claims Act (Idaho Code § 6-901 through 
§ 6-929), or to otherwise lessen the protections afforded City under said Act. City shall be entitled 
to reimbursement of any defense costs paid above Agency's percentage of liability for the 
underlying claim to the extent provided for by the subsection above. 

 
12. Construction Staging. The Private Parcel may not be used for construction staging 

for the construction of the Project. 
 

13. Right to Complete Construction. In the event Agency defaults on its obligation to 
construct Project after the Commencement of Construction on Project, Developer may complete 
the construction of Park Improvements at its own cost and expense. In the event Developer elects 
to complete the construction of Westside Park, the Sublease shall automatically terminate and 
Developer shall have no right to seek reimbursement from Agency or City for the costs Developer 
incurred in constructing Park Improvements. 

 
Alternatively, if Agency defaults on its obligation to construct the Project after the 

Commencement of Construction on the Project, Developer may elect to not complete 
construction of Park Improvements and the Parking Lot Improvements. In such case, Agency 
shall, at its cost and expense, return the Public Park Parcel and the Private Parcel to substantially 
the same condition as existed prior to the commencement of any construction, at which time the 
Sublease shall automatically terminate and Developer shall have no right to seek reimbursement 
from Agency or City for any costs or damages arising out of this Agreement, subject to Section 
11. 

 
14. Termination. If the construction of Park Improvements by either Agency or 

Agency’s contractors does not commence by December 31, 2019, this Agreement shall 
automatically terminate and the Sublease shall automatically terminate, and be of no further 
force or effect other than any terms that survive expiration or termination of the Sublease. 

 
15. Effect of Termination. In the event this Agreement is terminated as set forth in 

Section 15, no Party to this Agreement shall have any further obligations to the others arising 



MASTER DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT- PAGE - 9  

under the terms of this Agreement other than the indemnification obligations set forth in Section 
11. 

 
16. Forced Delay. Neither Agency nor any successor in interest to Agency shall be 

considered in breach or default of its obligations with respect the Commencement of 
Construction and Completion of Construction of the Project, in the event of forced delay in the 
performance of such obligations due to unforeseeable causes beyond its control and without its 
fault or negligence, including: war; insurrection; strikes; lock-outs; riots; floods; earthquakes; 
fires; casualties; acts of God; acts of the public enemy; epidemics; quarantine restrictions; freight 
embargoes; lack of transportation; lack of materials or labor at commercially reasonable prices 
or in commercially reasonable quantities; adverse economic conditions; governmental 
restrictions or priority; litigation; unusually severe weather; acts of another party; environmental 
analysis, or removal of hazardous or toxic substances; acts or the failure to act of any public or 
governmental agency or entity (except that acts or the failure to act of Agency shall not excuse 
performance by Agency); or any other causes beyond the control or without the fault of Agency. 
The time for the performance of the obligations shall be extended for the period of delay, as 
mutually determined by the Parties, if Agency shall request it in writing of the other Parties within 
thirty (30) days after the beginning of the forced delay. Times of performance under this 
Agreement may also be extended in writing by Agency, City, and Developer. 

 
17. Dispute Resolution. In the event that a dispute arises between the Parties 

regarding application or interpretation of any provision of this Agreement, the aggrieved Party 
shall promptly notify the other Party to this Agreement of the dispute within ten (10) days after 
such dispute arises. If the Parties shall have failed to resolve the dispute within thirty (30) days 
after delivery of such notice, the Parties may first endeavor to settle the dispute in an amicable 
manner by mediation. If the Parties elect to mediate their dispute, the Parties will select a 
mediator by mutual agreement and agree to each pay half of the mediator’s costs and fees. The 
mediation will take place in Boise, Idaho unless otherwise agreed by the Parties in writing. Should 
the Parties be unable to resolve the dispute to their mutual satisfaction within thirty (30) days 
after such completion of mediation, each Party shall have the right to pursue any rights or 
remedies it may have at law or in equity. If the Parties do not mutually agree to mediate the 
dispute, either Party may pursue any rights or remedies it may have at law. 

 
18. Notice. All notices given pursuant to this Agreement shall be in writing and shall 

be given by personal service, by United States mail, or by United States express mail or other 
established express delivery service (such as Federal Express), postage or delivery charge prepaid, 
addressed to the appropriate party at the address set forth below: 

 
Agency: John Brunelle, Executive Director 

Capital City Development Corporation 
121 N. 9th Street, Suite 501 
Boise, Idaho 83701 



MASTER DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT- PAGE - 10  

With a copy to: Elam & Burke 
ATTN: Matt Parks 
251 E. Front Street, Suite 300 
P.O. Box 1539 
Boise, Idaho 83701 

 
Developer: Eleven Eleven West Jefferson, LLC 

ATTN: Scott Schoenherr 
702 W. Idaho Street, Suite 825 
Boise, Idaho 83702-8905 

With a copy to: Varin Wardwell LLC 
ATTN: Anne C. Kunkel 
242 North 8th Street, Suite 220 
Boise, Idaho 83702 

 
City: Boise City Parks and Recreation Department 

ATTN: Director 
1104 W. Royal Boulevard 
Boise, Idaho 83706 

With a copy to: Boise City Attorney’s Office 
ATTN: Parks & Recreation Attorney 
150 N. Capitol Boulevard 
P.O. Box 500 
Boise, Idaho 83701-0500 

 
The person and address to which notices are to be given may be changed at any time by any party 
upon written notice to the other party. All notices given pursuant to this Agreement shall be 
deemed given upon receipt. 

 
19. General Provisions. 

 
a. Attorneys’ Fees. In the event either party initiates or defends any legal 

action or proceeding in any way connected with this Agreement, the prevailing party in any such 
action or proceeding (in addition to any other relief which may be granted, whether legal or 
equitable), shall be entitled to recover from the losing party in any such action or proceeding its 
reasonable costs and attorneys’ fees (including, without limitation, its reasonable costs and 
attorneys’ fees on any appeal). All such costs and attorneys’ fees shall be deemed to have accrued 
on commencement of any legal action or proceeding and shall be enforceable whether or not 
such legal action or proceeding is prosecuted to judgment. 

 
b. Applicable Law. The laws of the State of Idaho shall govern the 

interpretation and enforcement of this Agreement. 



MASTER DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT- PAGE - 11  

c. Not a Partnership. The provisions of this Agreement are not intended to 
create, nor shall they in any way be interpreted or construed to create, a joint venture, 
partnership, or any other similar relationship between the parties. 

 
d. No Third Party Beneficiary Rights. This Agreement is not intended to 

create, nor shall it in any way be interpreted or construed to create, any third party beneficiary 
rights in any person not a party hereto. 

 
e. Successors and Assigns. The terms, covenants, conditions and agreements 

contained herein shall be binding upon, and inure to the benefit of the heirs, personal 
representatives, successors and assigns of the parties hereto. In no event shall this Agreement 
be assignable by any Party without the other Parties’ consent, which consent shall not be 
unreasonably withheld. 

 
f. Modification. This Agreement shall not be modified without the written 

agreement of all of the parties hereto. 
 

g. Entire Agreement. This Agreement contains the entire agreement 
between the parties hereto and supersedes all prior agreements, oral or written, with respect to 
the subject matter hereof. The provisions of this Agreement shall be construed as a whole and 
not strictly for or against any party. 

 
[end of text] 



MASTER DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT- PAGE - 12  

EXECUTED and EFFECTIVE as of the date last set forth below. 
 

The Urban Renewal Agency of Boise City, Idaho, 
also known as Capital City Development Corporation 

 
By:  
Chairperson 
  , 2018 

 
Attest: 

 

Secretary 
 

City of Boise 
 

By:  
Its:    
  , 2018 

 
Attest: 

 

Secretary 
 
 

Eleven Eleven West Jefferson LLC 
 

  . 
By: Scott Schoenherr 
Its Manager 
  , 2018 

 
 
 

SCHEDULE OF EXHIBITS 
 

Exhibit A – Legal Description of the Property 
Exhibit B – Depiction of the Property, including the Park Parcel and Parking Parcel 
Exhibit C – Form of T4 Participation Agreement 
Exhibit D – Form of Sublease 
Exhibit E – Form of Joint Use and Maintenance Agreement 



MASTER DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT- EX. A. PAGE - 1  

Exhibit A – Legal Description of the Property 
 
 

 



 

 

Exhibit B – Depiction of the Property, including the Park Parcel and Parking Parcel 
 

 
 
 



MASTER DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT- EX. C. PAGE - 1  

Exhibit C – Form of T4 Participation Agreement 
 
 

CAPITAL CITY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 

CITY OF BOISE CITY, IDAHO 

TYPE 4 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT CONTRIBUTION AGREEMENT 

WESTSIDE DISTRICT URBAN PARK 

 

THIS TYPE 4 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT CONTRIBUTION AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) 
is entered into by and between the Urban Renewal Agency of the City of Boise, also known as 
the Capital City Development Corporation, an independent public body, corporate and politic, 
exercising governmental functions and powers and organized and existing under the Idaho Urban 
Renewal Law of the State of Idaho, title 50, chapter 20, Idaho Code, and the Local Economic 
Development Act, title 50, chapter 29, Idaho Code (“CCDC”), and the City of Boise City, Idaho, 
an Idaho municipal corporation (“City”). CCDC and City may be collectively referred to as the 
“Parties” and individually referred to as a “Party.” 

 
RECITALS 

 

A. In February 2017, the City adopted the “Downtown Parks and Public Spaces 
Master Plan” which recommends a large public space near the intersection of 11th Street and 
Bannock Street to meet the growing need and desire for public amenities in the Westside Urban 
Renewal District (“Westside District”). 

 

B. The City has entered into an agreement with Rafanelli & Nahas, a real estate 
development firm in Boise, to sublease certain real property as an urban park located at 1100 
West Bannock Street, Boise, Idaho (the “Project Site”), depicted on attached Exhibit A. 

 
C. The Project Site is located in the Westside Urban Renewal District ("Westside 

District"), and the construction of an urban park will contribute to enhancing and revitalizing the 
Westside District. 

 
D. CCDC and the City desire to construct a public park, presently referred to as the 

Westside District Urban Park (the “Park”), to be consistent with: the Westside Urban Renewal 
Plan adopted by Boise City Council on December 4, 2001; the “Downtown Parks and Public 
Spaces Master Plan” adopted by the Boise City Council in February 2017; and the “Boise 
Streetscape Standards and Specifications Manual” (“Streetscape Standards”) adopted by the 
Boise City Council on April 19, 2016. 

 
E. Idaho Code § 67-2332 provides that one or more public agencies may contract 

with any one or more other public agencies to perform any governmental service, activity, or 
undertaking which each public agency entering into the contract is authorized by law to perform, 
provided that such contract is authorized by the governing body of each party and that such 
contract shall set forth fully the purposes, powers, rights, objectives, and responsibilities of the 
contracting parties. 



MASTER DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT- EX. C. PAGE - 2  

F. CCDC and the City have determined that it is in the best public interest to enter 
into this Type 4 Capital Improvement Contribution Agreement whereby the Parties agree they will 
collaborate on design, CCDC will provide for certain funding and construction, and the City will 
contribute funding for a portion of the project costs as detailed herein in order to achieve the 
objectives desired by the Parties all in accordance with CCDC’s Participation Program. 

 
 

AGREEMENT 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above recitals, which are incorporated into 
this Agreement; the mutual covenants contained herein; and other good and valuable 
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties hereby 
agree as follows: 

 
1. Purpose. The purpose of this Agreement is to memorialize the Parties’ agreement 

concerning the financial contributions for construction of public improvements on the Project Site 
for the Park. 

 

2. Effective Date. The effective date of this Agreement (“Effective Date”) shall be the 
date on which this Agreement was signed by the last of the Parties to execute it. The Parties 
acknowledge that this Agreement may be approved and executed prior to other agreements 
involving the Parties which are necessary for the completion of the Project. Those other 
agreements being: 

 

• Master Development Agreement – between CCDC and City and Eleven 
Eleven West Jefferson LLC 

• Sublease – between City and Eleven Eleven West Jefferson LLC 

• Right of First Refusal – between City and Rudolph Investments, Inc. and 
Eleven Eleven West Jefferson LLC 

• Joint Use and Maintenance Agreement – between City and Eleven Eleven 
West Jefferson LLC 

 
If either Party fails to execute any one of the agreements listed above, that Party’s failure shall 
constitute a default hereunder and in such event this Agreement shall terminate and the duties, 
rights, and obligations of the Parties shall terminate. 

 

3. Term. This Agreement shall be in effect beginning on the Effective Date and 
continuing until either: 1.) the completion of all obligations of each Party; or 2.) twenty-four (24) 
months from the Effective Date, whichever comes first. 

 
4. Extension. Either Party may request one (1) one-year extension of this 

Agreement, which extension request shall be in writing and delivered to the non-requesting Party 
as provided herein. The non-requesting Party shall not unreasonably delay, condition, or deny 
approval of the other Party’s extension request. 

 
5. Park Design. The Parties will collaborate on the design of the Park. Expenses 

involved in creating the Final Concept Design, the technical drawings, and the construction plans 
shall be paid by CCDC and included when calculating the total project cost. CCDC shall own the 
Final Concept Design, the technical drawings, and the construction plans for the Park. 



MASTER DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT- EX. C. PAGE - 3  

6. Construction of the Park. CCDC agrees to construct the Park consistent with the 
following: 

 

a. Construction shall be in accordance with the overall Boise City 
infrastructure plans, policies, and design standards and the applicable 
portions of the Streetscape Standards. CCDC has contracted with Wright 
Brothers, The Building Company LLC as the Construction Manager- 
General Contractor (“CM/GC”) and has contracted with Jensen-Belts 
Associates as the Project Landscape Architect. 

 

b. CCDC and the City shall schedule regular construction meetings, 
inspections, and a final inspection meeting to ensure that the Park is 
constructed pursuant to this Agreement. 

 
7. Payment Obligation. The total amount to be paid by City to CCDC for the public 

improvements constructed under this Agreement (the “Payment Obligation”) shall be a lump sum 
amount of ONE MILLION DOLLARS ($1,000,000.00). 

 

8. Method of Payment. Upon issuance of Boise City Building Permit to CCDC for 
construction of the Park, CCDC shall invoice City for the full amount of the City’s payment 
obligation set forth above. CCDC’s invoice to City for the Project shall be paid within thirty (30) 
days of receipt. In the event construction of the Park is cancelled or abandoned after City has 
paid its Payment Obligation, CCDC will refund the City Payment Obligation within thirty (30) days 
of termination of the construction contract between CCDC and the CM/GC. 

 
9. Review of Construction Plans. Upon City’s request, City shall have the right and 

the opportunity to review CCDC’s construction plans, budgets, and bids for the Park (collectively 
the “Construction Documents”). Through its CM/GC, CCDC will utilize commercially reasonable 
contracting, budgeting, and bidding practices to ensure that the Westside District Urban Park is 
constructed consistent with the Construction Documents and are undertaken in a reasonable 
manner. 

 
10. Notification of Completion; Inspection. Upon substantial completion of 

construction, The Agency shall notify City in writing to request a construction inspection meeting 
with CCDC to determine if the Park meets the requirements of this Agreement. City shall provide 
CCDC with written confirmation that the Park Project has been completed in compliance with this 
Agreement. 

 

11. Subordination of Reimbursement Obligations. Notwithstanding anything to the 
contrary in this Agreement, the obligation of City to make the payments as specified in this 
Agreement shall be subordinate to all City obligations previously entered into which have 
committed available City funds. 

 
12. Default. Neither Party shall be deemed to be in default of this Agreement except 

upon the expiration of forty-five (45) days, or ten (10) days in the event of failure to pay money, 
from receipt of written notice from the other Party specifying the particulars in which such Party 
has failed to perform its obligations under this Agreement. In the event of a default, the non- 
defaulting Party may do the following: 



MASTER DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT- EX. C. PAGE - 4  

a. The non-defaulting Party may terminate this Agreement upon written notice 
to the defaulting Party and recover from the defaulting Party all direct 
damages incurred by the non-defaulting Party. 

 
b. The non-defaulting Party may seek specific performance of those elements 

of this Agreement which can be specifically performed, in addition, recover 
all damages incurred by the non-defaulting Party. The Parties declare it to be 
their intent that elements of this Agreement requiring certain actions be taken 
for which there are not adequate legal remedies may be specifically enforced. 

 

c. The non-defaulting Party may perform or pay any obligation or encumbrance 
necessary to cure the default and offset the cost thereof from monies 
otherwise due the defaulting Party or recover said monies from the defaulting 
Party. 

 
d. The non-defaulting Party may pursue all other remedies available at law, it 

being the intent of the Parties that remedies be cumulative and liberally 
enforced so as to adequately and completely compensate the non-defaulting 
Party. 

 
13. Captions and Headings. The captions and headings in this Agreement are for 

reference only and shall not be deemed to define or limit the scope or intent of any of the terms, 
covenants, conditions, or agreements contained herein. 

 

14. No Joint Venture or Partnership. CCDC and City agree that nothing contained 
in this Agreement or in any document executed in connection with this Agreement shall be 
construed as making CCDC and City a joint venture or partners. 

 
15. Successors and Assignment. This Agreement is not assignable except that City 

may assign City’s rights or obligations under this Agreement to a third party only with the written 
approval of CCDC, which approval may be granted or denied in CCDC’s sole discretion. 

 

16. Applicable Law; Attorney Fees. This Agreement shall be construed and enforced 
in accordance with the laws of the State of Idaho. Should any legal action be brought by either 
Party because of breach of this Agreement or to enforce any provision of this Agreement, the 
prevailing Party shall be entitled to reasonable attorney fees, court costs, and such other costs as 
may be found by the court. 

 
17. Notices and Receipt. All notices given pursuant to this Agreement shall be in 

writing and shall be given by personal service, by United States mail, or by United States express 
mail or other established express delivery service (such as Federal Express), postage or delivery 
charge prepaid, return receipt requested, addressed to the appropriate Party at the address set 
forth below: 

 

If to Boise City: Jennifer Tomlinson, Parks Superintendent 
City of Boise, Parks and Recreation Department 
1104 Royal Boulevard 
Boise, Idaho 83706 
jtomlinson@cityofboise.org 

mailto:jtomlinson@cityofboise.org


MASTER DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT- EX. C. PAGE - 5  

With a copy to: Boise City Attorney’s Office 
Attn: Rob Lockward, Deputy City Attorney 
P.O. Box 500 
Boise, Idaho 83701-0500 
rlockward@cityofboise.org 

 
 

If to CCDC: Doug Woodruff, Project Manager 
121 N. 9th Street, Suite 501 
Boise, Idaho 83702 
dwoodruff@ccdcboise.com 

 

With a copy to: John Brunelle, Executive Director 
Capital City Development Corporation 
121 N. 9th Street, Suite 501 
Boise, Idaho 83702 
jbrunelle@ccdcboise.com 

 

18. Indemnification. The following indemnification provisions shall be deemed as 
separate and independent from this Agreement in the event there is any default, termination, 
cancelation, or expiration of this Agreement and shall expressly shall survive any such default, 
termination, cancelation, or expiration: 

 
a. City shall protect, defend, indemnify, and hold harmless CCDC from and for any and 

all losses, claims, actions, judgments for damages, or injury to persons or property 
and losses and expenses, including attorneys’ fees and defense costs, caused or 
incurred by City, its servants, agents, employees, guests, and business invitees, and 
not  caused  by  or  arising   out   of   the   conduct   of   CCDC   or   its   employees. 
Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, nothing in this Agreement shall be 
construed as a waiver of City’s sovereign immunity or any other protection afforded 
to City as an Idaho municipal corporation, including but not limited to the protections 
of the Idaho Tort Claims Act. 

 

b. CCDC shall protect, defend, indemnify, and hold harmless City from and for any and 
all losses, claims, actions, judgments for damages, or injury to persons or property 
and losses and expenses, including attorneys’ fees and defense costs, caused or 
incurred by CCDC, its servants, agents, employees, guests, and business invitees, 
and  not  caused  by  or  arising  out  of  the  conduct   of   City   or   its   employees. 
Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, nothing in this Agreement shall be 
construed as a waiver of CCDC’s sovereign immunity or any other protection 
afforded to CCDC as an independent public body corporate and politic, including but 
not limited to the protections of the Idaho Tort Claims Act. 

 
19. Insurance Requirements. Each Party shall maintain, and specifically agrees that 

it will maintain throughout the term of this Agreement, liability coverage in the minimum amount 
as specified in the Idaho Tort Claims Act set forth in Title 6, Chapter 9 of the Idaho State Code 
(currently, a minimum of $500,000.00). Upon request, each Party shall provide the requesting 
Party with a Certificate of Insurance, or other proof of coverage evidencing compliance with the 
requirements of this paragraph. CCDC agrees that it will require its contractors and any tier 

mailto:rlockward@cityofboise.org
mailto:dwoodruff@ccdcboise.com
mailto:jbrunelle@ccdcboise.com


MASTER DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT- EX. C. PAGE - 6  

subcontractors to designate City and CCDC as additional named insureds for the insurance 
coverages on the Project. 

 

20. Antidiscrimination during Construction. CCDC, for itself and its successors and 
assigns, agrees that in the construction of the improvements on the Project Site provided for in 
this Agreement, CCDC will not discriminate against any person on the basis of age, race or 
ancestry, color, national origin, disability or handicap, creed or religion, sex, sexual orientation, 
gender identity, gender expression, or marital status. 

 
21. Maintenance After Construction. City shall maintain or arrange for the 

maintenance of the Park as may be required by the Boise City Code or the Ada County Highway 
District. City’s obligations, as set forth in this Section shall survive the termination of this 
Agreement. City acknowledges and agrees CCDC has no obligations to maintain the 
improvements constructed as part of the Westside District Urban Park or any other maintenance 
obligations under this Agreement. 

 
22. Promotion of Project. Either Party may promote the Park Project and its 

involvement, including the placement of reasonable signage at or near the Project Site and 
inclusion of information on websites and social media. 

 

23. Warranty. CCDC warrants that the materials and workmanship employed in the 
construction of the Park are of good quality and conform to generally accepted standards within 
the construction industry. Such warranty shall extend for a period of at least one (1) year after 
substantial completion. Provided, nothing herein shall limit the time within which City may bring 
an action against CCDC on account of CCDC’s failure to otherwise construct such improvements 
in accordance with this Agreement. 

 
24. Forced Delay. Neither CCDC nor City, nor any successor in interest to either 

Party, shall be considered in breach or default of is obligations with respect to the preparation of 
the Property for redevelopment or the commencement and completion of construction of the 
improvements, in the event of forced delay in the performance of such obligations due to 
unforeseeable causes beyond its control and without its fault or negligence, including war; 
insurrection; strikes; lock-outs; riots; floods; earthquakes; fires; casualties; acts of God; acts of 
the public enemy; epidemics; quarantine restrictions; freight embargoes; lack of transportation; 
lack of materials or labor at commercially reasonable prices or in commercially reasonable 
quantities; adverse economic conditions; governmental restrictions or priority; litigation; unusually 
severe weather; acts of another party; environmental analysis, or removal of hazardous or toxic 
substances; acts or the failure to act of any public or governmental agency or entity (except that 
acts or the failure to act of CCDC shall not excuse performance by CCDC); or any other causes 
beyond the control or without the fault of the Party claiming an extension of time to perform. The 
time for the performance of the obligations shall be extended for the period of delay, as mutually 
determined by CCDC and City, if the party seeking the extension shall request it in writing of the 
other party within thirty (30) days after the beginning of the forced delay. Times of performance 
under this Agreement may also be extended in writing by CCDC and City. 

 

25. Dispute Resolution. In the event that a dispute arises between CCDC and City 
regarding the application or interpretation of any provision of this Agreement, the aggrieved party 
shall promptly notify the other party to this Agreement of the dispute within ten (10) days after 
such dispute arises. If the Parties shall have failed to resolve the dispute within thirty (30) days 
after delivery of such notice, the Parties agree to first endeavor to settle the dispute in an amicable 



MASTER DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT- EX. C. PAGE - 7  

manner by mediation or other process of structured negotiation under the auspices of a nationally 
or regionally recognized organization providing such services in the Northwestern States or 
otherwise, as the Parties may mutually agree before resorting to litigation. Should the Parties be 
unable to resolve the dispute to their mutual satisfaction within thirty (30) days after such 
completion of mediation or other process of structured negotiation, each Party shall have the right 
to pursue any rights or remedies it may have at law or in equity. 

 
26. Entire Agreement; Waivers. This Agreement, including its exhibits, incorporated 

herein by reference, constitutes the entire understanding and agreement of the Parties for the 
subject matter herein. This Agreement integrates all of the terms and conditions mentioned herein 
or incidental hereto and supersedes all negotiations or previous agreements between the Parties 
with respect to all or any part of the subject matter thereof. All waivers of the provisions of this 
Agreement must be in writing and signed by the appropriate authorities of CCDC and City. 

 
27. Amendments to this Agreement. CCDC and City agree to mutually consider 

reasonable requests for amendments to this Agreement and any exhibits hereto which may be 
made by any of the Parties hereto, lending institutions, bond counsel, financial consultants, or 
underwriters, provided said requests are consistent with this Agreement and would not alter the 
basic business purposes included herein or therein. Any such amendments shall be in writing and 
agreed to by the Parties. 

 
 

End of Agreement | Signatures appear on the following page. 



MASTER DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT- EX. C. PAGE - 8  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, an authorized representative of each Party, intending to be 
bound by this Agreement, executed this Agreement on the date last written below. 

 
 

FOR CCDC: 

 
 

By:  John Brunelle, Executive Director 
 

Date:  

Approved as to form: 

 

Mary Watson, General Counsel | Contracts Manager 

Date:    

 
 
 
 

FOR BOISE CITY: ATTEST: 

 
 

By:    David H. Bieter, Mayor 
 Lynda Lowry, Ex-Officio City Clerk 

 
Date:   Date:    

 
 

Approved as to form: 
 
 

 

Rob Lockward, Deputy City Attorney 
 
Date:    

 
 

Exhibits: 
A: Project Site Map 

CCDC Budget Info / For Office Use 

Account 303-3310 

 



MASTER DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT- EX. C. PAGE - 9  

Exhibit A 
 

Project Site Map 
 

 



 

Exhibit D – Form of Sublease 
 

SUBLEASE AGREEMENT 
 

THIS SUBLEASE AGREEMENT (this “Sublease”) is entered into this day of 
  , 2018, by and between Eleven Eleven West Jefferson, LLC, an Idaho 
limited liability company (“Sublessor”), having an address of 702 W. Idaho Street, Suite 825, 
Boise, Idaho 83702, and Boise City, an Idaho municipal corporation (the “City,” or “Sublessee”), 
having an address of 150 N. Capitol Boulevard, P.O. Box 500, Boise, Idaho 83701-0500, and The 
Urban Renewal Agency of Boise City, Idaho, also known as Capital City Development 
Corporation, an independent public body corporate and politic, organized under the laws of the 
state of Idaho (“CCDC”), having an address of 121 N. 9th Street, Suite 501, Boise, Idaho 83701. 
Separately, Sublessor, Sublessee, and CCDC each may be referred to as a “Party,” or together as 
the “Parties”. 

 
RECITALS 

A. On December 4, 2001, the Sublessee adopted ordinance no. 6108, which approved 
the Westside Downtown Urban Renewal Plan. 

 
B. Rudolph Investments, Inc., an Idaho corporation (“Landlord”) owns fee title to 

that certain parcel of real property (the “Property”) designated by the Ada County Assessor as 
parcel number R1013003153, addressed as 1100 W. Bannock Street, in Boise City, Ada County, 
Idaho, as more particularly described in Exhibit A and generally depicted on Exhibit B, both of 
which are attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. 

 
C. On or about June 3, 1968, the Property was leased to Boise Cascade Corporation 

for a term of ninety (90) years (the “Lease Term”), which was memorialized as recorded in the 
official records of Ada County, Idaho, as instrument number 791038, on or about December 14, 
1971 (the “Lease”), a copy of which and all amendments thereto is attached hereto as Exhibit C 
and is incorporated herein by this reference. Through a series of assignments, Sublessor is the 
successor in interest to the leasehold interest and is the current Sublessee under the Lease. 

 
D. Pursuant to the Lease, Sublessor is required to pay the rental amount of Thirty 

Thousand Dollars per year (the “Lease Payment”) for the remainder of the Lease Term. 
 

E. Sublessor desires to subleases a portion of the Property to Sublessee. 
 

F. The Parties intend for Sublessee to have all rights and obligations contained in the 
Lease regarding, and primary dominion and control over, the Public Park Parcel, and for Sublessor 
to retain all rights and obligations contained in the Lease regarding, and primary dominion and 
control over, the Private Parcel. 

 
G. The Parties desire to enter into this Sublease and intended, among other purposes, to 

document the respective rights and obligations of each of the Parties with respect to the Property 
on the terms and conditions contained herein. 



 

AGREEMENT 
In consideration of the above recitals, the agreements and covenants set forth herein, and 

for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby 
acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows: 

 
1. Recitals Incorporated. The above recitals are not mere recitals, and are expressly 

incorporated herein as material terms of this Sublease by this reference. 
 

2. One-time Lot Split. 
 

a. As set forth in the Master Development Agreement between the Parties and 
CCDC, dated even date herewith (the “MDA”), the Property will be subdivided into two separate 
tax parcels: 

 
i. The “Public Park Parcel”, which shall consist of those areas of 

the Property more particularly described on the attached Exhibit D, which is incorporated 
herein by this reference; and 

 
ii. The “Private Parcel”, which shall consist of that portion of the 

Property not included within the Public Park Parcel. 
 

The Parties agree to amend this Sublease by attaching the legal description of the Public 
Park Parcel to Exhibit D if not available as of the Effective Date. 

 
3. Sublease. Subject to the terms and conditions contained in this Sublease, Sublessor 

hereby subleases, demises, and lets unto Sublessee the Public Park Parcel for the uses described 
below, subject to the terms and conditions contained in the Lease, as amended, and subject to the 
terms and conditions contained herein. 

 
4. Commencement Date, Sublease Term; Termination of the Lease; Expiration. 

 

a. The term of this Sublease shall commence on that date which is 70 days 
after Sublessee provides written notice to Sublessor that CCDC has applied for the initial building 
permit to commence construction pursuant to MDA (the “Commencement Date”) and be for the 
remainder of the Lease Term, which ends on the 30th day of September, 2058, unless sooner 
terminated as provided in the Lease and this Sublease (the “Term”). 

 
b. Upon termination of the Lease for any reason, this Sublease shall terminate 

immediately, without any further action of the Parties. Provided, Sublessor shall not terminate the 
Lease without Sublessee’s express written authorization; Sublessor shall take all reasonable 
actions to insure the Lease is not terminated; and Sublessor shall immediately deliver, upon receipt, 
to Sublessee any notices or communications from Landlord concerning any alleged default of the 
Lease by Sublessor. Sublessee may take any action necessary to insure the Lease is not terminated 
for a Sublessor default of the Lease. In the event Sublessee incurs any cost or expense in remedying 
any Sublessor default of the Lease, Sublessor shall reimburse Sublessee for any such costs and 
expense. 



 

c. Prior to expiration of the Lease, the Party then in possession of the Public 
Park Parcel may, but shall not be required to, remove the improvements made on and to the Public 
Park Parcel, thereby returning the Public Park Parcel to a “bare ground” condition. 
Notwithstanding the previous sentence, the Public Park Parcel shall be returned to Sublessor in the 
conditioned required by Section XIX of the Lease. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event this 
Sublease is terminated as provided herein resulting from and Event of Non-appropriation, the 
Public Park Parcel Improvements shall become the property of Sublessor without payment and as 
provided therein. For the purposes of this section “bare ground” condition means removal of all 
Public Park Improvements and returning the Public Park Parcel to rough grade condition. 

 
5. Sublease Rental Payment. As consideration for the Sublease granted to it herein 

by Sublessor, subject to the annual appropriation set forth in Section 13, Sublessee shall pay to 
Sublessor the annual amount of Fifteen Thousand Dollars (the “Sublease Rental Payment”), 
which shall be paid in advance, and will be paid in a single annual payment of the full amount, the 
first of such installments due within 30 days of the Commencement Date, and each following 
installment due on the yearly anniversary of the Commencement Date for the remainder of the 
Term. 

 
6. Sublessor Acknowledgment. Sublessor acknowledges that Sublessor shall remain 

primarily liable for, and will not be released from, the full and faithful performance of all terms 
and conditions of the Lease, notwithstanding the existence of the sublease contained in this 
Sublease, or any breach committed by Sublessee under the Sublease, subject to Sublessor's rights 
and remedies against Sublessee as provided herein. 

 
7. Authorized Use of the Public Park Parcel. 

 

a. Sublessee covenants and agrees that the Public Park Parcel will be used: 
 

i. only in those ways permitted by the Lease, and in compliance with 
any and all restrictions contained in the Lease, such that Sublessee’s use of the Public Park Parcel 
will not cause or result in Sublessor’s breach of the Lease; 

 
i. in compliance with the terms and conditions contained in this 

Sublease and all applicable law; 
 

ii. for the development of a first-class public municipal park (the 
“Park”), as depicted in the Final Concept Design (as that term is defined in the MDA), which shall 
be attached hereto as Exhibit E upon approval by the Parties pursuant to the MDA, together with 
all uses customarily attendant and ancillary to such public park uses and purposes; 

 
iii. for the operation and maintenance of the Park by the Boise City 

Parks and Recreation Department and its employees, volunteers, agents, and contractors; and 
 

iv. by members of the public for Park purposes. 



 

b. Sublessee covenants and agrees that the Public Park Parcel will not be used 
for buildings; provided, however, that buildings that are clearly accessory and reasonably 
necessary to the use and maintenance of the Public Park Parcel for its intended purpose, including 
(but not limited to) a rest room and a small structure to store maintenance equipment, irrigation 
equipment, snow removal equipment, and other systems and equipment used to operate, maintain, 
and repair the Public Park Parcel, shall be allowed on the Public Park Parcel; provided, however, 
such buildings do not interfere with Sublessor’s use of the Private Parcel. 

 
c. Sublessee, both itself and through the Boise City Parks and Recreation 

Department, shall have authority to establish rules and regulations for use of the Park, including 
(but not limited to) hours of operation for the Park, and shall have authority to enforce such rules 
and regulations by ordinance, ejectment, infraction and misdemeanor citation, and other lawful 
means all in compliance with the terms of the Joint Use and Maintenance Agreement, dated even 
date herewith, by and between the Parties, setting for the use and maintenance obligations of the 
Parties with respect to the Public Park Parcel and Private Parcel (the “Use and Maintenance 
Agreement”). 

 
8. No Restrictive Covenants. Sublessee shall not enter into or record any covenant 

or restriction against or affecting the Property without the prior written approval of both Sublessor 
and Landlord. 

 
9. Defaults. 

 

a. Default by Master Landlord. Notwithstanding anything herein contained, 
the only services or rights to which Sublessee is entitled are those to which Sublessor is entitled to 
under the Lease, and for all such services and rights, Sublessee shall look to Landlord. Sublessor 
assumes no liability for any default of performance by Landlord. In the event of any default of 
performance by Landlord, Sublessor agrees that it will, upon written request from Sublessee, make 
demand on Landlord to perform its obligations under the Lease and to enforce all rights of 
Sublessor under the Lease. 

 
b. Default by Sublessee. Any of the following events shall constitute a default 

of this lease by Sublessee (a “Sublessee Default”): 
 

i) Failure of Sublessee to pay any amounts due hereunder within five 
(5) days when due, provide however, in the event Sublessee is in default of this section more 
than 3 times during the Term, all payments shall be paid when due without any cure periods; 

ii) Vacating or abandonment of all or a substantial part of the Public 
Park Parcel; 

iii) An event of default beyond any cure period under the Use and 
Maintenance Agreement, MDA or any other agreement between the Parties regarding the Public 
Park Parcel or Private Parcel; 

iv) Sublessee’s failure to comply with any provision of this Sublease 
other than payment of money, with such failure continuing for thirty (30) days after delivery of a 



 

written notice by Sublessor to Sublessee specifying the nature of non-compliance by Sublessee. 
However, if the nature of Sublessee’s default is such that it cannot be reasonably cured within 
the time provided, Sublessee shall not be in default if Sublessee (or CCDC on behalf of 
Sublessee) commences to cure the default within the time provided and thereafter diligently 
proceeds to cure such default within thirty (30) days (subject to the cure rights set forth in 
Section 11 below). 

v) The filing of a petition under the Federal Bankruptcy Act or any 
similar law or statute of the United States or any state thereof by Sublessee, or, the failure of the 
dismissal, within thirty (30) days after the filing of any involuntary petition of bankruptcy or 
insolvency against Sublessee. 

c. Sublessor’s Remedies. In the event of a Sublessee Default, Sublessor 
shall have the right to suspend this Sublease indefinitely until the Sublessee Default is cured. 
During such suspension, Sublessor may prohibit public access to the Park Parcel and all terms, 
conditions, covenants and obligations of this Sublease on the part of Sublessor to be performed 
shall be suspended until the Sublessee Default is cured. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the 
event a Subleesee Default continues for a period of 180 days without cure, Sublessor shall have 
the right to terminate this Sublease and the Public Park Parcel shall be returned to Sublessor as 
provide herein. Upon the termination of this Sublease, the Use and Maintenance Agreement 
shall automatically terminate and be of no further force or effect. 

d. Sublessee’s Remedies. In the event of any failure to perform any term, 
condition, covenant or obligation of this Sublease on the part of Sublessor to be performed 
within thirty (30) days after the date on which Sublessor receives from Sublessee notice (the 
“Notice of Sublessor’s Default”) specifically describing such failure (the “Sublessor Default”), 
Sublessee may suspend all Sublease Rental Payments until the failure to perform is remedied and 
further may cure such default by Sublessor on behalf of, and at the sole cost and expense of, 
Sublessor. Sublessor shall reimburse Sublessee for its costs and expenses in connection 
therewith within thirty (30) days after Sublessee’s delivery to Sublessor of an invoice therefor. 
Sublease Rental Payments that were not made by Sublessee after the Notice of Sublessor Default 
and before the default specified in the Notice of Sublessor Default shall not be due after the 
default is cured. The foregoing notwithstanding, if Sublessor shall exercise in good faith diligent 
efforts within such thirty (30) day period to cure the failure specified in the notice but shall not 
be able to do so because of acts of God, riots, or labor strikes or other circumstances beyond 
reasonable control of Sublessor, then any such failure shall not be considered a default of this 
Sublease by Sublessor so long as Sublessor shall continue to exercise in good faith such diligent 
efforts to cure such failure and shall do so within a reasonable period of time and Sublessee’s 
obligation to make the Sublease Rental Payments shall not be suspended or waived during this 
time frame. 

10. Payment of Sublease Rental Payments and Taxes. 
 

a. Sublessee shall pay when due: 



 

i. the Sublease Rental Payment to Sublessor; 
 

ii. all property and other taxes due with respect to the Public Park 
Parcel and provide copies of all paid tax assessments or evidence of any tax payment 
exemptions within 15 days of when such taxes are due; and 

 
iii. all costs, fees, and assessments charged against the Public Park 

Parcel by any board, commission, district, and other entities having the right to assess such 
costs, fees, and assessments. 

 
b. Sublessor shall timely pay: 

 
i. to Landlord, the Lease Payment, which expressly shall include the 

amount of the Sublease Rental Payment paid by Sublessee to Sublessor hereunder; 
 

ii. all property and other taxes due with respect to the Private Parcel, 
and 

 

iii. all costs, fees, and assessments charged against the Private Parcel by 
any board, commission, district, and other entities having the right to assess such costs, 
fees, and assessments. 

 
11. Covenant of Compliance with Lease. 

 

a. Each of Sublessor and Sublessee, for itself, covenants and agrees in favor 
of the other Party that it will comply in all material respects with the terms and conditions of the 
Lease, which is again incorporated herein by this reference. 

 
b. No Party shall take any action, fail to take any action, cause any action to 

be taken, or cause a failure to take any action that would constitute a default under the Lease. 
 

12. CCDC’s Right to Cure Defaults. 
 

a. Sublessor or Sublessee shall provide CCDC with notice of any Sublessee 
Default or Sublessor Default, as applicable, concurrently with notice of such default to the 
defaulting Party (a “Party Default”). 

 
b. CCDC shall have the right, but not the obligation, to cure any Party Default 

during the period allowed the defaulting Party to effect such cure plus an additional thirty (30) day 
period to effect such cure after the defaulting Party’s right to undertake such cure has expired, if 
CCDC has provided notice to non-defaulting Party during the period afforded the defaulting 
Party’s right to cure that CCDC will in fact cure any such defect in the event that the non-defaulting 
party fails to do so. Notwithstanding the foregoing, no cure period shall extend beyond the cure 
period under the Lease if the Party Default is a Lease default. The defaulting Party shall, at CCDC’s 
request, reimburse CCDC for any costs or expenses incurred in curing any such default. 



 

13. Subject to Discretionary Annual Appropriation by the Sublessee. 
 

a. This Sublease expressly is subject to the discretionary authority of 
Sublessee’s City Council to choose to appropriate, or not to appropriate, on an annual basis, 
sufficient funds to pay the amount of the Sublease Rental Payment and all other financial 
obligations under this Sublease. 

 
b. In the event Sublessee’s City Council, in any year, chooses not to 

appropriate funds sufficient to satisfy all of Sublessee’s financial obligations that may be due 
pursuant to this Sublease in a given year (an “Event of Non-appropriation”), Sublessee, within 
twenty (20) business days after such Event of Non-appropriation, shall notify Sublessor and CCDC 
in writing of such Event of Non-appropriation. 

 
c. CCDC may, by notifying all other Parties in writing within thirty (30) days 

of CCDC’s receipt of the Sublessee’s notice of an Event of Non-appropriation, assume the 
Sublessee’s role as sublessee under the Lease and this Sublease. 

 
d. After written notification from CCDC, no further action by any Party shall 

be required for CCDC to assume the Sublessee’s role as sublessee under the Lease and this 
Sublease. 

 
e. CCDC’s assumption of the Sublessee’s role as sublessee under the Lease 

and this Sublease shall be effective immediately upon Sublessor’s receipt of notice from CCDC 
along with the then due Sublease Rental Payment, if any. 

 
f. Upon its assumption of the role of sublessee, CCDC shall be bound by all 

terms and conditions and requirements of this Sublessee and the Lease. 
 

g. If CCDC does not timely assume the role of sublessee, Sublessee shall 
surrender possession of the Public Park Parcel to Sublessor no later than thirty (30) days after the 
date of Sublessee’s notice of an Event of Non-appropriation. Upon the Sublessee’s surrender of 
possession of the Public Park Parcel to Sublessor pursuant to this Subsection, the Term shall expire 
immediately and, except as otherwise expressly stated herein, this Sublease shall terminate except 
for any provisions that expressly survive the termination or expiration of this Sublease. 

 
h. Following an Event of Non-appropriation, Sublessor’s sole remedy against 

Sublessee shall be possession of the Public Park Parcel at its surrender by Sublessee, as stated in 
Subsection., above, if CCDC elects not to assume the role of sublessee. 

 
14. Binding on Successors and Assigns. This Sublease shall inure to the benefit of 

and be binding on the Parties, and their respective successors and assigns. 
 

15. Insurance. 
 

a. Sublessee Insurance. Sublessee shall maintain public liability insurance 
with limits of no less than $2,000,000 per occurrence covering injury or death to any person or 



 

damage to any property caused by or resulting from any act, omission, or failure to act of 
Sublessee or its officers, employees, contractors, agents, successors, or assigns, or resulting for 
any indemnity obligation of Sublessee Indemnified Parties. Such policy shall name the 
Developer Indemnified Parties as an additional insured by endorsement and such policy shall not 
be terminable without thirty (30) days’ notice to Developer. 

 
Sublessee shall maintain “all-risk” (“special perils”) property insurance covering the 

Park Improvements against loss or damage resulting from fire and other insurable loss on a one 
hundred percent (100%) replacement cost basis. 

 
Sublessee shall have the right, at Sublessee’s discretion, to accomplish the coverages 

required herein using, in full or in part, a program of self-insurance. 
 

b. Sublessor’s Insurance. Sublessor shall maintain public liability 
insurance with limits of no less than $2,000,000 per occurrence covering injury or death to any 
person or damage to any property caused by or resulting from any act, omission, or failure to act 
of Sublessor or its officers, employees, contractors, agents, successors, or assigns, caused by or 
resulting from any act, omission, or failure to act of by Sublessor, any of the Sublessor’s 
contractors, agents, guests, or invitees, or resulting from any indemnity obligation of the 
Sublessor Indemnified Parties. Such policy shall name Sublessee Indemnified Parties as an 
additional insured by endorsement and such policy shall not be terminable without thirty (30) 
days’ notice to Sublessee. 

 
16. Reciprocal Indemnification. 

 

a. Sublessee covenants and agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold Sublessor 
and its predecessors, successors, parents, subsidiaries, affiliates, assigns, managers, members, 
officers, and agents, in any capacity (collectively, the “Sublessor Indemnified Parties”) 
harmless, from any and all claims, demands, liabilities, causes of action, costs, or expenses 
(including reasonable attorney’s fees, which shall be paid as incurred) of whatever nature lodged 
or prosecuted against the Sublessor Indemnified Parties with respect to any injuries, damages, 
losses, or expenses to the extent caused by or resulting from any tortious act, tortious omission, 
or tortious failure to act by Sublessee or Sublessee’s officers, employees, contractors, agents, 
successors, or assigns in performing its obligations hereunder or the use by the public of the 
Private Parcel or the Public Park Parcel,, and not caused by or resulting from any tortious act, 
tortious omission, or tortious failure to act by Sublessor or Sublessor’ officers, employees, 
contractors, agents, successors, or assigns, provided, however, that nothing in the foregoing or 
elsewhere in this Sublease is intended, nor may it be construed to increase the limits of liability 
of Sublessee as capped by the Idaho Tort Claims Act (Idaho Code § 6-901 through § 6-929), or 
to otherwise lessen the protections afforded Sublessee under said Act. 

 
b. Sublessor covenants and agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold Sublessee 

and its officers, employees, agents, successors, and assigns (the “Sublessee Indemnified 
Parties”) harmless, from any and all claims, demands, liabilities, causes of action, costs, or 



 

expenses (including reasonable attorney’s fees, which shall be paid as incurred) of whatever 
nature lodged or prosecuted against the Sublessee Indemnified Parties with respect to any 
injuries, damages, losses, or expenses to the extent caused by or resulting from any tortious act, 
tortious omission, or tortious failure to act by Sublessor or Sublessor’ officers, employees, 
contractors, agents, successors, or assigns in performing its obligations hereunder, and not 
caused by or resulting from any tortious act, tortious omission, or tortious failure to act by 
Sublessee or by Sublessee’s officers, employees, contractors, agents, successors, or assigns, or of 
a member of the general public. 

 
17. Notices. 

 

a. All notices, requests, demands, letters, waivers, and other communications 
required or permitted to be given under this Sublease shall be deemed to have been duly given if: 

 
i. delivered personally; 

 
ii. mailed via the United States Postal Service, by Certified Mail or 

Registered Mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid, to a Party at its address set 
forth below, or to such other address as the Party may indicate by written notice given as 
provided herein; or 

 
iii. sent by next-day or overnight mail or delivery to a Party at its 

address set forth below, or to such other address as the Party may indicate by written notice 
given as provided herein. 

 
b. All notices, requests, demands, letters, waivers, and other communications 

shall be deemed to have been received: 
 

i. if by personal delivery, on the day on which such personal delivery 
occurs; 

 
ii. if by Certified Mail or Registered Mail, on the fifth (5th) business 

day after the mailing thereof; 
 

iii. if by next-day or overnight mail or delivery, on the day of such 
delivery. 

 
c. The respective Parties’ addresses for all notices, requests, demands, letters, 

waivers, and other communications with respect to this Sublease are: 
 

If to Sublessor: Eleven Eleven West Jefferson, LLC 
ATTN: Scott Schoenherr 
702 W. Idaho Street, Suite 825 
Boise, Idaho 83702-8905 

With a copy to: Varin Wardwell LLC 
ATTN: Anne C. Kunkel 



 

242 North 8th Street, Suite 220 
Boise, Idaho 83702 

 
If to Sublessee: Boise City Parks and Recreation Department 

ATTN: Director 
1104 W. Royal Boulevard 
Boise, Idaho 83706 

With a copy to: Boise City Attorney’s Office 
ATTN: Parks & Recreation Attorney 
150 N. Capitol Boulevard 
P.O. Box 500 
Boise, Idaho 83701-0500 

 
If to CCDC: Capital City Development Corporation 

ATTN: John Brunelle, Executive Director 
121 N. 9th Street, Suite 501 
Boise, Idaho 83701 

With a copy to: Elam & Burke 
ATTN: Matt Parks 
251 E. Front Street, Suite 300 
P.O. Box 1539 
Boise, Idaho 83701 

 
d. Any Party may, by notice in writing, direct that future notices, requests, demands, 

letters, waivers, and other communications with respect to this Sublease be sent to a different 
address. 

 
18. Recordation. 

 

a. A memorandum of this Sublease (the “Memorandum of Sublease”), in generally 
the same form as the draft contained in Exhibit F, which is attached hereto and incorporated herein 
by this reference, shall be recorded in the real property records in and for Ada County, Idaho. 

 
b. The Memorandum of Sublease shall include the material terms and conditions 

contained in this Sublease. 
 

c. Upon approval of the content of the Memorandum of Sublease by each of the 
Parties, each of the Parties covenants and agrees to timely execute and acknowledge such 
Memorandum of Sublease recordation purposes. 

 
d. The Parties agree and acknowledge to execute and record a Termination of 

Memorandum of Sublease within ten (10) days of the expiration or earlier termination of this 
Sublease. 

 
19. Further Assurances and Actions. All Parties, each for itself, agree to execute such 

documents and to take such action as shall be reasonably requested by the other Party to 



 

confirm or clarify the intent of the provisions of this Sublease and to effectuate the agreements 
contained in this Sublease 

 
20. Governing Law; Venue. This Sublease shall be construed and enforced in 

accordance with, and governed by, the laws of the state of Idaho, without regard to the choice of 
law provisions thereof. Venue shall be proper in the Fourth District Court of the state of Idaho, in 
and for Ada County. 

 
21. Entire Agreement. This Sublease embodies the entire agreement between each of 

the respective Parties with respect to its subject matter. Except as expressly provided otherwise 
herein, upon approval and execution of this Sublease by all Parties, any and all prior agreements 
related to the sublease of any part of the Property, both written and oral, shall be null and void, 
superseded by this Sublease, and of no further force or effect. This section is neither intended, nor 
shall it be interpreted, to nullify or void the Lease, which shall remain in full force and effect. 

 
22. Legally Binding; Construction and Interpretation. This Sublease is legally 

binding. Each Party, by the signature of its authorized agent or representative, affirms that it was 
been represented by legal counsel in the negotiation and drafting of this Sublease, or that it had the 
opportunity to consult legal counsel and chose not to do so. Accordingly, in all cases, the language 
of this Sublease shall be construed simply, according to its fair meaning, and not strictly for or 
against any Party, regardless of which Party caused its preparation. 

 
23. Modification. This Sublease may be revised and modified as may be necessary, 

with the consent of all Parties, by written amendment, signed and dated by an authorized agent or 
representative of each of the respective Parties. 

 
24. Severability. If any provision of this Sublease is determined by a court of 

competent jurisdiction to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable, such provision shall be excised or 
stricken, and all remaining provisions of this Sublease shall remain intact, and shall continue to be 
valid, binding, and enforceable. 

 
25. Waiver. The failure of any Party to enforce, or choice of any Party not to enforce, 

at any time or for any period of time, any term, condition, or provision of this Sublease shall not 
be construed as a waiver of such term, condition, or provision of this Sublease, or as a waiver of 
such Party’s right to enforce it. Waiver of performance of any term, condition, or provision of this 
Sublease shall be in writing, executed by the authorized representative of the Party granting or 
approving such waiver. No such waiver shall prejudice either Party’s right to require performance 
of the same term, condition, or provision in the future, or to require performance of any other term, 
condition, or provision. 

 
26. Captions. The captions of each of the several sections of this Sublease are only for 

the reference and convenience of the reader, and are not to be construed or considered in any way 
as part of this Sublease. 

 
27. No Third-party Beneficiaries. Except as otherwise expressly stated herein, no 

third-party beneficiaries are intended, and none shall be inferred. 



 

28. Approvals Required. This Sublease is not effective, and no subsequent revision, 
amendment, or modification is effective, unless and until: 

 
a. Approved and authorized by the Boise City Council and executed by the 

Boise City Mayor; and 
 

b. Approved and executed by an authorized representative of Sublessor; and 
 

c. Approved and authorized by CCDC’s board and executed by an authorized 
board member and by the CCDC Executive Director. 

 
29. Counterparts. This Sublease may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall 

be an original, and all of which together shall constitute but one and the same instrument. An 
electronic version of an executed counterpart sent via facsimile or via electronic mail shall be as 
effective as a hard copy of the counterpart bearing an original signature. 

 
30. Authority. By his or her signature, each person signing this Sublease for a Party 

hereby represents and covenants that he or she has authority to enter into this Sublease and bind 
the Party for which he or she signs. 

 
31. Immunities Preserved. Nothing in this Sublease is intended, nor shall it be 

interpreted, to restrict Sublessor or Sublessee from availing themselves of the protections offered 
by applicable laws affording any immunity or defense, including (but not limited to) the limitation 
of landowner liability afforded by so-called Recreational Immunity statutes or by the limitations 
contained in the Idaho Tort Claims Act. 

 
31. Force Majeure. 

 

a. For purposes of this Sublease, an “Event of Force Majeure” is any one 
(1) or more of the following events or circumstances that are beyond the control of, and without 
the fault or negligence of, the affected Party, and which, by the exercise of reasonable diligence, 
the affected Party was unable to prevent: 

 
i. Earthquake, flood, fire, hurricane, tornado, or other physical natural 

disaster (excluding any weather condition not specified herein); or 
 

ii. Act of riot, war (declared or undeclared), invasion, insurrection, or 
terrorism; 

 
iii. Labor dispute, strike, or lockout. 

b. Except as otherwise provided herein, a Party shall not be responsible for any 
failure to timely perform its obligations under this Sublease, if such Party is prevented or delayed 
in performing any obligation by an Event of Force Majeure. If a Party asserts an Event of Force 
Majeure as a reason for any performance failure or delay, that Party shall: 



 

 

i. Notify the other Party, in writing, of the delay or non-performance; 
 

ii. Use reasonable efforts to mitigate the effect the Event of Force 
Majeure has on the Party’s ability to fulfill its obligations hereunder; 
and 

 
iii. As soon as reasonably practicable following the Event of Force 

Majeure, re-commence the full and timely performance of its 
obligations under this Sublease. 

 
32. Attorneys Fees. If either Party seeks to enforce any of the provisions of this 

Sublease, then the prevailing Party shall be entitled to recover the prevailing Party’s costs incurred 
thereon, including reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs, both as to trial and on appeal, and 
regardless of whether such enforcement proceeds to trial. This section shall survive and remain 
enforceable notwithstanding a determination by a court of competent jurisdiction that all or any 
portion of this Sublease is void, illegal or against public policy. 

 
[end of text] 



 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the authorized representative(s) of the respective Parties 
executed this Sublease, as of the date first written. 

 
 

COUNTERPART A – Eleven Eleven West Jefferson LLC 

 
FOR SUBLESSOR: ELEVEN ELEVEN WEST JEFFERSON LLC, 

an Idaho limited liability corporation 
 
 
 
By:   B Scott 

Schoenherr, Manager 

Dated:    
 
 

STATE OF ) 
) ss. 

COUNTY OF ) 
 

ON  THIS,  the  _  day  of  ,  20  , before me, 
  , a Notary Public in and for the  state of  , 
personally appeared SCOTT SCHOENHERR, known or identified to me to be a MANAGER 
of ELEVEN ELEVEN WEST JEFFERSON LLC, an Idaho limited liability company, whom 
executed the within instrument for and on behalf of ELEVEN ELEVEN WEST JEFFERSON, 
and each acknowledged to me that he executed the within instrument on behalf of said limited 
liability company, and that such limited liability company executed the same. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal, the 

day and year in this certificate first above written. 
 
 
 

 

Notary Public for the state of     
Residing in  County 

My commission expires:     

 
[NOTARY SEAL] 



 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the authorized representative(s) of the respective Parties 
executed this Sublease, as of the date first written. 

 
COUNTERPART B – The City of Boise City, Idaho 

 
FOR SUBLESSEE: THE CITY OF BOISE CITY, IDAHO, 

an Idaho municipal corporation 
 
 
 
By:  David H. Bieter, Mayor 

Dated:    
 
 

STATE OF IDAHO ) 
) ss. 

COUNTY OF ADA ) 
 

ON THIS, the day of  , 20  , before me, 
  , a Notary Public in and for the state of Idaho, personally 
appeared DAVID H. BIETER, known or identified to me to be the MAYOR of THE CITY OF 
BOISE CITY, an Idaho municipal corporation, who executed the within instrument for and on 
behalf of THE CITY OF BOISE CITY, and acknowledged to me that he executed the within 
instrument on behalf of said Idaho municipal corporation, and that such Idaho municipal 
corporation executed the same. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal, the 

day and year in this certificate first above written. 
 
 
 
 

 

Notary Public for the state of Idaho 

Residing in  County 

My commission expires:     

 
[NOTARY SEAL] 



 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the authorized representative(s) of the Capital City 
Development Corporation executed this Sublease only with respect to Sections 12, 13 and 17, 
unless otherwise assumed as provided in Section 13, as of the date first written. 

 
COUNTERPART C – The Capital City Development Corporation 

FOR CCDC: THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE 
CITY, IDAHO, ALSO KNOWN AS CAPITAL CITY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION, 
an independent public body, corporate and politic, organized under the laws of the state of 
Idaho 
By:   By:     

  ,    John Brunelle, Executive Director 
Dated:     Dated:    

 
 
STATE OF ) 

) ss. 
COUNTY OF ) 

 
ON  THIS,  the  _  day  of  ,  20  , before me, 

  , a Notary Public in and for the  state of  , 
personally appeared   , known or identified to me to be a     
of The Urban Renewal Agency of Boise City, Idaho also known as Capital City Development 
Corporation, an independent public body, corporate and politic, organized under the laws of the 
state of Idaho, and JOHN BRUNELLE, known or identified to me to be the Executive Director 
of The Urban Renewal Agency of Boise City, Idaho also known as Capital City Development 
Corporation, an independent public body, corporate and politic, organized under the laws of the 
state of Idaho, both of whom executed the within instrument for and on behalf of The Urban 
Renewal Agency of Boise City, Idaho also known as Capital City Development Corporation, 
and each acknowledged to me that he executed the within instrument on behalf of The Urban 
Renewal Agency of Boise City, Idaho also known as Capital City Development Corporation, 
and that The Urban Renewal Agency of Boise City, Idaho also known as Capital City 
Development Corporation executed the same. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal, the 

day and year in this certificate first above written. 
 
 
 

 

Notary Public for the state of     
Residing in  County 

My commission expires:     

 
[NOTARY SEAL] 



 

 



MASTER DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT- EX. D. PAGE - 1  

 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

Legal Description of the Property 
 
 
 

[please see attached] 



MASTER DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT- EX. D. PAGE - 2  

 
 

EXHIBIT B 
 

Depiction of the Property 
 
 
 

[please see attached] 



MASTER DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT- EX. D. PAGE - 3  

 
 

EXHIBIT C 
 

The Lease and Amendments 
 
 
 

[please see attached] 



MASTER DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT- EX. D. PAGE - 4  

EXHIBIT D 
 

Legal Description of the Public Park Parcel 
 
 
 

[please see attached] 



MASTER DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT- EX. D. PAGE - 5  

 
 

EXHIBIT E 
 

Final Design Concept 
 
 
 

[to be attached] 



MASTER DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT- EX. D. PAGE - 6  

 
 

EXHIBIT F 
 

Draft Memorandum of Sublease 
 
 
 

[please see attached] 



MASTER DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT- EX. E. PAGE - 1  

Exhibit E - Form of Joint Use and Maintenance Agreement 
 

JOINT USE AND MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT 

 THIS JOINT USE AND MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is entered into 
this _____ day of ____________________, 2018, by and between the city of Boise City, an Idaho 
municipal corporation (the “City”), having an address of 150 N. Capitol Boulevard, P.O. Box 500, 
Boise, Idaho 83701-0500, and Eleven Eleven West Jefferson LLC, an Idaho limited liability company 
(“Developer”), having an address of 702 West Idaho Street, Suite 825, Boise, Idaho 83702. 
Separately, City and Developer each may be referred to as a “Party,” or together as the “Parties”. 

RECITALS 
  A. Rudolph Investments, Inc., an Idaho corporation (“Rudolph”) owns fee title 
to that certain parcel of real property (the “Property”) designated by the Ada County Assessor as 
parcel number R1013003153, addressed as 1100 W. Bannock Street, in Boise City, Ada County, 
Idaho, as more particularly described in Exhibit A and generally depicted on Exhibit B, both of 
which are attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. The Property is currently leased 
to Developer and used for surface parking pursuant to a Lease Agreement, dated June 3, 1968, as 
amended from time to time.   

  B. Pursuant to a Master Development Agreement, dated even date herewith (the 
“MDA”) between Developer, City, and The Urban Renewal Agency of Boise, Idaho, also known as 
the Capital City Development Corporation (“CCDC”), the Property has been or will be into two 
separate tax parcels: 

The “Public Park Parcel”, which shall consist of that portion of the Property more 
particularly described on the attached Exhibit C, which is incorporated herein by this 
reference; and 

The “Private Parcel”, which shall consist of that portion of the Property more particularly 
described on the attached Exhibit D, which is incorporated herein by this reference. 

  C.  Per the terms of the MDA, the Public Park Property will be developed into a 
public urban park, and that the Private Parcel will be improved and continue to be used as a surface 
parking lot for the benefit of Developer’s other projects and the Public Park Parcel as set forth herein. 

  D. Pursuant to the Sublease Agreement between the each of Parties and CCDC, 
City will have primary dominion and control over the Public Park Parcel, and Developer will have 
primary dominion and control over the Private Parcel. 

E. In connection with the construction and use of the Public Park Parcel and 
Private Parcel and the improvements thereon (as they relate to each parcel, the “Improvements”), 
the Parties desires to enter into this Agreement for the use, maintenance, repair and replacement of 
the Improvements and each of the Public Park Parcel and Private Parcel, pursuant to the terms and 
conditions herein.  

 



MASTER DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT- EX. E. PAGE - 2  

AGREEMENT 
In consideration of the above recitals, the agreements and covenants set forth herein, and for 

other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, 
the Parties agree as follows: 

1. Recitals Incorporated.  The above recitals are not mere recitals, and are expressly 
incorporated herein as material terms of this Agreement by this reference. 

2. General Use Rights of Private Parcel.   

 a. The Private Parcel shall be used as tenant and guest parking for Developer 
benefit Monday through Friday, from 6:00 am - 6:00 pm (the “Parking Hours”).   

 b. City (and the public) shall have the right to use the Private Parcel for parking 
and/or park related purposes during the following time periods without Developer’s prior written 
consent: 

i. Monday through Friday - 6:00 pm through 6:00 am.  

ii. Christmas, New Year’s Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, President’s Day and 
Labor Day, Saturday and Sunday – 6:00 pm of the previous day through 6:00 am of the 
following day. 

(collectively, the “Public Parking Hours”). 

  c. Developer, in its reasonable discretion and as allowed by law, shall be 
responsible for parking enforcement on the Private Parcel during Parking Hours only, and shall be 
entitled to ticket, tow or otherwise remove any un-permitted vehicles remaining on the Private Parcel 
during Parking Hours.  Developer shall have no obligation to manage the Private Parcel during the 
Public Parking Hours.  

  d.  City, in its reasonable discretion and as allowed by law, shall be responsible for 
parking enforcement on the Private Parcel during Public Parking Hours only, and shall be entitled to 
ticket, tow or otherwise remove any un-permitted vehicles remaining on the Private Parcel during 
Public Parking Hours.  City shall have no obligation to manage the Private Parcel during the Parking 
Hours.  

3. Limited Use Rights of Private Parcel.  The Parties acknowledge that City may, from 
time to time, desire to use the Private Parcel for public uses during the Parking Hours.  Such use shall 
be allowed only in Developer’s sole and absolute discretion, and upon those terms and conditions 
approved by Developer.  City gives no less than 14 days prior written notice of City’s desire to utilize 
the Private Parcel during Parking Hours and the terms and conditions.  

4. Special Reservation Rights of Developer.  The Public Park Parcel and the 
Improvements located thereon shall be used as public park by the general public in accordance with 
the rules and regulations of City applying to public parks of the same or similar nature, between dawn 
and dusk or such other hours as mutually agreed to by the parties provided that Developer and its 



MASTER DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT- EX. E. PAGE - 3  

tenants shall have preferential reservation rights to use the Public Park Parcel in accordance with City 
reservation policies, as they currently exist or may change, from time-to-time.   

5. Maintenance Obligations.   

 a. City shall maintain and keep the Public Park Parcel in a clean and sanitary 
condition, and shall not cause or permit any condition on the Public Park Parcel that would constitute 
a nuisance, waste, or hazard to the public or would otherwise result in code violation for the Public 
Park Parcel use. City’s care and maintenance of the Public Park Parcel shall be in accordance with 
the policies and procedures established and adopted by City’s Department of Parks and Recreation, 
as the same may be amended from time to time, which will be provided to Developer, upon 
Developer’s written request. Maintenance is herein defined as maintaining the described Public Park 
Parcel Improvements in good working condition so that the Public Park Parcel Improvements 
continue to operate as originally designed and approved by the Parties, as set forth in the MDA and 
Sublease.   

 b. Developer shall maintain and keep the Private Parcel in a safe, clean and 
sanitary condition, and shall not cause or permit any condition on the Private Parcel that would 
constitute a nuisance, waste, or hazard to the public.  City, shall have the right, but not the obligation 
to perform “enhanced maintenance” on the Private Parcel provided such maintenance shall not 
unreasonably interfere with Developer’s use of the Private Parcel and shall not result in the Private 
Parcel being closed during Parking Hours without Developer’s previous written consent, which may 
be withheld in Developer’s discretion.  For the purposes of this Agreement, “enhanced maintenance” 
shall be mean installation of improved landscaping, lighting fixtures and features, base surface 
materials (other than basic asphalt) and other upgrades that were not part of the initial Improvements 
installed or repaired as part of the Private Parcel design under the MDA.  General Maintenance is 
herein defined as maintaining the described Private Parcel Improvements in good working condition 
so that the Private Parcel Improvements continue to operate as originally designed, approved by the 
Parties and as set forth in the MDA and Sublease.   

 c. City shall be responsible for and undertake all, repair and restoration of the 
improvements located on the Private Parcel arising as the result of the public’s use of the Private 
Parcel and shall return the Private Parcel to a safe, clean and sanitary condition.  City shall remove or 
caused to be removed any personal property or structures located on the Private Parcel after any 
special events and weekends.  In the event of any failure of City to perform its obligations in this 
subsection, Developer may take all necessary action to perform City’s obligations and City shall 
reimburse Developer for its costs and expenses in connection therewith within thirty (30) days after 
Developer’s delivery to City of an invoice for the same. 

d. Maintenance by each of the Parties shall be performed in a manner so as to 
comply with any applicable laws, ordinances, or regulations, and shall uphold the rights and 
obligations afforded each of the Parties under the MDA. 

6. Term.  This Agreement shall be in full force effect for the term of the Sublease, 
unless earlier terminated as provided herein.  In the event the Sublease is terminated, this Agreement 
shall automatically termination and be for no force or effect except for such terms that specifically 
survive the expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement. 

7. Default.   



MASTER DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT- EX. E. PAGE - 4  

 
a. Default by City. Any of the following events shall constitute a default of this 

Agreement by City (a “City Default”): 
 

i. Failure of City to pay any amounts due hereunder when due that is not 
cured within five (5) days of City’s receipt of written notice of such overdue amounts from Developer, 
provided, however, in the event City is in default of its payment obligations more than twice during 
term no cure period will be permitted;  

iii. An event of default under the Sublease, MDA or any other agreement 
between the Parties regarding the Public Park Parcel or Private Parcel that is not cured as provided 
for in such agreements; 

iv. City’s failure to comply with any provision of this Agreement other 
than payment of money, with such failure continuing for thirty (30) days after delivery of a written 
notice by Developer to City specifying the nature of non-compliance by City.  However, if the nature 
of City’s default is such that it cannot be reasonably cured within the time provided, City shall not be 
in default if City (or CCDC on behalf of City) commences to cure the default within the time provided 
and thereafter diligently proceeds to cure such default within thirty (30) days (subject to the cure 
rights set forth in Section 7.d below); or  

b. Developer’s Remedies.  In the event of a City Default, Developer shall have 
the right to suspend this Agreement and the Sublease until the City Default is cured or the Sublease 
is terminated pursuant to its terms.  During such suspension, all terms, conditions, covenants and 
obligations of Developer hereunder to be performed shall be suspended until the City Default is cured.   

c. City’s Remedies.  In the event of any failure of Developer to perform any 
term, condition, covenant or obligation of this Agreement within thirty (30) days after the date on 
which Developer receives from City notice specifically describing such failure, City may cure such 
default by Developer on behalf of, and at the sole cost and expense of, Developer.  Developer shall 
reimburse City for its costs and expenses in connection therewith within thirty (30) days after City’s 
delivery to Developer of an invoice therefor.  The foregoing notwithstanding, if Developer shall 
exercise in good faith diligent efforts within such thirty (30) day period to cure the failure specified 
in the notice but shall not be able to do so because of acts of God, riots, or labor strikes or other 
circumstances beyond reasonable control of Developer, then any such failure shall not be considered 
a default of this Agreement by Developer so long as Developer shall continue to exercise in good 
faith such diligent efforts to cure such failure and shall do so within a reasonable period of time. 

d. CCDC’s Right to Cure City Defaults.  

 i. Developer shall provide CCDC with notice of any City Default concurrently 
with notice of such default to City. 

ii. CCDC shall have the right, but not the obligation, to cure any event of default 
of the City during the period allowed City to effect such cure plus an additional thirty (30) day period 
to effect such cure after the City’s right to undertake such cure has expired, if CCDC has provided 
notice to Developer during the period afforded City’s right to cure that CCDC will in fact cure any 
such defect in the event that City fails to do so.   



MASTER DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT- EX. E. PAGE - 5  

8. Binding on Successors and Assigns.  This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of 
and be binding on the Parties, and their respective successors and assigns. 

9. Notices. 

  a. All notices, requests, demands, letters, waivers, and other communications 
required or permitted to be given under this Agreement shall be deemed to have been duly given if: 

 i. delivered personally; 

 ii. mailed via the United States Postal Service, by Certified Mail or 
Registered Mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid, to the other Party at the 
address set forth below, or to such other address as the Party may indicate by written notice 
given as provided herein; or 

 iii. sent by next-day or overnight mail or delivery to the other at the address 
set forth below, or to such other address as the Party may indicate by written notice given as 
provided herein. 

  b. All notices, requests, demands, letters, waivers, and other communications 
shall be deemed to have been received: 

  i. if by personal delivery, on the day on which such personal delivery 
occurs;  

  ii. if by Certified Mail or Registered Mail, on the fifth (5th) business day 
after the mailing thereof; 

  iii. if by next-day or overnight mail or delivery, on the day of such 
delivery. 

  c. The respective Parties’ addresses for all notices, requests, demands, letters, 
waivers, and other communications with respect to this Agreement are: 

If to City:  Boise City Parks and Recreation Department 
ATTN: Director 
1104 W. Royal Boulevard 
Boise, Idaho 83706 

With a copy to: Boise City Attorney’s Office 
 ATTN: Parks & Recreation Attorney 
 150 N. Capitol Boulevard 
 P.O. Box 500 
 Boise, Idaho 83701-0500 

If to Developer: Eleven Eleven West Jefferson, LLC 
ATTN: Scott Schoenherr 
702 W. Idaho Street, Suite 825 
Boise, Idaho 83702-8905 

With a copy to: Varin Wardwell LLC 



MASTER DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT- EX. E. PAGE - 6  

   ATTN: Anne C. Kunkel 
   242 North 8th Street, Suite 220 
   Boise, Idaho 83702 
 

If to CCDC :  John Brunelle, Executive Director 
Capital City Development Corporation 
121 N. 9th Street, Suite 501 
Boise, Idaho 83701 

 
With a copy to: Elam & Burke 
 ATTN: Matt Parks 
 251 E. Front Street, Suite 300 
 P.O. Box 1539 
 Boise, Idaho 83701 

  d. Either Party may, by notice in writing, direct that future notices, 
requests, demands, letters, waivers, and other communications with respect to this Agreement be sent 
to a different address. 

 
10.  Subject to Discretionary Annual Appropriation by City.    

a. This Agreement expressly is subject to the discretionary authority of the Boise 
City Council to choose to appropriate, or not to appropriate, on an annual basis, sufficient funds to 
pay the costs of its obligations under this Agreement. 

b.  In the event the Boise City Council, in any year, chooses not to appropriate 
funds sufficient to satisfy all of City’s financial obligations under this Agreement (an “Event of Non-
appropriation”), City, within twenty (20) business days after such Event of Non-appropriation, shall 
notify Developer and CCDC in writing of such Event of Non-appropriation. 

 c. CCDC may, by notifying all other Parties in writing within thirty (30) days of 
CCDC’s receipt of City’s notice of an Event of Non-appropriation, assume City’s rights and 
obligations hereunder 

 d. After written notification from CCDC, no further action by any Party shall be 
required for CCDC to assume City’s rights and obligations hereunder 

 e. CCDC’s assumption of City’s role rights and obligations hereunder shall be 
effective immediately upon Developer’s receipt of notice from CCDC along with payment in full of 
any amounts owned to Developer by City as of the date such notice, if any. 

 f. Upon its assumption of City’s rights and obligations hereunder, CCDC shall 
be bound by all terms and conditions and requirements of this Agreement. 

 g. If CCDC does not timely assume City’s rights and obligations hereunder, City 
shall surrender possession of the Public Park Parcel to Developer no later than thirty (30) days after 
the date of City’s notice of an Event of Non-appropriation. Upon City’s surrender of possession of 
the Public Park Parcel to Developer pursuant to this Subsection, the Agreement shall expire 
immediately and, except as otherwise expressly stated herein, this Agreement and Sublease (if not 



MASTER DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT- EX. E. PAGE - 7  

earlier terminated) shall terminate except for any terms that expressly survive the termination or 
expiration of this Agreement. 

 h. Following an Event of Non-appropriation, Developer’s sole remedy against 
City shall be possession of the Public Park Parcel at its surrender by City if CCDC elects not to 
assume City’s rights and obligations hereunder. 

 i. CCDC shall assume City’s rights and obligations hereunder in the event CCDC 
assumes City’s rights under the Sublease as provided therein.  

11. Governing Law; Venue.  This Agreement shall be construed and enforced in 
accordance with, and governed by, the laws of the state of Idaho, without regard to the choice of law 
provisions thereof. Venue shall be proper in the Fourth District Court of the state of Idaho, in and for 
Ada County. 

12. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement embodies the entire agreement between each of 
the respective Parties with respect to its subject matter. Except as expressly provided otherwise 
herein, upon approval and execution of this Agreement by all Parties, any and all prior agreements 
related to the maintenance and use rights of the Parties of the Private Parcel or Public Park Parcel, 
both written and oral, shall be null and void, superseded by this Agreement, and of no further force 
or effect. This section is neither intended, nor shall it be interpreted, to nullify or void the Agreement, 
which shall remain in full force and effect. 

13. Legally Binding; Construction and Interpretation.  This Agreement is legally 
binding. Each Party, by the signature of an authorized agent or representative, affirms that it was been 
represented by legal counsel in the negotiation and drafting of this Agreement, or that it had the 
opportunity to consult legal counsel and chose not to do so. Accordingly, in all cases, the language 
of this Agreement shall be construed simply, according to its fair meaning, and not strictly for or 
against either Party, regardless of which Party caused its preparation. 

14. Modification.  This Agreement may be revised and modified as may be necessary, 
with the consent of both Parties, by written amendment, signed and dated by an authorized agent or 
representative of each of the respective Parties. 

15. Severability.  If any provision of this Agreement is determined by a court of 
competent jurisdiction to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable, such provision shall be excised or 
stricken, and all remaining provisions of this Agreement shall remain intact, and shall continue to be 
valid, binding, and enforceable. 

16. Waiver.  The failure or choice of either Party not to enforce, at any time or for any 
period of time, any term, condition, or provision of this Agreement shall not be construed as a waiver 
of such term, condition, or provision of this Agreement, or as a waiver of such Party’s right to enforce 
it. Waiver of performance of any term, condition, or provision of this Agreement shall be in writing, 
executed by the authorized representative of the Party granting or approving such waiver. No such 
waiver shall prejudice either Party’s right to require performance of the same term, condition, or 
provision in the future, or to require performance of any other term, condition, or provision. 



MASTER DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT- EX. E. PAGE - 8  

17. Captions.  The captions of each of the several sections of this Agreement are only for 
the reference and convenience of the reader, and are not to be construed or considered in any way as 
part of this Agreement. 

18. No Third-party Beneficiaries.  Except as otherwise expressly stated herein, no third-
party beneficiaries are intended, and none shall be inferred. 

19. Approvals Required.  This Agreement is not effective, and no subsequent revision, 
amendment, or modification is effective, unless and until: 

  a. Approved and authorized by the Boise City Council and executed by the Boise 
City Mayor; and 

  b. Approved and executed by an authorized representative of Developer. 

20. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall 
be an original, and all of which together shall constitute but one and the same instrument. An 
electronic version of an executed counterpart sent via facsimile or via electronic mail shall be as 
effective as a hard copy of the counterpart bearing an original signature. 

21. Authority; No Violation.  By his or her signature, each person signing this Agreement 
for a Party hereby represents and covenants that he or she has authority to enter into this Agreement 
and bind the Party for which he or she signs.  Each Party, for itself, warrants and certifies that its 
execution of this Agreement does not violate any other agreement to which such Party is bound. 

22. Insurance.  

a. City Insurance.  City shall maintain public liability insurance with limits of 
no less than $2,000,000 per occurrence covering injury or death to any person or damage to any 
property caused by or resulting from any act, omission, or failure to act of City or its officers, 
employees, contractors, agents, successors, or assigns, or resulting for any indemnity obligation of 
City Indemnified Parties. Such policy shall name the Developer Indemnified Parties as an additional 
insured by endorsement and such policy shall not be terminable without thirty (30) days’ notice to 
Developer. City shall have the right, at City’s discretion, to accomplish the coverages required herein 
using, in full or in part, a program of self-insurance.   

 
City shall maintain “all-risk” (“special perils”) property insurance covering the Park 

Improvements against loss or damage resulting from fire and other insurable loss on a one hundred 
percent (100%) replacement cost basis. 

 
b. Developer’s Insurance.  Developer shall maintain public liability insurance 

with limits of no less than $2,000,000 per occurrence covering injury or death to any person or 
damage to any property caused by or resulting from any act, omission, or failure to act of Developer 
or its officers, employees, contractors, agents, successors, or assigns, caused by or resulting from any 
act, omission, or failure to act of by Developer, any of the Developer contractors, agents, guests, or 
invitees, or resulting from any indemnity obligation of the Developer Indemnified Parties. Such 
policy shall name City Indemnified Parties as an additional insured by endorsement and such policy 
shall not be terminable without thirty (30) days’ notice to City. 



MASTER DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT- EX. E. PAGE - 9  

 

23. Immunities Preserved. Nothing in this Agreement is intended, nor shall it be 
interpreted, to restrict Developer or City from availing themselves of the protections offered by 
applicable laws affording any immunity or defense, including (but not limited to) the limitation of 
landowner liability afforded by so-called Recreational Immunity statutes or by the limitations 
contained in the Idaho Tort Claims Act. 

24. Mutual Indemnification.  
 

a. City covenants and agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold Developer and its 
predecessors, successors, parents, subsidiaries, affiliates, assigns, managers, members, officers, and 
agents, in any capacity (collectively, the “Developer Indemnified Parties”) harmless, from any and 
all claims, demands, liabilities, causes of action, costs, or expenses (including reasonable attorney’s 
fees, which shall be paid as incurred) of whatever nature lodged or prosecuted against the Developer 
Indemnified Parties with respect to any injuries, damages, losses, or expenses caused by or resulting 
from any tortious act, tortious omission, or tortious failure to act by City or City’s officers, employees, 
contractors, agents, successors, or assigns in performing its obligations hereunder or the use by the 
public of the Private Parcel or the Public Park Parcel, and not caused by or resulting from any tortious 
act, tortious omission, or tortious failure to act by Developer or Developer’ officers, employees, 
contractors, agents, successors, or assigns, provided, however, that nothing in the foregoing or 
elsewhere in this Agreement is intended, nor may it be construed to increase the limits of liability of 
City as capped by the Idaho Tort Claims Act (Idaho Code § 6-901 through § 6-929), or to otherwise 
lessen the protections afforded City under said Act. 

 
b. Developer covenants and agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold City and its 

officers, employees, agents, successors, and assigns (the “City Indemnified Parties”) harmless, from 
any and all claims, demands, liabilities, causes of action, costs, or expenses (including reasonable 
attorney’s fees, which shall be paid as incurred) of whatever nature lodged or prosecuted against City 
Indemnified Parties with respect to any injuries, damages, losses, or expenses caused by or resulting 
from any tortious act, tortious omission, or tortious failure to act by Developer or Developer’ officers, 
employees, contractors, agents, successors, or assigns in performing its obligations hereunder, and 
not caused by or resulting from any tortious act, tortious omission, or tortious failure to act by City 
or by City’s officers, employees, contractors, agents, successors, or assigns, or of a member of the 
general public. 

 
25. Force Majeure. 

 
a. For purposes of this Agreement, an “Event of Force Majeure” is any one (1) 

or more of the following events or circumstances that are beyond the control of, and without the 
fault or negligence of, the affected Party, and which, by the exercise of reasonable diligence, the 
affected Party was unable to prevent: 

 
i. Earthquake, flood, fire, hurricane, tornado, or other physical natural disaster 

(excluding any weather condition not specified herein); or 
 

ii. Act of riot, war (declared or undeclared), invasion, insurrection, or terrorism; 



MASTER DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT- EX. E. PAGE - 10  

 
iii.  Labor dispute, strike, or lockout. 

 
b. Except as otherwise provided herein, a Party shall not be responsible for any 

failure to timely perform its obligations under this Agreement, if such Party is prevented or delayed 
in performing any obligation by an Event of Force Majeure.  If a Party asserts an Event of Force 
Majeure as a reason for any performance failure or delay, that Party shall:  

 
i. Notify the other Party, in writing, of the delay or non-performance; 

 
ii. Use reasonable efforts to mitigate the effect the Event of Force Majeure has on 

the Party’s ability to fulfill its obligations hereunder; and 
 

iii. As soon as reasonably practicable following the Event of Force Majeure, re-
commence the full and timely performance of its obligations under this Agreement. 

 
26. Attorneys Fees.  If either Party seeks to enforce any of the provisions of this 

Agreement, then the prevailing Party shall be entitled to recover the prevailing Party’s costs incurred 
thereon, including reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs, both as to trial and on appeal, and regardless 
of whether such enforcement proceeds to trial.  This section shall survive and remain enforceable 
notwithstanding a determination by a court of competent jurisdiction that all or any portion of this 
Agreement is void, illegal or against public policy. 

 
27. Termination upon Mutual Agreement or Termination of Sublease.  This 

Agreement may be terminated upon the mutual agreement of the Parties.  This Agreement shall 
automatically terminate in the event the Sublease is terminated for any reason. 

 
[end of text] 



MASTER DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT- EX. E. PAGE - 11  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the authorized representative(s) of the respective Parties and the 
Landlord executed this Agreement, as of the date first written 

COUNTERPART A – Eleven Eleven West Jefferson LLC 

FOR DEVELOPER: ELEVEN ELEVEN WEST JEFFERSON LLC, 
an Idaho limited liability corporation 

By:    
 Scott Schoenherr, Manager   

 Dated:     

 
 
STATE OF   ) 
  ) ss. 
COUNTY OF   ) 

 ON THIS, the _______ day of ____________________, 20_____, before me, 
_______________________, a Notary Public in and for the state of ____________________, 
personally appeared SCOTT SCHOENHERR, known or identified to me to be a MANAGER 
of ELEVEN ELEVEN WEST JEFFERSON LLC, an Idaho limited liability company, 
whom executed the within instrument for and on behalf of ELEVEN ELEVEN WEST 
JEFFERSON, and each acknowledged to me that he executed the within instrument on behalf 
of said limited liability company, and that such limited liability company executed the same. 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal, 
the day and year in this certificate first above written. 

   
 Notary Public for the state of   

 Residing in   County 

 My commission expires:   
 
 
 [NOTARY SEAL] 
 

 
  



MASTER DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT- EX. E. PAGE - 12  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the authorized representative(s) of the respective Parties 
executed this Agreement, as of the date first written. 

COUNTERPART B – The City of Boise City, Idaho 

FOR CITY: THE CITY OF BOISE CITY, IDAHO, 
an Idaho municipal corporation 

By:   
 David H. Bieter, Mayor 

 Dated:   

 
 
STATE OF IDAHO ) 
 ) ss. 
COUNTY OF ADA ) 

 ON THIS, the ______ day of ___________________________, 20____, before me, 
____________________________, a Notary Public in and for the state of Idaho, personally 
appeared DAVID H. BIETER, known or identified to me to be the MAYOR of THE CITY 
OF BOISE CITY, an Idaho municipal corporation, who executed the within instrument for 
and on behalf of THE CITY OF BOISE CITY, and acknowledged to me that he executed the 
within instrument on behalf of said Idaho municipal corporation, and that such Idaho 
municipal corporation executed the same. 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal, 
the day and year in this certificate first above written. 

   
 Notary Public for the state of Idaho 

 Residing in   County 

 My commission expires:   
 
 
 [NOTARY SEAL] 
 

 
 
  



MASTER DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT- EX. E. PAGE - 13  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the authorized representative(s) of the respective Parties 
executed this Agreement, as of the date first written with respect to Section 7.d, 9, and 10, unless 
otherwise assumed as provided in Section 10, as of the date first written. 

COUNTERPART C – The Capital City Development Corporation 
FOR CCDC: THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY, IDAHO, 
ALSO KNOWN AS CAPITAL CITY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION, an 
independent public body, corporate and politic, organized under the laws of the state of Idaho  
 
 
By:   By:   
 _________________, ________   John Brunelle, Executive Director 

 Dated:    Dated:   

 
 
STATE OF   ) 
  ) ss. 
COUNTY OF   ) 

 ON THIS, the _______ day of ____________________, 20_____, before me, 
_______________________, a Notary Public in and for the state of ____________________, 
personally appeared __________________, known or identified to me to be a _____________ 
of The Urban Renewal Agency of Boise City, Idaho also known as Capital City 
Development Corporation, an independent public body, corporate and politic, organized 
under the laws of the state of Idaho, and JOHN BRUNELLE, known or identified to me to 
be the Executive Director of The Urban Renewal Agency of Boise City, Idaho also known 
as Capital City Development Corporation, an independent public body, corporate and 
politic, organized under the laws of the state of Idaho, both of whom executed the within 
instrument for and on behalf of The Urban Renewal Agency of Boise City, Idaho also known 
as Capital City Development Corporation, and each acknowledged to me that he executed 
the within instrument on behalf of The Urban Renewal Agency of Boise City, Idaho also 
known as Capital City Development Corporation, and that The Urban Renewal Agency of 
Boise City, Idaho also known as Capital City Development Corporation executed the same. 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal, 
the day and year in this certificate first above written. 

   
 Notary Public for the state of   

 Residing in   County 

 My commission expires:   
 
 
 [NOTARY SEAL] 
 



MASTER DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT- EX. E. PAGE - 14  

 

  



MASTER DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT- EX. E. PAGE - 15  

EXHIBIT A 

  



MASTER DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT- EX. E. PAGE - 16  

EXHIBIT B 

  



MASTER DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT- EX. E. PAGE - 17  

EXHIBIT C 

  



MASTER DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT- EX. E. PAGE - 18  

EXHIBIT D 

 

 

 

 



 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

V.  
INFORMATION  

ITEMS 
 
 
 



 

 

 

INFORMATION/DISCUSSION ITEM 

Agenda Subject: 
Secure Bike Parking Update  

Date: 
June 11, 2018 

Staff Contact: 
Matt Edmond 

Attachments: None 

 

Background: 

The intent of this mobility initiative is to provide an attractive, secure, all-hours bike parking 

option in downtown Boise. It will be located in the ground level of the 9th & Main parking garage, 

so as to be visible, easily accessible, and convenient to the downtown core. 

A major challenge for some bicycle commuters in downtown Boise is a lack of end of trip 

facilities, including long term bike parking. Long term bike parking differs from the short-term 

bike parking—in the form of sidewalk bike racks and bike corrals—in that it is normally sheltered 

from the elements and offers a greater degree of security to meet the needs of employees and 

residents rather than customers and guests. 

Many downtown institutions and employers have developed long-term, secure bike parking in 

recent years, from allowing bikes to be brought into work spaces to secure bike rooms. These 

facilities, however, are only available to employees, tenants or affiliates of those respective 

properties or organizations. The one secure bike parking facilities open to the general public, 

operated by Valley Regional Transit in Main Street Station, has access limited to the operating 

hours of that facility, 5:15AM-9:30PM, Monday-Friday and 7:45AM-5:45PM on Saturday. That is 

not a viable option for those who work in the service industry or otherwise work early or late, 

and who do not have employer-provided long-term bike parking. 

This pilot project will seek to incorporate best practices and amenities of existing secure bike 

parking facilities throughout the country to the greatest extent possible. If demand is sufficient, 

staff will propose additional facilities elsewhere downtown. 

Fiscal Notes: 

CCDC has budgeted $125,000 for this effort. 

Next Steps: 

• Summer 2018: Finalize design and bid project 

• Fall 2018: Construction 

• Late fall 2018: Bike room open 



1 
 

 

 

TO:   Dana Zuckerman, Chair, and Board of Commissioners 

FM:  John Brunelle, Executive Director 

RE:   CCDC Operations Report – June 2018 

 

CCDC’s mission is to ignite diverse economic growth, build vibrant urban centers, and promote 

healthy community design. We accomplish this through collaboration with private partners, 

public agencies, and the citizens who are interested in building a better Boise. On Thursday 

June 7, more than 100 Boise residents attended the second of three open houses covering the 

potential public improvements in the proposed Shoreline Urban Renewal District. Trademark 

Design and Fabrication, located in the Lusk District, was kind enough to host the event. There 

was a high level of participation from our citizens, who asked specific questions and provided 

valuable input for this potential project. For those who were unable to attend in person, there is 

an option to participate virtually on the Shoreline Website. The goal of the virtual meeting is the 

same – to determine what is preferred for the proposed Shoreline District. Gathering community 

input is key to this process, and CCDC sincerely appreciates the interest and high level of 

participation of our community. The virtual meeting remains available 24X7 on our website 

https://www.ccdcshoreline.com.  The next Public Open House is planned for later this summer. 

 

 

June 7 Proposed Shoreline District Public Open House 

https://www.ccdcshoreline.com/open-house/
https://www.ccdcshoreline.com/


2 
 

 
 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

 

505 W Idaho Street – 5th & Idaho 
Apartments – PP Type 2/Type4 
 
Project Description 
This is a $13 million mixed-use project that includes 
approximately 79 apartments and 80 subterranean and 
ground level parking spaces, a small retail space and a 
3600 s.f. urban public park. The CCDC Board approved 
Type 4 and Type 2 Participation Agreements, which 
includes the cost of the public park (land and 
improvements), streetscapes, alley improvements and 
undergrounding of utilities. The Participation Agreements 
were approved in May 2016. 
 
Update 
The project is under construction and is progressing on 
budget. First-floor structural framing is nearly complete 
and second-floor decking has begun. Construction is 
about two weeks behind schedule but making efforts to 
capture days where possible, with an adjusted 
completion date (C of O) in mid- November. There are 
minor cost impacts to the budget but they are being 
managed with no impact to the project. ESI is continuing to look of opportunities to capture time 
as they work through the main structure of the building. 
 
Next Steps 
Streetscape, alley, and park improvements are scheduled to start in late summer. 

 

Other Active Economic Development Projects 
 
503 - 647 S. Ash Street - Ash Street RFP - PP Type 5 
This project is on schedule but did have major issues with unforeseen soil conditions throughout 

the property. The budget was impacted by these soil issues but is being managed to not impact 

the overall project. Efforts have started with the City of Boise Arts and History Department to 

assist with their Hayman House plans. 

410 S. Capitol - Marriott Residence Inn - PP Type 2 
The hotel developer has submitted their reimbursement material. Staff reviewed and inspected 
the site improvements.  All documentation has been provided adequately, and CCDC is waiting 

Development Team:  Todd Bunderson, Matt Edmond, Shellan Rodriguez, & 

Laura Williams, Karl Woods, Doug Woodruff, Ben Houpt. 

5th & Idaho Apartments Construction 



3 
 

on the sidewalk easement to be granted to the City. The developer is working with the City of 
Boise to grant an easement for the wider sidewalks which extend into private property. The 
easement must be granted for reimbursement to take place. Per the Type 2 policy, the 
reimbursement will be paid starting in FY 2020, using tax increment the project generates. The 
total reimbursement will not exceed $875,000. 
 
6th & Front – Hotel and Parking Garage – PP Type 3, 5 
At the May meeting the Board approved all three of the agreements involved in the project - 
Disposition and Development Agreement, Type 3 Transformative Assistance Participation 
Agreement, and a Parking Permit Purchase Agreement. The three agreements have been 
finalized and executed by both CCDC and Developer. The developer is working on a Lot Line 
Adjustment which will be finalized once CCDC has conveyed 502 W Front Street to the 
developer. Construction is scheduled to begin concurrently with closing, which is scheduled for 
early August. CCDC has provided an affidavit of legal interest so that the developer can submit 
for the Lot Line Adjustment and grading/utility permits. 
 
Shoreline District 
CCDC Staff and consultants are embarking on the Urban Renewal planning process and 
regular updates will be available throughout the process including a new website, 
www.ccdcshoreline.com.  Staff is working diligently with CTA to produce a draft Urban 
Framework and Economic Feasibility study to be discussed at the June Board meeting.  Various 
stakeholder meetings with City partners have occurred including meeting with PDS, Public 
Works, Housing and Community Development, IT, Community Engagement, Office of the 
Mayor, Economic Development, ACHD, State Fish and Wildlife, etc.  Plan amendments for both 
RMOB and 30th District will be required and will be brought to the board in June for approval 
which are required to be completed by September 1, 2018. 
 
30th Street Plan Amendment (Deannex) 
The Plan Amendment describing the deannexation will be brought to the CCDC Board in June 
for approval. 
 
RMOB Plan Amendment (Deannex) 
The Plan Amendment describing the deannexation will be brought to the CCDC Board in June 
for approval. 
 
620 S. 9th - The Afton - PP Type 5 
There is no further board action needed.  The Afton Phase II is under construction.   
 
Courthouse Parcels (401, 102, 4, and 5) - Property Development 
CCDC will be requesting lease termination from the County. 
 
Avery Hotel - PP Type 2 
CCDC is very interested in participating in this exciting and unique project in the Westside URD 
and we will continue to work with this developer to assist in bringing it to fruition. 
 
Development of east Boise industrial property 
The City of Boise and CCDC are collaborating on the potential establishment of an industrial 
urban renewal district located in east Boise, generally east of the airport and along Eisenman 
Road.  SB Friedman has completed fieldwork and data collection for eligibility analysis and is in 
the process of drafting the report. Staff will bring the final eligibility report to the CCDC board for 
approval and transmittal to City Council August 13. 

http://www.ccdcshoreline.com/


4 
 

Development of State Street Urban Renewal District 
Leland Consulting Group has completed fieldwork and data collection and is working on the 
draft eligibility report. The State Street Transit-Oriented Development Design and 
Implementation Planning Project (led by COMPASS and VRT) website is live: 
www.statestreettod.com.  Staff will bring the final eligibility report to the CCDC board for 
approval and transmittal to City Council July 9. 

 

INFRASTRUCTURE PROJECTS 
 

Bannock Street, 9th to Capitol Blvd - Streetscape Improvement Project 
CCDC is restarting the project to align the design and construction with ACHD's DBIP work in 
the area in 2019. CCDC has submitted a Cost Share Application. CCDC has hired Jensen Belts 
Associates as the design professional for the project. The project area has been surveyed. 
CCDC has met with CoB for multiple schematic design meetings. JBA has presented multiple, 
bike lane and vehicle travel options. City of Boise has received traffic hose counts.  
 
750 Main Street – Capitol Terrace – PP Type 1 
Staff finalized an Encroachment License and a Construction License Agreement for the 
upgrades Hawkins is making to Capitol Terrace.  Upgrades will include exterior facade 
improvements and installation of new awnings which will be paid for with a Type 1 
Reimbursement Agreement.  Staff finalized an Encroachment License and a Construction 
License Agreement for the upgrades Hawkins is making to Capitol Terrace.  Upgrades will 
include exterior facade improvements and installation of new awnings which will be paid for with 
a Type 1 Reimbursement Agreement. 
 
535 S. 15th Street - River Street Lofts - PP Type 1 
The developer experienced delays in the entitlement process, and staff has amended the Type 
1 Agreement to extend the contract term for an additional 12 months to June 16, 2019.  
Developer has begun utility work to underground power lines.  Construction is scheduled to take 
place this summer, for an early winter completion. 
 
1402 W. Front Street - Verraso - PP Type 1 
Construction continues, developer hopes to be complete in early July. The Type 1 Agreement 
Term is through July 11 and staff will amend the agreement to extend if needed. 
 
801 N Main Street - Wells Fargo Center Retail - PP Type 1 
At the May Meeting, the Board formally "Designated" the project as eligible for Type 1 funding.  
Staff is requesting agreement approval at the June meeting.  The Type 1 Agreement would 
reimburse for 14 new metal awnings installed in the public right-of-way, with a not-to-exceed 
amount of $150,000 per the Participation Policy. 
 
30th Street District - Moore Street - Sandhill Crane Apartments - PP Type 2 
Sandhill Crane Affordable Housing is being developed by the Boise City / Ada County Housing 
Authority.  The project will consist of 50 units with a focus on family friendly units (more 
bedrooms).  The apartments will serve the 30-60% AMI group.  The developer is submitting for 
Tax Credit funding to Idaho Housing and Finance Authority in August, and will know if they have 
received it in November.  Sandhill Crane did not receive tax credit funding during the 2017 
allocation.  CCDC originally had designated the project as eligible for a Type 1, and the project 
was taken off of the list when it did not receive funding.  Since then, the 30th Street District 

http://www.statestreettod.com/


5 
 

priorities and projects have been updated and Type 1 funding is no longer available.  However, 
the project is still able to apply for Type 2 funding, which will be repaid after increment is 
generated by the project.  Staff has met with the Housing Authority to discuss the Type 2 
application and will bring the project to the Board at the July meeting for review and potential 
"Designation." 
 
Idaho Historical Museum Streetscapes at Julia Davis Park – PP Type 4 
CCDC staff has confirmed completion of work and documentation of expenses.  
Reimbursement payment is being processed and will go out to DPW this month (June). 

 
PARKING & MOBILITY PROJECTS 

 
Dedicated Motorcycle Parking 
 
Project Description 
During the rate adjustment process the Board 
indicated an interest in providing as many 
Transportation Demand Management 
alternatives as possible to reduce the number of 
cars using (or wanting to use) our facilities.  
Dedicated day-use motorcycle and secure 
bicycle parking were two ideas brought forth. 

 
Update 
With the update of our Parking Enforcement &  
Collections Policy in February we adopted a 
policy prohibiting motorcycles from using the 
upper floors of our garages.  This is because 
there are entry/exit issues with such small 
vehicles.  As an alternative, areas in two garages 
were identified and equipped to accommodate 
FREE daily motorcycle use.  Improved lighting, 
signage and fresh paint in the 9th & Main and 9th 
& Front garages create safe and highly visible 
areas for daily motorcycle parking.   
 
Next Steps 
We have created a "friendly reminder" which we 
are putting on motorcycles to try and educate 
them about this free opportunity. It basically says 
while we appreciate their paid patronage, we'd 
rather they park in a safer, more convenient 
location within our system.   We direct them to 
the two aforementioned garages.  A progress 
report will be provided at a future meeting.  
 
 
 
 

9th & Front Garage 

Capitol & Main Garage 



6 
 

Exterior Signage for All Garages 
This project consisted of three sign types: large vertical garage "indicator" signs that are visible 
from a distance and inform drivers of the location/entrance to garages; Pay On Foot Station 
"locator" signs that inform customers where the machines are located to pay for their parking; 
and sidewalk kiosk "count" signs that indicate the current vehicular occupancy of the facility.  All 
three sign types are now fully functional.  Later this autumn or early next spring we hope to 
replace the "shared" signage near Capitol & Myrtle Garage and the 9th & Front Garage.  In 
addition to the ParkBOI signage, these signs contain business names in the vicinity of the two 
signs.  A kiosk also needs to be added to the entrance of 10th & Front Garage. 
 
Parking Rate Examination 
New rates went into effect February 1 and a revised Waitlist Policy was adopted by the Board 
on February 12.  The waitlists have been reduced from nearly 1,300 spaces desired to 178.  
Demand is still strong in four of the CCDC garages, which may indicate the rates aren't high 
enough in those facilities. 
 
Rebranding Parking System 
All garage stairwells and elevator lobbies have been repainted with ParkBOI brand colors.  
Almost all vestiges of the old DPPS signage has been removed from the garages.  Elevator 
lobby wayfinding "maps" have been replaced by ParkBOI "First Hour Free/Convenient & 
Covered" posters such as the one outside of the Board Room.  Decals are being ordered to 
cover existing DPPS logos on the yellow "Pay Before You Return to Your Car" signs in every 
garage. 
 
Park & Ride Shuttle 
A Park & Ride/Shuttle service from the Elder Street lot near I-84/the airport has been underway 
since mid-June 2017.  The addition of a second van resulted in additional times to ride to and 
from downtown has increased use of the service.  There are currently 76 registered participants 
and there are between 5-17 cars in the lot most weekdays.  May saw a decrease in ridership to 
361, down from a high of 435 in March to 419 in April.  The City's E-permit is popular and with 
the weather better, this encourages walking & biking.  Both detract from the popularity of the 
P&R CCDC has extended our agreement with the City to the end of this fiscal year so that we 
can make a better assessment of the fully operable service.  A more intensive marketing 
campaign will commence this summer to increase awareness of the program.   
 
New ParkBOI Website 
The two aforementioned websites, plus the CCDC/Parking website, were all updated with 
current garage information (the addition of 11th & Front); plus information about the carpool 
program. The "My Account" section of the ParkBOI website has been readied to help customers 
manage their own accounts by allowing them to update their information (change of vehicles, 
etc.), make payments and view payment history.  Our parking operator is now promoting the 
new My Account ParkBOI website feature.  In addition to providing our customers with more 
control over their parking accounts, we want more of our customers to pay via "autopay", either 
via checking account deduction or by another means of automated payment.  The overall goal is 
to reduce staff time needed to process cash or checks. 
 
Daily/Weekly/Monthly Parking Statistics 
Our parking operator has learned how to glean data from our PARCS (Parking Access & 
Revenue Control System).  Having identified the statistics that we believe best indicate system 
performance, we are now modifying the data into easy to understand graphics.  For the June 



7 
 

Board meeting we will have 3-5 slides indicating system performance.  This will include 
revenue, counts, length of stay, calls to the monitoring center and other metrics. 
 
Nighttime Parking Update 
There has been little interest in this program.  We believe the reasons are there are still many 
free/cheap parking alternatives and the access into the garages is not early enough, as we don't 
want to negatively impact our full-price monthly customers.  Recently there was a renewed 
interest from a major event employer to examine this program.   We will be looking into this. 
 
Capitol & Front Garage Disposition 
At the May Board Meeting, staff informed the board that no proposals were received for the RFP 
issued on April 9. Board directed staff to investigate why no proposals were submitted.  After 
speaking with parties who had previously expressed interest, staff has summarized those 
results, and will present those findings to the Board at the June meeting. Staff will be 
recommending revising the RFP and re-publishing. Tentative schedule would be to bring any 
responses back to the Board in August. 
 
Bike Rack Infill 
CCDC has installed 32 additional bike racks in response to requests from citizens, businesses, 
and other agencies in 2018, including installation of a prototype for a new bike corral in front of 
the Handlebar (1519 Main St) in May.  Staff is working on requests for bike racks in front of 
Pivot North (11th between Front and Grove) and Rise and Grind (6th between Front and 
Grove); installation for both is expected to occur this month (June 2018) 
 
Front & Myrtle Alternatives Analysis 
CCDC and City of Boise staff have conducted several round table discussions with stakeholders 
along the corridor in April, and participated in a ULI panel discussion in May. Most of the near-
term improvements included with the ITD cooperative agreement on Front & Myrtle have been 
completed.  CCDC and Boise City staff will present the analysis findings to Simplot Company 
employees on June 13. 
 
Pioneer Corner – PP Type 4 
The project is complete, with the exception of bollard lock hasps that must be rotated to reduce 
tripping hazard.  Okland is coordinating with its subcontractor to rotate bollard lock hasps this 
month. 
 
10th & Front Garage Concrete Repairs 
CCDC has issued, received and reviewed and RFQ to establish a qualified list of bidders for the 
work. The recommendation was approved by the Board in April. CDs have been completed and 
the project was put out to bid May 9th, bids were opened May 30th. Guho Corp. is the apparent 
successful low bidder. Bid was within established budget.  Approval to award the bid to Guho 
Corp will be sought at June Board Meeting. Anticipated construction start early July. 
 

  



8 
 

PLACE MAKING PROJECTS 
 

Freak Alley / Union Block   

 

 
Project Description 
CCDC and City of Boise are working with property owners and managers to improve Freak 
Alley and Union Block Alley as public spaces. Boise planning staff will manage an urban design 
process with a stakeholder group (including ownership interests), followed by final design and 
construction to be managed by CCDC.  
 
Update 
The paving of Freak Alley is complete and prep work in Union Block Alley is underway. 

 
Next Steps 
Freak Alley is expected to be complete mid-June, and Union Block Alley mid-July. 
 
 

 
 
 

Other Active Place Making Projects 
 
8th Street Event Bollards 
All sixteen bollards and three emergency access boxes have been installed, and the Capital 
City Public Market has begun using the bollards for its event on 8th Street. Guho and Jensen 
Belts Associates will complete punch list items (closure signs, O&M manual) during the rest of 
the Central District closeout project this summer. 
 

Alley, 6th to 3rd between Main & Idaho - CCDC Alley Program 

The ACHD alley project began June 1. Idaho Power's contractor (Probst) began work at 3rd 

Street the week of June 4 and is working its way west.  CCDC contractor (Anderson & Wood) 

will be working in the alley between 4th and 5th Streets June 11-22 and the alley between 3rd and 

4th Streets in late June/early July. 

Freak Alley Freak Alley 



9 
 

BoDo Sidewalk Easements 
Three easement agreements have been signed and recorded.  Staff will continue to work on the 
three remaining easement agreements. 
 
Traffic Box - Public Art 
Artists were selected and traffic boxes assigned in March. Artists have finalized the design 
content and submitted on June 4. The content will be reviewed by the panel, modified as 
required, approved and installed this summer. 
 
River Street Streetscape Improvements 
The Land Group Inc. has submitted for ACHD review and has received comments. Comments 
have been addressed and resubmitted to ACHD for approval.  Following final ACHD approval, 
drawings to be submitted to City of Boise Public Works for review. 
 
Main Street Station Art 
CCDC is working with City of Boise Department of Arts and History to augment public art at 
Main Street Station. The project will include art at the entry ramp, a mural series and vinyl art on 
window glass.  Arts and History is collaborating with VRT and CCDC and working on contract 
negotiations with local artists. Once contract negotiations are complete, proposals will be 
presented for review and feedback. The Department of Arts and History are to finish contracts 
with artists, have the artists develop content, coordinate with CCDC and execute an MOU for 
the work. 

 

SPECIAL PROJECTS 

 

Boise City Art Project (South 9th Street Area) 
 
Project Description 
CCDC is working with Arts and 
History on public art installations 
identified in the 8th Street Corridor 
planning effort. 

 
Update 
The City of Boise has an artist under 
contract for a mural at 8th and Fulton. 
Installation of the mural is currently 
underway, and the bridge lighting is 
complete. 
 
Next Steps 
CCDC has collaborated with Carver 
Thornton Young, who has provided a 
revised design for the tension 
sculpture based on Board comments. The mural is scheduled to be installed summer 2018.  
 
 
 

9th Street Bridge Lighting 



10 
 

617 S. Ash St. - Hayman House - PP Type 5 
Staff conducted a handoff walkthrough of 617 Ash Street with the City of Boise Staff on May 16 

to finalize the transfer of this cultural site to the City of Boise. The property has been conveyed 

to the City of Boise and the Arts and History Department is working bringing their plan to fruition. 

 

PROPERTY MANAGEMENT UPDATES 
 

8th Street 
Capital City Public Market is using 8th Street every Saturday connecting the valley and visitors 

with agricultural, artisan and specialty food communities for the patrons and public. The Street 

was pressure washed the evening of May 29 and repainted the morning of June 3 for 

appearance and aesthetics. The Father’s Day Car Show will return to 8th Street on June 17, 

featuring classic cars and electronic vehicles. 

Parking System 
10th & Front Repairs: Bids were received and opened May 30 and the bid award is going to the 

Board meeting on June 11. The anticipated start date of work will begin the first week of July. 

Capitol & Main Elevator Refurbish: Staff is working to obtain a consultant to evaluate the 

required scope of work. 

Trailhead 
Staff is working with the landlord to replace the HVAC system. The current system has reached 

the end of its life cycle and is operating at reduced efficiency. Replacement will be a capital 

expense for the owner amortized through NNN. 

Ash Street Properties 
Staff conducted a handoff walkthrough of 617 Ash Street with the City of Boise Staff on May 16 

to finalize the transfer of that cultural site to the City of Boise. 

General Maintenance 
CCDC contracted with Capitol Landscape to perform paver sidewalk maintenance work 

throughout downtown. Staff anticipates work being complete by the end of June. 

The Grove Plaza 
Fountain Start-up completed in May in preparation for Alive After Five, which began June 6. 

Condo Associations 
The annual meeting for the Downtown Parking Condo Association (9th & Main) was held May 

23. New business included a presentation by CCDC Staff of a proposal for secure bike storage 

on the ground level in the common area. The Association voted unanimously to approve. 

421 N. 10th and 1010 W Jefferson 
A walk-through of these properties were conducted at June 6 with Colliers. Colliers International 
– Boise is now under contact with CCDC to manage 421 N. 10th (Idaho Sporting Goods) and 
1010 Jefferson.  
 
 



11 
 

 

River Plaza LLC – Relinquishment and Transfer of Interest 

 

 

Back in 1996, to support the development of housing in the River-Myrtle / Old Boise District, CCDC 
purchased the site for the River Plaza mixed use housing and office project at 13th Street and 
Grand Avenue.  The Agency was also a partner with others – including the non-profit Boise Housing 
Corporation – in the development of the River Plaza project.  The Agency sold the property to Boise 
Housing Corporation in November 1998 with a land write-down of $216,020.  Other Agency 
contributions included $130,000 (budgeted to support housing in RMOB) for utility relocations and 
streetscaping, and ACHD impact fee credits of $141,264.  In return, the Agency received Special 
Limited Partner interest in the apartment portion of the project.  This consideration was designed to 
compensate the Agency for an amount equal to the percentage of its investment in the project upon 
sale or refinancing of the project.   

What started out as River Plaza LP (limited partnership) is now River Plaza LLC (limited liability 
company) consisting of only two entities: BHC, a single member LLC wholly owned by the non-profit 
Boise Housing Corporation as manager, and CCDC as the sole, special, limited member.  That 
membership is of limited value to the Agency today as it would realize a return only if the River 
Plaza apartments were sold or liquidated.  There are no plans to do either now or in the foreseeable 
future given BHC’s mission of providing long term, stable and affordable housing, which the River 
Plaza apartments of course do.  The River Plaza development has also contributed to the overall 
RMOB District growth and redevelopment goal-attainment.  All things considered, now is a good 
time for the Agency to relinquish its interest in River Plaza LP.  Counsel for both parties have 
drafted a document to do that and transfer the Agency’s interest to BHC for which CCDC would 
receive $30,000.  The plan is to publish public notice of this disposition of Agency interest on July 

Finance Team: Ross Borden, Joey Chen, Kevin Martin, Mary Watson, Kathy 
Wanner 



12 
 

11 and 25.  Following the required 30 day comment period the Board will take public comment at its 
August 13 regular meeting after which the Board is expected to make its final determination.   

COMPETITIVE BIDDING and QUALIFICATION-BASED SELECTIONS 

CM/GC Central District Improvements Project 

Selection of a Construction Manager / General Contractor (CM/GC) for final year (pre-sunset) 

Central District improvements. 

2017 

 August 9: Request for Qualifications issued; public notice in Idaho Statesman.  

 Sept 7:  Submissions due from licensed CM/GCs.  

 October 9: Board approved Guho Corp as CM/GC. 

 November 21: Contract Executed; pre-construction services begin. 
 

2018 

 February 12: The Board approved the contract amendment for first Guaranteed 

Maximum Price (GMP) for construction. 

 March 12: Board approved second GMP for construction. 

 June 11: The Board will receive information sufficient to approve GMP #3  
 

2018 Streetscape Improvements Project – Selection of Design Professional 

Design of 2018 streetscape improvements on River Street between Ash Street and 12th Street.   

 

2017 

 October 24: RFP issued to three on-call design professional firms. 

 November 8: Proposals due from the design professionals. 

 November 28: The Land Group selected as the design professional of record. 
 

2018 

 January: Task Order with The Land Group for design documents. 
Note:  Project costs are estimated at less than $200k – informal bidding is planned. 

 March 31:  90% construction drawings and specifications complete. 

 May:  ACHD reviews construction plans. 

 June – early: Grading permits – city review. 

 June – late:  Informal bidding - anticipated. 

 July: Contract awarded / Construction to proceed – anticipated. 
 

  



13 
 

CM/GC Westside District Urban Park Project 

Selection of a Construction Manager / General Contractor (CM/GC) for an Urban Park project in 

the Westside District. 

2017 

 November 22: Request for Qualifications issued. 

 Nov 23 & 30: Public notice in Idaho Statesman. 

 December 8: Submissions due from licensed CM/GCs. 
 

2018 

 January 8: Board approval of Wright Brothers as CM/GC. 

 March 7: Contract executed; pre-construction services begin. 
 

Power Line Undergrounding – Invitation to Bid 

Formal bid process to select an electrical contractor to install underground power in the alley 

between Main and Idaho running from 3rd Street to 5th Street.  The project will be in coordination 

with Idaho Power and ACHD. 

 January 24:  Invitation to Bid issued. 

 February 22:  Bids due.  One Bid received. 

 March 12:  Board awards contract to Anderson & Wood Construction.  

 March 27:  Contract executed.  

 April 2018:  Notice to Proceed  

 June 1, 2018:  Construction commences, in conjunction with ACHD’s start date. 
 

10th & Front Garage Concrete Repairs – RFQ and Bidding 

Two-step process to contract for extensive concrete repairs.  Pre-qualification process then 

bidding process.  Construction in summer 2018. 

 March 1, 2018: Request for Qualifications Issued. 

 March 1 and 8: Public notice in the Idaho Statesman newspaper/ 

 March 15:  Statements of Qualifications are due from licensed contractors. 

 April 9:   Board pre-qualifies three contractors. 

 May 9:   Invitation to Bid distributed to pre-qualified contractors.  

 May 30:   Two bids received.  

 June 11:   Board considers awarding contract. 

 July:    Contract executed, construction begins – anticipated.  
 

OTHER CONTRACTS ACTIVITY 

Central District: 

 Hawkins Companies:  Construction Access Agreement for 8th Street for extensive 
remodeling on the Capitol Terrace commercial condo units. 



14 
 

 Wash Worx:  Task Order to pressure wash 8th Street from Main to Bannock Streets. 

 Capitol Landscape:  Task Order to perform sidewalk brick repair and maintenance on 
downtown sidewalks. 

 Pavement Specialties Inc.:  Professional Services Agreement to re-stripe 8th Street 
from Main to Bannock. 

 

River Myrtle-Old Boise District: 

 Wash Worx:  Work Request to install two surface-mount bike racks near the intersection 
of 11th & Grove streets. 
 

Westside District: 

 Jensen Belts Associates:  Task Order Amendment for additional services related to 
the Westside Urban Park Project. 

 

Multi-District / Agency-focused / Interagency:  

 PGAV Consulting, LLC:  Professional Services Agreement to conduct an eligibility 
study of approximately 1425 parcels in the Central Bench Planning Area. 

 JedSplit Creative:  Task Order Amendment for additional services related to the 2017 
Annual report; to include the creation of a PowerPoint slide deck and production of 
additional hard copies of the report 

 


	06-11-2018 Board Meeting Agenda
	CONSENT - Paid Invoice Report
	05-14-2018 Board Meeting Minutes
	ACTION ITEM - Reso 1552 - Wells Fargo Retail Type 1 Approval
	ACTION ITEM - Reso 1556 - Approve 30th  St Plan Amendment (DeAnnex)
	ACTION ITEM - Reso 1555A and B Approve RMOB Plan Amendment Option A, B (DeAnnex)
	ACTION ITEM - Reso 1542 - Central District Termination
	ACTION ITEM - Capitol & Front Garage Disposition Approve Revised RFP
	ACTION ITEM - Reso 1551 - 10th & Front Garage Concrete Repairs
	ACTION ITEM - Reso 1553 - Central District CMGC Contract Amendment, GMP #3
	ACTION ITEM - Reso 1554 - Westside Downtown Urban Park Master Development Agreement
	INFORMATION - Secure Bike Parking Update
	June Operations Report



